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the best of the knowledge and belief of the directors (having taken all reasonable care 1o EnSure i sucr & we
case) the information contained in this Listing Memorandum is in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything likely to affect the import of such information.

In this Listing Memorandum, references to “Abbey National plc”, “dbbey National” and the “Company”
are references to Abbey National plc, and references to the “Group” are to Abbey National and its subsidiaries.
References to “conversion” are to the transfer of the business of Abbey National Building Society (the “Society”)
to Abbey National under Section 97 of the Building Societies Act 1986 which became effective on 12 July 1989 on
the completion of the offer of shares in Abbey National and the admission of the share capital of Abbey National
to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange.

The Sterling Preference Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933
as amended (the “Securities Act”). The Sterling Preference Shares are subject to U.S. tax law requirements.
Subject to certain exceptions, the Sterling Preference Shares may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United
States or to U.S. persons. Neither the delivery of this Listing Memorandum nor any sale made hereunder shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication or constitute a representation that there has been no change in
the affairs of Abbey National or the Group since the date hereof. This Listing Memorandum does not constitute
an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of Abbey National or the Managers (as defined under “Placing of the
Sterling Preference Shares ” below) to subscribe for or purchase, any of the Sterling Preference Shares.

No person is authorised in connection with the offering of the Sterling Preference Shares to give any
information or to make any representation not contained in this document and any information or representation
not contained herein must not be relied upon as having been authorised by Abbey National or any of the
Managers. The distribution of this Listing Memorandum in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Neither
Abbey National nor any of the Managers represents that this Listing Memorandum may be lawfully distributed in
compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an
exemption available thereunder, or assumes any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In
particular, save for obtaining the approval of this Listing Memorandum as listing particulars by the London Stock
Exchange and delivery of copies of this Listing Memorandum to the Registrar of Companies in England and
Wales, no action has been taken by Abbey National or the Managers which would permit distribution of this
Listing Memorandum in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, neither this
Listing Memorandum nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws.

In connection with the placing of the Sterling Preference Shares Merrill Lynch International Limited may
over-allot or effect transactions on the London Stock Exchange which stabilise or maintain the market price of the
Sterling Preference Shares at a level which might not otherwise prevail on that exchange. Such stabilising, if
commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

In this Listing Memorandum, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references to
“Dollars”, “U.S. dollars” and “US$” are to the currency of, and the references to “United States” and “U.S.” are
to, the United States of America and references to “pounds”, “Sterling” and “£” are to the currency of the United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the “United Kingdom”).
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SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Listing
Memorandum.

The Abbey National Group

General. The Abbey National Group is the fifth largest banking group based in the United Kingdom in
terms of assets, with total assets of £103.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of £3.9 billion as at June 30, 1995.
The Group’s business focuses on providing financial services to individuals in the United Kingdom, particu-
larly secured residential mortgage loans and investment and savings products. In 1994, Abbey National
ranked as the second largest residential mortgage lender in the United Kingdom, accounting for an
estimated 12.4% of the £374.3 billion total outstanding U.K. residential mortgage loans as at December 31,
1994, with 1.2 million residential mortgage account relationships. For the year ended December 31, 1994,
Abbey National had net income of £610 million, 56.4% higher than for the year ended December 31, 1993,
and the Tier 1 capital ratio as at the year end was 9.14%, compared to 9.38% as at the 1993 year end. The
Group’s net income for the six months ended June 30, 1995 was £324m, 18.7% higher than in the six months
ended June 30, 1994 and the Tier 1 capital ratio as at June 30, 1995 was 8.86% as compared with 9.52% as at
June 30, 1994. The Group has been consistently profitable over the last five years.

Abbey National was formed in 1944 as a result of the merger of the Abbey Road Building Society and
The National Building Society. In 1989, in order to improve its competitiveness, Abbey National converted
from a building society into a public limited company regulated as a bank by the Bank of England, the first
such U.K. society to have so converted. The Group is comprised of three main interdependent businesses:
U.K. Retail Banking, Life Insurance Operations and Treasury and Offshore. Retail banking in the United
Kingdom is the core activity of the Group, and the Life Insurance Operations and Treasury and Offshore
businesses complement and operate in a highly integrated fashion with this core activity.

Due to the focus of the Group on retail lending, it currently has no exposure to highly leveraged
transactions or to countries which are not members of the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development (with the exception of Cayman Islands, Singapore, Hong Kong and Saudi Arabia). The
security on the Group’s U.K. residential mortgage loans, together with the strong credit ratings of the
investment assets held in Treasury and Offshore, provide the Group with what management believes is
strong asset quality.

U.K. Retail Banking. U K. Retail Banking is the Group’s largest business, with total assets of £49.4 bil-
lion and income before taxes of £650 million as at and for the year ended December 31, 1994. The retail
banking activities are focused on U.K. residential mortgage lending and on offering a range of liquid savings
products, personal cheque accounts and non-life insurance.

The Group has one of the largest retail banking operations in the United Kingdom, with a national
network of 676 branches spread throughout the country, each offering Abbey National’s full retail product
range. In recent years the retail branch network has been substantially modernised and available sales area
has tripled. As at June 30, 1995, the retail branch network serviced over 12.6 million deposit and cheque
accounts and provided Abbey National with a retail funding base, composed primarily of variable rate
liabilities, of £37.2 billion (an estimated 8.4% of the aggregate balance of United Kingdom liquid savings).

Abbey National is the second largest provider of residential mortgages in the United Kingdom with
outstanding residential mortgage loans of £46.5 billion as at December 31, 1994. The Group’s portfolio of
loans and advances to customers consists primarily of residential mortgages, with approximately 93.3% of
the portfolio secured on residential property. Mortgage loans are made after a comprehensive credit and
collateral review process and typically have original terms of up to 25 years, with an average life of
approximately six years. Approximately 80% of Abbey National’s residential mortgage loans bear interest at
variable rates, which is typical in the United Kingdom. These rates are determined at Abbey National’s




discretion primarily by reference to the general level of market interest rates and competitive conditions.
The remainder of the mortgage loan portfolio is represented by fixed-rate mortgages, on which interest rates
are fixed usually for the first two to five years before switching thereafter to variable rates of interest.

Mortgage loans generally are issued with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 95%. All mortgages with
initial loan-to-value ratios in excess of 75% are covered by mortgage indemnity guarantees covering credit
risk on the portion of the mortgage in excess of 75% of the lower of the purchase price or the valuation of the
property. For loans originated prior to 1993 such credit risks are fully insured with third-party insurance
companies. For loans originated thereafter, Abbey National has obtained its mortgage indemnity guarantee
insurance from its insurance subsidiary, Carfax Insurance Limited (“Carfax”). It is Carfax’s policy to
reinsure a portion of these risks where commercially appropriate and although Carfax chose not to reinsure
these risks in 1993 for commercial reasons, reinsurance arrangements are in place for 1994 and 1995.

In August 1994, the Group announced the formation of a joint venture with Commercial Union plc, one
of the largest U.K. composite or multiline insurers. Over time this venture is expected to provide the bulk of
Abbey National’s non-life insurance product range.

Life Insurance Operations. 10 extend the range of financial products offered to retail customers, the
Group operates two life insurance companies, Abbey National Life plc (“Abbey National Life””) and Scottish
Mutual Assurance ple (“Scottish Mutual”), each of which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Abbey National.

Scottish Mutual, which the Group acquired in 1992, serves independent financial advisers through
which it distributes a comprehensive range of life insurance, pension and long-term savings products.
Scottish Mutual’s experience provided a basis for the Jaunch of Abbey National Life, which commenced
operations in February 1993 and utilises the Group’s retail branch network to distribute its products. Both
companies share selected policy processing and administration operations. The Group had life insurance
assets of £4.6 billion under management as at June 30, 1995, and, for the year ended December 31, 1994,
generated new business premiums of £726 million. In 1994, Life Insurance Operations contributed income
before taxes of £94 million, compared with £61 million in 1993.

Treasury and Offshore. The Group’s Treasury and Offshore business is comprised of treasury activities
conducted through Abbey National Treasury Services plc (“ANTS”) and the Group’s Gibraltar and Jersey
operations. ANTS’ main objectives are to manage the liquidity needs of the Group, to provide the Group
with wholesale funding and risk management services and to invest in high quality assets. ANTS is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Abbey National and an authorised U.K. banking institution. Abbey National has fully
and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of ANTS that have been or will be incurred before July 31,
1999. In turn, ANTS has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the unsecured and unsubordinated obliga-
tions of Abbey National that have been or will be incurred before December 31, 1999. Each guarantee is of
any obligation issued or incurred before its expiration, and covers payments to maturity, cven if the
guarantee is no longer in effect for subsequent obligations. As a result of the guarantee from Abbey
National, ANTS has the same short- and long-term credit ratings as Abbey National.

Through ANTS, Abbey National has been one of the largest issuers of debt securities in the interna-
tional bond markets over the last two years. In addition, ANTS has built a substantial investment portfolio
consisting primarily of highly liquid investment grade debt securities, mortgage-backed and other asset-
backed securities and finance leases. As at June 30, 1995, Treasury and Offshore had total assets of
£47.2 billion, which represented 45.5% of the Group’s total assets. As at such date more than 96.9% of
ANTS’ investment assets were rated A — or better (or the equivalent), and a substantial majority were rated
AA — or better (or the equivalent), by one or more rating organisations. Treasury and Offshore’s income
before taxes was £190 million in the year ended December 31, 1994, compared with £198 million in 1993.
Treasury and Offshore includes Abbey National Financial Products, which provides risk management
services in the currency and interest rate swap and option markets.
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Other operations. The Group has operations in France, Spain and Italy which principally provide
mortgage finance. The operation in Spain also takes retail deposits. The Group has other activities including
the provision of consumer credit, investing in certain structured debt securities and providing independent
financial advice and investment services to clients.

Strategy. The Abbey National Group’s strategy is to continue to focus on its three interdependent
businesses. Within U.K. Retail Banking, management is seeking to further improve Abbey National’s market
position in the U.K. personal financial services market, increasing its market share of the aggregate balances
of both mortgages and liquid savings. The Group also intends to continue to broaden its earnings base to
reduce dependence on traditional mortgage and savings activities. In addition, Abbey National is seeking,
over the long term, to strengthen its presence in the personal financial services markets of certain Continen-
tal European countries, particularly Spain, while managing the problem loans, now substantially provided
for, which had built up in its Continental Europe business during the economic recession of the early 1990s
(see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the
Group”). Through ANTS the Group also intends to establish branches or offices in major financial centres
outside the United Kingdom as part of ongoing efforts to diversify wholesale funding sources.

Complementing these strategic goals are the Group’s objectives to maintain strong management of, and
control over, risks, to further improve efficiency and thus maintain a low cost:income ratio (as compared to
the U.K. clearing banks), to maintain a prudent capital base and to preserve and further enhance its strong
brand name in the markets in which the Group operates.

Recent Developments

In July 1995, Abbey National and National & Provincial Building Society (“National & Provincial”)
announced that they had reached agreement in principle on the terms of a proposed merger which will be
unanimously recommended by the board of directors of National & Provincial to its members. The total
consideration being offered by Abbey National is £1.35 billion. Completion of the proposed merger is
subject to a number of conditions. In August 1995, Abbey National acquired First National Finance
Corporation p.Lc. (“FNFC”) for £285 million. FNFC’s predominant business activity is consumer credit.




Summary Selected Consolidated Financial and Statistical Data of the Group

Six months ended/
as at June 30,

1995 1994
(in millions, unaudited)

Income statement data

NG IDEETESE INCOME . « « « o e o e oo oo oo s s s e £ 748 £ 642
Commissions, fees and other iNCOME . .+« v v v v mn e e e e 177 197
Total OPETAting INCOME . .« o v+« v v vv e s s s s e st e 925 839
OPETAting EXPEMSES - .« « « v v v v o e st (412) (377)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts .. .. ... . c e (28) (41)
INCOME DEfOTE LAXES . o v v v v vv e v om e oo m e & e e e e 483 423
NELIMCOME « + « e e e e e e e e e e s 324 273
Balance sheet data
Shareholders’ EQUILY . « « « v o vt v v v e v e e e e e £ 3,928 £ 3,593
Subordinated Habilities . . « v v v v v v oo 1,572 1,044
Deposits by banks, customer accounts and debt securities inisSU€. . . ... . 89,754 77,088
Loans and advances to banks and customers and net investment in finance leases ... ......... 56,861 52,375
TOtAl ASSELS » » + + v~ e e e e 103,755 88,810

Year ended/
as at December 31, (1)

1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
(in millions)

Income statement data

Net iNtErest MCOMIE . « . v o v v e v v oo s e e e ea e £1394 £1,338 £1265 £1,143 £ 956
Commissions, fees and other income . . . .. ... ..ot 365 376 319 265 189

Total operating iNCOME . . . . oo v v oo n oo 1,759 1,714 1,584 1,408 1,145
OPErating EXPENSES . . « « « v o v v e e (755) (763) (706) (635) (508)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts . . ... ... ... . ... oo (74) (218) (274) (155) (55)
INCOME DEfOre LAXES o« v v v v e v e v e e et e 932 704 564 618 582
NELIMCOME © v o v v et e e et e et e e e e e s e e e 610 390 317 414 377
Balance sheet data
Shareholders’ equity . .. ..ottt 3,704 3,386 3,184 2,97 2,699
Subordinated Habilities . . . . . . . v oo e e 1,520 868 648 388 233
Deposits by banks, customer accounts and debt securities in issue. . . .. .. 81,835 73,471 64,116 52,353 42,175
Loans and advances to banks and customers and net investment in finance

EASES + .+ v v e e e e e e e e e e e e 53,668 50,858 46,074 41,650 36,253
TOtAl ASSELS © & v ¢ v e e e e e e e e e e 94,319 83,802 72,223 57,405 46,496

(1) The Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum for the years ended December 31, 1994,
1993 and 1992, from which certain data herein has been extracted, reflect the changes resulting from the Companies Act 1985
(Bank Accounts) Regulations 1991 (the “Bank Accounts Regulations”), which reflect the requirements of the European
Community Bank Accounts Directive (the “Bank Directive”) and which are effective from the 1993 fiscal year. The Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for 1992, but not for prior years, have been restated to reflect the Bank Directive require-
ments. There are, as a result, certain classification differences affecting net interest income and commissions, fees and other
income in comparing results prior to 1992 with those of 1992 and 1993. For 1992, the net differences amounted to a £16 million
reduction in commissions, fees and other income, with an increase in net interest income of £19 million and the reclassification of
£3 million as adjustments to/(amounts written off) fixed asset investments. There was no effect on net income for 1992. In addition
to certain reclassifications required by the statutory format of the Bank Directive, certain other assets and liabilities which were
previously shown net are required to be shown gross. The effect on the 1992 balance sheet was to increase both assets and
liabilities by £300 million. The implementation of the British Bankers’ Association Statement of Recommended Accounting
P}:actice (“SORP”) on securities resulted in a further increase in both assets and liabilities of £111 million in the 1992 balance
sheet.
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Year ended/
as at December 31, (1)

1994 1993 1992 1991 (2) 1990 (2)
(per cent., except ratio of earnings to fixed

charges)
Selected financial statistics
Profitability ratios:
Return on average total assets (3) . . . .. ....... ... . .. ... . ... 0.69 0.50 0.49 0.80 0.90
Return on average shareholders’ equity (4) .. ..................... 16.56 11.62 10.55 14.60 14.64
Return on average risk weighted assets (5) ... ... ................. 1.59 1.14 1.08 1.72 1.93
Net interest margin (6) . . . . .. . .ottt e e 1.73 1.89 2.10 2.26 2.34
Cost:income ratio (7). . . oo v it e 4292 4452 4457 45.10 44.37
Capital ratios: :
Dividends as a percentage of netincome ........................ 38.19 4718 47.63 33.33 33.16
Average shareholders’ equity as a percentage of average total assets . . ... .. 4.18 434 4.66 5.46 6.15
Risk asset ratios: (8)
Total . .. e e 11.53 1049 10.88 12.11 11.42
Tier 1 o o e e 914 938 9.86 11.22 12.39
Credit quality data:
Allowances as a percentage of year-end loans and advances to customers
excluding finance leases . . . ....... ... ... e 0.74 0.98 0.88 0.45 0.26
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts as a percentage of average loans and
advances to customers excluding finance leases . . .. .. .. ............ 0.16 0.49 0.67 0.42 0.17
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges: (9)
Excluding interest on retail deposits ... ........................ 1.45 1.37 1.28 1.41 1.43
Including interest on retail deposits . . . .. ........... . ... ... ... 1.24 1.19 1.12 1.13 1.12

(1) See Note 1 to the preceding table.

(2) All averages (other than average risk weighted assets) for 1991 and 1990 are based upon simple averages obtained by averaging
the balances at the beginning and end of the relevant period. Average risk weighted assets are calculated on a semi-annual basis.

(3) Net income divided by average total assets.

(4) Net income divided by average shareholders’ equity.

(5) Net income divided by average risk weighted assets. Average risk weighted assets are calculated on a semi-annual basis.

(6) Net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest earning assets.

(7) Cost:income ratio equals operating expenses divided by total operating income.

(8) 1In 1990, the Group’s Tier 1 capital ratio was larger than its total risk asset ratio because Bank of England supervisory deductions,
primarily for the priority liquidation distribution (a deduction arising from the terms of the Conversion), exceeded the value of
subordinated debt then in issue. See Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing
Memorandum for information on the priority liquidation distribution.

(9) For the purpose of calculating the ratios of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends, earnings consists of
income before taxes plus fixed charges. Fixed charges consists of interest payable, which includes the amortisation of discounts
and premiums on debt securities in issue and interest payable on finance lease obligations.




DESCRIPTION OF THE STERLING PREFERENCE SHARES

At the Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 1994, Abbey National’s shareholders gave the Board
of Directors of Abbey National (the “Directors”) authority to allot during the period ending on April 27,
1999 inter alia up to £500,000,000 aggregate nominal value of preference shares denominated in Sterling.
The terms of, and the rights attaching to, the Original Sterling Preference Shares and the Sterling Preference
Shares (together with all other shares expressed to rank pari passu therewith, the “Preference Shares”) are
contained in Abbey National’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”) and in resolutions of a duly consti-
tuted Committee of the Board of Directors of Abbey National passed on September 26, 1995 and Febru-
ary 8, 1996, respectively (together, the “Terms of Issue”).

The summary set forth below does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its
entirety by reference to, Abbey National’s Memorandum of Association and Articles and the resolutions
adopted by the Board of Directors of Abbey National or an authorised committee thereof establishing the
rights, preferences, privileges, limitations and restrictions relating to the Sterling Preference Shares.

Denomination and Form

The Sterling Preference Shares will have a nominal value of £1 each and will be issued fully paid for
cash. The Sterling Preference Shares will rank pari passu inter se and with all other shares expressed to rank
pari passu therewith (including the Original Sterling Preference Shares, save in relation to the entitlement to
the dividend payable on April 9, 1996) and in priority to the Ordinary Shares of 10p each (“Ordinary
Shares”) and any other shares of Abbey National.

The Sterling Preference Shares will be in registered form. Certificates shall be delivered to the persons
entitled thereto as soon as practicable after admission of the Sterling Preference Shares to the Official List of
the London Stock Exchange and, in any case, no later than three business days thereafter.

Transfers of the Sterling Preference Shares must be in writing, in the usual common form, or in such
other form as the Directors may approve. The Directors may refuse to register a transfer of shares if:—

(i) the transfer is in respect of more than one class of shares; or

(i) the transfer is not lodged, duly stamped, at the registered office of Abbey National or at such other
place as the Directors may appoint, accompanied by the certificate of the shares to be transferred
and such other evidence (if any) as the Directors may require to show the right of the intending
transferor to make the transfer; or

(iii) the transfer is to more than four joint holders.
The Directors may also decline to register any transfer of a share which is not fully paid up.

Title to Sterling Preference Shares will pass by transfer and registration on the register for the Sterling
Preference Shares. Any such registration of transfer will be effected without charge to the person requesting
such registration, but subject to payment by such person of any taxes, stamp duties or other governmental
charges payable in connection therewith.

Dividends

(a) Each Sterling Preference Share shall entitle the holder thereof to receive a non-cumulative preferential
dividend at the rate of 10% per cent. per annum of the nominal amount of such share calculated on the
basis set out in sub-paragraph (b) below which will be payable in Sterling in equal half-yearly instal-
ments in arrear on April 6 and October 6 in each year (each a “Dividend Payment Date”) and shall
accrue from (and including) the preceding April 6 or October 6, respectively, provided that the first
dividend instalment shall be payable on April 9, 1996 and shall be in respect of the period from (and
including) February 13, 1996 to (but excluding) April 6, 1996.




(b)

(c)

Such dividend shall only be payable to the extent that payment of the same can be made out of profits
available for distribution under the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, as amended (the “Compa-
nies Act”) as at each Dividend Payment Date. The Sterling Preference Shares shall rank as regards
participation in profits pari passu inter se and with all other shares to the extent that they are expressed
to rank pari passu therewith and in priority to the Ordinary Shares and any other class of shares.

(i) Subject to the Companies Act, the dividend payable on each Sterling Preference Share on any
Dividend Payment Date shall be fixed at such rate per annum as will ensure that the sum of (1) the
dividend payable on such date and (2) the Associated Tax Credit (as defined below) in respect of any
such dividend represents an annual rate equal to 10% per cent. per annum of the nominal amount of
such share provided that if, as a result of any actual change in, or amendment to, the laws of the United
Kingdom or any political sub-division thereof or any authority having power to levy or impose in the
United Kingdom any taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatsoever nature (“tax”)
or any change in the application of official or generally accepted interpretation of such laws, which
change or amendment becomes effective after October 23, 1995, Abbey National is obliged to pay any
amount representing tax by reference to any dividend payable on the Sterling Preference Shares (the
“Dividend”) and the aggregate of the Dividend and any such amount representing tax exceeds the
amount calculated by applying an annual rate of 10% per cent. per annum to the nominal amount of the
Sterling Preference Shares, the amount of the Dividend shall be reduced so that the amount of the
Dividend together with the amount representing tax shall be no more than an annual rate of 10% per
cent. of the nominal amount of the Sterling Preference Shares.

(i) For these purposes, Abbey National shall not be regarded as being obliged to pay an amount
representing tax to the extent that it (or any of its subsidiaries (as defined for the purposes of the
Companies Act)) is entitled as a matter of law to any credit (which term shall include any allowance,
reduction, or other relief) for such amount against its own liability to tax (even if it (or any of its
subsidiaries (as defined for the purposes of the Companies Act)) did not make the necessary claim to
get the credit, or have profits, make gains, or bear tax in relation to which to use the credit).

(iii) For these purposes, the term “Associated Tax Credit” means any United Kingdom taxation in
accordance with, and at the rate specified by, United Kingdom law in effect at the relevant time
(a) which is, or is treated as having been, borne by a recipient of dividends on the Sterling Preference
Shares by deduction at source or otherwise or (b) for which a credit (which term shall include an
absence of or relief from liability and, if appropriate, a repayment of United Kingdom taxation) in
respect of United Kingdom taxation is available to the recipient of such dividends, in each case on the
assumption that such recipient is an individual resident in the United Kingdom for United Kingdom
taxation purposes.

(iv) For the avoidance of doubt, if Abbey National were to elect for any dividend paid on the Sterling
Preference Shares to be treated as a “foreign income dividend” with the result that such dividend does
not carry an Associated Tax Credit, Abbey National shall be required to increase the rate of the cash
dividend paid on the Sterling Preference Shares on the basis described above so that the sum of the
dividend payable on the Sterling Preference Shares on the relevant Dividend Payment Date, together
with the Associated Tax Credit (if any) in respect of such cash dividend, expressed as an annual rate,
shall equal 10% per cent. of the nominal amount of such shares subject to the proviso to the first sub-
paragraph of this paragraph (b).

Any reference in this paragraph (b) to the United Kingdom shall mean the United Kingdom, any
political sub-division thereof and any authority having power to levy or impose taxation therein.

If, in the opinion of the Directors, the profits of Abbey National available for distribution are sufficient
to enable payment in full of dividends on the Sterling Preference Shares on any Dividend Payment Date
and also the payment in full of all other dividends stated to be payable on the same date on any other
shares (including any arrears or deficiency of dividend on such other shares that are in cumulative form)
ranking pari passu as to dividends with the Sterling Preference Shares, then such dividends on the
Sterling Preference Shares and such other shares shall be declared and paid in full.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

(i)

If, in the opinion of the Directors, the profits of Abbey National available for distribution are insuffi-
cient to cover the payment in full of dividends on the Sterling Preference Shares on any Dividend
Payment Date and also the payment in full of all other dividends stated to be payable on such date on
any other shares (including any arrears oOf deficiency of dividend on any such other shares that are in
cumulative form) expressed to rank pari passu with the Sterling Preference Shares as regards participa-
tion in profits then dividends shall be declared by the Directors pro rata on such Sterling Preference
Shares and on such other shares to the extent of the profits (if any) available for distribution so that the
amount of dividend declared per share on each such Sterling Preference Share and on each such other
share shall bear to each other the same ratio as the dividends accrued per share on each such Sterling
Preference Share and on each such other share (including any arrears or deficiency of dividend on any
such other shares that are in cumulative form) bear to each other. If it shall subsequently appear that
any such dividend which has been paid should not, in accordance with the provisions of this and the
preceding sub-paragraph, have been so paid, then, provided the Directors shall have acted in good faith,
they shall not incur any liability for any loss which any shareholder may suffer in consequence of such
payment having been made.

If, in the opinion of the Directors, the payment of any dividend on any Sterling Preference Shares would
breach or cause a breach of the Bank of England’s capital adequacy requirements from time to time
applicable to Abbey National, then none of such dividend shall be declared or paid unless the Bank of
England shall otherwise agree.

Subject to any right to be allotted additional Sterling Preference Shares in accordance with sub-
paragraph (g) below, Sterling Preference Shares shall carry no further right as regards participation in
the profits of Abbey National and if on any occasion a dividend (or any part thereof) is not paid for the
reason specified in sub-paragraph (d) or (e) above, the holders of the Sterling Preference Shares shall

have no claim in respect of such non-payment.

(i) The provisions of this sub-paragraph shall apply where any dividend or any part thereof otherwise
payable on a particular Dividend Payment Date on any Sterling Preference Shares (a “Relevant
Payment”) is, for a reason specified in sub-paragraphs (d) or (e) above, not payable and the amounts (if
any) standing to the credit of Abbey National’s profit and loss account together with the amount of the
reserves of Abbey National available for the purpose (including any share premium account and capital
redemption reserve) are sufficient to be applied and capable of being applied in paying up in full at par
additional Sterling Preference Shares on the basis provided in (ii) below.

(i) On the Dividend Payment Date of the Relevant Payment had such payment been payable in cash,
the Directors shall, subject to the Companies Act, in lieu of such cash payment and in discharge of any
entitlement thereto allot and issue credited as fully paid to each holder of Sterling Preference Shares
such additional nominal amount of Sterling Preference Shares as is, ignoring fractions, equal to the
amount which would have been payable to him had such payment been made in cash, plus any
Associated Tax Credit (as defined in paragraph (b)(iii) above had such cash payment been made) but
subject to the proviso set out in paragraph (b)(i) as applied to the allotment of the Sterling Preference
Shares rather than to the dividend which they represent but not subject to that proviso in relation to the
calculation of the cash amount.

For the purposes of paying up the Sterling Preference Shares to be allotted pursuant to sub-paragraph
(g) above, the Directors shall capitalise, out of such of the accounts or reserves of Abbey National
available for the purpose as they shall determine (including any share premium account and capital
redemption reserve), a sum equal to the aggregate nominal amount of the additional Sterling Prefer-
ence Shares then to be allotted and shall apply such sum in paying up in full the new Sterling Preference
Shares referred to in sub-paragraph (g) above.

The additiongl Sterling Preference Shares so allotted pursuant to sub-paragraph (g) shall be denomi-
nated in Sterling and shall confer the same rights and be subject to the same limitations as, and shall

rank' ;?ari passu and pro rata in all respects with, the Sterling Preference Shares save only as regards
participation in the Relevant Payment.
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0)

(k)

If any additional Sterling Preference Shares falling to be allotted under sub-paragraph (g) above cannot
be allotted by reason of any insufficiency in Abbey National’s authorised share capital or in the amount
of relevant securities which the Directors are authorised to allot in accordance with Section 80 of the
Companies Act, at the next annual general meeting of Abbey National, the Directors shall propose a
resolution or resolutions to effect an appropriate increase in the authorised share capital of Abbey
National and to grant to the Directors the appropriate authority to allot the additional Sterling
Preference Shares.

If any Dividend Payment Date is not a day on which banks in London are open for business and on
which foreign exchange dealings may be conducted in London (a “Sterling Business Day”), then
payment of the dividend otherwise payable on such Dividend Payment Date will be made on the next
succeeding Sterling Business Day (and without any interest or other payment in respect of such delay)
unless such day shall fall within the next calendar month in which case such payment will be made on the
preceding Sterling Business Day.

(m) Dividends payable on Sterling Preference Shares in respect of any period shorter or longer than a full

(n)

(0)

dividend period will be calculated on the basis of a 365 day year and the actual number of days elapsed
in such period.

If any dividend stated to be payable on any Sterling Preference Share is not declared and paid in full (or
a sum is not set aside to provide for such payment in full) or additional Sterling Preference Shares have
not been allotted in respect thereof in accordance with sub-paragraph (g) above, then until such time
as:—

(i) all dividends on preference shares of Abbey National in cumulative form (including any arrears or
deficiency of dividend in respect thereof) have been paid in full or a sum has been set aside for
payment in full; and

(ii) all dividends on Sterling Preference Shares have been paid in full or a sum has been set aside for
payment in full or, where relevant, additional Sterling Preference Shares have been allotted in
respect thereof in accordance with sub-paragraph (g) above, in respect of the then most recently
ended half-yearly dividend period in relation to the Sterling Preference Shares,

Abbey National may not (without the written consent of three-fourths in nominal value of, or the
sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a seperate general meeting of the holders of Sterling
Preference Shares) thereafter redeem, reduce, purchase or otherwise acquire for any consideration any
other share capital of Abbey National ranking as regards participation in the assets of Abbey National
pari passu with or after the Sterling Preference Shares and, save as provided in sub-paragraph (o) below,
no dividends may be paid or declared on any other share capital of Abbey National ranking as regards
participation in profits after the Sterling Preference Shares.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing or any provision in the Articles, the Directors may, subject to the
Statutes, pay a special dividend (net of any Associated Tax Credit) on the Sterling Preference Shares of
an amount not exceeding £0.01 per share if, in the opinion of the Directors, it is necessary to do so to
preserve the status of Abbey National’s shares as wider range investments under the Trustee Invest-
ments Act 1961 as amended or re-enacted from time to time.

Capital

(a)

On a return of capital or on a distribution of assets on a winding up (but not on a redemption or
purchase by Abbey National of shares of any class) the Sterling Preference Shares shall rank pari passu
inter se and with any other shares that are expressed to rank pari passu therewith as regards participa-
tion in assets, and otherwise in priority to any other share capital of Abbey National. On such a return of
capital or winding up, each Sterling Preference Share shall, out of the surplus assets of Abbey National
available for distribution amongst the members after payment of Abbey National’s liabilities, carry the
right to receive an amount equal to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on such Sterling
Preference Share together with any premium paid on issue, and also together with:—
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(i) the full amount of any dividend thereon, whether or not declared or earned, which would otherwise
be due for payment and is not otherwise paid on a Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the
date of commencement of the winding up or other return of capital but which is payable in respect
of a period ending on or before such date; and

(i) in respect of any period in respect of which a dividend thereon would otherwise be payable and is
not otherwise paid that begins before, but ends after, the date of the commencement of the winding
up or other return of capital, the proportion, whether or not declared or earned, of the dividend
that would otherwise have been payable thereon in respect of such period that is attributable to the

part of the period that ends on such date.

(b) If, upon any such return of capital or winding up, the amounts available for payment are insufficient to
cover the amounts payable in full on the Sterling Preference Shares and on any other shares expressed
to rank pari passu therewith as regards participation in assets, then the holders of the Sterling Prefer-
ence Shares and such other shares will share rateably in the distribution of surplus assets (if any) in
proportion to the full respective preferential amounts to which they are entitled.

(c) No Sterling Preference Share shall confer any right to participate on a return of capital or a distribution
of assets of Abbey National other than that set out in (a) and (b) above.

Redemption
The Sterling Preference Shares shall not be redeemable.

Voting
The holders of Sterling Preference Shares shall only be entitled to receive notice of or to attend, speak
and/or vote at General Meetings of Abbey National in the following circumstances:

(i) if the dividend on the Sterling Preference Shares has not been paid in full (or the entitlement
thereto discharged by the allotment of additional Sterling Preference Shares in accordance with
these terms and conditions) for the three consecutive dividend periods immediately prior to the
notice convening the relevant General Meeting; or

(i) if a resolution is to be proposed at the General Meeting varying, altering or abrogating any of the
rights, privileges, limitations or restrictions attaching to the Sterling Preference Shares and then
only on the relevant resolution; or

(iii) if a resolution is to be proposed at the General Meeting to wind up Abbey National and then only
on the relevant resolution;

but not otherwise. Whenever holders of the Sterling Preference Shares are entitled to vote at & General
Meeting, on a show of hands every such holder who is present in person shall have one vote and, on a poll,
every such holder who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for each Sterling Preference Share
held.

Purchases

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Articles and, if applicable, the rights conferred on
any class of shares of Abbey National, Abbey National may at any time purchase any Sterling Preference
Shares in issue in the market, by tender or by private treaty upon such terms and conditions as the Directors
may think fit. No repurchase of any Sterling Preference Shares will be made without the prior consent of the
Bank of England.

Variations of Rights and Further Issues

(a) Save Yvith the written consent of the holders of three-quarters in nominal value of the Preference Shares
then in issue, or with the sanction of an Extraordinary Resolution passed at a separate General Meeting
Qf the holders of the Preference Shares then in issue, the Directors shall not authorise or create, or
increase the amount of, any shares of any class, or any securities convertible into shares of any class,




ranking as regards rights to participate in the profits or assets of Abbey National (other than on a
redemption or purchase by Abbey National of any such share) in priority to the Sterling Preference
Shares. ‘

(b) Subject to sub-paragraph (a) above, the rights attaching to the Sterling Preference Shares shall not be
deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of any other preference shares or other shares, or any
securities convertible into shares of any class, ranking, as regards participation in profits or assets, pari
passu with or after the Sterling Preference Shares, whether carrying identical rights in all respects with
the Sterling Preference Shares or carrying rights differing therefrom in any respect including as to
dividend, premium on a return of capital, redemption, conversion, denomination and currency of issue.

Notices

Any notice required to be given by Abbey National to the holders of the Sterling Preference Shares shall
be sufficiently given if posted to such holders in accordance with the Articles.

Registrar and Paying Agent
The registrar’s department of Abbey National, presently located at Carbrook House, 5 Carbrook Hall
Road, Sheffield S9 2EG, will act as registrar and paying agent for the Sterling Preference Shares.
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RIGHTS ATTACHING TO THE SHARE CAPITAL OF ABBEY NATIONAL

The following is a summary of certain rights attaching to the Ordinary Shares and of certaip proYisions
of Abbey National’s Articles of Association. This summary does not‘pu.rport to'be compl‘ete and is spbject to,
and qualified in its entirety by reference to, the Articles of Assoqatlon, copies of which are available for
inspection (see “Documents available for inspection”) below. The rights attaching to the Sterling Preference
Shares are summarised in the section headed “Description of the Sterling Preference Shares”. Save in
relation to the entitlement to the preferential dividend on April 6, 1996, the rights attaching to the Original
Sterling Preference Shares are identical to those attaching to the Sterling Preference Shares.

Income
Dividends may only be declared and paid out of the distributable profits of Abbey National.

Subject to the rights of the holders of shares having special rights as to dividends, Abbey National may
by ordinary resolution from time to time declare dividends on the Ordinary Shares in amounts not exceeding
the amounts recommended by the board. The board may pay interim dividends on the Ordinary Shares
according to the financial position of Abbey National. Dividends on the Ordinary Shares may be declared or
paid in any currency. No dividends may be paid or declared on the Ordinary Shares until such time as all
dividends on any class of share capital ranking prior to the Ordinary Shares have been paid in full.

Except in so far as the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue of, any share otherwise provide, all
dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the shares in respect of which the
dividend is paid and all dividends shall be apportioned and paid pro rata according to the amounts paid up
on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid.

Any dividend unclaimed after a period of twelve years from the date when it becomes due for payment
will be forfeited and revert to Abbey National.

Abbey National may by ordinary resolution direct, upon the recommendation of the board, that a
dividend shall be satisfied wholly or partly by the distribution of assets.

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of Abbey National, offer any holders of
Ordinary Shares the right to elect to receive Ordinary Shares, credited as fully paid, instead of cash in respect
of the whole (or some part, to be determined by the board) of any dividend specified in such resolution.

Capital

In the event of a return of capital on a winding up, or otherwise, after payment of all liabilities and
subject to the rights of the holders of any shares with preferential rights on a return of capital, the remaining
assets of Abbey National will be divided among the holders of the Ordinary Shares according to the number
held thereof.

Alteration of share capital
Abbey National may from time to time by ordinary resolution:

(a) increase its share capital by such sum divided into shares of such amount as the resolution shall
direct; or

(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing
shares; or

(c) (subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts) sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares
of smaller amount and the resolution may determine that, as between the resulting shares, one or
more of such shares may be given preference over the others; or

(d) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed

to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its share capital by the amount of the shares
so cancelled.
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Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and to the rights conferred on any class of shares,
Abbey National may from time to time by special resolution reduce its share capital, any capital redemption
reserve and any share premium account.

Voting Rights

Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any shares may be issued or may for the time being
be held or any suspension or any abrogation of voting rights, upon a show of hands every holder of Ordinary
Shares who is present in person at a general meeting shall have one vote, and on a poll every holder of
Ordinary Shares who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every Ordinary Share of which
he is the holder. Voting at a general meeting is by show of hands unless a poll is demanded.

Pre-emption Rights

Holders of Ordinary Shares have no pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association. However, the
ability of the directors to (a) allot any shares or rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security into, any
shares of Abbey National under any circumstances or (b) to issue for cash Ordinary Shares or rights to
subscribe for, or to convert any security into, Ordinary Shares otherwise than by way of rights to existing
holders of Ordinary Shares is restricted by law and (except in certain cases) requires appropriate authorisa-
tion to be given by shareholders in general meeting.

Variation of Rights

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, all or any of the rights for the time being attached to
any class of shares for the time being issued may from time to time be varied with the consent in writing of
the holders of not less than three-fourths in nominal value of the issued shares of that class or with the
sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a separate general meeting ot the holders of those shares.

Transfer of Shares

Any member may transfer all or any of his Ordinary Shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual
form or in any other form which the board may approve. The instrument of transfer shall be executed by or
on behalf of the transferor and (in the case of a partly paid share) the transferee, and the transferor shall be
deemed to remain the holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered in the register in respect
of it.

The board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving any reason for so doing, decline to register
any transfer of any share which is not a fully paid share. The board may also decline to register a transfer
unless the instrument of transfer:

(a) is lodged with Abbey National at its registered office (or at such other place as the board may
appoint) accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which it relates and such other evidence
as the board may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer;

(b) is in respect of only one class of shares; and

(c) if to joint transferees, is in favour of not more than four such transferees.

ORIGINAL PREFERENCE SHARES AND EXCHANGEABLE CAPITAL SECURITIES

On October 23, 1995, Abbey National issued 100,000,000 10% per cent. Non-Cumulative Sterling
Preference Shares of £1 each (the “Original Preference Shares’) and £200,000,000 10% per cent. Exchange-
able Capital Securitities (the “Capital Securities”) which are exchangeable (as described below) into 10%
per cent. Non-Cumulative Sterling Preference Shares of £1 each (the “New Sterling Preference Shares”).
The Sterling Preference Shares rank and the New Sterling Preference Shares, if allotted, would rank pari
passu with the Sterling Preference Shares. The Original Sterling Preference Shares and the Capital Securi-
ties have been admitted to the Official List. All of the Capital Securities remain outstanding.

Abbey National may, having given not less than 30 and not more than 60 days’ notice to the holders of
the Capital Securities (the “Holders”) exchange all or part of the Capital Securities (having an principal
amount which is an integral multiple of £25,000,000) for New Sterling Preference Shares on the basis that the
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Holders will receive one New Sterling Preference Share for each £1 principal amount of Capital Securities
held. In the case of a partial exchange, serial numbers for the Capital Securities will be drawn in a manner
approved by the trustee for the Holders. Abbey National is at liberty to make such number of partial

exchanges as it may consider appropriate.

PROCEEDS OF ISSUE

The net proceeds from the issue of the Sterling Preference Shares will be used to strengthen the
Group’s capital base in line with the Group’s strategy and in the light of recent and proposed acquisitions
(see “Recent Developments”).
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CAPITALISATION

The following table sets forth the authorised and issued share capital of Abbey National and the

capitalisation of the Group as at December 31, 1994 and October 31, 1995.

ABBEY NATIONAL
Authorised ordinary share capital comprising shares of 10peach.........
Authorised preference share capital . ..........cooverreree

Equity Shareholders’ Funds ‘
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10p each ...................
SRATE PIEMIUML . . o oo v v v v vvn o ee e e e s
RESEIVES & o v o e e eee e aa e
Retained €armings .. .. ovovvvvvrmenrmeareen s

Non Equity Shareholders’ Funds
Issued and fully paid preference shares of £1 €aCh . . oo
Share PIEMUUM . .. .o vvvevn e vnnnen e e

GROUP

Subordinated Notes (2)(3)
Due Withill ONE YEAT ..o vvvvevar e
Due after more than one year and less than five years . ...............
Due after fiVe YEATS . . o vt vv et
Exchangeable Capital Securities .. ......ooovvenee e

Medium-Term Notes (2)(3)
Due Withill ONE YEAT ...\ vvviv ittt
Due after more than one year and less than five years . . ..............
Due after fIVE YEAIS . . . v oot v

Other Loan Capital (2)(3)
Floating/Variable Rate Notes
Due Within ONe YEAT . . ..o ot v e
Due after more than one year and less than five years .. ..............
Due after fiVE YEATS « . oo v v v v v e e

Fixed-Rate Bonds/Notes

Due Withill ONE YEAT .« oo v v vvneme e nem e
Due after more than one year and less than five years . ...............
Due after fiVe YEATS . .. oo v v e o

Total Capitalisation (4)(5) . .-« «c oo ovrvrnn e
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October 31, December 31,
1995 1994
(in millions of £)

(unaudited)
175 175
506 506
132 131
843(1) 840
104(1) 104
2,850(1) 2,629
100 —
2 —_
4,031 3,704
129 128
8 17
1,890 1,375
2001) —
2,227 1,520
2,406 2,390
1,721 2,628
285 285
4,412 5,303
251 538
1,017 1,330
319 —
1,587 1,868
1,234 626
4,891 4,604
3,110 3,060
9,235 8,290
21,492 20,685

(footnotes on next page)




)
@)

€)

4)

)

As at June 30, 1995.

All of the bonds and notes are guaranteed by Abbey National, with the exception of certain unsecured
indebtedness of Abbey National which amounted to £22 million and £839 million as at December 31,
1994 and October 31, 1995, respectively, and certain secured indebtedness of Abbey National which
amounted to £1,127 million and £828 million as at December 31, 1994 and October 31, 1995,

respectively.

Liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at market exchange rates prevailing at
December 31, 1994 or October 31, 1995, as appropriate. For the adjustments made in Note 4, market
exchange rates prevailing at October 31, 1995 are used.

Based on market exchange rates prevailing at October 31, 1995, the total capitalisation of the Group has
decreased by £580 million between October 31, 1995 and February 9, 1996 as a result of issues and
repayments amounting to £685 million and £1,265 million, respectively.

Except for the information disclosed above, there has been no material change in the authorised and
issued share capital of Abbey National and no material change in the capitalisation of the Group since
October 31, 1995. Abbey National expects to have £200,000,000 of issued and fully paid preference
share capital after completion of the offering of the Sterling Preference Shares offered hereby.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA

The financial information set forth below for the twelve months ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and
1992, and as at December 31, 1994 and 1993, has been extracted from the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Group included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum. The financial information set forth below for
the six-month periods ended June 30, 1995 and 1994 has been extracted from the Unaudited Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum. The
information should be read in connection with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto. Financial information set forth below for the
twelve months ended December 31, 1991 and 1990, and as at December 31, 1992, 1991 and 1990, has been
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for 1992, 1991 and 1990. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group for each of the five years ended December 31, 1994 have
been audited by Coopers & Lybrand, independent chartered accountants. The Group’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements, each as included else-
where in this Listing Memorandum have been prepared in accordance with U.K. GAAP, which differ in
certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. Certain significant differences between U.K. GAAP and
U.S. GAAP are discussed in Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial Statements which includes reconcilia-
tions of certain amounts calculated in accordance with U.K. GAAP to U.S. GAAP.




Six months ended/as at

June 30,
1995 1994
(in millions, except per
share data)
(unaudited)
Income statement data
Net iMErest iMCOME « « o v v v v v e e e s s s s £ 748 £ 642
Commissions, fees and other INCOME . ..« . v e 177 197
Total OPErating iNCOME . .« v« oo v vt e e e 925 839
OPETAting EXPENSES . « « « « o+ v s et e s s s (412) (377)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts .. ............ e (28) (41)
Adjustments to/(amounts written off) fixed asset investments . .............. 2 2
Income before taxes and exceptional items . .. ... 483 423
Exceptional items, net . ........ ... e e — —
INCOME DEFOTE LAXES . « o o v e v v e e e e e et 483 423
NEL INICOMIE .+ v v e e e e e ettt e i e e 324 273
Per share information:
Net income (1) .« oo oot e 24.7p 20.8p
DividEndS .« v v vt e e e e e 7.25 5.7
Balance sheet data
Shareholders’ EQUILY . . .« o oo vttt £ 3928 £ 3,593
Subordinated Habilities . . . . o o o vt i e e 1,572 1,044
Deposits by banks, customer accounts and debt securities inissue. . .......... 89,754 77,088
Loans and advances to banks and customers and net investment in finance leases 56,861 52,375
TOtAL ASSELS & o v v o v e e e e e e e e e e e 103,755 88,810
Book value pershare . . ... .. 298.0p 274.1p

(1) Net income divided by the average number of shares outstanding.




Year ended/as at December 31, (1)

1994 (2) 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
(in millions, except per share data)
U.K. GAAP income statement data
Net interest NCOME & « v v v v v v e v v v i e oot e e s e e e $ 2,184 £ 1394 £1338 £1265 £1,143 £ 956
Commissions, fees and otherincome . . .. ................. 572 365 376 319 265 189
Total operating inCOME . « . . .« v v v ev v e e e 2,756 1,759 1,714 1,584 1,408 1,145
OPperating EXPenseS . . & v v v v (1,183) (755) (763) (706) (635) (508)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts . ................... (116) (74) (218) (274) (155) (55)
Adjustments to/(amounts written off) fixed asset investments . . . . . . 3 2 1 3) — —_
Income before taxes and exceptional items . .. ........... 1,460 932 734 601 618 582
Exceptional items, net (3) . . .. ..o — - (30) 37 — —
Income before taxes . .. .. ..o v it 1,460 932 704 564 618 582
NEtINCOME &« v v e v v e e ettt oo 956 610 390 317 414 377
Per share information:
Netincome (4) . o oo v e 72.9¢ 46.5p 29.7p 24.2p 31.6p 28.8p
Dividends . . . . v e e s 279 17.8 14.0 11.5 10.5 9.5
ANTS net income (5) .« v v oo i $ 172 £ 110 £ 117 £ 113 £ 72 £ 12
U.S. GAAP income statement data
NEtincome (6) .+ - v v v v v oot e § 82 £ 525 £ 345 £ 324 £ 419 £ 360
Pershare (4)(6) . . .« o v oo v v e 62.7¢ 40.0p 26.3p 24.7p 32.0p 27.5p
U.K. GAAP balance sheet data
Shareholders’ equity . . . . ... oot $ 5802 £ 3,704 £338 £3,184 £2971 £ 2,699
Subordinated liabilities . . . . . . ... 2,381 1,520 868 648 388 233
Deposits by banks, customer accounts and debt securities in issue. . . 128,195 81,835 73,471 64,116 52,353 42,175
Loans and advances to banks and customers and net investment in
FiNANCE LEASES . « v v v v et e e e 84,071 53,668 50,858 46,074 41,650 36,253
Total @SSEts (7) . v v v v v v v vt 147,751 94,319 83,802 72,223 57,405 46,496
Book value pershare. .. ....... oo 442.1¢ 282.2p 258.3p 242.9p 226.8p 206.0p
ANTS total @ssets (5) . v v v v v i i i $ 70,615 £45078 £37,240 £28,107 £18,775 £10,854
ANTS net assets (5) « v v oo v et on oo e 1,545 986 878 760 647 275
U.S. GAAP balance sheet data
Shareholders’ equity (6) . . .« . v e 6,097 3,892 3,552 3,371 3,183 2,892
Book value pershare . . . ... ..o vvi i 464.6¢ 296.6p 270.9p 257.1p 243.0p 220.8p
Total @assets (7). o v v vt v v ie e P $141,389 £ 90,258 £79,959 £69,473  £57,504  £46,590

(1) See Note 1 to the Summary Selected Consolidated Financial and Statistical Data of the Group above.

(2) Amounts stated in dollars have been translated from sterling at the rate of £1.00 = $1.5665, the Noon Buying Rate on December 30,
1994,

(3) Exceptional items include losses on disposal/reorganisation of the Group’s residential estate agency business of £30 million and £138

million in the years ended December 31, 1993 and 1992, respectively, partially offset by a gain on the sale of unclaimed shares of £101
million in the year ended December 31, 1992.

In August 1993, Abbey National sold its residential estate agency business. A loss on the disposal of such business of £30 million was
recognised as an exceptional item in the year ended December 31, 1993. In December 1992, the Group sold 29 million shares unclaimed
by former Abbey National Building Society members who were eligible for a distribution of free shares as a result of Abbey National’s
Conversion to a public limited company in July 1989. The net proceeds from the sale of these shares, together with a small number of
misallocated shares sold in August 1992, was £106 million and is net of a provision for the possibility that valid claims will continue to be
received. Following the sale, the Abbey National Charitable Trust was endowed with a sum of £5 million. £101 million is reflected as an
exceptional item for the year ended December 31, 1992. For further explanation see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.

Also in 1992, Abbey National made further residential estate agency branch closures (and recorded an exceptional charge of £12 million
in respect of closures made or announced) as part of an ongoing rationalisation of its residential estate agency operations and took an
exceptional charge of £113 million as an exceptional item to reflect a permanent diminution in the value of goodwill in such business. In
addition, there were related charges in 1992 of £13 million in respect of the loss of goodwill on the sale and closure of certain segments of
the residential estate agency business.
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4

(%)

(6)

N

Net income divided by the average number of shares outstanding. See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.

Net income, total assets and net assets for ANTS has been extracted from ANTS’ consolidated financial statements. Financial
information on ANTS differs from financial information disclosed for the business segment Treasury and Offshore as a result of the
inclusion of certain intra-group transactions in ANTS’ consolidated financial statements, the inclusion of the results of Abbey National
North America Corporation and Abbey National (Gibraltar) in Treasury and Offshore, and an adjustment to the income of Treasury and
Offshore to reflect a consistent allocation of Group capital across the Group’s business segments. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Results of Operations of the Group by Principal Business Segment” below
and Notes 1 and 53 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

See Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum for a discussion of certain
significant differences between U.K. GAAP and U.S. GAAP and reconciliations of net income and shareholders’ equity to U.S. GAAP.

Long-term insurance fund assets are included in U.K. GAAP total assets but are excluded from U.S. GAAP total assets. See Note 23 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements includgd elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.
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Year ended/as at
December 31, (1)

1994 1993 1992 1991 (2) 1990 (2)
(percent, except ratio of earnings to fixed

charges)
Selected UK. GAAP financial statistics
Profitability ratios:
Return on average total assets (3) . ..o .o v 0.69 0.50 0.49 0.80 0.90
Return on average shareholders’ EQUILY (4) v oo v 16.56 11.62 1055 14.60 14.64
Return on average risk weighted assets (5). . .« oo vv v 1.59 1.14 1.08 1.72 1.93
Net interest Margin (6) . « o v o v e voree e s o rr s e 173 189 210 2.26 2.34
J e L ) T e 4292 4452 4457 45.10 44.37
Capital ratios:
Dividends as a percentage Of Nt iNCOME .« . .o v v vvee e e n e o 38.19 4718 47.63 3333 33.16
Average shareholders’ equity as a percentage of average total assets . .. ... ... 4.18 4.34 4.66 5.46 6.15
Risk asset ratios: (8)
ey T 11.53 1049 10.88 12.11 11.42
THEE 1 & v e e e e 9.14 938 9.86 11.22 12.39
Credit quality data: (9)
Non-performing loans as a percentage of loans and advances to customers excluding
finance leases (O)(10) « v v v v v e m e e 4,93 6.57 8.87 7.39 5.06
Allowances as a percentage of loans and advances to customers excluding finance
[EASES (9) « + « v« v v w v e e 074  0.98 0.88 0.45 0.26
Allowances as a percentage of non-performing loans (9}(10) .. .....oooeeee o 1498 14.93 9.91 6.10 5.19
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts as a percentage of average loans and advances
to customers excluding finance leases (9) . . ... oo 0.16 049  0.67 0.42 0.17
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges: (11)
Excluding interest on retail dEpOSIts . .« o v v v o e 1.45 1.37 1.28 1.41 1.43
Including interest on retail deposits . ... ... oo e 124 119 112 1.13 1.12
Selected U.S. GAAP financial statistics
Return on average total assets (3). . . .- .o e v 062 047 052 0.81 0.86
Return on average shareholders’ BQUILY (4) « o o e 14.11 9.76  10.11 13.79 12.99
Dividends as a percentage of NetiNCOME .. .. ....ooec ey 38.83 4522 4383 30.79 3250
Average shareholders’ equity as a percentage of average total assets . . . .........- 437 477 514 5.84 6.61
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges: (11)
Excluding interest on retail deposits . . ... ..o e 139 135 1.28 1.41 1.41
Including interest on retail dEPOSItS .« o v vvvve v 1.21 1.18 1.12 1.13 11
(1) See Note 1 to the Summary Consolidated Financial and Statistical Data of the Group above.
(2) Al averages (other than average risk weighted assets) for 1991 and 1990 are based upon simple averages obtained by averaging the
balances at the beginning and end of the relevant year. Average risk weighted assets are calculated on a semi-annual basis.
(3) Net income divided by average total assets.
(4) Net income divided by average shareholders’ equity.
(5) Net income divided by average risk weighted assets. Average risk weighted assets are calculated on a semi-annual basis.
(6) Net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest earning assets.
(7) Cost:income ratio equals operating expenses divided by total operating income.
(8) In 1990, the Group’s Tier 1 capital ratio was larger than its total risk asset ratio because supervisory deductions, primarily for the priority
liquidation distribution (a deduction arising from the terms of the Conversion), exceeded the value of subordinated debt then in issue.
See Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.
(9) All credit quality data is calculated using period-end balances, except for provisions for bad and doubtful debts as a percentage of average
loans and advances to customers.
(10) The non-performing loans used in these statistics are calculated in accordance with conventional U.S. definitions. The value of non-

performing loans represents the aggregate outstanding balance of all loans and advances 90 days or more overdue. Interest continues to
be debited to all these loans and advances for collection purposes. The proportion of this interest whose collectability is in doubt is then
suspended and excluded from the income statement. Accordingly, the interest income figures included in the income statement are the
same as would be reported in the United States. However, the value of non-performing loans is higher by the cumulative amount of this

suspended interest.
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(1

In cases where borrowers have made arrangements to pay off their arrears over a period of time, the arrears remain on the loan accounts
until cleared and as a result the loans are included in non-performing loans even though the customers are currently performing and
many will ultimately discharge their loans fully.

Abbey National holds a first mortgage over the properties securing the U.K. residential mortgage loans. The value of the security will in
many cases completely cover the value of the loan and the arrears and in the remainder will considerably reduce the size of the loss
incurred.

Non-performing loans also include the full value of loans for which Abbey National has enforced its security by taking into possession the
borrowers’ properties. In many such cases the value of the losses expected to result on sale of the security is known with some certainty
and is included in the specific allowances. However, in accordance with U.K. industry best practice, the value of the losses is not charged
off until the properties are sold and the losses have thus been determined precisely. Other banks, including those in the United States,
may charge off losses more rapidly. Although Abbey National’s practice does not affect net income or the carrying value of loans and
advances to customers, it does increase the reported value of non-performing loans.

For these reasons, the value of the non-performing loans is not necessarily indicative of the value of losses which Abbey National is likely
to suffer. Management believes that it is important to consider the quality of Abbey National’s U.K. residential mortgage portfolio
compared with those of its competitors. Over the reporting periods covered by this document, the number of mortgage loans which are
six months or more in arrears as a percentage of the total number of outstanding mortgage loans has consistently been below the UK.
Council of Mortgage Lenders’ (“CML?) industry average. As at December 31, 1994, Abbey National’s percentage was 1.40% compared
with a CML average of 2.40%. The value of these Abbey National non-performing loans as a percentage of its total U.K. residential
mortgage loan assets was 1.97%. Non-performing loans in this table also include the value of arrears cases between three and six months
in arrears and the value of properties in possession. On this basis, the non-performing U.K. residential mortgage loans are 4.44% of its
total U.K. residential loans and advances. Including the remainder of the Group’s loans and advances, this ratio increases to 4.97%.

For the purpose of calculating the ratios of earnings to fixed charges, earnings consists of income before taxes plus fixed charges. Fixed
charges consists of interest payable, which includes the amortisation of discounts and premiums on debt securities in issue and interest
payable on finance lease obligations.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

The following discussion is based on the Consolidated Financial Statements and Unaudited Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum. Such
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.K. GAAP. Certain significant differences
between U.K. GAAP and U.S. GAAP are discussed in Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which include reconciliations of certain amounts calculated in accordance with U.K. GAAP to U.S. GAAP.
Unless otherwise indicated, financial information for the Group included in this Listing Memorandum is
presented on a consolidated basis, as discussed in the “Accounting Policies” section of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Overview

From 1990 to 1993, the United Kingdom went through a period of economic recession, with the
residential housing market particularly depressed. Although since 1993 the U.K. economy emerged from the
recession, growth in the housing market has remained subdued.

In the early 1990s, the U.K. mortgage lending industry experienced increases in non-performing loans
and repossessions and decreases in the values of residential properties on which mortgage loans were
secured. Consequently, participants in the industry made historically high provisions for bad and doubtful
debts during this period. During this period, however, a smaller proportion of Abbey National’s U.K.
residential mortgage loans were in arrears than was the experience of the U.K. residential mortgage lending
industry as a whole. As the U.K. economy improved in 1993 and 1994, the number of mortgage arrears fell
sharply and provisions for bad and doubtful debts decreased substantially. This decrease continued in the
first six months of 1995, but at a slower rate. U.K. Retail Banking was able to increase the net interest spread
earned on its assets and liabilities as provisions increased in the early 1990s. Although competitive pressure
in a declining bad debt environment resulted in the U.K. retail net interest spread narrowing in 1993, it has
remained broadly unchanged from 1993 through the first six months of 1995, reflecting Abbey National’s
ability to manage both mortgage lending and savings deposit interest rates. Since Conversion in 1989, U.K.
Retail Banking has invested heavily in its distribution network, increasing threefold the selling space in
existing branches. This investment programme is nearing completion, and U.K. Retail Banking is seeking to
increase the cross-selling of its broad range of personal financial products through the enhanced distribution
network and to improve processing efficiency, thereby compensating for possible downward pressure on the
retail net interest spread.

Life Insurance Operations, created following the acquisition of Scottish Mutual, an established com-
pany in the U.K. life insurance market, made its first contribution to income in 1992. Overall demand for
insurance and pensions products in the U.K. increased during 1992 and 1993 but eased during 1994 and the
first half of 1995. Scottish Mutual has increased the sales of new policies generated through independent
financial advisers in each of the last three years with income before taxes increasing correspondingly. Abbey
National Life, utilising Scottish Mutual’s expertise, began operations in February 1993 and has increased
sales of new policies generated through the U.K. Retail Banking network in each subsequent reporting
period.

Treasury and Offshore substantially increased its investment assets in 1992 and 1993, with profits also
increasing substantially as a result. Growth in investment assets was slower in 1994, reflecting competition in
the markets in which ANTS operates, although strong asset growth resumed in the first half of 1995.
Tightening of interest spreads between yields on investment assets and Treasury and Offshore’s borrowing
costs, together with slower asset growth, led to a reduction in Treasury and Offshore’s profit in 1994.
However, profit increased by 10.1% in the first half of 1995, as compared to the first half of 1994, as a result
of stronger asset growth. Treasury and Offshore’s risk management policy of endeavouring to lock in a
spread on assets by matching the maturity, currency and interest rate character of its investment assets with
corresponding liabilities meant that it has not been materially affected by volatility in the bond markets since
1993.
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Continental Europe incurred large provisions for bad and doubtful debts in 1992 and 1993, predomi-
nantly in France and, to a lesser extent, Spain, as a result of poor credit decisions in prior years and of the
property market recessions in those countries, which led to an increase in non-performing loans secured on
commercial property, compounded by decreases in loan security values. Both loan security values and asset
quality stabilised in the second half of 1993, with losses before taxes in 1994 and the first half of 1995
significantly reduced as a consequence. New management teams are now in place in France and Spain, the
bad and doubtful debts have now been substantially provided for and no further commercial property
lending commitments have been entered into in France since 1992.

U.K. Retail Banking remains the major contributor to Group income before taxes, but the combined
contribution from sources other than U.K. Retail Banking has increased to 34.6% of Group income before
taxes and exceptional items in the six months ended June 30, 1995 from 24.8% of Group income before taxes
and exceptional items for the year ended December 31, 1992.

Results of Operations of the Group by Principal Business Segment

Set out below is a discussion and analysis of the Group’s income before taxes and exceptional items,
income before taxes and net income for each of the three years ended December 31, 1994 and for the six-
month periods ended June 30, 1995 and 1994, The discussion includes references to the contributions to
income before taxes and exceptional items, as well as total assets, by principal business segment.

Effective as at and for the six-month period ended June 30, 1995, the Group has assumed a consistent
allocation of Group capital across its business segments in order to improve comparability of results. This
change is reflected in the analysis of results of operations of the Group by principal business segment. The
results of operations now reflect the regulatory capital notionally absorbed by each principal business
segment based on the Group’s Bank of England regulatory requirements. To achieve this result, a notional
adjustment has been made to the profit before tax of each business segment where relevant, by applying an
average market-related interest rate to the difference between the capital held in the segment and the capital
which would be required if the Group’s Bank of England risk asset ratio was applied to that segment.

The method of analysis previously adopted was based on the actual levels of capital of the legal entities
within the principal business segments, except that the earnings on the equity capital of both U.K. Retail
Banking and certain Treasury and Offshore operations were shown in the UK. Retail Banking segment.

In addition, effective July 1995, the following changes in the classification of businesses within segments
have been made in order to provide a clearer analysis of the nature of the Group’s business activities:

« A new principal business segment, Consumer Credit, has been separately disclosed. This segment
includes the personal unsecured lending operations previously included in U.K. Retail Banking, and
will include the results of First National Finance Corporation plc from the date of its acquisition. See
“Recent Developments” below.

* The operations in Jersey and Gibraltar, which were previously included in the business segment
known as Continental Europe and Offshore, have been reclassified into the business segment
formerly known as Treasury Operations, reflecting the increasing similarities in the activities of these
operations. The segments have been renamed Continental Europe and Treasury and Offshore.
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The segmental results for the six-month period ended June 30, 1994 and the three years ended
December 31, 1994 have been restated. The following table summarises the effect of the change on the
results of operations for the comparative periods.

Summary of Effect of Changes

Income Before Taxes and Exceptional Items
Six months ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

June 30, 1994 December 31, 1994 December 31, 1993 December 31, 1992

Previously Previously Previously Previously

Revised Reported Revised Reported Revised Reported Revised Reported
Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis

(unaudited)

U.K. Retail Banking ... ... 271 314 650 741 543 618 452 540
Consumer Credit ........ 14 N/A 31 N/A 22 N/A 17 N/A
Life Insurance Operations . . 47 47 94 94 61 61 22 22
Treasury and Offshore. . . .. 99 70 190 128 198 145 173 100
Continental Europe ...... (18) a7 (36) (33) (108) (105) (50) (46)
Other Operations . ....... 10 9 3 2 20 17 7 5
Residential Estate Agency . . — — — - 2) (2) (20) (20)

@ @ m w7 M s 6

The discussion and analysis of previous periods has been revised to reflect these changes to the
classification of principal business segments.

The following tables set forth the Group’s income before taxes and exceptional items for each principal
business segment for each of the three years ended December 31, 1994 and for the six-month periods ended
June 30, 1995 and 1994 and total assets by principal business segment as at the end of such periods.

Income Before Taxes and Exceptional Items by Principal Business Segment

Six months
ended Year ended
June 30, December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)

(unaudited)
UK. Retail Banking ............. ... ... ... ... ... ...... 316 271 650 543 452
Consumer Credit. . ... ... ... i 17 14 31 22 17
Life Insurance Operations .. ............................. 52 47 94 61 22
Treasury and Offshore . . ........ ... .. ... ... ............ 109 99 190 198 173
Continental Europe . . . ...... ... ... . (11) (18) (36) (108) (50)
Other Operations ............. ..., — 10 3 20 7
Residential Estate Agency ............................... - - — (2) (20)

Total. ... 483 423 932 734 601




Total Assets by Principal Business Segment

As at June 30, As at December 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
(unaudited)
UK. Retail BanKing ... ..covvevnves 49,077 46,658 49,363 45,652 41,929
Consumer Credit. .. oovvvn e 465 310 442 266 224
Life Insurance Operations .. ............oe--roees 5071 4,108 4,492 4,197 3,056
Treasury and Offshore . . ... 47210 34,902 37,030 30,889 24,107
Continental BUTOPE .+« v v vvvaeiiee e 1,406 1,250 1,361 1,173 1,230
Other OPErations . .« «..vvveeeevvennrenee s s 526 1,582 1,631 1,625 1,637
Residential Estate AgENCY . ... ovoevvonoeen e — — — — 40
Total ASSELS « + v v v v 103,755 88,810 94,319 83,802 72,223

Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to six months ended June 30, 1994

In the six months ended June 30, 1995, the Group’s income before taxes and exceptional items
increased by 14.1% to £483 million from £423 million for the six months ended June 30, 1994, principally as a
result of increased operating income in the three principal business segments, U.K. Retail Banking, Life
Insurance Operations and Treasury and Offshore, together with reduced losses incurred by Continental
Europe and reduced provisions for bad and doubtful debts. In the six months ended June 30, 1995, the
Group’s after tax income increased by 18.7% to £324 million, compared to £273 million in the six months
ended June 30, 1994, as a result of the increase in income before taxes and a reduced effective corporation
tax rate. The Group’s effective tax rate for the six months ended June 30, 1995 was 32.9% compared to
35.59% for the six months ended June 30, 1994. The lower tax rate resulted from a reduction in unrelievable
losses in Continental Europe.

U.K. Retail Banking was the major contributor to the Group’s income before taxes. In the six months
ended June 30, 1995, U.K. Retail Banking’s income before taxes increased by 16.6% to £316 million from
£271 million for the six months ended June 30, 1994, primarily as a result of higher net interest income, which
increased 9.1% to £578 million from £530 million in the first half of 1994. The increase in net interest income
resulted from growth in average interest earning assets and a wider retail net interest spread, which
increased from 1.91% to 2.07% between June 30, 1994 and June 30, 1995. Although the spread narrowed
from the exceptionally high level of 2.17%, achieved in the second half of 1994, it remained above the 2.04%
level recorded in the full year ended December 31, 1994. Commissions, fees and other income increased
9.4% to £105 million, reflecting a doubling of income from personal banking and other money transmission
activities, partially offset by lower fees from fixed rate mortgages and a small reduction in insurance
commissions. Operating expenses increased by 5.1% as against the prior period, with the increase in part
attributable to the operating costs of HMC Group PLC (“HMC”) (acquired in November 1994), and a 3.6%
increase in average salaries and higher marketing expenditure.

Consumer Credit, comprising Abbey National’s unsecured lending operations, reported separately for
the first time and increased pre-tax profit by 21.4% to £17 million compared to £14 million in the first half of
1994, This reflected a 49.4% increase in loan asscts to £460 million compared to assets of £308 million as at
June 30, 1994, resulting from a more active marketing of unsecured loans and competitive pricing.

Life Insurance Operations’ income before taxes increased 10.6% from £47 million to £52 million, of
which Scottish Mutual contributed £25 million, an increase of £2 million compared to the same period in
1994. Scottish Mutual’s new business premium income arising from policies in the period decreased by 7.6%,
but increased by 23% on an annualised equivalent basis. (The annualised equivalent is calculated as total
annual premiums plus one-tenth of single premiums.) This reflected strong annual premium pension
business, which doubled, and a 15% increase in single premium pension business, partly offsct by lower
single premium life business. Abbey National Life’s income before taxes was £27 million for the six months
ended June 30, 1995 compared to £24 million for the same period in 1994. Abbey National Life’s new
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business premiums from policies sold in the six months to June 30, 1995 were more than double that for the
first half of 1994 and increased by 52% on an annualised equivalent basis. The growth in business reflected
the sale of non-mortgage related investment, pension and protection products, particularly sales of the
Abbey National Life Guaranteed Bond and Abbey National PEP, each introduced in the first half of 1995.

Treasury and Offshore’s income before taxes for the six months ended June 30, 1995 increased by 10.1%
to £109 million from £99 million for the first half of 1994. This was driven by a 28% increase in average assets
with total assets increasing to £47,210 million at June 30, 1995, compared to £34,902 million at June 30, 1994,
partially offset by higher operating expenses reflecting continued investment in I'T systems and a reduction in
income earned by Abbey National Financial Products (“ANFP”).

Continental Europe’s losses before tax of £11 million for the six months ending June 30, 1995 are below
those for the first half of 1994 (£18 million), largely as a result of a reduction in provisions for bad and
doubtful debts. Further progress was made in working out problem loans, particularly in France, with the
provisions charge reduced to £6 million, as compared with £15 million for the first half of 1994.

The decrease in Other Operations’ income before taxes and exceptional items reflects the absence of
profits from Abbey National Investments Holdings Ltd., following the exercise of early redemption rights by
counterparties on certain investment assets.

Year ended December 31, 1994 compared to year ended December 31, 1993

In the year ended December 31, 1994, the Group’s income before taxes and exceptional items increased
by 27.0% to £932 million principally as a result of reduced provisions for bad and doubtful debts and
increased operating income in U.K. Retail Banking, an increase in Life Insurance Operations’ income
before taxes and reduced losses incurred by Continental Europe. In the year ended December 31, 1994, the
Group’s after tax income increased by 56.4% to £610 million compared to £390 million in the year ended
December 31, 1993, as a result of the increase in income before taxes and a reduced effective corporation tax
rate. The Group’s effective tax rate in 1994 was 34.5% compared to 44.6% for 1993. The lower tax charge
and effective tax rate primarily resulted from a reduction in unrelievable losses in Continental Europe.

U.K. Retail Banking was the major contributor to the Group’s income before taxes. In the year ended
December 31, 1994, U K. Retail Banking’s income before taxes increased by 19.7% to £650 million, primarily
as a result of a reduction in provisions for bad and doubtful debts to £39 million compared to £112 million in
1993. U.K. Retail Banking’s net interest income increased by 4.6% in 1994, with 6.0% growth in average
interest earning assets being partially offset by a slight narrowing of the net interest margin. The growth in
average interest earning assets reflects both mortgage lending through the retail distribution network, and
the acquisitions of HMC and the UK. residential mortgage operation of the Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce (“CIBC”). The retail net interest spread in 1994 was broadly unchanged from 1993, despite
competition in the mortgage market, with the spread widening between the first half and second half of the
year. Commissions, fees and other income were lower, reflecting reduced fees from fixed-rate mortgages as
these products declined in popularity, partly offset by increased income from buildings and contents
insurance policies and from personal banking products. Operating expenses increased slightly, with the
increase attributable to the operating costs of the acquired businesses. Other than these particular costs,
inflationary increases were offset by reduced promotional expenditure and a small reduction in headcount
over the year (excluding acquisitions).

Consumer Credit increased pre-tax profit by 40.9% to £31 million in the year ended December 31, 1994.
This reflected a 66.1% increase in loan assets to £442 million, as a result of more active marketing of
unsecured loans and a fall in provisions for bad and doubtful debts of £3 million.

Life Insurance Operations’ income before taxes increased from £61 million in 1993 to £94 million in
1994, of which Scottish Mutual contributed £46 million, an increase of £6 million compared to 1993. Scottish
Mutual’s new business premium income arising from policies sold in the period increased by 20.8% to
£471 million, with two-thirds of new business being pension-related and the remainder consisting of life
insurance and other long-term savings products. This increase was achieved against an industry background
of lower demand for life and pension products. Consumers’ preference for single, rather than annual (or
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regular) premium contracts continued in 1994. Abbey National Life’s income before taxes in 1994 was
£48 million compared to £21 million in 1993, the year in which it commenced operations. Abbey National
Life’s new business premiums from policies sold in 1994 totalled £255 million, 75.9% higher than in 1993.
The growth in business reflected the sale of non mortgage-related investment, pensions and protection
products to U.K. Retail Banking customers, with more than half of the policies sold falling into this category.
Abbey National Life’s sales of regular premium endowment products (which have been traditionally sold
alongside mortgage loans) also increased during the year.

The decrease in Treasury and Offshore’s income before taxes was caused largely by the maturity in 1993
of a number of highly profitable investments. Growth in average interest earning assets was slower than in
previous years, reflecting both competition in the markets in which ANTS invests and Abbey National’s
strategy of limiting the capital employed by Treasury and Offshore’s investment book relative to the capital
of the Group as a whole. Increased competition contributed to a tightening of the average net interest spread
carned on the investment portfolio. Treasury and Offshore’s policy of endeavouring to lock in a spread on
investment assets meant that income before taxes was not materially affected by volatility in the bond
markets. ANFP made a positive contribution to income before taxes. ANFP was not involved in any way with
the events that resulted in the administration of Barings on February 26, 1995. An examination of Abbey
National’s financial relationship with Barings confirmed that Abbey National’s 1994 results were unaffected
by that administration. Arrangements were in place to provide protection against credit exposure on swaps
between ANFP and Barings, which ensured that no exposure between the two companies arose when these
transactions automatically terminated on the appointment of the administrators. In respect of the market
risk which arose on termination, replacement hedging transactions were promptly put in place. See “Busi-
ness Description — Treasury and Offshore — Abbey National Financial Products” below.

Continental Europe’s losses before taxes of £36 million were substantially lower than those for 1993
(£108 million), largely as a result of a reduction in provisions for bad and doubtful debts to £29 million from
£97 million. The improvement occurred principally in France where losses before taxes decreased to
£24 million compared to losses of £92 million in 1993, reflecting management actions taken to stabilise loan
quality. In Spain, losses were also reduced as a result of a decline in the number of non-performing loans.
The operation in Italy made a small positive contribution to Group profit.

The decrease in Other Operations’ income before taxes resulted principally from two factors: firstly,
lower earnings in respect of Abbey National Investments Holdings Ltd. in anticipation of counterparties
exercising early redemption rights on certain investments; and secondly, a write down of £10 million in the
value of the goodwill relating to J Trevor & Webster, the commercial estate agency business, to reflect a
permanent diminution in its value. See “Business Description — Other Operations” below.

Year ended December 31, 1993 compared to year ended December 31, 1 992
In the year ended December 31, 1993, the Group’s income before taxes and exceptional items increased
by 22.1% to £734 million principally due to increases in net interest income. A 20.4% reduction in provisions
for bad and doubtful debts also contributed to this increase. The Group’s income before taxes increased by
24.8% in 1993 to £704 million. Although the effective corporation tax rate increased in 1993 to 44.6%,
principally as a result of losses incurred by Continental Europe for which tax relief was not then available,
Group after-tax income for the year increased by 23.0% to £390 million.

U.K. Retail Banking’s income before taxes and exceptional items increased by 20.1% to £543 million,
due to an increase in average interest earning assets caused by strong lending of fixed-rate mortgage
products. This offset a narrowing of the net interest spread due to competition for lending during a period of
relatively low market volume. An increase in commissions, fees and other income principally reflected
higher insurance commission and fixed-rate mortgage fee income associated with the higher level of new
mortgages. Operating expenses increased largely as a result of profit share bonus payments to staff, higher
pension costs and increased promotional expenditures. Provisions for bad and doubtful debts fell by almost
half, reflecting significant reductions in mortgage arrears and repossessions.




Consumer Credit increased pre-tax profit by 29.4% to £22 million in the year ended December 31, 1993.
This reflected an 18.8% increase in loan assets to £266 million.

Life Insurance Operations’ income before taxes and exceptional items increased to £61 million from
£22 million in the prior year, of which Scottish Mutual contributed £40 million, a 25% increase from 1992.
Scottish Mutual’s new business premiums, which are an important factor in determining the level of
earnings, more than doubled in 1993 to £390 million, with strong growth in both single premium life and
single premium pension business. New annual premium business was slightly lower than the level achieved in
1992, which was similar to the general industry trend. After a rationalisation of its branch office structure,
Scottish Mutual reduced its numbers of staff and branch offices and held costs at 1992 levels while
continuing to support the increase in new business. Abbey National Life commenced trading on February 1,
1993 and generated £145 million of new business premiums in its first eleven months of operations. As with
Scottish Mutual, single premium business provided the bulk of this total, representing over three-quarters of
new business premiums. Approximately 38% of new business policies related to mortgage endowments, with
the remainder taken out as forms of long-term savings. Abbey National Life’s income before taxes in 1993
was £21 million, net of approximately £2 million of launch costs incurred in January.

Treasury and Offshore increased its income before taxes and exceptional items by 14.5% to £198 mil-
lion. This increase largely reflected substantial growth in investment assets, including investments in floating
rate notes, mortgage-backed securities and finance leases. In addition, income before taxes and exceptional
items benefited from investments made at advantageous margins near the end of 1992 (primarily sovereign
debt instruments which had yields significantly above the London interbank offered rate at the time of their
purchase as a result of volatility in the currency markets and related uncertainties regarding the European
Exchange Rate Mechanism).

Continental Europe incurred a loss before taxes and exceptional items of £108 million compared to
£50 million in 1992, principally as a result of additional provisions for commercial lending in France. The
additional provisions in 1993 reflected a downturn in the French property markets and stemmed in part from
poor lending decisions in prior years. Provisions in France of £88 million were incurred principally in the first
half of the year, with a lower second half charge of £11 million reflecting some stabilisation in the commer-
cial property market. Lending secured on commercial property ceased in France in 1992, new management
was employed and action was taken to improve recoveries on existing non-performing loans. In Spain,
provisions were reduced to £10 million in 1993 from £18 million in 1992. New lending to Spanish residential
property developers, against which most of these provisions were made, ceased in 1993. Italy contributed
£2 million to income before taxes.

Income before taxes and exceptional items for Other Operations increased to £20 million in 1993, from
£7 million in the prior year. The improvement reflected a £10 million reduction in the loss incurred by Abbey
National Homes to £3 million in 1993 following stabilisation in property sales prices. As a result of such
stabilisation, no further significant write down in the value of completed properties and work in progress was
deemed necessary by management. No additional development commitments have been undertaken by
Abbey National Homes since mid-1990. Abbey National Independent Financial Advisers Ltd. (“ANIFA”),
previously named Abbey National Financial Services Ltd., and Abbey National Investments Holdings Ltd.
continued to make a positive contribution to Group income before taxes.
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Results of Operations of the Group by Nature of Income and Expense
Set forth below is a discussion and analysis of the results of operations of the Group by nature of income
and expense.

Net Interest Income

The following table sets forth net interest income for each of the three years ended December 31, 1994
and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 1995 and 1994.

Six months ended

June 30, Year ended December 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
(unaudited)
Interest receivable. . . ... oo 3,024 2,558 5329 4974 5786
Interest PAyable . ..o . vt (2,276) (1.916) (3,935) (3,636) (4,521)
Net interest iNCOME .+« . v v v v v i e ae e e e nee e 748 642 1,394 1,338 1,265

The principal factors affecting the level of net interest income earned by the Group are the volume of
interest earning assets and the net interest margin earned on such assets. Since 1992, the volume of interest
carning assets has increased substantially, whereas the Group net interest margin has declined. This
reduction in Group net interest margin was attributable to two main factors: first, the increasing proportion
of narrower-spread Treasury and Offshore assets in the Group balance sheet; and secondly, the decline in
average U.K. interest rates reducing the benefit from the investment of shareholders’ equity.

Management believes that the Group’s net interest margin will continue to be influenced by, among
other factors, the proportion of the Group’s balance sheet represented by Treasury and Offshore assets, the
general level of U.K. interest rates, competitive pressures in the U.K. residential mortgage and liquid savings
markets, the economic cycle and its expected impact on the level of provisions for bad and doubtful debts,
the sophistication of the retail products offered to customers and competitive pressures in the markets for
high-quality investment assets. The proportion of Treasury and Offshore assets in the Group balance sheet is
expected to grow more slowly in the future and therefore the downward effect this factor has had on Group
net interest margin is likely to be less than it has been in the past. Changes in the net interest spread earned
on these assets will continue to influence the margin. The benefit from the investment of shareholders’
equity will continue to be affected by the general level of U.K. interest rates, although Abbey National’s risk
management policies seek to limit the effect of interest rate volatility on net interest income.

Future changes in the retail net interest spread will depend, among other factors, on the demand for
residential mortgages and liquid savings products and on the level of competition among suppliers of these
retail products. Subject to competitive pressures and market conditions, Abbey National is able to set prices
for both retail assets and liabilities unilaterally and expects to use this ability, where appropriate, to limit any
further downward pressure on the retail net interest spread. Additionally, the Group utilises the expertise of
Treasury and Offshore to design retail products that are attractive to customers and that contribute positively
to margin management.

Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to six months ended June 30, 1994

In the six months ended June 30, 1995, the Group’s net interest income increased by 16.5% to
£748 million, reflecting a 15% increase in average interest earning assets during such period and a widening
in the Group net interest margin to 1.68% from 1.66%. The strong growth in assets reflects expansion of
Treasury and Offshore investment assets, the acquisition of HMC in November 1994 and growth in U.K.
mortgage balances. The increased Group net interest margin was due principally to a wider U.K. Retail
Banking net interest spread. The Group’s net interest margin also benefitted from the maturing of certain
investment transactions in early 1995. The funding costs of these transactions had been previously charged to
the net interest income category while income from the transactions had been classified as investment
dividends (in the commissions, fees and other income category). The maturing of these transactions had the




effect of contributing approximately £20 million to net interest income and, accordingly, reducing commis-
sions, fees and other income by the same amount. The increase in net margin was tempered by the further
increase in the proportion of Treasury and Offshore assets within the Group balance sheet (the spreads on
which are generally narrower than on U.K. retail assets). The average net interest spread earned on U.K.
Retail Banking assets increased to 2.07% from 1.91% for the prior period, although the spread was broadly
unchanged from the 2.04% reported for 1994 as a whole.

Year ended December 31, 1994 compared to year ended December 31, 1993

In the year ended December 31, 1994, the Group’s net interest income increased by 4.2% to £1,394 mil-
lion, with 14.0% growth in average interest earning assets being partially offset by a reduction in the Group
net interest margin to 1.73% from 1.89%. The strong growth in assets reflects expansion of both the Treasury
and Offshore investment portfolio and of mortgage assets in the U.K. Retail Banking business. The reduced
Group margin resulted from a further increase in the proportion of Treasury and Offshore assets within the
Group balance sheet, the spreads on which are generally narrower than on U.K. Retail Banking assets, and a
tightening of the spread earned on Treasury and Offshore assets. The average net interest spread earned on
U.K. Retail Banking assets (the average spread between lending and funding rates) was broadly unchanged
from the average in 1993, although both this spread and the Group margin increased between the first half
and the second half of 1994.

Year ended December 31, 1993 compared to year ended December 31, 1992

The Group’s net interest income increased by 5.8% to £1,338 million in 1993. Average interest earning
assets grew by 17.7% to £70,761 million, with the increase resulting from growth in investment assets within
Treasury and Offshore and, to a lesser extent, from growth in U.K. Retail Banking residential mortgage
loans. The growth in average interest earning assets offset a reduction in the Group net interest margin,
which declined to 1.89% in 1993 from 2.10% in 1992, The reduction in net interest margin reflected
principally an increase in the proportion of the Group’s balance sheet represented by Treasury and Offshore
assets, reduced benefit from the Group’s investment of shareholders’ equity due to the general decline in
U.K. interest rates, and a lower interest spread in U.K. Retail Banking.

The following tables set forth prevailing average interest rates and yields, spreads and margins for each
of the three years ended December 31, 1994 and for the six-month period ended June 30, 1995.

Six months
ended Year ended
June 30, December 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993 1992
- T (per cent.)
(unaudited)
Prevailing Average Interest Rates
United Kingdom:
UK banks base rate . ... ... .ttt i, 6.66 530 546 6.01 9.55
Abbey National base mortgage rate (1) ..................... 831 775 7.83 807 10.80
London inter-bank offered rate:
three month sterling . . .......... ... ... . ... .. ... ... .. 6.74 522 565 594 9.63
three month eurodollar . . ......... ... ... .. . ... .. 621 402 480 329 382
United States:
3 4 18I0 ¢ 11 892 6.40 7.02 6.00 6.25
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Six months

ended Year ended
June 30, December 31,
1_99_5_ 1_93‘_ _1_99;4_ 1993 1992
(per cent.)
(unaudited)
Yields, Spreads and Margins
Gross yield: (2)
30 ) R 746 683 686 729 9.85
Interest spread: (3)
GIOUP « « v voevm et en s 127 132 1.38 1.53 1.49
Net interest margin:
GIOUD '+« « v v evee et m e a e 1.68 1.66 1.73 1.89  2.10

(1) Abbey National’s base mortgage rate represents the rate charged on loans of up to £59,999. Changes in
the level of Abbey National’s base mortgage rate are influenced by changes in monetary policy. Abbey
National may apply different rates depending upon the amount borrowed and the precise type of
mortgage and such rates may not relate to the base mortgage rate.

(2) Gross yield represents the average interest rate earned on average interest earning assets.

(3) Interest spread is the difference between the average interest rate earned on average interest earning
assets and the average interest rate paid on average interest bearing liabilities.

The following table sets forth average interest earning assets and average interest bearing liabilities for
each of the three years ended December 31, 1994 and for the six-month period ended June 30, 1995.

Six months ended
June 30, Year ended December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992

(in millions of £)
(unaudited)

Average interest earning assets:

€7 (010> T 89,890 78,161 80,658 70,761 60,144
Average interest bearing liabilities:
GIOUD v ttit it 83,947 73,363 75,440 66,438 55,888

Commissions, Fees and Other Income

The following table sets forth commissions, fees and other income for each of the three years ended
December 31, 1994, and for the six-month period ended June 30, 1995 and 1994.

Six months
ended Year ended
June 30, December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992

(in millions of £)

(unaudited)
Net fees and commissions receivable . . .......... . oo 99 87 169 231 214
Income from long-term insurance policies (1) ................... 50 46 91 61 31
Other operating inCome . . ... ...t viv i 28 64 105 84 74
Total

................................................. 177 197 365 376 319

(1) Income from long-term insurance policies represents the present value of profits expected to emerge in
the future from policies currently in force, together with the Group’s interest in the surplus retained
within the long-term insurance funds. See the “Accounting Policies” section of, and Note 23 to, the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.




Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to six months ended June 30, 1994

In the six months ended June 30, 1995, commissions, fees and other income decreased by 10.2% to £177
million from £197 million for the six months ended June 30, 1994. Insurance commissions receivable
decreased by 6% to £50 million from £53 million for the first half of 1994, as a result of lower commissions
earnings from building insurance policies reflecting a reduction in the volume of mortgage lending. Other
net fees and commissions receivable increased by 44.1% for the first half of 1995 to £49 million from £34
million for the comparable period in 1994, reflecting a doubling of income from personal banking and other
money transmission activities, partly offset by lower fixed-rate mortgage arrangement fees. Income from
long term assurance business increased by 8.7% to £50 million, with both Scottish Mutual and Abbey
National Life contributing higher income. Other operating income decreased 56.3% to £28 million, resulting
mainly from a reduction in investment dividend income and lower income from ANFP. For an explanation of
the reduction in investment dividend income, see “— Results of Operations of the Group by Nature of
Income and Expense — Net Interest Income — Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to six months
ended June 30, 1994” above.

Year ended December 31, 1994 compared to year ended December 31, 1993

In the year ended December 31, 1994, commissions, fees and other income decreased by 2.9% to £365
million. Net fees and commissions receivable decreased by 26.8% to £169 million. Excluding net fees and
commissions receivable by the Group’s discontinued residential real estate brokerage business of £33 million
in the year ended December 31, 1993, net fees and commission receivable decreased by 14.6% in 1994. This
decrease principally reflects reduced arrangement fees for fixed-rate mortgages as a result of a change in
customer preferences away from fixed-rate towards variable-rate mortgages during the first half of the year.
The reduced income in this category also reflected increased arrangement fees payable by ANFP, a factor
more than offset by increased dealing profits earned by ANFP. Both the increased dealing profits and
arrangement fees payable reflect the first full year of operations of ANFP, which began operations in
October 1993. The higher dealing profits were reflected in the 25.0% increase in other operating income to
£105 million. Income from long-term insurance policies increased by 49.2% to £91 million, resulting from
increases in new business premiums generated by Scottish Mutual and Abbey National Life. See the
“Accounting Policies” section of, and Note 23 to, the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere
in this Listing Memorandum.

Year ended December 31, 1993 compared to year ended December 31, 1992

In the year ended December 31, 1993, commissions, fees and other income increased 17.9% to £376
million. Net fees and commissions receivable increased by 7.9% to £231 million. Insurance commissions,
principally from the sale of buildings and contents insurance policies for third-party insurers through Abbey
National’s retail branch network, represented the largest element of this increase. The remainder of the
increase in net fees and commissions receivable was accounted for by increased fee income associated with
the higher lending volumes achieved during the year, particularly arrangement fees for fixed-rate mortgages.
As a result of the sale of the residential real estate brokerage business in August 1993, real estate brokerage
fees in 1993 were £5 million lower than in 1992. Income from long-term insurance policies doubled to £61
million in the year ended December 31, 1993, reflecting an increase in new business premiums generated by
Scottish Mutual and the commencement of trading by Abbey National Life in February 1993. The increase in
other operating income to £84 million in the year ended December 31, 1993 principally reflects an increase
in dividends earned on certain investments within Treasury and Offshore.
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Operating Expenses
The following table sets forth operating expenses for each of the three years ended December 31, 1994,
and for the six-month periods ended June 30, 1995 and 1994.

Six months ended
June 30, Year ended December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)

(unaudited)

SALATIES .+ v o v v v e o 138 133 274 268 242
Other Staff COSES « « v v v v 31 29 60 54 41
Property and equipment €Xpenses ... ..............- 54 62 126 120 119
Other administrative €Xpenses . . . ......ovvve .. 147 112 211 237 227
Depreciation and amortisation . ..........ooeeee e 42 41 84 84 77
Total Operating EXpenses . .. .. .ovovneve o rn e 412 377 755 763 706
Headcount (full-time equivalent) . ............... ... 17726 17,007 17,376 16,867 17,760

Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to six months ended June 30, 1994

Total operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 1995 increased 9.3% to £412 million from
£377 million for the six months ended June 30, 1994. Of the £35 million increase, £11 million was attributable
to the operating costs of businesses acquired since June 30, 1994. Staff costs rose by 4.3% to £169 million,
reflecting an increase of 3.6% in the average number of full time equivalent staff to 17,726 at June 30, 1995
from 17,107 at June 30, 1994. This increase of 619 full time equivalent staff includes 492 staff employed in
businesses acquired since June 1994 with the remainder employed in Consumer Credit and Treasury and
Offshore activitics. Headcount in U.K. Retail Banking has remained broadly unchanged. Property and
equipment expenses for the six months ended June 30, 1995 decreased 12.9% to £54 million from £62 million
for the six months ended June 30, 1994. This decrease reflects a fall in branch refurbishment costs in the six
months to June 30, 1995. Other property and equipment expenses remained broadly unchanged. Other
administrative expenses rose by 31.3% to £147 million reflecting the operating expenses of acquired
businesses, higher marketing expenditure and increased expenditure on information technology
development.

Year ended December 31, 1994 compared to year ended December 31, 1993

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 1994 were reduced by 1.0% from £763
million to £755 million. Excluding £35 million of costs arising from the discontinued residential real estate
brokerage business incurred in 1993, operating expenses increased by 3.7% or £27 million, from £728 million
to £755 million. Excluding salaries and other staff costs of £19 million attributable to the discontinued
residential real estate brokerage business, combined salaries and other staff costs increased by 10.2% to £334
million in 1994, This increase reflected approximately 3% growth in average salaries and an approximately
4% increase in the average number of full-time equivalent staff (excluding Life Insurance Operations staff,
whose salary costs are reflected in income from long-term insurance policies). The growth in average staff
numbers reflects headcount increases during 1993, with staffing broadly unchanged in 1994 if the additional
465 employees acquired with HMC, CIBC’s U.K. residential mortgage lending business and GM Benefit
Consulting Group are excluded. Property and equipment costs rose by 5.0% to £126 million due to increased
expenditure on information technology development and distribution network enhancements. See “— Capi-
tal Resources and Financial Condition of the Group — Capital Expenditure” below. Other administrative
expenses decreased by 11.0% to £211 million principally as a result of reduced promotional expenditure and
the absence of expenses associated with the discontinued residential real estate brokerage business.

Year ended December 31, 1993 compared to year ended December 31, 1992
In the year ended December 31, 1993, operating expenses increased by 8.0% to £763 million. Salary
costs increased by £26 million or 10.7%, reflecting approximately 4% growth in average salaries and the
payment of a profit share bonus of 10% of salary to eligible members of staff compared with the previous
year in which no such payment was made. Other staff costs, consisting mainly of pension costs and National
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Insurance (similar to Social Security in the United States), increased by £13 million in 1993 as a result of a
£10 million increase in pension costs, following the triennial pension fund valuation. See Note 45 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum. Other administrative
expenses increased by 4.4% to £237 million in 1993 from £227 million in 1992 due to an increase in the level
of promotional expenditure. The increase in promotional expenditure reflects the particularly active promo-
tion of U.K. residential mortgage products during the year. Depreciation and amortisation increased by £7
million in 1993, principally as a result of capital expenditure related to the improvement and modernisation
of the branch network. See “— Capital Resources and Financial Condition of the Group — Capital

Expenditure” below.

Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts
The following table sets forth the provisions for bad and doubtful debts for each of the three years
ended December 31, 1994, and for the six month periods ended June 30, 1995 and 1994.

Six months
ended Year ended
June 39, December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992

(in millions of £)
(unaudited)

Credit risk provisions charge:

SPECIFIC + « v v v v vse e s s 36 53 103 232 212

GENETAl . oo v et ie e (8 (12) 29 (14) 62
T Y L I 28 41 74 218 274
Credit risk provisions charge:

UK Retail Banking . .« .o ovvevnvvnnen s 18 23 39 111 218

Consumer Credit « ..o vvevern v 4 3 5 8 9

Continental BUIOPE . ... vovvvn e -6 15 30 99 47
) A I 28 41 74 218 274

Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to six months ended June 30, 1994

In the six months ended June 30, 1995, provisions for bad and doubtful debts decreased 31.7% to
£28 million from £41 million for the same period in 1994. In U.K. Retail Banking, provisions for bad and
doubtful debts fell 21.7% to £18 million, as a result of the continued fall in mortgage arrears and in the stock
of repossessed residential properties. For those repossessed properties on which purchase offers were
received, the average provision per property for capital losses and interest arrears was £12,355 at June 30,
1995 compared to £15,700 at June 30, 1994. Despite a 49.9% increase in loan assets in Consumer Credit from
June 30, 1994 to June 30, 1995, provisions charges increased by only £1 million. In Continental Europe,
provisions for bad and doubtful debts were £6 million compared to £15 million for the first half of 1994. This
reduction in provisions continued to reflect management actions taken to stabilise loan quality and stabilisa-
tion of the French commercial property market.

Allowances for lending losses as a percentage of loans and advances to customers (excluding finance
leases) decreased to 0.70% as at June 30, 1995 from 0.92% as at June 30, 1994 largely as a result of the
decline in U.K. residential mortgage provisions for bad and doubtful debts and the decline in provisions in
Continental Europe. Allowances for lending losses as a percentage of non-performing loans was broadly
unchanged at 13.67% compared to 13.98% for the same period in 1994. See “Selected Statistical Informa-

tion — Analysis of Allowance for Lending Losses” below.

Year ended December 31, 1994 compared to year ended December 31, 1993

In the year ended December 31, 1994 provisions for bad and doubtful debts decreased substantially to
£74 million from £218 million in 1993. In UK. Retail Banking, provisions for bad and doubtful debts for 1994
were more than halved to £39 million, principally as a result of a continued reduction in mortgage arrears
and repossessions and a halt in the decline of residential real estate prices. The reduction in arrears and
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repossessions was largely a consequence of _lower UK intergst rates and general improvement in the UK.
economy. For those repossessed properties in the U.K. on which purchase offers were received, the average

rovision for capital losses and interest arrears fell to £15,700 compared to £18,800 at December 31, 1993.
This reduction in the average provision for repossessed properties reflects the decline in interest arrears as
mortgage rates fell and an arrest in the decline in house prices and hence a stabilisation in capital losses. The
provision in U.K. Retail Banking included a reduction in general provisions of £18 million, reflecting
reduced uncertainty over settlement of mortgage indemnity claims by insurance companies. This follows a
similar general provision release in 1993, with specific provisions again being made where claims in certain
cases were not met in full by the insurance companies.

In Continental Europe, provisions for bad and doubtful debts were £30 million compared to £99 million
in 1993. This reduction in provisions reflects management actions taken to stabilise loan asset quality and an
improved economic environment, and includes a general provision release of £11 million. The reduction
occurred principally in Abbey National France, where provisioning was highest in 1993.

Allowances for lending losses as a percentage of loans and advances to customers (excluding finance
leases) decreased from 0.98% to 0.74% largely as a result of the decline in U.K. residential mortgage
provisions for bad and doubtful debts and the decline in provisions in Continental Europe. Allowances for
lending losses as a percentage of non-performing loans was broadly unchanged at 14.98% compared to
14.93% for 1993. See “Selected Statistical Information — Analysis of Allowance for Lending Losses” below.

Year ended December 31, 1993 compared to year ended December 31, 1992

Total provisions for bad and doubtful debts decreased by 20.4% to £218 million. Although U.K.
residential mortgage provisions were lower, provisions in Continental Europe increased significantly in part
due to poor credit decisions and in part due to the continuing deterioration in the French and Spanish
commercial property markets. New management teams are now in place in France and Spain and no further
commercial property lending commitments have been entered into since 1992.

In U.K. Retail Banking, provisions declined by £107 million, mainly due to significant reductions in the
level of mortgage arrears and repossessions. The main causes of these reductions were lower U.K. interest
rates and general improvement in the UK. economy, which began during 1993 and which have led to a
decline in provisions throughout the U.K. banking industry from the historically high levels of 1991 and 1992.
For those repossessed properties on which purchase offers were received, the average provision per property
for capital losses and interest arrears was £18,800 at December 31, 1993, slightly higher than the £18,400 at
December 31, 1992, although lower than the £19,600 at June 30, 1993. A provisions write back of £1 million
was made against other secured advances compared with a £10 million provision in 1992.

Under the terms of the mortgage indemnity guarantee cover taken out with leading insurance compa-
nies, Abbey National was able to make claims which limited the losses realised by the Group where
properties were repossessed and sold. However, certain of these claims remained unsettled at December 31,
1992. Uncertainty over payment in respect of these claims was one of the factors underpinning the increase
in the general provision for bad and doubtful debts in 1992. Settlements were negotiated with some
insurance companies and in cases where agreement was reached, specific provisions were made in 1993. The
likelihood of future non-payment was assessed and as a result general provisions for U.K. residential
mortgages were reduced by a net £20 million from £96 million to £76 million.

In Continental Europe, a provisions charge of £99 million, compared to £47 million in 1992, was made.
This charge was made mainly in the first half of 1993, and the lower charge of £18 million in the second half
reflected some stabilisation of the French commercial property market when compared with the first half of
the year.

Allowances for lending losses as a percentage of loans and advances to customers (excluding finance
leases) increased from 0.88% to 0.98% as a result of the increased charge for provisions for bad and doubtful
debts in Continental Europe. Allowances for lending losses as a percentage of non-performing loans




increased from 9.91% to 14.93% as a result of the above charge and a 25.3% decrease in the value of non-
performing loans in the UK. as the number of mortgage loans in arrears fell. See “Selected Statistical
Information — Analysis of Allowance for Lending Losses” below.

Taxes
The following table sets forth a reconciliation of taxes payable at the standard U.K. corporation tax rate
and the Group’s effective tax rate for each of the three years ended December 31, 1994 and for the six-month
periods ended June 30, 1995 and 1994. The effective tax rate is obtained by dividing taxes by income before
taxes (but after exceptional items).

Six months ended
June 30, Year ended December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992

(in millions of £ except percentages)
(unaudited)

Taxation at standard U.K. corporation tax rate (33%) .... 159 140 308 232 186
Effect of non-allowable provisions. . ................. 8 4 8 31 2
Effect of goodwill on disposals previously written off . .. .. — — 3 1 41
Effect of unrelieved overseas 10ss€s. . . . ..o ovvvv e (8) 6 — 36 16
Adjustment to prior year tax PIOVISIONS . « .« oot v = = 3 14 2
TAKES . + v o v v e eee e 159 150 322 314 247
Effective taX TAtE « o« v« oo v v v v e nneme s s e 329% 355% 345% 44.6% 43.8%

Six months ended June 30, 1995 compared to Six months ended June 30, 1994
In the six months ended June 30, 1995, taxes increased by 6% to £159 million compared to £150 million
in the six months ended June 30, 1994, as a result of the increase in income before taxes, partly offset by a
reduction in the Group effective tax rate to 32.9% compared to 35.5% in 1994. The lower effective tax rate
resulted from the lower levels of unrelieved overseas tax losses.

Year ended December 31, 1994 compared to year ended December 31, 1993
In the year ended December 31, 1994, taxes increased by 2.5% to £322 million compared to £314 million
in the year ended December 31, 1993, as a result of the increase in income before taxes, partly offset by a
reduction in the Group’s effective tax rate to 34.5% in 1994 compared to 44.6% in 1993. The lower effective
tax rate resulted primarily from the absence of an effect of unrelieved overseas losses, and the reduced effect
of non-allowable provisions in 1994 without the loss associated with the disposal of the residential real estate
brokerage business in 1993.

Year ended December 31, 1993 compared to year end December 31, 1992

In the year ended December 31, 1993, taxes increased by 27.1% to £314 million from £247 million in the
prior year. This increase primarily reflects the increase in 1993 in income before taxes and exceptional items.
In addition, although the standard U.K. corporation tax rate remained constant, the effective tax rate
increased in 1993 to 44.6% from 43.8% in 1992, reflecting an increase in the effect of non-allowable
provisions, an increase in unrelieved losses in Continental Europe and an increase in the adjustment to prior
year tax provisions. The increase in the effective tax rate was partially reduced by a decrease in goodwill on
disposals previously written off relating to the permanent diminution in value of the residential real estate
brokerage operations.
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Capital Resources and Financial Condition of the Group
The following table sets forth the Group’s capital resources as at December 31 and June 30 of the years

indicated.

As at June 30, As at December 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993 1992

(in millions of £)
(unaudited)

Sharcholders’ EQUITY « - « « « -« v« s s s se ettt 3928 3,593 3,704 3,386 3,184
Subordinated liabilities .« v v v v e e 1,572 1,044 1,520 868 648
Total capital TESOUICES « « . oo oo v vttt 5,500 4,637 5224 4,254 3,832

The increase in the Group’s capital resources in the first half of 1995 reflects an increase in sharehold-
ers’ equity of £224 million which includes £228 million in retained earnings and other movements in reserves,
and a net increase in subordinated liabilities of £52 million, compared to an increase in shareholders’ equity
of £207 million, of which £197 million were retained earnings, and a net increase in subordinated liabilities of
£176 million in the period to June 30, 1994.

The increase in the Group’s capital resources in 1994 reflects an increase in shareholders’ equity of
£318 million, of which £312 million were retained earnings, and a net increase in subordinated liabilities of
£652 million. The increase in capital resources in 1993 reflects the net increase of £220 million of subordi-
nated liabilities and an increase in shareholders’ equity of £202 million, of which £174 million were retained
earnings.

Capital Adequacy Requirements
Capital adequacy and capital resources are monitored by the Group on the basis of techniques
developed by the Basle Committee on Banking Regulations and Supervisory Practices (the “Basle Commit-
tee”) and subsequently implemented in the United Kingdom by the Banking Supervision Division of the
Bank of England.

The basic instrument of capital monitoring is the risk asset ratio as developed by the Basle Committee.
This ratio derives from a consideration of capital as a cover for the credit risk inherent in Group assets.
Capital is defined by reference to the European Community (“EC”) Own Funds Directive, and divided into
“Tier 1” capital — consisting largely of shareholders’ equity and “Tier 2” capital — including general
provisions and certain debt capital instruments, particularly subordinated debt. Assets (both on- and off-
balance sheet) are weighted to allow for relative risk according to rules derived from the EC Solvency Ratio
Directive using a series of risk weighting factors ranging from 0% to 100%. Abbey National’s main class of
asset, mortgage loans secured on residential property, is assigned a weighting of 50%.

The Basle Committee sets a minimum risk asset ratio for international banks of 8%. The Bank of
England sets minimum risk asset ratios on an individual basis for the banks it supervises. These are set with
regard to the minimum standard set by the Basle Committee and the particular circumstances of each bank.

The following risk asset ratios which exceed both the Basle Committee minimum risk asset ratio of 8%
and the Bank of England’s specific recommendation for Abbey National, are calculated for the Group as
supervised by the Bank of England. Abbey National recognises the additional security inherent in Tier 1
capital, and hence also presents a Tier 1 to risk weighted assets ratio.
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Capital Adequacy Data

As at June 30, As at December 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £, except percentages)
(unaudited)

S AT o ST PP 3,928 3,593 3,704 3,386 3,184
i N TS o 1,486 1,010 1,465 832 712
less supervisory deductions. . .. ........ ... (539) (444) (496) (432) (381)
Total capital resources . . ................. 4,875 4,159 4,673 3,786 3,515
Risk weighted assets

On-balance sheet . .. ... ... . ot 43,170 37,039 39,760 35,322 31,693

Off-balance sheet. .. ...... ... ... 1,170 711 786 770 601
Total .o s 44,340 37,750 40,546 36,092 32,294
Capital ratios

Risk asset ratio . . v v v v v v e v e ie e 10.99% 11.02% 11.53% 10.49% 10.88%

Tier 11atio . . v v v vt e 8.86% 9.52% 9.14% 9.38% 9.86%

The growth in risk weighted assets between 1992 and 1993 was broadly matched by the increase in both
Tier 1 and total capital resources, with the result that there was no significant fluctuation in the risk asset and
Tier 1 ratios. In 1994, the risk asset ratio increased, reflecting an increase in subordinated debt, including the
issuance of a $500 million subordinated bond in the U.S. public market following registration with the
Commission in October 1994. The Tier 1 ratio in particular remains strong relative to most other U.K. banks.
Total qualifying Tier 2 capital as a percentage of Tier 1 capital as at December 31, 1994 was 39.6%. In 1995,
the risk asset ratio decreased, reflecting a 24% growth in the risk weighted assets of ANTS in the six months
ended June 30, 1995, while only £33m of new subordinated debt capital was raised. Total qualifying Tier 2
capital as a percentage of Tier 1 capital as at June 30, 1995 was 37.8%. Total capital resources are shown after
supervisory deductions, which include the value of the Group’s investment in long-term life insurance
operations and the value of the priority liquidation distribution right available to members of the Society at
the date of Conversion. See Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this
Listing Memorandum for details of the priority liquidation distribution.

Capital Expenditure
As at
June 30, As at December 31,
1995 '119;4 1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
(unaudited)
Capital expenditure .. .........ooiti e 57 43 114 101 115

Capital expenditure over the period 1992 to 1994 has been, to a large extent, incurred for the purpose of
extending, modernising and in some cases resiting U.K. retail branches. As part of this programme,
administrative processes for mortgages and checking accounts were transferred from the branches to a
number of dedicated administration centres. As a result of the programme, selling space within the branch
network has tripled without a significant change in the number of branches. The programme is approaching
completion, with 604 of the 675 branches (as of December 31, 1994) modernised by the end of 1994. Capital
expenditure on the programme will therefore diminish. In addition, expenditure has been incurred on
enhancing information technology in each of the Group’s major businesses to improve processing efficiency,
decision-making and point-of-sale transactions with customers.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On July 10, 1995, Abbey National and National & Provincial Building Society (“National & Provincial”)
announced that they had reached agreement in principle on the terms of a proposed merger which will be
unanimously recommended by the board of directors of National & Provincial to its members. The merger is
to be effected by a transfer of National & Provincial’s business to Abbey National. The combined organisa-
tion would operate under the Abbey National name.

The total consideration being offered by Abbey National is £1.35 billion, to be paid to N&P’s eligible
saving and borrowing members and eligible employees and pensioners in a mixture of cash and Abbey
National shares. The election whether to receive shares or cash remains to be made by the members of
National & Provincial. Completion of the proposed merger is subject to a number of conditions including
approval by National & Provincial’s members in April 1996 in accordance with the Building Societies Act
1986 and confirmation by the Building Societies Commission. Subject to satisfaction of the applicable
conditions, the merger is not expected to take place until the third quarter of 1996.

As of December 31, 1994, National & Provincial was the United Kingdom’s ninth largest building
society based on total assets, with approximately three million customers and net assets of £732 million. In
1994 National & Provincial’s share of the liquid savings and residential mortgage markets was approximately
2.0% and 2.7%, respectively. As of December 31, 1994, National & Provincial had 324 branches in the U.K.
During 1994, the average number of National & Provincial full and part time employees was 4,550. After
rationalisation to eliminate overlapping branches resulting from the merger, Abbey National expects the
combined organisation would have a national network of approximately 880 branches.

Abbey National believes that the merger will enable it to strengthen its existing position in an increas-
ingly competitive U.K. residential mortgage market. The combined organisation would have a market share
of over 15% of the U.K. residential mortgage market, and a share of over 10% of the U.K. liquid savings
market, based on 1994 figures. Abbey National believes that this market position in mortgages and savings
will provide it with a platform from which to expand sales of its mortgage-related insurance products and
other personal financial products.

In August 1995, Abbey National acquired First National Finance Corporation p.l.c. (“FNFC”) for
£285 million. FNFC’s predominant business activity is consumer credit. FNFC’s strategy is to concentrate its
efforts on the consumer credit business while reducing the level of its activity in commercial lending and
property development. Abbey National management believes that the acquisition of FNFC will enable
Abbey National to expand in the area of consumer credit which is related and complimentary to its existing
business.

I G RIS




SELECTED STATISTICAL INFORMATION

Throughout this section, references to U.K. and Non-U.K. refer to the location of the office where the
transaction is recorded.

Average Balance Sheet

1994 1994 1994 1993 1993 1993 1992 1992 1992
Average Average  Average Average  Average Average
balance (1) Interest rate balance (1) Interest rate balance (1) Interest rate

(in millions of £, except percentages)

Assets

Treasury bills and other
eligible bills

UK. i i 149 5 3.12% 426 18 4.15% 624 43 6.93%

Non-UK. ........... 9 — 3.69 1 — 4.99 3 — 5.73
Loans and advances to banks

UK ... o oo 3,434 167 4.87 2,512 118 4.69 2,076 154 7.40

Non-UK. ........... 73 S 6.44 37 4 9.74 55 6 10.69
Loans and advances to

customers (2)

UKo ooiei e 45,498 3,533 1.77 43,088 3,456 8.02 39,925 4,120 10.32

Non-UK ........... 1,346 94 7.01 1,249 109 8.71 1,100 120 10.86
Lease receivables

UK ... .o, 2,278 133 5.85 2,047 141 6.90 1,141 115 10.04

Non-UK. ........... 29 2 6.56 29 1 412 30 3 11.66
Debt securities

UK. .. oo 27,728 1,590 5.73 21,371 1,312 6.14 15,156 1,361 8.98

Non-UK. ........... 114 4 3.06 1 — 4.90 34 2 6.28
Total average interest earning

assets and interest income . 80,658 5,533 6.86 70,761 5,159 7.29 60,144 5,924 9.85
Allowance for loan losses . . . (563) — — (527) —_ —_ (347) — —
Non-interest earning assets

Long-term insurance fund
ASSELS . . e e 3,811 — — 3,247 — — 2,181 — —
Other .. ............ 4,260 — — 3,829 — —_ 2,437 — —
Total average assets and

interest income . ....... 88,166 5,533 6.28 77,310 5,159 6.67 64,415 5,924 9.20
Percentage of total — Non-

UK ..o 1.84% — — 1.70% — — 1.90% — —
Net interest income (3)(4) . . — 1,399 — - 1,331 — — 1,253 —
Net interest income allocated

to dealing profits . ...... — 5) — — 7 — — 12 —_
Total average interest earning

assets and net interest

income.............. 80,658 1,394 1.73 70,761 1,338 1.89 60,144 1,265 2.10
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Average Balance Sheet

1994 1994 1994 1993 1993 1993 1992 1992 1992
Average Average Average Average Average Average
balance (1) Interest rate balance (1) Interest rate balance (1) Interest rate

(in millions of £, except percentages)

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Deposits by banks

UK o oo 15,313 840 5.48% 13,088 716 547% 9,525 793 8.33%
NomUK. + o eeeenee 973 53 541 621 46 744 168 i3 10.46
Customer accounts — demand
deposits (5)
UK oo ciemmm e 21,511 941 4.38 19,960 914 4.58 21,086 1,564 7.42
Non-UK. oo 103 5 5.20 — — — — — —
Customer accounts — time
deposits (5)
|8 T 13,340 844 6.33 13,367 878 6.57 11,172 986 8.82
Non-UK. ... oo ennn 721 49 6.74 507 33 6.43 423 50 11.81
Customer accounts — wholesale time :
deposits (5)
UK oo 1,830 107 5.83 1,342 91 6.81 1,210 116 9.57
Non-UK. .. oovieean 5 — 5.56 — — — — — —
Bonds and medium-term notes
UK oo e e e 13,315 836 6.28 9,192 659 717 5,415 560 10.34
Non-UK. ..., 406 30 7.39 402 42 10.49 428 49 11.46
Other debt securities in issue
UK. e ee e 4,779 261 5.46 4,743 298 6.28 3,724 383 10.30
Non-UK. ... .. e 2,028 91 4.48 2,398 85 3.53 2,295 101 441
Dated and undated loan capital and
other subordinated liabilities
UKo e e e e 690 51 7.33 539 50 9.24 342 44 12.75
Non-UK. . ... ... s 426 26 6.24 279 16 5.73 100 7 6.70
Total average interest bearing
- liabilities ... .. ... 75,440 4,134 5.48 66,438 3,828 576 55,888 4,671 8.36
: Non-interest bearing liabilities
Long-term insurance fund liabilities 3,811 — — 3,247 — — 2,181 — —
: Other . . v v e oo veen e 5,231 — — 4,268 — — 3,342 — —
Shareholders’ equity . . .. ....... 3,684 — —_ 3,357 — — 3,004 — —

Total average liabilities, shareholders’
equity and interest expense (4) . .. 88,166 4,134 4.69 77,310 3,828 4.95 64,415 4,671 7.25

Percentage of total — Non-U.K. . .. 5.45% — — 5.44% — — 5.30% —_ —

Net interest margin
Interest income as a percentage of

average interest earning assets . . 6.86 7.29 9.85
Interest expense as a percentage of

average interest bearing liabilities . 5.48 5.76 8.36
Interest spread . . ... ........ 1.38 1.53 1.49
Net interest margin . . ........ 1.73 1.89 2.10

(1)  Average balances for 1994 are based on monthly data. For 1992 and 1993 they are based on monthly data for U.K. Retail Banking
and Treasury and Offshore and quarterly data for all other operations.

(2) Loans and advances to customers includes non-performing loans. See “— Analysis of Allowance for Lending Losses” and
“— Potential Credit Risk Elements in Lendings” below.

(3) Net interest income includes an immaterial amount of loan fees.

(4)  For the purposes of the average balance sheet, interest income and interest expense have been stated after allocation of interest
on instruments entered into for hedging purposes.

(5) Demand deposits, time deposits and wholesale time deposits are defined under “— Deposits” below.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity

Interest rate sensitivity refers to the relationship between interest rates and net interest income
resulting from the periodic repricing of assets and liabilities. The largest single items in the Abbey National
Group balance sheet are residential mortgages and retail deposits, both of which largely bear interest at
variable rates. The contractual maturity of mortgage loans is generally more than five years but the maturity
of retail deposits are primarily within three months. This apparent mismatch gives rise to issues which are
addressed by the Group in its liquidity management (see “Risk Management” below). However, their effect
on interest rate management is less significant. Abbey National has the ability to reprice both its retail
variable rate liabilities and variable rate mortgage assets, subject to the constraints imposed by the competi-
tive situation in the market place. Management believes this ability enables Abbey National to mitigate the
impact of interest rate movements on net interest income in U.K. Retail Banking. Abbey National also offers
fixed-rate mortgages and savings products on which the interest rate paid by or to the customer is fixed for an
agreed period of time at the start of the contract. Abbey National manages the margin by matching the
expected maturity profiles, through the use of derivatives, with that of the assets. The risk of prepayment is
additionally reduced by imposing penalty charges if the customers terminate their contracts early.

Wherever possible, the Group seeks to avoid the risks associated with movements in market prices such
as interest rates or exchange rates. However, given the nature of financial activities, a level of market risk is
inevitable. Abbey National has developed and implemented structures and systems to manage this market
risk exposure. See “Risk Management” below.

Changes in Net Interest Income — Volume and Rate Analysis

The following tables allocate changes in interest income, interest expense and net interest income
between changes in volume and changes in rate for the year ended December 31, 1994. Volume and rate
variances have been calculated on the movement in the average balances and the change in the interest rates
on average interest earning assets and average interest bearing liabilities. The variance caused by changes in
both volume and rate has been allocated to rate changes.

1994/1993 1993/1992
Changes due to Changes due to
Total increase/(decrease) Total increase/(decrease)
change in: change in:
Volume Rate Volume Rate
(in millions of £) (in millions of £)

Interest income
Treasury bills and other eligible bills

UK o e e e e e e (13) (12) 1) (25) (14) (11)

Non-UK. . oo e e e — — —_— —_ —_ —_
Loans and advances to banks

UK o e e 49 43 6 (36) 32 (68)

Non-UK. ..o 1 4 3) (2) (2) —
Loans and advances to customers

UK o e e e i i 77 193 (116) (664) 326 (990)

Non-UK. ..o i e s (15) 8 (23) (11) 16 ~ (27)
Lease receivables

UK o e e e e €)) 16 24) 26 91 (65)

Non-UK. .. oo e e 1 — 1 2) — (2)
Debt securities

UK .. e e e 278 390 (112) (49) 558 (607)

Non-UK. . oot i e e 4 —_ 4 2 () —
Total interest income (1)

UK o e e e e 383 700 (317) (748) 1,036 (1,784)

Non-UK. ..o i e e ) 22 (31) 17) 10 (27)

TOtAl (1) + v e eeeee e 34 72 (48) (765 1046 (1811)




1994/1993 1993/1992
Changes due to Changes due to
Total increase/(decrease) Total increase/(decrease)
change in: change in:
Volume Rate Volume Rate

(in millions of £) (in millions of £)

Interest expense

its by banks

DeLI;.OSl S. y ............................ 124 122 2 an 297 (374)

Non-UK. .o 7 26 19) 28 47 (19)
Customer accounts — demand deposits

UK o 27 71 (44) (650) = (84) (566)

Non-UK. ... i 5 5 — — — —
Customer accounts — time deposits

UK et (34) 2 (32) (108) 194 (302)

Non-UK. ..o 16 14 2 17) 10 27)
Customer accounts — wholesale time deposits

UK e S 16 33 an (25 13 (38)

Non-UK. . oo e e — — — — —_ —_
Bonds and medium-term notes

UK o e 177 296 (119) 99 393 (294)

Non-UK. ... .o (12) — (12) @) €)] 4)
Other debt securities in issue

UK e 37 2 39) (85 105 (190)

Non-UK.. ..o e 6 (13) 19 (16) 5 (21)
Dated and undated loan capital and other

subordinated liabilities

UK 1 14 (13) 6 25 (19)

Non-UK .. ..ot 10 8 2 9 8 1
Total interest expense (1)

UK 274 495 (221) (840) 830 (1,670)

Non-UK........ooiiiiiii i 32 24 8 (3) 52 (55)
Total (1) ... 306 519 (213) (843) 882  (1,725)
Net interest income (1) ................... 68 276 (207) 78 20 58

(1) The analysis into volume and rate components of the changes in total interest income, total interest expense
and net interest income are based on the volume and rate changes to these totals. The figures so derived,
therefore, do not necessarily equate to a simple addition of the volume and rate components of the asset and
liability sub-headings. The 1993/1992 figures have been restated to be consistent with this approach.

Deposits

The following tables set forth the average balances of deposits for each of the three years ended
December 31, 1994. Average deposits are based on the location of the office in which the deposits are

recorded.

...............................................

............................................

................................................

Average: Year ended December 31,

1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
15,313 13,088 9,525
973 621 168
16,286 13,709 9,693
36,681 34,669 33,468
829 507 423
37,510 35,176 33,891




Customers’ Accounts — By Type
Average: Year ended December 31,
1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)

U.K.
Demand deposits . . ..................... .. .. ... .. . ... .. 21,511 19,960 21,086
Time deposits . .......... ... .. . . .. . .. 13,340 13,367 11,172
Wholesale time deposits . .. ................ ... ... 1,830 1,342 1,210
36,681 34,669 33,468
Non-U.K.
Demand deposits . ............... ... .. .. . ... 103 — —
Time deposits ........ ... . ... . . ... 721 507 423
Wholesale time deposits . .................. ... .. ... ... .. 5 — —
Total ... 37,510 35,176 33,891

Demand deposits and time deposits are obtained through, and administered by, the UK. Retail
Banking branch network. They are all interest bearing and interest rates are varied from time to time in
response to competitive conditions. Demand deposits largely consist of passbook based accounts whose
balances are available on demand. The category also includes a number of other accounts which are also
passbook based but which allow the customer a limited number of notice-free withdrawals per year depend-
ing on the balance remaining in the account. These accounts are treated as demand deposits because the
entire account balance may be withdrawn on demand without penalty as one of the notice-free withdrawals.

The main constituents of retail time deposits are notice accounts which require customers to give notice
of an intention to make a withdrawal and bond accounts which have a minimum deposit requirement. In
each of these accounts early withdrawal incurs an interest penalty. This category also includes Tax Exempt
Special Savings Accounts (“TESSAs”) which provide a tax-free return if held for five years. Investment limits
are set by the U.K. Government, with early withdrawal leading to a loss of tax-free status and an interest

penalty.

Time deposits are distinguished from demand deposits by having fixed maturity requirements or by
requiring notice to be given before withdrawal.

Wholesale time deposits are those which either are obtained through the London money markets or for
which interest rates are quoted on request rather than being publicly advertised. These deposits are of fixed
maturity and bear interest rates which reflect the inter-bank money market rates.

Short-term Borrowings

The following tables set forth certain information regarding short-term borrowings (composed of
deposits by banks, commercial paper and negotiable certificates of deposit) for each of the three years ended
December 31, 1994. While deposits by banks are reported in the “Deposits” section above, they are also
shown under “Short-term borrowings” because of their importance as a source of funding to the Group.

Deposits by Banks

Year ended December 31,

1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £, except percentages)
Year-end balance ................ ... .. ... 17,826 16,368 13,103
Average balance (1) ......................... ... . ... . ... 16,286 13,709 9,693
Maximum balance . . ......... ... ... .. ... 20,857 16,733 13,868
Average interest rate duringyear . ................. ... ... ... 5.48% 5.56% 8.37%
Year-end interestrate (2) ................ ... .. .. ... ... . 6.07 4.85 6.55
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Commercial Paper

Year ended December 31,

1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £, except percentages)
Year-end balance ........ ... . L L 2,378 2,739 2,718
Average balance (1) ........... ... ... ... ... ... ... . ... . . 2,020 2,392 2,198
Maximumbalance .. ............. ... ... ... . .. ... ... ... 2,756 3,032 2,781
Average interest rate duringyear . . .................. .. ... . .. 4.24% 3.44% 4.24%
Year-end interest rate (2) .. ................. ... .. .. ... ... 5.70 3.33 3.59

Commercial paper is issued by the Group generally in denominations of not less than $50,000, with
maturities of up to 365 days. Commercial paper is issued by ANTS and Abbey National North America
Corporation, a subsidiary of Abbey National.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Year ended December 31,

1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £, except percentages)
Year-end balance .. ............ ... ... 5,519 4,523 4,864
Average balance (1) ............ ... ... .. .. ... ... . .. ... . .. 4,579 4,639 3,779
Maximum balance . . ........... ... ... .. .. ... . .. ... .. . 6,407 5,063 5,159
Average interest rate during year ... .............. ... .. .. ... . 4.94% 4.88% 7.59%
Year-end interest rate (2) . ................ . ... ... ... 6.02 4.55 6.17

(1) Average balances for 1994, 1993 and 1992 are based upon monthly data.

(2) Year-end interest rates are weighted averages calculated on amounts outstanding at the applicable year-
end.

Certificates of Deposit and Certain Time Deposits

The following table sets forth the maturities of the Group’s certificates of deposit and other large
wholesale time deposits from non-bank counterparties in excess of £50,000 (or the non-sterling equivalent of
£50,000) at December 31, 1994. A proportion of the Group’s retail time deposits also exceed £50,000 at any
given date; however, the ease of access and other terms of these accounts means that they may not have been
in excess of £50,000 throughout 1994. Furthermore, the customers may withdraw their funds on demand
upon payment of an interest penalty. For these reasons, no maturity analysis is presented for such deposits.
See “— Short-term Borrowings” above for information on amounts and maturities of claims under issues of
commercial paper.

In more In more
than three than six
Not more  months but  months but
than not more not more In more
three than six than than
months months one year one year  Total

(in millions of £)
Certificates of deposit:

UK. 4,376 838 191 97 5502

Non-UK. ... ... .. 17 — — — 17
Wholesale time deposits

UK. 1,863 182 51 _ 62,102
Total . ... 6,256 1,020 242 103 7,621

|
|
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Securities

The following table sets forth the book and market values of securities as at December 31 for each of the

three years indicated. Investment securities are valued at cost, adjusted for the amortisation of premiums or
discounts to redemption, less provision for any permanent diminution in value. For further information, see
Notes 21 and 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.

1994 1994 1993 1993 1992 1992
Book Market Book Market Book  Market
Value Value (1) Value Value (1) Value Value (1)

(in millions of £)

Investment securities (2)(3)
Debt securities:

British Government .. .................... ... 1,308 1,416 1,222 1,274 454 474
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government agencies and
(7023 o0} ¢ 1 10) 1L 3,486 3,419 2493 2643 1,504 1,518
Other public sector securities . .................. 5,346 5,430 3,350 3,537 1,619 1,769
Bank and building society certificates of deposit . . . . . . 180 181 127 127 79 78
Other issuers (4):
Floatingratenotes . ........................ 2,342 2,344 27784 2,861 1,597 1,591
Mortgage-backed securities ... ................ 4905 4,804 4,421 4542 3706 3,692
Other asset-backed securities . . ................ 2,675 2,653 2246 2,309 2455 2,446
Other..... ... . i 9,287 9,243 6,183 6,312 6,341 6,323
Shares of preferred and common stock . ........... 42 42 523 527 435 436
General provision against debt securities . . ......... 3) — — — — —
SubTotal .......... ... ... . 29,568 29,592 23,349 24,132 18,190 18,327

Other securities (5)
Debt securities:
British Government .. ........................ 340 .~ 340 222 222 520 520
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government agencies and

COTPOTAtiONS . . .o\ v v vttt it e 447 447 434 434 233 233
Bank and building society certificates of deposit. . . . . . 1,740 1,740 1,307 1,307 1,055 1,055
Otherissuers .. .............. . ..., 279 279 — — — —

SubTotal ........... ... ... ... .. ..., ... 2,806 2,806 1,963 1,963 1,808 1,808
Total ... 32,374 32,398 25312 26,095 19,998 20,135

M
@

®3)

4)
®)

There are hedges in place in respect of certain securities where the rise or fall in their market value will be offset by
a substantially equivalent reduction or increase in the value of the hedges.

Investment securities include government securities held as part of the Group’s treasury management portfolio for
asset/liability, liquidity and regulatory purposes and are for use on a continuing basis in the activities of the Group.
In addition, the Group holds as investment securities listed and unlisted corporate securities. As at December 31,
1994, most of the Group’s securities portfolio was held through ANTS. A substantial majority of ANTS’ securities
portfolio was rated AA~— or better (or the equivalent) by one or more rating organisations.

Abbey National has complied with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 115 on
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities as from January 1, 1994. Under this standard the
majority of investments classified as investment securities were reclassified as “available for sale” securities and
reported at fair value at December 31, 1994, with unrealised gains and losses reported in a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. Further details are provided in Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.

As at December 31, 1994, in excess of 95% of exposure to other issuers constituted securities issued or guaranteed
by banks or other financial institutions.

Other securities comprise securities that are not held for investment and are carried at market value.
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A description of the characteristics of the securities held under each of the subcategories of investment
securities in the table above is provided below.

British Government Securities
The holdings of British government securities (“gilts”) are primarily at fixed rates. Abbey National’s
assets and liabilities are predominantly floating rate (as described under “Risk Management — Market
Risk” below) and floating rate is used as the benchmark for risk management. Fixed-rate investments
(including gilts) held for investment purposes are generally hedged into floating rate, on either an individual
or an aggregate basis within the overall management of the appropriate matched currency investment book.

U.S. Treasury and Other U.S. Government Agencies and Corporations

This category comprises mortgage-backed securities (“MBSs”) issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Gov-
ernment National Mortgage Association, the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (collectively, “Agency MBSs”).

The MBSs are predominantly adjustable rate securities. Any fixed-rate securities are hedged by instru-
ments of a short duration, generally on an aggregate basis within the fixed-rate dollar MBS investment
portfolio.

Specific risks from investing in dollar MBSs relate to embedded options within the securities including
prepayment options and periodic or absolute caps. Prepayment risk arises from uncertainty about the rate at
which early repayment will take place on the underlying mortgages on which these securitised assets are
based. The rate of prepayment is partly related to underlying demographic and economic conditions (for
example, the income level of mortgage holders) and partly to current market interest rates. These risks are
modelled using scenario analysis and option cover is arranged as appropriate. Specific limits have been
developed for prepayments along with the range of other risks; these risks are included within the set of
limits comprising the Treasurer’s Mandate (the framework for managing ANTS’ risks) as described more
fully under “Risk Management” below.

Other Public Sector Securities

This category comprises issues by governments other than the U.S. and U.K. governments, issues by
supranationals and issues by U.K. public sector bodies. These are a mixture of fixed-rate and floating rate
securities.

Bank and Building Society Certificates of Deposit

Bank and building society certificates of deposit held for investment purposes are fixed-rate securities
with relatively short maturities. These are managed within the overall position for the relevant currency
investment book.

Other Issuers: Floating Rate Notes
Floating rate notes have simple risk profiles and are either managed within the overall position for the
relevant currency investment book or are hedged into one of the main investment book currencies.
Other Issuers: Mortgage-backed Securities

This category comprises U.S. MBSs (other than Agency MBSs) and European (predominantly sterling)
MBSs. The non-Agency MBSs have similar characteristics to the Agency MBSs discussed above and are
managed along with the Agency MBSs for market risk purposes. European MBSs have prepayment risks but
few have cap features.

Other Issuers: Asset-backed Securities

This category comprises investment in a range of mostly floating rate asset-backed securities including
home equity loan, auto, dealer and credit card receivables. A number of the credit card receivables
incorporate cap features.
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Other Issuers: Other Securities

The following table sets forth the maturities and weighted average yields of investment securities at
December 31, 1994.

Maturing after Maturing after
Maturing within one but within five years but Maturing after
one year: five years: within ten years: ten years: Total

Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1) Amount Yield (1
(in millions of £, except percentages)

British Government. ... ..... . . . . . . 1 8.87% 773 7.55% 475 8.28% 59 8.45% 1,308 7.85%
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government

agencies and corporations (2) ... .. .. — — 213 719 10 6.38 3,263 549 3,486  5.60
Other public sector securities .. ... .. .. 240 9.87 4,250 9.48 827  10.66 29  11.10 5346  9.69
Bank and building society certificates of

deposit 3) .. ................ . 139 8.64 41  9.01 — —_ — — 180 8.72
Otherissuers (2) . ............... . 1,653 6.95 6,441  6.66 4,703 6.14 6,412 6.42 19,209 6.48
Sub-total ........ .. ... . ..., .. . 2,033 7.41 11,718  7.76 6,015 6.93 9,763 6.13 29,529  7.03
Shares of preferred and common stock 4) . 6 —_ — 36 42
Total book value before general provision. . 2,039 11,718 6,015 9,799 29,571
General provision against debt securities . . 3)
Total book value. . ............. .. . 29,568
Total market value . ........... . . .. 2,027 ) 11,541 5,860 10,164 29,592

(1) The weighted average yield for each range of maturities is calculated by dividing the annualised interest income prevailing at December 31, 1994
by the book value of securities held at that date.

(2) Included within U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government agencies and corporations and other issuers are a number of asset-backed securities.
These securities are classified in the table according to their contractual maturity dates; however, redemption of these securities is expected on
average to take place between four and ten years from date of issue. As with the underlying assets, asset-backed securities involve prepayment
risks; however, the Group’s exposure to this type of risk is significantly reduced due to the high proportion of floating rate assets in this category.
A further explanation of the Group’s risk management and hedging strategy is set out under “Risk Management” below.

(3) Bank and building society certificates of deposit are freely negotiable and have original maturities of up to five years, but are typically held for
shorter periods.

(4)  Shares of preferred and common stock by their nature do not permit the calculation of yields which are meaningful in the same way as yields on
debt securities; accordingly, these are omitted,

The following table sets forth the book and market values of those securities of individual counterpar-
ties where the aggregate amount of those securities exceeded 10% of Abbey National’s shareholders’ equity
at December 31, 1994,

Book Value  Market Value
(in millions of £)

British Government ................. . 1,648 1,756
Republicof Italy (1) ................. .. .. IR I 3,265 3,408
Republic of Finland ... .......... ... ... [ T 611 583
Banco Santander SA. (2)........ ... 402 394

(1) A total of £1,899 million in book value (£1,927 million market value) is covered by contractual
agreements with highly rated banks which protect the Group against credit risk.

(2) These securities consist mainly of floating-rate notes and fixed-rate bonds.
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The only addition to the securities which exceeded 10% of Abbey National’s shareholders’ equity
during the period December 31, 1993 to December 31, 1994 was the addition of Banco Santander S.A. (with
a book value of £402 million and a market value of £394 million). In the same period, the book value of
securities of the Woolwich Building Society, Nationwide Building Society, Alliance and Leicester Building
Society, the Kingdom of Spain and ACP Treasury Limited fell below 10% of shareholders’ equity. For the
purposes of determining the above changes, shareholders’ equity amounted to £3,704 million at Decem-

ber 31, 1994.

Loans and Advances to Banks
Loans and advances to banks includes loans to banks and building societies and balances with central
banks (excluding those balances which can be withdrawn on demand).

The geographical analyses of loans and advances presented in the following table are based on the
location of the office from which the lendings are made.

Loans and Advances to Banks
Year ended December 31,
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
(in millions of £)

UK o e 2,866 3,510 2,229 2,081 1,287
Non-UK. .. e 40 46 47 51 77
Total ... e 2,906 3,556 2,276 2,132 1,364

The following tables set forth loans and advances to banks by maturity and interest rate sensitivity at
December 31, 1994,

Maturity Analysis of Loans and Advances to Banks

In more than In more than
three months but one year but
Not more than not more than not more than  In more than
On demand  three months one year five years five years Total
(in millions of £)

UK ... . oL 315 2,257 119 — 175 2,866
Non-UK. .......... 9 31 — — — 40
Total ... ........... 324 2,288 119 — 175 2,906

Interest Rate Sensitivity of Loans and Advances to Banks

Fixed  Variable
rate rate Total

(in millions of £)
Interest bearing loans and advances to banks:

UK 2,400 288 2,688
Non-UK. .. 32 8 40
2432 296 2,728

Items in the course of collection (non-interest bearing) . ................ 178
dotal . e 2,906
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Loans and Advances to Customers

The Group provides lending facilities primarily to personal customers in the form of mortgages secured
on residential properties and a limited amount of consumer credit and also provides finance lease facilities
and certain limited lending facilities to corporate customers.

The geographical analyses of loans and advances presented in the following table are based on the
location of the office from which the lendings are made.

Loans and Advances to Customers

Year ended December 31,
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
(in millions of £)

U.K.
Advances secured on residential properties . ....... 46,464 43,147 39,855 37,342 33,603
Other secured advances . ..................... 115 155 274 327 414
Corporate lending .......................... 554 641 791 108 —
Unsecured personal lending . .................. 448 309 268 315 239
Finance lease receivables ..................... 2,249 2,224 1,703 761 104
49,830 46,476 42,891 38,853 34,360

Non-U.K.

Advances secured on residential properties ........ 861 774 821 642 491
Other secured advances . ..................... 396 469 425 334 281
Unsecured lending . ... ...................... 7 — — — —
Finance lease receivables ..................... 29 29 34 28 —
1,293 1,272 1,280 1,004 772
Total ... 51,123 47,748 44,171 39,857 35,132

No single concentration of lendings, with the exception of advances secured on residential properties in
the United Kingdom, as disclosed above, accounts for more than 10% of Group lendings and no individual
country, other than the United Kingdom, accounts for more than 5% of total Group lendings.
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The following tables set forth loans and advances to customers by maturity and interest rate sensitivity
at December 31, 1994. In the maturity analysis, overdrafts are included in the “On demand” category.
Advances secured by residential properties are included in the maturity analysis at their stated maturity;
however, such advances may be repaid early and the average life of Abbey National’s mortgages is approxi-_

mately six years.

Maturity Analysis of Loans and Advances to Customers

In more In more
than three than one
Not more months but year but not
than three = not more more than In more than
On demand months than one year five years five years Total
(in millions of £)
UK.
Advances secured on
residential properties . . . . 2,865 94 263 1,689 41,553 46,464
Other secured advances. . . — S 1 8 106 115
Corporate lending . . ... .. — 9 — — 545 554
Unsecured personal
lending . ............. 17 55 145 231 — 448
Finance lease receivables . . —_ 2 47 528 1,672 2,249
Total UK. . ............... 2,882 160 456 2,456 43,876 49,830
Non-U.K.
Advances secured on
residential properties . . . . 192 12 29 172 456 861
Other secured advances. . . 162 7 15 87 125 396
Unsecured lending . ... .. — 5 — — 7
Finance lease receivables . . — 1 1 7 20 29
Total Non-UK. . ........... 354 22 50 266 601 1,293
Total . .......... ... ...... 3,236 182 506 2,722 44,477 51,123

Interest Rate Sensitivity of Loans and Advances to Customers
Fixed Variable

rate rate Total
(in millions of £)
U K 10,436 39,394 49,830
Non-UK. .. 870 423 1,293
Total Lo 11,306 39,817 51,123
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Analysis of Allowance for Lending Losses

The largest part of the Group’s allowance for lending losses relates to loans and advances secured on
residential property in the U.K. For such loans, the Group’s provisioning policy is in accordance with U.K.
industry best practice expressed in the British Bankers’ Association Statement of Recommended Practice on
Advances and is as follows:

Suspended interest — loans are deemed to be impaired or non-performing when they are 90 days
overdue. Interest continues to be debited to all impaired loans. The homogenous nature of the loans,
together with the size of the loan portfolio, permits a reasonably accurate estimate to be made of the amount
of this interest for which eventual recovery is doubtful. This amount is omitted from the profit and loss
account and placed in suspense. :

Specific allowance — a specific allowance is established for all impaired loans where it is likely that
some of the capital will not be repaid or recovered through enforcement of security. All loans over three
contractual payments in arrears are considered to be impaired and an assessment of the likelihood of
collecting the principal of these loans is made. This assessment is made using statistical techniques devel-
oped based on previous experience and on management judgment of future economic conditions. These
techniques estimate the propensity of loans to become repossessions and to result in losses.

General allowance — a general allowance is established to cover losses which are from experience
known to exist at the balance sheet date but which have not yet been identified as impaired. The general
allowance is determined by using management judgment given past loss experience, lending quality and
economic prospects.

Amounts charged off — losses are charged off when it becomes certain how much is not going to be
recovered either from repayment, from realising the security, or from claiming on the mortgage indemnity
guarantee insurance. This charge-off is made when the security has been realised, and since the values can
then be calculated with some certainty, the instances for further charge-offs or recoveries are minimal.

A similar provisioning policy is applied to other categories of loans and advances.

As a result of the charge-off policy, the allowances may be made a significant time in advance of the
related charge-off. This is particularly the case for the other secured advances category which consists largely
of loans secured on commercial properties. The complexity of the legal proceedings to take possession and
the depressed state of the commercial property markets in Europe mean that, although the likely losses have
been identified and appropriate allowances made on a case-by-case basis, few losses have yet been deter-
mined precisely and been charged off. New commercial lending has ceased in the United Kingdom and
France and no longer represents a significant portion of the Group’s business in Spain and, as a result of this
and the downturn in the commercial property market, the allowances as a percentage of loans and advances
in these categories increased significantly.
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Analysis of End of Year Allowance for Lending Losses
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

(in millions of £, except percentages)

Specific
Advances secured on residential properties — U.K........... 104 152 146 67 23
Other secured advances — UK. ..................... .. 5 25 26 18 13
Unsecured personal lending — UK. .................... 26 28 30 31 20
Advances secured on residential properties — Non-UK. . ... .. 33 31 25 6 7
Other secured advances — Non-UK................... .. 119 110 32 2 2
Unsecured lending — Non-UK. . ................... ... 3 — —_ — —_
Total specific allowances . ...................... . ... .. 290 346 259 124 65
General
Advances secured on residential properties — UK........... 56 76 96 34 14
Other secured advances — UK. ..................... .. 1 1 1 1 1
Unsecured personal lending — UK. .................... 6 3 3 6 5
Advances secured on residential properties — Non-UK. . . . ... 3 9 10 10 6
Other secured advances — Non-U.K. .. .............. ... . 5 11 4 1 1
Total general allowances ............................. 71 100 114 52 27
Total-allowances ............ ... iviivunnunnnnnnn. 361 446 373 176 92
Ratios (per cent.)
Allowances at the year end as a percentage of year-end loans

and advances to customers
Advances secured on residential properties — U.K........... 034 053 061 027 011
Other secured advances — UK. ................... .. .. 522 1677 985 581 3.38
Unsecured personal lending — UK. ................ .. .. 7.14 1003 1231 11.75 10.46
Advances secured on residential properties — Non-UK. . . . . .. 418 517 426 249 2.65
Other secured advances — Non-UK..................... 31.31 2580 847 090 1.07
Unsecured lending — Non-UK. ................. .. .. .. 37.88 — — — —
Total loans and advances to customers N 074 098 088 045 026
Amounts charged off (net of recoveries) (1) ............... 034 030 020 0.15 0.03

(1) Total allowances and amounts charged off (net of recoveries) ratios are expressed as a percentage
of year-end loans and advances to customers excluding finance leases.
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Movements in the Allowance for Lending Losses

1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
(in millions of £)

Allowance at the beginning of the year ..., 446 373 176 92 36
Amounts charged off — net of recoveries
Advances secured on residential properties — U.K............ (101) (121) (58) (48) 4
Other secured advances — UK. ................. ... .. .. 19y — Hn @GO
Unsecured personal lending — UK. ................... .. a1 (15 (22) (1) (5)
(131) (136) (81) (60) (10)
Advances secured on residential properties — Non-UK. . . . . . .. any @ @ — —
Other secured advances — Non-UK. ... ........ ... .. ... 24y — — — —
Total amounts charged off ... .............. . . . . .. .. . (166) (137) (83) (60) (10)
Provisions charged against income
Advances secured on residential properties — UK............ 53 127 137 89 21
Other secured advances — UK. ............ ... ... ... . . 1 @ 10 6 8
Unsecured personal lending — UK. .................. .. . 10 13 21 27 16
62 139 168 122 45
Advances secured on residential properties — Non-UK. . . . ... . 12 11 19 4 (6)
Other secured advances — Non-UK.......... ... ..... .. . . 26 82 25 4 2
Unsecured lending — Non-UK. .............. ... ... . . 3 — — — —
41 93 44 8 (4)
Total provisions charged against income . ................ . . 103 232 212 130 41
Movement in general provisions ............... .. .. ... .. . (29) (14) 62 25 14
Exchange and other adjustments . ..................... .. .. 7 8) 6 (11) 11
Allowance at the end of the year. .. .............. ... .. . .. 361 446 373 176 92

Interest in Suspense

1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
(in millions of £)

Interest in suspense at the beginning of the year .. ......... ... . 150 134 68 12 4
Net interest suspended during the year. .. ............. ... ... 85 109 106 45 8

235 243 174 57 12
Interest written off ........ .. ... ... . ... . .. . ... ... ... (102) (89) (42) — —
Exchange and other adjustments ............... .. ... ... . 3 (4) 2 11 —
Interest in suspense at the end of the year ............. . .. .. . 136 150 134 68 12
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Potential Credit Risk Elements in Lendings

U.S. banks typically stop accruing interest when loans become overdue by 90 days or more, or when
recovery is doubtful. In accordance with the U.K. Statement of Recommended Practice on Advances, Abbey
National continues to charge interest for collection purposes to accounts whose recovery is in doubt, but the
interest is suspended as it accrues and is excluded from interest income in the income statement. This
suspension of interest continues until such time as its recovery is considered to be unlikely at which time the
advance is written off. While such practice does not affect net income in comparison with the practice
followed in the United States, it has the effect of increasing the reported level of potential credit risk
elements in lendings. The amount of this difference as at December 31, 1994 was £136 million. Other than
for the net interest suspended during the year, interest income in the income statement is the same as would
have been credited if all loans had been current in accordance with their original terms. The amount of this
difference for the year ended December 31, 1994 was £85 million.

The following table presents the potential credit risk elements in Group lendings. Additional categories
of disclosure are included, however, to record lendings where interest continues to be accrued and where
either interest is being suspended or specific provisions have been made. Normal U.S. banking practice
would be to place such lendings on non-accrual status. The amounts are stated before deductions of the
value of security held and the specific allowances provided or interest suspended.

The Group has no loans that constitute “troubled debt restructurings”.

Non-performing Lendings
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

(in millions of £, except percentages)
Accruing lendings on which a proportion of interest
has been suspended and on which specific allowance
has been made:

UK e 614 921 1,456 775 207
Non-UK. ... ... 388 366 274 57 21
1,002 1,287 1,730 832 228

Accruing lendings 90 days overdue on which no
interest has been suspended and on which no
specific allowance has been made:
UK e 1,400 1,672 2,015 2,046 1,541
Non-UK. ... ... . 8 29 20 9 4

1,408 1,701 2,035 2,055 1,545

UK 2,014 2,593 3,471 2,821 1,748
Non-UK. ... .. . i 396 395 294 66 25

2,410 2,988 3,765 2,887 1,773

Allowances as a percentage of total non-performing
lendings: ....... ... ... 1498% 14.93% 991% 6.10%  5.19%
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Potential problem lendings

The large number of relatively homogeneous residential mortgage loans has enabled the Group to
develop statistical techniques to estimate capital and interest losses with reasonable accuracy.

These techniques are used to establish the amount of allowances for loan losses and interest suspen-
sions. In addition, Abbey National’s policy of initiating prompt contact with customers in arrears, together
with the nature of the security held, means that a significant proportion of non-performing loans will not
result in a loss to the Group.

The categories of non-performing lendings which are statistically most likely to result in losses are cases
from 6 months to 12 months in arrears and 12 months or more in arrears. Losses on cases for which the
property securing the loan has been taken into possession are evaluated on a case by case basis with the
amounts expected to be lost on realisation of the security being established with a high degree of certainty.
The following table sets forth the values for each of these categories included in the non-performing lendings
table above for each of the last five years.

1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

(in millions of £)

6 months to 12 months inarrears . ..................... ... .. 742 785 995 694 373
12 months or more in arrears . . ....................0.o.. ... 421 527 585 358 124
Properties in possession ... ............. ... ... ... . 243 398 631 579 208

Country Risk Exposure
The Group does not have any exposure to countries currently experiencing liquidity problems.

Cross Border Outstandings

The operations of Abbey National involve significant operations in non-local currencies. These cross
border outstandings are controlled through a well-developed system of country limits, which are frequently
reviewed to aveid concentrations of transfer, economic or political risks.

Cross border outstandings, which exclude finance provided within the Group, are based on the country
of domicile of the borrower or guarantor of ultimate risk and comprise loans and advances to customers and
banks, finance lease receivables, interest bearing investments and other monetary assets denominated in
currencies other than the borrower’s local currency, but exclude balances arising from off-balance sheet
financial instruments.

At December 31, 1994, the countries where cross border outstandings exceeded 1% of adjusted assets
(as defined below) were Finland, Germany, Italy and J apan and consisted substantially of balances with
banks and other financial institutions and governments and official institutions. In this context, adjusted
assets are total assets, as presented in the consolidated balance sheet, excluding long-term insurance fund
assets and balances arising from off-balance sheet financial instruments. On this basis, adjusted assets
amounted to £89.6 billion as at December 31, 1994 compared to £79.2 billion as at December 31, 1993 and
£68.5 billion as at December 31, 1992. Comparison between 1993 and 1992 is affected by the 13% apprecia-
tion of the yen against sterling.

The only addition to the aggregate cross border outstandings that exceeded 1% of adjusted assets
between December 31, 1993 and December 31, 1994 was the addition of outstandings with Germany which
represented £1.2 billion or 1.29% (represented solely by balances with banks and other financial institutions)
of adjusted assets.
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Cross Border Outstandings Exceeding 1% of Adjusted Assets (1)

As % Commercial,
of Banks and Governments industrial
adjusted other financial and official and other

assets Total institutions institutions private sector

(in millions of £, except percentages)

At December 31, 1994:

e E 1.32% 1,181 463 718 —

GEITHANY « .+ o e v v e et e e eee e 1.29 1,158 1,158 — —
TEALY o evvee e e e e 1.54 1,378 600 778 —

? JAPAN « et e 1.97 1,763 1,704 32 27

At December 31, 1993:

Finland .. v ovo e 1.61 1,278 554 724 —
FLANCE « « v v v e e e e ettt 1.86 1,475 1,457 18 —
TEALY ©ovee e e e e 1.35 1,069 593 476 _—
JAPAN et e 2.61 2,070 2,014 32 24
SWEAEI « v o e e e e 127 1,002 595 407 —
At December 31, 1992:
Finland . ..o et 1.21 827 606 221 —
France . . o oo v it e et e e e 1.48 1,014 980 34 —_
JAPAN ittt 327 2,243 2,122 23 98
SWEAEN .« v o e v et 1.30 945 628 317 —

(1) Adjusted assets are total assets, as presented in the consolidated balance sheet, excluding long-
term insurance fund assets and balances arising from off-balance sheet financial instruments.

Cross Border Outstandings Between 0.75% and 1% of Adjusted Assets
At December 31, 1994, Belgium, France, Sweden and Switzerland had aggregate cross border outstand-
ings between 0.75% and 1% of adjusted assets with aggregate outstandings of £3.3 billion.

At December 31, 1993, Germany and Hong Kong had aggregate outstandings of £1.4 billion. At
December 31, 1992, the aggregate outstandings in this category were £1.2 billion and related to Hong Kong
and Italy.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management at Abbey National focuses on three major risks — credit risk, market risk and
liquidity. Credit risk occurs mainly in Abbey National’s U.K. residential mortgage portfolio, and in ANTS.
Market risk mainly arises in ANTS as a result of investment, funding and hedging activities. Liquidity risk
arises mainly from the Group balance sheet although liquidity is managed on behalf of the Group by ANTS.

Management Structure '

Abbey National has a well developed structure for managing risk, which consists of a comprehensive set
of committees, the main ones being the Asset and Liabilities Committee (“ALCO”), which is charged with
the responsibility of monitoring and controlling the level of structural balance sheet risk in the Group, and
the Group Credit Committee, which monitors and reviews credit exposures and recommends Group credit
policies to ALCO for approval. Other key committees include the Treasury Credit Committee and the
Treasury Risk Committee, which are responsible for credit and market risk issues, respectively. The Treasury
Credit Committee and the Retail Credit Committee report to the Group Credit Committee. The credit and
market risk control functions of Continental Europe and certain offshore operations within the Treasury and
Offshore business are carried out locally within the framework of delegated authority adopted by each
operation, with credit risk being monitored by the Group Credit Committee. Risk issues arising from all of
these committees are reported to ALCO.

An ANTS Board Credit Committee was established in January 1995 and took over responsibility for
approving many ANTS’ credit transactions previously subject to approval by the Group Credit Committee.
The Treasury Credit Committee is authorised to approve a more limited range of credit transactions. At the
same time, the terms of reference of the Group Credit Committee were amended so that it now approves all
Group credit policies. These developments were intended to focus credit decision making and to streamline
the process within guidelines specified by the Group Credit Committee and ALCO.

Credit Risk

Abbey National’s systems for managing and monitoring the quality of its mortgage assets and other
personal and unsecured loans are described in “Business Description — U.K. Retail Banking — Credit
Risk” below. With respect to asset quality in ANTS, a clear set of credit mandates and policies has been
established by ALCO which is designed to ensure that a substantial majority of credit exposure is rated AA —
or better (or the equivalent) by one or more rating organisations. All transactions falling within these
mandates and policies are scrutinised by the Treasury Credit Department and the Treasury Credit Commit-
tee. Specific approval is required for all transactions which fall outside these mandates. ANFP operates
within ANTS’ overall mandates. The controls over, and risk assumed by, ANFP are closely monitored and
tight risk control limits are consistently applied. Analyses of credit exposures and credit risk trends are
provided in summary for the ANTS Board each month, and in detail each quarter. Large Exposures (as
defined by the Bank of England) are reported monthly internally and quarterly to the Bank of England.

Credit risk on derivative instruments is assessed by using scenario analysis to determine the potential
future mark-to-market exposure of the instruments at a 95% statistical confidence level and adding this
value to the current mark-to-market value. The resulting “loan equivalent” credit risk is then included
against credit limits along with other non-derivative exposures.

Market Risk

The principal aim of the Group’s market risk exposure management is to limit the adverse impact of
interest and other rate movements on profitability. In addition, it seeks to enhance interest earnings within
clearly defined parameters. In managing market risk, Abbey National’s philosophy is to ensure that the
business areas within the Group have sufficient expertise to manage the risks associated with their opera-
tions, and to devolve the responsibility for managing risk to them. Within this framework policies and
mandates are established and monitored by ALCO each month.

The Group Risk Department is responsible for ensuring that policies and mandates are established for
the Group as a whole. The department monitors Group interest rate positions and uses quantitative models
to forecast the potential balance sheet mismatches under a variety of interest rate scenarios. ALCO is
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responsible for managing Abbey National’s non interest bearing liabilities, primarily shareholders’ equity,
balgncing the need to maximise potential return with the management of the potential volatility of this
earnings stream. This is effected by use of both on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet instruments.

Managing Market Risk in UK. Retail Banking
The U.K. Retail Banking balance sheet is dominated on the asset side by variable rate mortgages and on
the liability side by variable rate retail deposits. The variable interest rates on both these-assets and liabilities
are set by Abbey National and are not directly linked to money market .ratfas,.’l"l.ns structur; has the
advantage that Abbey National is able to re-price separately both the _retall llapllltlgs .and varlabl'e'rate
mortgage assets, subject to competitive pressures. As a r.esult, Apbey Natnon_a.l bellev§s it is able to mitigate
the impact of interest rate movements on net interest income in U.K. Retail Banking.

New mortgages generally have a nominal life of 25 years, though in practice the average life is
approximately six years. As well as variable rate mortgages, Abbey National has also a significant volume of
fixed rate mortgages on which the rate is typically fixed for between two and five years. These loans then
revert to a variable rate, though the customers may opt to take up a subsequent fixed rate offer. Abbey
National has a policy of fully hedging its fixed rate product exposures. However, during the period of product
launches it is not possible to hedge exactly and limits on the maximum potential exposure are maintained

during that period.

Prepayment risk is reduced by a penalty charge for any early redemptions, even for the very short
duration offers where this risk is much less. Prepayment across the whole portfolio is also monitored and an
estimate of prepayment rates is incorporated in determining the hedging of the fixed rate portfolio.

Managing Market Risk in ANTS

As described under “Selected Statistical Information — Securities” above, ANTS organises its invest-
ment activities by means of matched currency investment books in a number of currencies. The matching
process is achieved either by (i) raising funding directly in the currency of assets or (ii) hedging assets or
liabilities into one of the main currencies, mainly through the use of currency swaps. Wherever possible,
ANTS avoids the risks associated with movements in market prices such as interest rates or exchange rates.
However, given the Group’s involvement in a range of financial activities, a level of trading risk is inevitable.
For example, it is rare for hedging to produce exact cover. Abbey National has developed and implemented
structures and systems to manage this trading risk exposure.

The ANTS Board has established the maximum level of market risk that may be taken, referred to as
the “Treasurer’s Mandate”. The Treasurer’s Mandate is endorsed by ALCO. The level of risk is regularly
monitored against the Treasurer’s Mandate and ANTS operates consistently within the approved limits. The
overall limit is based on the total loss that could occur overnight under adverse market movements and there
are also a number of sublimits for interest rate risk. These adverse movements are derived from an analysis
of historic data using a range of statistical techniques.

Currently approved limits of overnight risk at a 95% confidence level are £8 million for interest rate risk
and £20 million for total market risk, which together relate to exposure to changes in absolute interest rate
levels, the shape of the yield curve, foreign exchange rates, interest rate volatility, mortgage prepayment
rates, cash/futures basis levels and asset spread levels. Exposures to foreign exchange rate movements are
small and exposures to other types of market risk, including equity and commodity risks, are not material.
Limits are allocated to individual books and positions are monitored against such limits. A comprehensive
set of reports is produced on both a daily and a weekly basis to monitor the risk position. Specific limits have
been set for ANFP within the overall ANTS limits, and these are monitored and reported daily. These limits
are similar to those operated within Treasury and Offshore as a whole.

. Utilisation against the defined limits is assessed either by performing scenario analysis on the underly-
Ing positions or by using theoretical models to assess the sensitivity of the position to changes in the
underlying variables.
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Liquidity Risk

Abbey National views the essential elements of liquidity management as controlling potential cash
outflows, maintaining prudent levels of highly liquid assets and ensuring that access to funding is available
from a diversity of sources. These elements are underpinned by a comprehensive management and monitor-
ing process. Abbey National monitors closely the level of wholesale and retail funding in the business,
particularly the maturity profile of wholesale funding and the diversity of credit lines available to the Group.
Abbey National’s liquidity policy is based in part on the Bank of England consultative document issued in
1988 (but not subsequently implemented) in respect of having a certain ratio of “High Quality Liquid” assets
to liabilities of up to eight days’ maturity. As part of this policy a key concern is the value of retail deposits
which could be withdrawn on demand. The potential outflows of these funds are modelled using various
scenarios in evaluating the prudent level of liquidity to be held. Abbey National reports to the Bank of
England on its liquidity position on a monthly basis.

The Bank of England has recently implemented a new High Quality Liquidity policy. Abbey National
has continued to maintain its High Quality Liquidity portfolio at a prudent level and will conform with the
new Bank of England policies.

Impact of Repricing Risks on the Group

The interest rate repricing gap information set forth in the table below is as at December 31, 1994 and
gives an estimate of the repricing profile of the Group’s assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures.
However, the positions shown reflect both the repricing behavior of the administered rates on mortgage and
savings products (over which Abbey National has some control as discussed in the review on interest rate
sensitivity above) and contracted wholesale and off-balance sheet positions (which are determined by
market rates). The table therefore does not purport to measure market risk exposure.




Interest Rate Repricing Gap
In more In more In more
than three than six than one
Not more months but months but not year but not In more Non-interest
than three not more more than more than  than five bearing
months  than six months twelve months five years years amounts Total
(in millions of £)
Assets
Treasury and other eligible bills . 17 237 178 — — — 432
Loans and advances to
banks (1). .. .. ......... 2,609 111 8 — — 178 2,906
Loans and advances to
CUStOMErS . . . .. ... .. ... 39,079 156 1,187 6,983 1,079 — 48,484
Net investment in finance leases 100 1,135 164 814 65 — 2,278
Securities and investments . . . . 17,455 1,303 1,498 8,814 3,262 42 32,374
Otherassets. . .. ......... — = = — — 3,753 3,753
Total assets (2) . ....... 59,260 2,942 3,035 16,611 4,406 3,973 90,227
Liabilities
Deposits by banks (1). ... ... 14,719 2,053 664 147 —_ 243 17,826
Customer accounts . ... .... 34,418 283 179 3,176 _ — 38,056
{ Debt securities in issue . . . . .. 9,414 3,122 1,815 5,925 3,137 —_ 23,413
Subordinated liabilities . . . . . . 478 128 — — 914 _— 1,520
Other habilities 3) ... ..... — — — — — 5,708 5,708
Shareholders’ equity. . . . .. .. — - — — 3,704 3,704
Total liabilities (2) . . . . . . 59,029 5,586 2,658 9,248 4,051 9,655 90,227
Off-balance sheet items . ... . 1,439 559 1,332 (5,546) 1,686 530 —
Interest rate repricing gap . . . . 1,670 (2,085) 1,709 1,817 2,041 (5,152) —

(1) Non-interest bearing items within loans and advances to banks, and deposits by banks, relate to items in the course of collection
and items in the course of transmission, respectively. These are short-term receipts and payments within the U.K. retail banking
clearing system.

(2) Total assets and liabilities exclude the assets and liabilities of the long term insurance funds, both of which amount to £4,092
million. These amounts are not relevant in considering the interest rate risk management of the Group.

(3)  Other liabilities include £402 million relating to creditors for the purchase of securities as at December 31, 1994. This balance may
fluctuate in the short term depending on the level of purchases and sales of securities.

The above table gives an indication of the sensitivity of the Group’s earnings as at December 31, 1994 to
changes in interest rates. Negative gaps are liability sensitive and indicate a benefit if interest rates decline. A
positive gap is asset sensitive and indicates a benefit if interest rates increase.

The risk management stance of the Group is broadly neutral, with the sensitivity profile as at Decem-
ber 31, 1994 attributable to the structural balance sheet risks arising from the management of the Group’s
capital.

The sensitivity to exchange rate movements as at December 31, 1994 was not significant.

Hedging Activity
A significant part of Abbey National’s exposures can be hedged internally by offset against other
categories of exposure in the balance sheet. See “Derivatives — Hedging Activity” below.
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DERIVATIVES

Derivatives are used in two distinct ways by the Abbey National Group. The first is as hedging
instruments for activities in U.K. Retail Banking and Treasury and Offshore and for the Group’s balance
sheet. The second is in the market-making activity undertaken within ANFP.

Derivative instruments are contracts or agreements whose value is derived from one or more underlying
indices inherent in the contract or agreement. They include interest rate and cross-currency swaps, forward
rate agreements, futures, options and swaptions.

Details of the nominal and risk weighted amounts of derivatives (as defined for purposes of the
preparation of the U.K. statutory accounts) are set forth in Note 50 to the Consolidated Financial State-
ments included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum. -

The total nominal amount of the Group’s outstanding interest rate contracts as at December 31, 1994
was £77,129 million (which includes £31,365 million in respect of ANFP) compared to £37,464 million
(which includes £5,501 million in respect of ANFP) as at December 31, 1993 and £18,701 million as at
December 31, 1992. The total nominal amount of the Group’s outstanding exchange rate related contracts
was £11,681 million as at December 31, 1994 compared to £15,537 million as at December 31, 1993 and
£10,504 million as at December 31, 1992. The total for 1994 includes £486 million in respect of ANFP
(compared to £25 million in 1993). Following a review of the classification of off-balance sheet contracts,
amounts for 1993 have been restated to reflect the reclassification of certain contracts between the exchange
rate and interest rate categories. The reclassification relates to exchange-traded contracts on foreign
government bond futures, which for any one transaction may provide a hedge against either interest rate or
exchange rate movements. As described under “Risk Management — Market Risk — Managing Market
Risk in ANTS” above, ANTS organises its investment activities by means of matched currency investment
books in a number of currencies. Hedging of assets or liabilities against exchange rate movements is achieved
mainly through the use of currency swaps. Since the main purpose for the usage of bond futures contracts is
to protect against interest rate movements, management believes that these contracts are more appropri-
ately classified as interest rate related instruments. '

Hedging Activity

Derivative products are used for a variety of hedging purposes in Abbey National. The major hedging
instruments are swaps, which are used to hedge Group balance sheet exposures, fixed-rate mortgage lending
and savings products in U.K. Retail Banking, Continental Europe and Treasury and Offshore as well as
medium-term note issues, capital issues, fixed-rate asset purchase and other exposures to fixed interest rates
and exchange rates within Treasury and Offshore. Caps, floors, swaptions and exchange traded options and
futures also may be used for similar hedging activities.

As discussed under “Risk Management” above, a significant part of Abbey National’s exposures can be
hedged internally, by offset against other categories of exposure in the balance sheet. As described in
“Selected Statistical Information — Securities” and “Risk Management — Market Risk” above, market risk
management in ANTS may be undertaken either on the basis of assets and liabilities on a one-for-one basis
or on an aggregate basis within one of the currency matched investment books, in which case hedging is
arranged on the net or aggregated position on the book for the currency concerned. The following table sets
forth certain activities undertaken by the Group, the related risks associated with such activities and provides
details of the types of derivatives used in managing such risks.
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Activity
Management of the return on
investment of shareholders’
equity and net non-interest
bearing liabilities.

Fixed-rate mortgage lending.

Management of other net
interest income on retail
activities.

Fixed-rate funding (e.g.
medium-term note issuance).

Fixed-rate asset investments.

Investment in foreign currency
assets.

Profits earned in foreign
currencies.

Investment in assets with
embedded options.

Investment/issuance of bonds
with put/call features.

Firm commitments (e.g. asset
purchases, issues arranged.)

Risk
Reduced profitability due to
falls in interest rates.

Sensitivity to increase in interest
rates.

Sensitivity of returns to changes
in interest rates.

Sensitivity to falls in interest
rates.

Sensitivity to increase in interest
rates.

Sensitivity to increase in foreign
exchange rates.

Sensitivity to sterling
strengthening,

Sensitivity to changes in
underlying rate and rate
volatility.

Sensitivity to changes in rates
causing option exercise.

Sensitivity to changes in rates
between arranging a transaction
and completion.

Type of Hedge

Receive fixed interest rate
swaps. Purchased floors.

Pay fixed interest rate swaps.
Purchased caps.

Interest rate swaps and caps/
floors according to the type of
risk identified.

Receive fixed interest rate
swaps.

Pay fixed interest rate swaps.

Cross-currency swaps. Foreign
currency funding.

Forward foreign exchange
contracts. Purchased options.

Interest rate swaps. Caps/floors.
Matched swaps with embedded
options.

Swaptions.

Hedges are arranged at the time
of any transaction if there is
exposure to rate movements.

Derivative products which are combinations of more basic derivatives (such as swaps with embedded

option features), or which have leverage features, may be used in circumstances where the underlying
position being hedged contains the same risk features, for example medium-term note issues based on equity
indices or a multiple of an underlying floating market rate. In such cases the derivative used will be designed
to match exactly the risks of the underlying asset or liability. Exposure to market risk on such contracts is
therefore fully hedged. Credit risk on these contracts is monitored within tightly defined risk limits on the
basis of the contractual terms of the instruments, rather than the face or contract amount.

All exchange-traded instruments are subject to cash requirements under the standard margin arrange-
ments applied by the individual exchanges. Other derivative contracts are not subject to these cash
requirements.

The interest rate, foreign exchange and volatility risks arising from the use of derivative instruments are
captured within defined risk limits, along with the risks of the products which such instruments are intended
to hedge. The authorisation of risk limits and risk reporting standards are described more fully in “Risk
Management” above.

Derivative products used for hedging of accruals accounted portfolios are accounted for on an accruals
basis consistent with the underlying products. Likewise, derivative instruments included in mark-to-market
accounted portfolios are also marked-to-market.

Market-making Within ANFP

ANFP’s objective is to gain margin value by marketing derivatives to end-users and hedging the
resulting exposures efficiently. Products offered by ANFP include interest rate and cross-currency swaps,
caps, floors and swaptions. ANFP has established clear guidelines for staff to ensure that end-users are
aware of the potential risk of entering into complex derivative transactions. ANFP also uses these products,
together with exchange-traded options and futures, for hedging purposes.




A comprehensive limit structure has been established for ANFP which includes exposures to interest
rates, yield curve shape, volatility and spreads. In addition to the normal limits, additional limits covering
sensitivity to large changes in the underlying variables have been imposed. Separate limits for ANFP are
allocated from within the Treasury and Offshore limits. Substantially no foreign exchange risk is currently
run within ANFP, other than that accruing through profits earned in currencies other than sterling. Direct
interest rate exposure is also kept low, but exact hedges are often not available in the market and this will
give rise to a combination of yield curve, volatility and spread risk within the established limits. The
exposures arising in ANFP are combined with those arising in Treasury and Offshore for reporting against
overall Group limits.

The overall management and control policy framework at ANFP is consistent with the Group of 30
recommendations regarding derivatives.

All ANFP positions are accounted for on a daily mark-to-market basis.

These arrangements continue in force following the termination of the joint initiative with Barings
discussed in “Business Description — Treasury and Offshore — Abbey National Financial Products” below.

Derivative Instrument Activity

The following table sets forth the nominal amounts of derivatives held for asset and liability manage-
ment and market-making purposes as at December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992 and the net replacement cost
and credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives as at December 31, 1994,

At December 31, 1994 1993 1992
Net Credit Risk
Nominal Replacement Weighted Nominal Nominal
Amounts (1) Cost (2) Amounts (3) Amounts (4) Amounts

(in millions of £)

Exchange rate related instruments
Held for asset and liability

management purposes . . . ......... 11,195 447 199 15,512 10,504
Held for market-making purposes . . .. 486 13 8 25 —
11,681 460 207 15,537 10,504

Interest rate related instruments
Held for asset and liability

management purposes . . . ......... 45,764 597 215 31,963 18,701
Held for market-making purposes . . .. 31,365 336 110 5,501 —
77,129 933 325 37,464 18,701

(1) Nominal amounts indicate the volume of business outstanding at balance sheet date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

(2) Represents replacement cost of contracts with a positive value. In respect of those contracts used as
hedges, the rise or fall in their market values will be offset by a substantially equivalent reduction or
increase in the value of the asset or liability being hedged.

3) The credit risk weighted amounts have been calculated in accordance with the Bank of En land’s
g g
guidelines implementing the guidelines of the Basle Committee on capital adequacy.

(4) Following a review of the classification of off-balance sheet contracts, the 1993 amounts have been
restated to reflect the reclassification of certain contracts from the exchange rate to the interest rate
category.
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End-user Swap Activity
The tables below set forth, by contract amount, the activity in end-user interest rate and cross-currency

swaps used for hedging purposes.

Interest Rate Swaps

1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
AtJanuary 1. . oo 28,033 17,336 7,611
New contracts (1) . ..o o i 24,508 28,241 14,317
Matured and amortised contracts . .. .............. S (16,150) (16,253) (5,707)
Terminated CONLIACES . . . .ot i i e (3,601) (1,423) (915)
Effect of foreign exchange rate and other movements . .............. (392) 132 2,030
At December 31 .. ... 32,398 28,033 17,336

(1) Includes £281 million of interest rate swaps acquired with HMC Group PLC in 1994.

Cross-currency Swaps

1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
AtJanuary 1 ... 7,826 6,481 3,593
NEW CONTIACES .« o v v vttt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e 6,677 7,214 5,897
Matured and amortised contracts . ............... .o (5,433) (6,127) (3,203)
Terminated cOntracts . .......... . (553) (146) (244)
Effect of foreign exchange rate and other movements. .. ............... (45) 404 438
At December 31. . ... .. o 8472 7,826 6,481
Total Interest Rate and Cross-currency Swaps
1994 1993 1992
(in millions of £)
Atdanuary 1. ... . . 35,859 23,817 11,204
New contracts (1) . ... .ot e i 31,185 35,455 20,214
Matured and amortised contracts . .. ......... .. ... . L. (21,583) (22,380) (8,910)
Terminated contracts . .. ... .. (4,154) (1,569) (1,159)
Effect of foreign exchange rate and other movements . .............. (437) 536 2,468
At December 31 .. ... i e 40,870 35,859 23,817

(1) Includes £281 million of interest rate swaps acquired with HMC Group PLC in 1994.

The impact on the income statement attributable to end-user derivative activities for the year ended
December 31, 1994 was a £67 million increase in interest receivable and a £282 million increase in interest
payable. The figures should not be analysed in isolation since there will be compensating movements in the
underlying positions against which the hedges were taken. ANFP contributed £21 million to the dealing
profits of the Group. For the year ended December 31, 1994, the mark-to-market position of the market
making portfolio was represented by unrealised gains of £349 million and unrealised losses of £295 million.
During the year, the average net mark-to-market value of dealing derivatives amounted to £96 million.
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The Group uses interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps predominantly for hedging fixed-rate
assets and liabilities effectively into floating rate. For interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps used for
these purposes, the weighted average pay fixed rates and weighted average receive fixed rates by maturity

and contract amount as at December 31, 1994 were as follows:

Pay fixed Receive fixed
Contract Contract
amount Rate amount Rate

(£ millions) (%) (£ millions) (%)
Contracts maturing: (1)

Lessthan 1year ............. ..., 3,946  6.60 4,097 5.96
Tto3years ... e 6,302  7.34 3,996 5.74
30 S YeAIS L. 5553 7.85 2,334 6.21
OVer SYEars ... vttt e e 1,644 9.09 3,623 7.15
Total ... e 17,445 14,050

(1) For the purpose of this analysis, the maturity date has been taken to be the date when the swap contract
expires.

(2) The total pay fixed contract amount comprises £15,448 million in respect of interest rate swaps and
£1,997 million in respect of cross-currency swaps. The total receive fixed contract amount comprises
£11,264 million in respect of interest rate swaps and £2,786 million in respect of cross-currency swaps.

For interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps used for hedging purposes, the weighted average pay
variable rate and the weighted average receive variable rate by maturity and contract amount as at Decem-
ber 31, 1994 were as follows:

Pay variable Receive variable
Contract Contract
amount Rate amount Rate

(£ millions) (%) (£ millions) (%)
Contracts maturing: (1)

Tessthan 1year ........ ... ... . .. 7,221 6.24 6,976 592
110 3 years . . e 7,658 6.24 10,032 6.31
3toSyears. ... 3,472 6.63 6,808  6.87
OVEr SYBAIS . oottt i e et e 4,835  6.84 3,004  6.89
Total . ..o 23,186 26,820

(1) For the purpose of this analysis, the maturity date has been taken to be the date when the swap contract
expires.

(2) The total pay variable contract amount comprises £16,817 million in respect of interest rate swaps and
£6,369 million in respect of cross-currency swaps. The total receive variable contract amount comprises
£21,134 million in respect of interest rate swaps and £5,686 million in respect of cross-currency swaps.

A difference arises when comparing nominal contract assets and nominal contract liabilities. Whereas
with single currency swaps one would expect equal and opposite nominal balances on either side of the swap
leg, this is not necessarily the case with cross-currency swaps. At contract date sterling equivalent nominal
amounts should be equal and opposite, however, subsequent exchange rate movements will result in
divergence in the nominal amounts. This exchange rate divergence explains the difference between nominal
contract asset balances and nominal contract liability balances.

The weighted average interest rates presented in the tables above reflect interest rates in a range of
currencies. These rates should not be analysed in isolation from the rates on the underlying instruments. The
effect of hedges has been included in the average interest rates presented in the average balance sheet set
forth above.

70




The contract amount of each type of end-user contract (excluding cross-currency swaps and interest
rate swaps which are included in the swaps detailed above) as at December 31, 1994 are set forth by currency
in the table below. All hedging contracts mature during 1995.

Contract type by contract amount

Forward Foreign Forward Rate  Options Futures

Exchange Agreements (0TC) (Exchange-Traded)
(in millions of £)
Sterling .« v v — 640 170 896
US.Dollars. . .o oo e 2,282 1,071 866 7,334
European Currency Units . ............... — 94 — —
Swiss Francs. . . ..o v v v i it e e 64 — — —
Canadian Dollars . . .................... 206 — — —
Deutschemarks. . . ...... ... ..., 73 153 2 12
French Francs .. .......... ... 2 —_— - 178
Spanish Pesetas . .......... ... .. ... ..., .47 15 — —
Netherlands Guilders .. ................. 10 —_ — —
Australian Dollars . .................... 19 — —_— —
Italian Lire ... . cv i vn i e = — 1,955 =
Total . ..o e 2,703 1,973 2,993 8,420

The total OTC options contracts amount to £20 million in respect of exchange rate related instruments
and £2,973 million in respect of interest rate related instruments.

Gains and losses arising from the hedging of investment transactions are released to the profit and loss
account over the life of the asset, liability or position against which the hedge is held. Gains and losses arising
from the hedging of assets which are not held for the purpose of investment are taken directly to the profit
and loss account. Where a transaction originally entered into as a hedge no longer represents a hedge, its
value is restated and any change in value is taken to the profit and loss account. Gains and losses on
instruments purchased or sold for trading and market-making purposes are taken directly to the profit and
loss account. Any such transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date are stated at market value.

As at December 31, 1994, deferred gains and losses being fully released within one year and relating to
terminated hedging contracts were gains of £35 million (1993: £4 million; 1992: zero) and losses of £69 mil-
lion (1993: £21 million; 1992: £10 million). As at December 31, 1994, deferred losses of £2 million and
deferred gains of £6 million were being released over a period greater than one year (1993: losses of
£1 million and gains of zero; 1992: losses of zero and gains of zero).
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BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

General

Abbey National and its subsidiaries constitute a major financial services group in the United Kingdom.
With total assets of £103.8 billion and income before taxes of £483 million as at and for the six months ended
June 30, 1995, the Abbey National Group currently ranks as the fifth largest banking group based in the
United Kingdom in terms of total assets. The Group’s income before taxes was £932 million for the year
ended December 31, 1994

The Group has three principal interdependent businesses: U.K. Retail Banking, Life Insurance Opera-
tions and Treasury and Offshore. Abbey National’s U.K. Retail Banking is focused on the personal sector
and is a major provider of residential mortgages and liquid savings products in the United Kingdom,
primarily through its national network of 677 branches at June 30, 1995. As at June 30, 1995, Abbey National
had a U.K. retail funding base of £37.2 billion in over 12.6 million deposit and checking accounts and total
U.K. residential mortgage loan assets of £46.7 billion represented by approximately 1.2 million mortgage
account relationships. Life Insurance Operations are conducted through Abbey National Life and Scottish
Mutual, each of which sells a range of life insurance, pension and long-term savings and investment products.
Treasury and Offshore, which primarily consists of ANTS, an authorised U.K. banking institution, manages
the Group’s liquidity needs and provides the Group with wholesale funding and risk management services.
Treasury and Offshore also includes ANFP and the Group’s Jersey and Gibraltar businesses. The Group’s
other business segments are Continental Europe (consisting primarily of the Group’s retail banking busi-
nesses in France, Spain and Italy), Consumer Credit and Other Operations.

Results of the Group’s principal business segments, and a discussion of certain changes in the presenta-
tion of such results, are contained in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Results of Operations of the Group by Principal Business Segment” below.

Summary History of Abbey National

The Abbey National Building Society was formed in 1944 following the merger of the Abbey
Road Building Society and the National Building Society. In the years following the merger, Abbey National
Building Society (the “Society”) was focused on the UK. residential mortgage and savings market and
establishing a national branch network. In the 1980’s, the Society began to seek ways to diversify its activities,
including acquisition of a residential estate agency business and expansion into certain other European
countries.

Abbey National is a bank authorised by the Bank of England under the Banking Act 1987 (the “Banking
Act”). It was incorporated in England and Wales in September 1988, and is the successor company to which
the Society transferred its business under the provisions of the Building Societies Act 1986 (the “Building
Societies Act”). The transfer of the Society’s business became effective on July 12, 1989 and was part of the
conversion (the “Conversion”) of that business from a building society into a public limited company

regulated as a bank by the Bank of England.

The Conversion was undertaken principally because the Board of the Society believed that the U.K.
legislative and regulatory framework applicable to building societies limited the Society’s ability to compete
with other financial institutions. In particular, the Board believed that restrictions on access to capital, on the
type of lending and other financial services products permitted to be offered, and on the management of the
treasury function (including more limited access to wholesale funding markets) created disadvantages for
building societies and increased the risk that customers would use other types of financial institutions. Asa
result, the Board of the Society recommended conversion from a building society into a bank. In April 1989,
the Conversion was approved by a vote of both the Society’s savers and borrowers, after which the Building
Societies Commission confirmed the Conversion on June 6, 1989. As the final stage of the Conversion, the
shares of Abbey National were floated on the London Stock Exchange on July 12, 1989 and Abbey National

raised a net £965 million in equity capital through the issuance of new shares.

ANTS was established as part of the Conversion, and in 1992, Scottish Mutual was acquired at a cost of
£288 million. In 1993, Abbey National Life commenced business, ANFP was established as a branch of

72




&‘.mewwnm A e 6 e

ANTS to provide risk management services in the currency and interest rate swap and option markets and
the residential estate agency business was sold. In 1994, Abbey National acquired HMC, a U.K. centralised
mortgage lender and in 1995, acquired FNFC, a consumer credit provider.

Strategy. The Abbey National Group’s strategy is to continue to focus on its three interdependent
businesses. Within U.K. Retail Banking, management is seeking to further improve Abbey National’s market
position in the U.K. personal financial services market, increasing its market share of the aggregate balances
of both mortgages and liquid savings. The Group also intends to continue to broaden its earnings base to
reduce dependence on traditional mortgage and savings activities. In addition, Abbey National is seeking,
over the long term, to strengthen its presence in the personal financial services markets of certain Continen-
tal European countries, particularly Spain, while managing the problem loans, now substantially provided
for, which had built up in its Continental Europe business during the economic recession of the early 1990s.
Through ANTS the Group also intends to establish branches or offices in major financial centres outside the
United Kingdom as part of ongoing efforts to diversify wholesale funding sources. In addition, from time to
time the Group may have under consideration the acquisition of businesses or assets with a view to
expanding or complementing its existing lines of businesses. The Group periodically receives proposals from
third parties, and may initiate discussions regarding such acquisitions.

Complementing these strategic goals are the Group’s objectives to maintain strong management of, and
control over, risks, to further improve efficiency and thus maintain a low cost:income ratio (as compared to
the U.K. clearing banks), to maintain a prudent capital base and to preserve and further enhance its strong
brand name in the markets in which the Group operates.

U.K. Retail Banking

U.K. Retail Banking is the Group’s largest business, with total assets of £49.1 billion and income before
taxes of £316 million as at and for the six months ended June 30, 1995, and income before taxes of £650
million for the year ended December 31, 1994. U.K. Retail Banking consists of the Retail Division, the
Operations Division and a number of central Group functions (such as personnel). The Retail Division
manages the Group’s retail branch network as well as the design, pricing, sales, marketing and distribution of
the Group’s retail products. These include residential mortgages, liquid savings products, personal cheque
accounts and life insurance policies underwritten by Life Insurance Operations. The Retail Division also
markets, as an agent of non-affiliated insurers, non-life insurance to individuals. The Operations Division
supports the Retail Division by providing both systems and administrative back office support for the Retail
Division’s U.K. residential mortgage lending (via 48 mortgage service centres), UK. checking account
services (via a central check handling centre and 18 banking centres) and sales of non-life insurance
products.

Distribution Network

The Retail Division distributes products primarily through the Group’s 676 retail branches, its 13
business development units, its direct marketing activities conducted through Abbey National Direct and its
approximately 1,285 automated teller machines (“ATMs”). In recent years the Group has modernised (and
in some cases resited) almost 92% of its retail branches, which has tripled the amount of selling space
available in branches over this period. Abbey National has a national branch network with a particular
strength in the southeast of England, and this network distributes the majority of products to Abbey
National’s customer base. In the first six months of 1995, approximately two-thirds of mortgage completions
were originated in Abbey National’s retail branches. Abbey National established its business development
units to directly service the U.K. mortgage intermediary market (which is composed of a wide range of
entities including financial advisers, mortgage brokers, life and other insurance companies and real estate
brokers who introduce mortgage customers to lenders). In 1994, mortgage intermediaries introduced
approximately one-third of Abbey National’s new mortgage originations. In November 1994, Abbey Na-
tional acquired HMC, one of the U.K.’s largest centralised mortgage lenders, which will continue to offer
HMC-branded mortgages to the intermediary market. Abbey National Direct has arranged mortgages and
ancillary products over the telephone since 1989 and in November 1994 Abbey National expanded this
operation by opening an additional telemarketing facility in Glasgow to provide life insurance and unsecured
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loans are offered in a comprehensive range of payment types, including repayment, interest only, endow-
ment, unit-linked endowment and pension. Repayment mortgages require both principal and interest to be
repaid in monthly installments over the life of the mortgage. Interest only mortgages require monthly
interest payments and the repayment of principal at the end of the mortgage term (which can be arranged via
endowment policies, personal equity plans, pension policies or by the sale of the property). An endowment
mortgage is an interest only mortgage in which one or more “endowment” policies (which require premium
payments and which are designed to provide a sum sufficient to repay the mortgage principal and perhaps
provide an additional lump sum to the borrower) are taken out by the borrower; monthly interest payments
are made to the mortgage provider and monthly endowment premiums are paid to the endowment policy
provider. Pension mortgages are also interest only mortgages; they involve periodic payments into pension
plans and are designed to enable repayment of the mortgage principal at maturity and perhaps provide an
additional lump sum to the borrower.

Abbey National’s mortgage loans are almost always secured by a first mortgage over property and are
typically arranged for a 25 year term, with no minimum term and a maximum term of 35 years. Abbey
National’s mortgage loans generally have an average life of approximately six years. Interest on mortgage
loans has in the past been charged predominately at floating rates, determined at the discretion of Abbey
National by reference to the general level of market interest rates and competitive forces in the UK.
mortgage market, rather than being tied to any particular index.

In recent years there has been an increase in the demand for fixed-rate mortgage products. Abbey
National’s fixed-rate products generally are designed so that prepayment during a fixed-rate term includes a
pre-payment charge. Fixed-rate mortgages comprised approximately 21% of Abbey National’s U.K. residen-
tial mortgage portfolio at December 31, 1994 and approximately 20% at June 30, 1995. The interest rate risk
on such mortgages is managed as part of the Group’s asset and liability management procedures. See “Risk
Management — Market Risk” above. In the second half of 1994 mortgages offering a discount to floating
rates became popular. The discount is typically for between one and five years and is influenced by the
amount of loan relative to the value of the property. After the discount period the loan reverts to the full
floating rate. If a borrower redeems the mortgage before a specified period has elapsed, usually three years,
then they must repay all or a proportion of the benefit arising from the discount.

Underwriting Criteria. Prior to granting a mortgage loan, Abbey National has the property valued,
based on Abbey National’s guidelines, by an approved and qualified surveyor who is often an employee of
Abbey National. All surveyors are required to be members of the relevant professional bodies and, as such,
to adhere to the applicable standards.

The amount of a mortgage to be extended to a customer is based on Abbey National’s “National
Lending Policy”, which was established to help control the quality of lending decisions made by U.K. Retail
Banking and to ensure that a thorough review of each customer’s financial history and commitments is
carried out. All advances are subject to a “basic advance” calculation. The basic advance value is 75% of the
lower of the valuation or the purchase price of the property. All loans in excess of this ratio require
additional security in the form of mortgage indemnity guarantee insurance, which is described below. The
maximum size of a mortgage is normally not more than 95% of the lower of the valuation or the purchase
price of the property, although for mortgages of up to £75,000 judged to be of low risk the limit may be
increased (but not above 100%). If the valuation or purchase price of the relevant property exceeds
£125,000, the maximum advance is 90%. Within the above limits, maximum advances for loans to borrowers
vary depending upon the type of mortgage taken out, the borrower’s circumstances, and the use for which
the loan is intended. In common with experience throughout the U.K. mortgage market, Abbey National has
a considerable number of customers who wish to provide the minimum permissible downpayment. Conse-
quently, a substantial portion of Abbey National’s new lending has a loan to value (“LTV”) ratio of between
90% and 95%.

Abbey National lends on many types of property but only after a thorough assessment. The mortgage
deed used by Abbey National to provide security is only applicable to U.K. properties. Abbey National can
provide mortgages for people wishing to purchase property outside the United Kingdom in one of two ways:
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where the property is a second home and the loan is secured on the main property which is held in the United
Kingdom; or where the Group operates a Continental European branch or subsidiary. A limited mortgage
service is offered to borrowers wishing to buy property in France, Spain, Italy, Portugal and Jersey. All
property must be permanent in construction. The age of a property is always taken into consideration, as
different valuation criteria apply depending on whether the property is new or old.

In England, Wales and Northern Ireland, property is either sold freehold or leasehold, while in Scotland
the substantial majority of property is held on feudal tenure. A property is “freehold” when the owner owns
the property and any associated land outright. In a “leasehold” property agreement, the freeholder owns the
land and formally grants permission, through a lease, for the tenant to occupy the land for an agreed period.
A lease is a legally binding contract between two parties (the freeholder and the tenant) which contains
conditions or covenants applying to both parties. A new lease is normally agreed for 99 or 999 years. Existing
leases on second hand properties are assigned to the new owners when they buy the property. Abbey
National normally accepts leases of 55 years minimum subject to a maximum mortgage term of 25 years. In
Scotland, feudal tenure means the property is effectively owned outright by the buyer subject to certain
conditions with regard to use, development and other matters.

Abbey National does not accept mobile homes, river boats, farms or farming areas or commercial
property as security for a mortgage. Semi-commercial property, however, where the property includes some
form of living accommodation which will be occupied by the borrower, is acceptable.

Credit Risk. Abbey National has a number of systems which enhance its ability to manage and monitor
the quality of its mortgage assets. Under applicable U.K. law, a mortgage borrower must be 18 years old.
Although there is no maximum age, a borrower whose mortgage will mature after retirement will need to
satisfy Abbey National that they will be able to maintain mortgage payments from retirement income. Group
policy permits no more than four persons to take out an Abbey National mortgage on the same property, and
the mortgage and property must be in the same names. Confirmation of income from employers is required
before a firm mortgage offer is made.

Abbey National calculates the maximum loan principal according to one of two “status multiplier”
methods, whichever is more advantageous to the borrower subject to consideration of the borrower’s other
commitments. Under the first method, the maximum loan amount is equal to three times the highest
earner’s principal income, plus the principal income of other applicants and all secondary income. Under the
second method, the maximum loan amount is equal to 2.5 times the combined principal incomes of the two
highest earners plus the principal income of all other applicants and all secondary income. Before applying
the status multiplier, the borrower’s principal annual income is reduced by the annual cost of his or her
unavoidable commitments, such as loan and credit card repayments and tuition fees, if they exceed 5% of
gross annual income. If an advance is made to a borrower who is or has been an owner-occupier, a reference
is obtained from the previous lender. In addition, for all borrowers and all types of loans, credit references
are obtained to verify the borrower’s address and to establish creditworthiness.

Abbey National introduced mortgage credit scoring in August 1993 to supplement existing credit
management techniques. Details concerning the prospective borrower and the proposed transaction are
entered into a system that is linked to a credit referencing agency. The system then generates information to
assist in making the credit decision.

Mortgage Indemnity Guarantee Insurance. Mortgage indemnity guarantee insurance is an agreement
between a lender and an insurance company to underwrite the amount of every mortgage advance which
exceeds the lender’s basic advance LTV ratio (for Abbey National, an LTV ratio above 75%). A charge is
made to the customer for a mortgage indemnity guarantee policy which is normally added to the mortgage
balance. In those limited cases where the LTV is 100% and in some other high LTV cases, the mortgage
indemnity guarantee will be paid in advance by the customer, and not added to the mortgage balance, in
order to prevent Abbey National from lending more than the value of the property.

Mortgage indemnity guarantee insurance companies insure on a “block policy” basis; they agree a set of
underwriting standards and criteria with Abbey National to cover all mortgages and Abbey National accepts
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individual cover on the insurer’s behalf by upholding the insurer’s standards at the offer stage. The primary
restrictions on what the mortgage indemnity guarantee insurance companies will cover are that (i) the
property must be owner-occupied and be the main residence of the borrower and (ii) lending must comply
with the criteria set out in Abbey National’s “National Lending Policy”, as discussed above. Abbey Na-
tional’s residential mortgage loans taken out before January 1993 are covered by mortgage indemnity
guarantee insurance policies. However, at the end of 1992 Abbey National chose not to renew the mortgage
indemnity guarantee agreements which it had reached with four major general insurers, on commercial
grounds. At that time, mortgage indemnity guarantee insurance premiums increased by approximately 50%
while the contractual terms offered became less favorable to lenders. This occurred primarily because the
levels of arrears, repossessions and losses, as well as claims on mortgage indemnity guarantee policies, had

increased substantially.

For loans originated prior to 1993, credit risks on the amount of every mortgage advance which
exceeded an LTV ratio of 75% at the time originated are fully insured with third-party insurance companies.
The insurance companies take a stringent approach in evaluating claims; as a result, some claims are settled
at a discount to their full value. The scale of such discounts is relatively small and has been negotiated with
the insurers so it can be estimated with some certainty. The expected value is included in the allowance for
lending losses. For loans originated thereafter, Abbey National has obtained its mortgage indemnity guaran-
tee insurance from its insurance subsidiary, Carfax. Carfax is based in Guernsey and managed by an
insurance consultant, Willis Corroon Management (Guernsey) Ltd. It is Carfax’s policy to reinsure a portion
of these risks where commercially appropriate. Such reinsurance will cover a layer of risk above a level of
losses which Carfax believes it can prudently bear itself. -

Carfax chose not to reinsure these risks in 1993 because the cost of reinsurance was such that it was not,
in its judgment, commercially justifiable. It is Carfax’s view that, given the high credit quality of the mortgage
loans made in 1993 and given the point in the economic cycle, the premiums collected in 1993 and the
investment income thereon will be sufficient to cover the amount of potential losses on loans advanced
during 1993. Carfax has in place reinsurance arrangements with a number of insurance companies for loans
originated in 1994 and 1995.

Mortgage Arrears and Repossessions. The recent recession in the United Kingdom, combined with high
real interest rates, has produced relatively high levels of mortgage arrears and repossessions by historic
standards. However, Abbey National’s losses on repossessed properties were limited through having a first
mortgage over the relevant property, as well as through mortgage indemnity guarantee insurance and proper
credit verification procedures.

77




The following table sets forth information on U.K. residential mortgage arrears and properties in
possession as of December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992 and June 30, 1995 and 1994 for both Abbey National and
the U.K. Council of Mortgage Lenders (“CML”), an organisation whose members account for over 80% of
total U.K. new mortgage originations and which represents a widely recognised benchmark for the UK.
mortgage market. In the table, all percentages shown are percentages of total U.K. residential mortgage
loans by number.

Abbey National (1) CML

(percentage of total mortgage
loans by number)

6 months to 12 months in arrears

December 31, 1992 . .o o i e . 1.51 2.07

December 31, 1993 . .. it 1.15 1.62

December 31, 1994 . . ... 1.00 1.28
12 months or more in arrears

December 31, 1992 . . oot 0.64 1.48

December 31, 1993 . ... ot 0.49 1.50

December 31, 1994 . ... it 0.40 1.12
Properties taken into possession in the year ended

December 31, 1992 . ..ottt 0.31 0.33

December 31, 1993 ..ttt 0.17 0.26

December 31, 1994 . ..o 0.17 0.23

(1) Abbey National figures exclude Abbey National Mortgage Finance plc (the U.K. residential mortgage
operation acquired from CIBC) and HMC.

Abbey National’s mortgage administration process ensures that prompt contact is made with borrowers
who fall into arrears. Mortgage centres are responsible for contacting customers who have missed a
contractual payment and requesting that they rectify the position. Borrowers are encouraged to make
arrangements to pay off any arrears and adherence to these arrangements is monitored closely. Legal
proceedings will normally be initiated against borrowers who fail to respond positively to repeated requests
and who subsequently fall three monthly payments in arrears. These proceedings may result in the bor-
rower’s property being taken into possession. Abbey National takes possession of properties and sells these
properties, through both legal means and voluntary action by the borrower, at market prices in order to pay
off the outstanding value of the loan previously secured by the properties. The size of the stock of
repossessed properties varies depending on the number of new possessions and the buoyancy of the housing
market which determines the speed with which properties can be sold at reasonable prices. Abbey National’s
stock of repossessed properties decreased from 9,331 at December 31, 1992 to 4,797 at December 31, 1993,
to 2,994 at December 31, 1994, and to 2,717 at June 30, 1995.

Liquid Savings Products
During the second half of the 1980s, banks adopted a more competitive stance which arrested the
decline in their share of the U.K. liquid savings market. In the face of this increased competition, building
societies maintained their market share by offering a wider range of savings accounts and by improving the
services they offered to customers.

At June 30, 1995, Abbey National had approximately 12.6 million deposit and checking accounts with
personal customers providing a retail funding base of £37.2 billion. Abbey National provides a full range of
retail savings accounts, including demand deposit accounts, notice accounts (where access is available on a
limited number of occasions each year, following which 90 days’ notice is required), accounts requiring an
investment of a minimum amount and for a set period (one year) and Tax Exempt Special Savings Accounts
known as “TESSAs”. TESSAs were introduced in 1991 by the U.K. Government to encourage savings by
offering investors the opportunity to earn a tax-free return for five years. The “Instant Saver”, Abbey
National’s current demand deposit account, is a tiered account (i.e., interest rates are ticred according to the
level of savings). The “Investment Account” is also a tiered account which offers higher rates of interest than
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an “Instant Saver” but to which instant access is only available on a limited number of occasions each year
(after which 90 days’ notice is required). Abbey National offers even higher interest rates through its “High
Yield Bond”, which has a tiered interest rate structure but requires a minimum level of investment which
must be deposited for a minimum of one year. Abbey National also offers investors the opportunity of fixing
their rate of return with the “Triple Growth Bond”. This account requires a minimum level of investment
and offers a guaranteed interest rate increase each year over a three-year period. Interest rates on savings in
the United Kingdom are primarily set with reference to the general level of market interest rates and the
level of competition for such funds. For the bulk of Abbey National’s retail liabilities, interest is paid on a
floating rate basis.

Personal Cheque Accounts
U.K. Retail Banking has offered personal cheque account products since 1988. At the end of 1994 the
Group had approximately 1.3 million cheque account customers. Cheque accounts are distributed through
the retail branch network and by direct mail, and are administered through a central cheque handling centre
and 18 banking centres.

In May 1995, U.K. Retail Banking launched the Abbey National Bank Account, which will eventually
replace all other existing cheque accounts in the Group. The Abbey National Bank Account offers tiered
interest on credit balances and an interest bonus if £500 or more is mandated to the account each month.
Abbey National Bank Account customers can take advantage of telephone and ATM banking services,
overdraft facilities to £5000 (depending on credit standing), a £100 cheque guarantee card and a debit card.

Behavioural scoring was introduced during 1994 and is used to decide whether to grant customers
overdrafts on their cheque accounts and whether to issue them cheque guarantee and “multifunction” cards
(combined cheque guarantee, debit and ATM cards). U.K. Retail Banking has centrally controlled credit
scoring to enable it to manage the risks associated with overdrafts on its cheque account products.

Non-life Insurance
Residential mortgage-related insurance remains the dominant type of non-life insurance policy sold by
Abbey National. The range of products offered to customers through the branch network includes property,
buildings and contents, payment protection, travel and health insurance. Nearly all the non-life insurance
products are sold through the retail branch network, often at the same time that a mortgage is being taken
out. Until July 1995, Abbey National acted solely as agent for a panel of third-party insurers, without
underwriting risk, in respect of such sales.

In July 1995, Abbey National’s joint venture with Commercial Union, formed to provide non-life
insurance products to the personal sector, commenced operations. Two complementary businesses have
been established under the joint venture: an operations business unit and an underwriting company. The
operations business unit is a division of Abbey National. The operations business unit is responsible for
providing quotations, collecting premiums and issuing policies on behalf of the underwriting company,
Commercial Union Underwriting Limited (CUUL). The voting share capital of CUUL is owned 85% by
Commercial Union and 15% by Abbey National. CUUL is responsible for the payment of claims. The
administrative expenses associated with this process are incurred within the operations business unit.
Additionally, a brokerage operation is to be established within the joint venture which will be owned by the
operating business unit.

The new venture has become the sole supplier of Abbey National’s building and contents insurance
products. Over time, the number of products provided by the venture will be increased, with the intention
that in the long term it will provide the bulk of Abbey National’s non-life insurance product range.

Life Insurance Operations

UK. Life Insurance Industry
In the United Kingdom, the life insurance industry has been dominated by a large number of mutual
insurance organisations, who distribute a range of products through banks, building societies, direct sales
forces and a large network of independent financial advisers. In recent years, the entry of building societies
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and banks into the market as manufacturers, as well as distributors, has reduced this dominance. The life
insurance market has grown significantly over the last decade, with total industry new business premiums
increasing threefold over this period. Management believes that the increase in the average age of the U.K.
population and the U.K. Government’s potential difficulty in funding the provision of a state pension in the
future, will cause individuals to make separate provision for their retirement. Management believes that
these trends are likely to cause the life insurance market to grow further in the future and therefore
considers it strategically important to have a presence in this market. '

The U.K. life insurance industry consists of three principal segments: protection, investment and
savings and pensions.

Protection. The traditional form of protection policy, known as term insurance, provides a lump sum
benefit payable on death within a specified term to a named party, typically a relative. Policies are also
available to provide protection against ill health.

Investment and Savings. Endowment life insurance policies represent the bulk of this category. An
endowment policy provides a lump sum benefit payable at the end of a specified term or on prior death. The
lump sum can be in the form of a “without-profits” benefit (in which only a guaranteed minimum sum is
provided), a “with-profits” benefit (in which a guaranteed minimum sum, plus a share of profits on
investments, if any, is provided) or a linked or “unit-linked” benefit (in which an amount determined by
reference to the level of an index or a pool of unit investments is provided). The traditional life insurance
investment and savings product is the “with-profits” endowment policy. The premiums paid into a with-
profits endowment policy are pooled into a life fund which is invested in cash, government bonds, shares and/
or property. Policy holders receive a guaranteed minimum sum upon maturity of the contract, plus a share of
profits, if any, from the fund. An increasing proportion of life contracts in this segment are “unit-linked”
endowment policies. The premiums paid are used to buy units in investment (or unit trust) funds (which are

similar to U.S. mutual funds).

Also included in this category are personal equity plans (“PEPs”) and unit trusts. PEPs were introduced
by the U.K. Government in January 1987 to encourage investment in U.K. company shares by small
investors. There is a limit on the amount that can be invested in a PEP. The returns from a PEP are not
subject to income tax or capital gains tax. Allowable investments also include certain European Union
(“EU”) shares, unit trusts and investment trusts. The U.K. Chancellor of the Exchequer’s November 1994
Financial Statement widened further the scope of PEPs to include corporate bonds, convertibles and
preference shares. UK. Inland Revenue rules concerning investment in PEPs for the tax year 1995/96 are
broadly as follows:

 An individual can invest up to £6,000 in shares, qualifying'unit trusts or investment trusts. At least
50% of the underlying investment must be in U.K. or EU company shares. PEPs which invest in this
way are known as General PEPs.

« In addition, an individual can invest up to £3,000 through a single company PEP in the shares of a
single company.

A unit trust is a pool of individual investments which is held in a common fund. Unit trust funds are
divided into a number of individual units which are purchased by investors. The investments may include
equity shares, loan stock, property and cash. Investments may be in the United Kingdom, the EU or
clsewhere. All unit trusts available to the general public are authorised by the Securities and Investments
Board (“SIB”) and must conform to the following principles:

« they are not generally permitted to invest more than 5% of any investment fund into the shares of any
one company.

« they may not own more than 10% of the shares of any one company.

« they must only invest in loan stock and shares listed on a recognised stock exchange although some
unit trusts are permitted to invest a small amount in unquoted shares.
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Pensions. In the United Kingdom pensions are a tax-efficient way of saving to provide benefits on
retirement. This is a result of the tax deductibility of contributions made and the generally tax-free growth
granted to pension funds. Changes in the legislation governing pensions resulted in this sector experiencing
rapid growth in the 1980s. The SIB is currently requiring an industry-wide review over the conduct of
business involving advice to customers to transfer from occupational to personal pension plans or opt out of
or not join occupational pension plans. Abbey National has made a considerable investment in the training
of its financial planning advisers in recognition of the fact that sound advice is the basis on which relation-
ships with customers are built. See Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in
this Listing Memorandum.

Distribution. Until the passing of the Financial Services Act 1986 (the “Financial Services Act”),
banks, building societies and other financial advisers customarily distributed the products of a panel of life
insurance companies. One of the purposes of the Financial Services Act was to ensure that customers knew
when they were receiving independent financial advice as opposed to being sold products which it might be
in the best interests of the distributor to sell. Under the terms of the Financial Services Act, financial advisers
like Abbey National were required to be either an “appointed representative” or an “independent financial
adviser”. Subject to certain conditions, appointed representatives or marketing associates and independent
financial advisers may co-exist within the same group. Appointed representatives, marketing associates and
independent financial advisers are required to provide “best advice”, which requires an assessment of the
client’s financial position and requirements. The appointed representative or marketing associate is required
by the Financial Services Act to recommend the most suitable products from the product range of the
company for which it acts as representative or with which it is associated, while the independent financial
adviser must provide best advice on the complete product range that exists in the market place. An
appointed representative or marketing associate thus only markets and sells the life and pension products of
one company or group of companies, whereas an independent financial adviser is required to develop and
maintain knowledge of a much broader range of available products.

Abbey National Group
The Group is an active participant in each of the three principal segments of the U.K. life insurance
industry outlined above. Abbey National has long been a significant distributor of the products of third-party
insurance companies, primarily mortgage-related life insurance, term insurance and endowment life insur-
ance linked to residential mortgages. Through the acquisition of Scottish Mutual and launch of Abbey
National Life, the Group has broadened its product range, improved its distribution capabilities and realised
the benefits of underwriting the products it distributes.

Between late 1987 and February 1993, Abbey National (excluding ANIFA) acted as the appointed
representative of a single life insurance group, Friends Provident Assurance. However, in 1991, the Group
decided to establish its own life insurance company and commence underwriting insurance products in an
effort to develop a new income stream that was not dependent upon the U.K. housing market. Life insurance
underwriting was seen as a logical step for diversification given Abbey National’s position as a major
distributor of life insurance products. On January 1, 1992, the Group acquired the business of Scottish
Mutual Assurance Society at a cost of £288 million. The acquisition of Scottish Mutual enabled Abbey
National, through the use of Scottish Mutual’s expertise and systems, to launch its own life insurance
company, Abbey National Life, for which Abbey National acted as the appointed representative from
February 1993 to January 1995, after which time Abbey National began operating as a marketing associate of
Abbey National Life. As a result, Abbey National not only receives the earnings from underwriting the life
insurance products it sells through the Retail Division’s distribution systems but it is able to exercise control
over such products’ design and development.

In addition, since 1987 ANIFA has provided independent financial advice to private clients. As an
independent financial adviser, ANIFA is an alternative for Abbey National customers and other private
individuals who do not want the products offered by Abbey National Life or another appointed representa-
tive. ANIFA’s results are included in the Group’s Other Operations business segment, described below.

In recent years, the Group has been able to penetrate the markets for both independent and appointed
representative advice at both the underwriting and distribution levels. At the underwriting level, Abbey
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National Life underwrites products that are distributed through Abbey National’s retail branch network
while Scottish Mutual underwrites products that are distributed through the broader independent financial
adviser market. At the distribution level, Abbey National acts as a marketing associate of Abbey National
Life and Abbey National Unit Trust Managers (“ANUTM”) while ANIFA acts as an independent financial
adviser distributing the products of companies outside the Group. Moreover, while Scottish Mutual and
Abbey National Life service distinct market segments, they share certain resources and facilities. Scottish
Mutual provides services to Abbey National Life under two service agreements. The first, between Abbey
National Life and Scottish Mutual, covers actuarial and technical advice and personnel, legal, secretariat,
compliance, internal audit, finance, organisation, methods and systems matters. The second, between Abbey
National Life and Scottish Mutual Portfolio Managers Ltd., a subsidiary of Scottish Mutual, covers invest-
ment management. Management believes that the main benefits from this sharing of resources were to
enable Abbey National Life to become operational more rapidly and to enable both Scottish Mutual and
Abbey National Life to operate from a lower cost base than would be possible if each were to operate on a
stand-alone basis.

Abbey National Life plc
Based in Glasgow, Abbey National Life underwrites and services a wide range of life insurance products
including pension, protection, investment and savings products. These products are sold exclusively through
Abbey National’s retail distribution network (including retail branches, Business Development Units, tele-
phone sales made by Abbey National Direct and direct mail).

Sales of non-mortgage-related investment and pension products account for over half the new business
written. Abbey National Life’s product range is distributed through Abbey National’s Retail Division, which
introduced in 1993 a financial planning service offered to customers in its branches. Under the programme,
professionally trained advisers provide confidential advice to customers. Advisers examine the financial
circumstances and needs of customers identifying pension, protection, investment and savings requirements
and recommend to them the appropriate products from the Abbey National, Abbey National Life and
ANUTM portfolios. By June 30, 1995, this financial planning service was extended to virtually all of the 677
branches.

Under the prior appointed representative arrangement with Friends Provident Assurance, Abbey
National only had control over sales and marketing of life insurance. The establishment of Abbey National
Life has extended the Group’s control to the design, specification, and servicing of the product range,
enabling products to be tailored to meet the needs of Abbey National’s customer base. As a marketing
associate, Abbey National (through the Retail Division) is the sole distributor of Abbey National Life’s
products and also provides marketing support to Abbey National Life.

Abbey National Unit Trust Managers Ltd.

A subsidiary of Abbey National Life, ANUTM, was established in 1994 to act as the PEP and unit trust
management arm of Abbey National. ANUTM manages the Abbey National UK Growth Unit Trust which
was launched on March 1, 1995, drawing on the fund management expertise of the life insurance business.
ANUTM offers a general lump sum contribution PEP through which customers can invest in the Abbey
National UK Growth Unit Trust. Alternatively, customers may invest directly in the unit trust. The trustee of
the unit trust is Citicorp and the investment manager is Scottish Mutual Portfolio Managers Ltd. As at
June 30, 1995 the first Abbey National PEP had taken £87 million of premiums.

Scottish Mutual Assurance plc
Scottish Mutual, also headquartered in Glasgow, has three active subsidiaries: Scottish Mutual Pension
Funds Investment Ltd., whose business is providing long-term life insurance in connection with managed
pension funds; Scottish Mutual Investment Managers Ltd., which manages Scottish Mutual’s unit trusts; and
Scottish Mutual Portfolio Managers Ltd., which manages PEPs and the investments of Scottish Mutual and
Abbey National Life. Scottish Mutual and its predecessor companies have been in the insurance business
since 1883.
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As part of the acquisition of the business of Scottish Mutual, an amount of £285 million was transferred
to a life and pension fund managed by Scottish Mutual on behalf of its policyholders, the Scottish Mutual
With-Profits Sub-Fund. A portion of this transfer was used to pay a special bonus to “with-profits” policy-
holders. Under the terms of the acquisition, Abbey National receives 10% of all surpluses arising in Scottish
Mutual’s With-Profits Sub-Fund and 100% of all surpluses arising from other business generated by Scottish
Mutual.

Scottish Mutual distributes its products solely through independent financial advisers in the United
Kingdom, of which there were approximately 5,700 firms registered with the relevant regulatory body. See
“Supervision and Regulation” below. The total number of independent financial adviser firms is expected to
decline over time, but independent financial advisers will continue to distribute a significant volume of long-
term life insurance business, particularly in the areas of pensions and investment. Scottish Mutual services
these independent financial advisers through a sales force of approximately 150 sales consultants and 12 area
offices located throughout the United Kingdom.

Scottish Mutual markets a broad range of products including personal pensions, protection plans,
regular investment plans, single premium products and products linked to mortgages. Scottish Mutual’s
range of pension contracts, all of which aim to permit savings for retirement in a tax-efficient way, are
marketed to individuals (both employed and self-employed), groups and companies. The primary differ-
ences between Scottish Mutual’s pension contracts are due to the differing needs of each contracting party
(for example, self-employed individuals, corporate executives or employees, employer pension plans or
pension plan trustees). Scottish Mutual markets both conventional protection plans (term insurance) and
unit-linked protection plans. The former provide life insurance for the policy term while unit-linked plans
also have an investment element. Scottish Mutual’s regular investment plans provide for periodic invest-
ments of funds by the plan investor. In the regular investment plan area, Scottish Mutual offers both unit-
linked plans, in which the maturity value of the policy is dependent on the performance of the underlying
investments, and traditional plans based on a with-profits fund. Investments in all of these plans are placed in
Scottish Mutual’s investment funds described below and managed by subsidiaries of Scottish Mutual,
Scottish Mutual also markets a range of savings contracts to back mortgages, which include with-profits
endowment mortgages, unit-linked mortgages and personal pension mortgages.

Scottish Mutual also markets single premium products, which involve a one-time payment by the
consumer rather than the periodic payments required by regular premium products. Scottish Mutual’s sin gle
premium products include unit trusts, personal equity plans (which take advantage of the U.K. Govern-
ment’s personal equity plans legislation and enable investments to be made free from income tax and capital
gains tax), as well as annuities, which provide for a series of income payments contingent on survival of a
specified life or lives. Investments in single premium products are also placed in Scottish Mutual’s managed
funds.

As at June 30, 1995 Scottish Mutual had £4.6 billion of funds under management, largely invested in
UK. equities, overseas equities (mainly in Continental Europe, the U.S.A. and Japan), U.K. Government
bonds, cash and property. Scottish Mutual operates nine main funds covering a wide range of asset classes
and with different investment guidelines. The Scottish Mutual With-Profits Sub-Fund is the main life and
pension fund for conventional with-profits business and unitised with-profits contracts, into which Scottish
Mutual places funds managed under the contracts described above. The fund can hold a broad range of asset
classes including U.K. equities, overseas equities, U.K. Government bonds, U.K. and overseas fixed-income
instruments and cash.

In February 1995, Abbey National acquired Pegasus Assurance Group Ltd. (“Pegasus”), a U.K. health-
care insurance provider. Pegasus provides insurance policies to cover critical illness, income protection,
medical expenses and long-term care. As at December 31, 1994 Pegasus had over 20,000 policy holders and
had the largest market share of U.K. critical illness policies sold through independent financial advisers. The
company has been assimilated into Scottish Mutual and forms the basis of a new healthcare insurance
division, which will develop the sale of healthcare insurance products to the independent financial adviser
market and provide technical assistance on the development of healthcare insurance products for Abbey
National Life.
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Consumer Credit

Abbey National offers unsecured personal loans of between £500 and £15,000, which can be taken out
for a variety of non-business related reasons. The repayment period ranges from one to five years, except for
car loans (four years maximumy), holidays (two years maximum) and school tuition fees (one year maximum).
Repayments are fixed throughout the term of a loan and include the repayment of principal. Payment
protection insurance is available on all loans to cover repayment in the event of accident, unemployment,
sickness or death. Abbey National has a centralised underwriting function to facilitate properly controlled
lending decisions.

Consumer Credit has centrally controlled credit scoring to enable it to manage the risks associated with
its unsecured lending products as well as overdrafts on its cheque account products. The quality of the
lending portfolio is regularly monitored.

Abbey National intends to launch a VISA credit card to its customers in February, 1996.

As at June 30, 1995, Consumer Credit had loan assets of £460 million. The consumer credit business of
FNFC will be reported in this segment in the 1995 Directors’ Report and Accounts of Abbey National.

Treasury and Offshore

ANTS is an authorised banking institution under the Banking Act 1987. Since its establishment as a
subsidiary of Abbey National in January 1989, ANTS has had four main objectives. These are to (i) manage
prudently the liquidity needs of the Group, ensuring that regulatory and investor interests are balanced
appropriately against the cash flow requirements of the Group; (ii) ensure that wholesale funding and capital
is available to the Group; (iii) contribute to the management of risks arising in the Group’s balance sheet;
and (iv) make a profit through investing predominantly in high-quality assets and securities.

ANTS was formed principally due to a restriction in the Building Societies Act which effectively
provided that any offer, allotment or transfer of shares or debentures by Abbey National made before
July 11, 1994 would be void if the offer, allotment or transfer would lead to more than 15% of the shares or
debentures of Abbey National being held by, or by nominees for, any one person. This threatened to cause
substantial disruption to Abbey National’s continuing funding programme as any offering of bearer bonds
(which are debentures for the purposes of the Building Societies Act and which then constituted the majority
of its long-term funding) could not have been feasibly undertaken.

However, the Building Societies Act did not intend to prevent valid guarantees being given by Abbey
National for obligations due under bonds of a subsidiary. Accordingly, ANTS was established principally to
act as the vehicle to undertake long-term funding in the bond market. Subsequently, Abbey National decided
that, from a managerial point of view, it was attractive to establish ANTS as a more substantial treasury
vehicle with a wider range of treasury operations than simply acting as the Group’s bond issuing vehicle. The
separate banking entities of Abbey National and ANTS will be retained for the foreseeable future.

Abbey National has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of ANTS that have been or
will be incurred before July 31, 1999. The guarantee is reviewed from time to time by Abbey National with a
view to extending it. The last time this occurred was in 1991 when it was extended by five years from July 31,
1994 to July 31, 1999. In turn, ANTS has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the unsecured and un-
subordinated obligations of Abbey National that have been or will be incurred before December 31, 1999.
Each guarantee is of any obligation issued or incurred before its expiration, and covers payment through
maturity, even if the guarantee is no longer in effect for subsequent obligations. As a result of the guarantee
from Abbey National, ANTS has the same short- and long-term credit ratings as Abbey National.

Liquidity Management and Wholesale Funding

ANTS, through its investment portfolios, provides the Group with access to significant liquidity,
although it is ANTS’ general policy to hold its assets for the longer term.

An important feature of liquidity management is ensuring diversified sources of wholesale funding to
reduce the dependence on any one funding sector. ANTS has established relationships with over 700 invest-
ing counterparties around the world, and it has a dedicated team of senior managers who manage these
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contacts and continually search out new investors. The primary focus of this group is Europe, the U.S.A. and
the Far East. In October 1994, ANTS established a branch in Paris, primarily in order to access the French
wholesale funding markets. In addition, as part of ongoing efforts to diversify wholesale funding sources,
ANTS opened a representative office in Hong Kong in January 1996 and is actively considering establishing
pranches or offices in other major financial centres outside the United Kingdom.

ANTS is active in a number of private and public markets worldwide, and issues certificates of deposit,
commercial paper, medium-term notes and Eurobonds of both senior and subordinated status. -Since
Conversion in 1989, ANTS has been very active in the market for accepting call deposits and time deposits.
These deposits grew from £2.0 billion at the end of 1989 to £24 billion at the end of June 1995 (of which over
£3 billion came from supranationals and central banks). ANTS also manages a $4 billion commercial paper
programme for Abbey National North America Corporation, a subsidiary of Abbey National, and issues
commercial paper in Canada. ANTS has an active $10 billion medium-term note programme. As at June 30,
1995, approximately $6.3 billion was outstanding under the programme. ANTS is also an active issuer in the
Eurobond market; at June 30, 1995, 60 issues with a total value of approximately $15.6 billion were
outstanding. The majority of such Eurobond funding has been swapped into floating rate sterling, U.S.
dollars and European Currency Units. The strategy in respect of public issues has been to issue large
benchmark issues. Thus far, this has been achieved mainly in sterling, dollars and French francs. In
October 1994, ANTS established a certificate of deposit programme and a bons a moyen terme negociable, or
BMTN, programme, each of which allow for an aggregate principal amount of debt securities of up to
10 billion French francs to be issued in the French domestic market. Following registration with the
Commission in October 1994, Abbey National First Capital B.V,, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
ANTS, issued a $500 million subordinated bond due 2004, which is guaranteed on a subordinated basis by
Abbey National. In November 1994, Abbey National registered a medium-term note programme with the
Commission. As of June 30, 1995, $1,396 million of such medium-term notes were outstanding.

Funding raised has been used to finance both the increase in Treasury and Offshore investment assets
and mortgage lending by the U.K. Retail Banking operation. The increase in the Treasury and Offshore
component of the Group’s balance sheet reflects the Group’s use of the funding flexibility obtained on
Conversion. ANTS has been particularly active in funding retail mortgage lending by providing matched
finance and risk management services for a wide range of new mortgage products, particularly fixed interest
rate mortgages. Funding from the wholesale markets as a proportion of total Group funding was 54% at
June 30, 1995.

Risk Management Services

ANTS provides risk management services to the Group through hedging advice and transactions, advice
on risk management for the subsidiaries that constitute the Continental Europe business and certain
offshore operations in the Treasury and Offshore business and management of risks within ANTS itself.
ANTS aims to maintain a currency neutral book, balancing funding and investments in all foreign (non-
sterling) currencies. Exposure to foreign currency movement is thus minimised, despite significant increases
in the levels of U.S. dollar funding and investments. To manage risk, the Group makes use of off-balance
sheet instruments, such as swaps, futures and options, which are intended to reduce the Group’s exposure to
changes in interest rates, currency rates and basis and reset risks. Through ANFP, Abbey National has access
to experienced derivatives professionals. See “Risk Management” and “Derivatives” above for further
details on risk management within Abbey National.

Asset Diversification
Since Conversion, the changes in the Group’s balance sheet from the traditional building society
structure are largely due to the growth of ANTS’ investment portfolios together with the development of
ANTS’ finance leasing and other asset-backed securities activities. The £965 million of equity raised by
Abbey National in 1989, in conjunction with the leverage this provided, facilitated the development of these
activities which were identified as strategic areas for expansion.

The common theme in these activities is the aim of ANTS, in the first phase of diversification, to make
additional profits primarily through an interest rate margin while minimising credit and interest rate risk.
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The Group does not, and does not intend to, engage in foreign exchange trading or attempt to generate
profits through taking large directional or speculative positions. In its asset diversification, ANTS maintains
a central objective of investing primarily in government securities, highly-rated banks and financial institu-
tions and other well capitalised and highly-rated institutions.

Investment Portfolios
ANTS manages investment portfolios denominated in two main currencies, U.S. dollars and sterling, in
addition to smaller securities portfolios denominated in European Currency Units, Italian lire, deut-
schemarks and French francs and small money market portfolios in Spanish pesetas and Swiss francs.

In general, the U.S. dollar securities are issued or guaranteed by banks or U.S. federal agencies. ANTS’
securities and investments portfolios originated from a policy implemented in 1989 of moving out of U.K.
Government securities which had been held by the Society and investing in floating rate U.K. and U.S.
mortgage-backed securities. This move lowered interest rate exposure because fixed-rate assets such as U.K.
Government bonds give a high exposure to interest rate risk compared to floating rate instruments. The aim
in 1989 was, and continues to be in 1995, to lock in spreads on the range of investment portfolios invested in
by ANTS. ANTS’ risk management approach is consistent with this aim of locking in spreads, although not
all instruments bear floating rates of interest. The risks associated with the assets, attached funding and risk
hedging are managed in such a way as to generate steady profit streams from the investment portfolios. The
credit rating of these portfolios is typically between A— and AAA (or the respective equivalents), with the
substantial majority of investments having ratings of AA— or better (or the equivalent) from one or more
rating organisations.

The increase in book value of ANTS’ securities and investments from £3.1 billion in 1989 to £32.3 billion
at June 30, 1995 has been consistent with this investment strategy.

Finance Leasing

After Conversion, Abbey National was permitted to move into finance leasing. Leasing presently
accounts for approximately 30% of overall UK. investment in capital equipment. There is a developed and
distinct leasing industry in the United Kingdom consisting mainly of companies involved in the financial
services sector of the economy, particularly banking. ANTS entered this market in 1990 to take advantage of
Abbey National’s strong capital position and was able to do so because of its ability to absorb capital
allowances. Since then ANTS has established itself as a significant supplier of finance leasing. In past years,
.ANTS benefited from the depressed profitability of its major U.K. banking rivals who are traditionally
significant forces in this field. ANTS signed 16 leasing facilities in 1992, 12 in 1993, three in 1994 and four in
the six months ended June 30, 1995. As at June 30, 1995, total finance lease commitments exceeded
£2.4 billion, broadly unchanged from the 1993 year-end. The increasing profitability levels of major U.K.
banks in 1994 has led to the return of strong price competition in this market.

ANTS focuses its leasing activity on large transactions (generally with minimum outlay of £20 million).
The business is developed with particular emphasis on large capital projects requiring thorough analyses of
structure and credit support. Assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards associated with ownership to the customer, other than legal title, are classified as
finance leases. Under the existing corporate tax regime in the United Kingdom, the lessor is entitled to claim
the benefits arising from ownership, in the form of capital allowances which can reduce corporate tax
liabilities. For equipment that qualifies, such as general plant and machinery, office equipment and aircraft,
there is a 25% capital allowance. The majority of assets leased in the United Kingdom are plant and
machinery assets.

Corporate Finance
This area arranges collateralised loans to mortgage lenders as well as syndicated and bilateral loans to
borrowers such as banks, governments and supranational bodies which are rated AA or better (or the
equivalent) by one or more rating organisations and to building societies and housing associations. Collater-
alised mortgage loans are privately placed loans that are typically made to special purpose vehicles that in
turn hold residential first mortgage loans as security for loans made to them. The collateralised mortgage
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Joans typically are transferred to the special purpose vehicle by the sponsor, which may be a bank seeking to
improve capital ratios or a building society or other mortgage lender seeking an alternative source of funds.
The corporate finance area is responsible for arranging and advising the Group on structured transactions
and the development of innovative savings products. As at June 30, 1995, ANTS had drawn-down funds in
respect of collateralised mortgage loans of £156 million and undrawn committed funds of £156 million. The
portfolio of committed syndicated and bilateral loans at June 30, 1995 was £237 million.

Housing Associations
In January 1994, ANTS began making long-term loans to housing associations in England and Wales.
Housing associations exist to provide social housing used for rental accommodation. The industry-wide
annual funding need is estimated to be approximately £1.5 billion. ANTS has written commitments of
£143 million and as at June 30, 1995 ANTS had signed 16 transactions with a drawn-down amount of
£76 million. These loans are secured on the value of that portion of the property owned by the housing
association. '

Abbey National Financial Products

Following the successful establishment of ANTS’ asset-driven businesses, in 1992 the Group was ready
to contemplate moving into other potentially profitable areas which represented natural extensions to the
treasury business. The Board identified risk management services in the interest rate and currency swap and
options markets as a potential opportunity because of Abbey National’s potential for competing in this
market, given its strong capital position and credit ratings. In addition, ANTS uses swaps and options to
obtain matched funding and to hedge interest rate and currency risks. ANTS thus has operational and risk
expertise in derivatives as well as an ability to generate a significant level of business. A key concern,
however, was to identify a means of entering the field which ensured that the operational risks were managed
properly.

ANFP, a branch of ANTS, commenced operations on October 25, 1993 under the name of Abbey
National Baring Derivatives as a joint initiative with Barings. Following the appointment of an administrator
to Barings on February 26, 1995, substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Barings were purchased on
March 8, 1995 by Baring Brothers Limited, a subsidiary of Internationale Nederlanden Groep N.V. (“ING”).
On March 9, 1995, ANTS changed the name of the branch to Abbey National Financial Products. AN FP has
ceased to be a joint operation and is operated solely by ANTS.

ANFP’s activities are overseen by ANTS’ Executive Management Committee, which controls the
strategic development and day-to-day activities of ANFP. Adherence to agreed policies and procedures is the
responsibility of the Director of Operations of ANFP, who is nominated by ANTS and reports directly to the
Treasurer of Abbey National.

ANFP offers interest rate and currency swaps together with interest rate options and swap options in
sterling, dollars, deutschemarks and the other main currencies within the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development. Staff engaged in the management of ANFP’s operations execute transac-
tions on its behalf and complete hedging operations to minimise risk.

Offshore Operations

The offshore component of the Treasury and Offshore business is composed mainly of wholesale and
retail banking operations in Jersey and Gibraltar.

On January 3, 1995, Abbey National (Overseas) Ltd was renamed Abbey National Treasury Interna-
tional Limited and was transferred with its parent company, Abbey National (Holdings) Limited, to become
a subsidiary of ANTS. This business was established in Jersey in 1987 and at June 30, 1995 had 27 staff
operating from one branch in St Helier. The company’s main business is to attract deposits by offering a
range of deutschemark-, dollar- and sterling-denominated savings accounts. Since the transfer, activities
have been expanded to include investment activities, predominantly in high-quality assets.

Abbey National (Gibraltar) Ltd. was established in 1988 and at June 30, 1995 had two offices and
19 staff. The company primarily provides savings products specifically designed for British nationals. It offers
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sterling-denominated mortgages for property purchases in Spain, Portugal and the Canary and Balearic
Islands, in addition to savings accounts which pay interest free of U.K. withholding taxes. In early 1994, the
subsidiary opened a representative office on the Portuguese Algarve, primarily to provide information on
buying property in Portugal and to provide sterling-denominated mortgages.

Continental Europe

Abbey National’s operations in France, Spain and Italy, which together constitute the Group’s Conti-
nental Europe segment, are managed locally. The principal activity of these operations is providing mort-
gage finance. In addition, the operations in Spain take retail deposits. The strategy in Continental Europe
has been recently reappraised and now centres on the expansion of a refocused regional retail banking
operation in Spain, the managing of the existing commercial loan portfolio in France and the continued
development of the mortgage lending operation in Italy. A summary of these businesses is provided below.

Abbey National Bank SAE was established in 1988 and at June 30, 1995 had branches in Madrid and
Barcelona and a total of 157 staff. The subsidiary provides a range of Spanish peseta-denominated endow-
ment and repayment mortgages and associated insurance products, primarily to Spanish nationals. It also
provides financing to Spanish developers which is then subrogated to individual mortgages on completion of
the development. The Group’s strategy in Spain has been recently focused on developing a retail banking
service in the Madrid area including checking accounts, a credit card, mortgages and savings accounts. By the
end of July 1995, 17 branches and a telephone marketing centre had been opened, and further branches are
planned.

Abbey National France SA, formerly called Ficofrance, was purchased by Abbey National in 1990 from
Group Maison Familiale. Ficofrance was renamed Abbey National France SA on January 1, 1993. It had six
offices and 149 staff at June 30, 1995. Its key activity was to provide mortgages, primarily to French nationals
but also to British nationals wishing to purchase vacation homes in France and the company provides a range
of French franc-denominated fixed and variable repayment and endowment mortgages and associated
insurance products. The company also provided financing to property developers, which contributed to
losses being reported for 1993 and 1992. As a result, in 1992 Abbey National France SA ceased making
commercial loan commitments and is now concentrating on managing out the commercial loan portfolio and
making residential loans.

Abbey National Bank (Italy) was established in 1989 as Abbey National Mutui SpA to provide mort-
gages in Italian lire primarily to Italian nationals. Through its network of 13 branches and 80 staff at June 30,
1995 the operation offers a range of lire-denominated mortgage products. The business was converted into a
branch of Abbey National on December 31, 1993, at which time it adopted its present name.

Irish Permanent plc

In November 1994, Abbey National announced that it had purchased 9.9% of the shares of Irish
Permanent plc. Irish Permanent plc is Ireland’s largest mortgage lender and also provides unsecured loans,
saving deposits, life insurance, pensions, general insurance, cheque accounts and credit cards to customers in
Ireland. On October 27, 1994 Irish Permanent plc converted from building society to public limited company
status, following a process similar to that undertaken by Abbey National in 1989. Under the terms of the Irish
Building Society Act 1989 no single entity can acquire more than 15% of the shares of Irish Permanent plc
until five years has elapsed since the conversion date. Furthermore, no more than 10% of the shares may be
acquired without the consent of the Central Bank of Ireland. Abbey National intends to maintain a long-
term investment in Irish Permanent plc and is reviewing with Irish Permanent plc areas for cooperation
which would be of potential benefit to both parties.

Other Operations

Abbey National Independent Financial Advisers Ltd.

Abbey National Independent Financial Advisers Limited (“ANIFA’) provides independent financial
advice on a wide range of financial products and services to clients in their own homes and work places.
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ANIFA acquired GM Benefit Consulting Group Limited from Guiness Mahon Holdings plc in July 1994.
The benefit consulting division of ANIFA incorporates pension fund administration, actuarial consulting,
healthcare consulting and share scheme advice.

Abbey National Homes Ltd.

Abbey National Homes Ltd. was established in 1986 to build residential housing. It has not taken on any
additional housing development commitments since mid-1990 and does not intend to take any on in the
future due to difficulties experienced in the market during the late 1980s.

Abbey National Property Services Ltd.
Abbey National Property Services Ltd. does business as J Trevor & Webster, a commercial estate
agency.
Abbey National Investments Holdings Ltd.

Abbey National Investments Holdings Ltd. holds a portfolio of investment assets, primarily structured
debt securities, with an approximate value of £1.6 billion as at December 31, 1994. As at June 30, 1995, the
approximate value of these assets had reduced to £0.4 billion, as a result of counterparties exercising early
redemption rights. The securities, which are held for the longer term, are supported by letters of credit from
financial institutions which are rated at least A— (or the equivalent) by one or more rating organisations.

Travellers Exchange Corporation PLC

Abbey National has a 33 per cent, equity shareholding in Travellers Exchange Corporation PLC, the
principal activity of which is the operation of bureaux de change and the provision of travel-related financial
services via a network which spans the UK, USA, Australia, New Zealand and mainland Europe.

Description of Properties
The property interests of the Group at December 31, 1994 consisted of the following:

Freehold Leasehold Total
U.K. Retail Banking branches .. .......... ... ...t 321 421 742

Mortgage administration CENtres . .............coutiiiiian — 41 4]
Cheque account administration centres. .. ......... ... ... it — 9 9
Scottish Mutual offices ... ... ... 1 10 11
Continental Burope. . . . ...t 2 37 39
Commercial estate agency offices . . ....... ... ...t 1 15 16
ANIFA branches . . . .o oot — 15 15
HMC . e — 4 4
Abbey National Mortgage Finance plc . ............ ...t — 1 1
Head office and other administration sites ... ...................... 9 27 36
Other SIEES . o v vttt et e et e e e 3 49 52
TOtAl ... e 337 629 966

The main head office sites and computer buildings are freehold properties. The Group’s leasehold
properties are subject to leases ranging from 1 to 999 years in maturity with the majority being 25 years in
duration and subject to rolling five-year rent reviews. The Group currently has a number of retail property
interests either in the course of development or disposal as part of the continuing branch development
programme, which are included above. The majority of Abbey National’s U.K. retail branches are located in
the south of England, with the highest proportion located in and around London.




COMPETITION

Abbey National experiences substantial competition in its major markets, including making residential
mortgage loans and attracting and retaining retail deposits in the United Kingdom.

Industry Consolidation

In recent years, the building society sector has been consolidating, with the number of building societies
falling from 273 in 1980 to 81 in May 1995. In 1995, Lloyds Bank plc completed its acquisition of Cheltenham &
Gloucester Building Society and TSB Bank plc. Also in 1995, the Halifax Building Society and Leeds
Permanent Building Society merged and intend to convert subsequently to public limited company status,
subject to approval by voting members under buildings societies’ legislation. In 1996 the Woolwich Building
Society and the Alliance & Leicester Building Society similarly announced their respective intentions to
convert to public limited company status, subject to the same approval. The process of consolidation may
increase as more building societies merge with each other and as other institutions show interest in acquiring
building societies.

Her Majesty’s Treasury has undertaken a review of the powers of building societies under the Building
Societies Act. The results of the first stage of the review, which were announced in July 1994, included
several proposals. As a result of the review, the ceiling on the proportion of funds that building societies may
raise on the wholesale money market was raised from 40% to 50% with effect from January 1996. The results
of the second stage of the review were announced in February 1995. Her Majesty’s Treasury proposed that, in
future, building societies will be able to pursue any activities allowed by their own constitutive documents,
subject to pursuing an appropriate principal purpose (primarily the provision of housing finance funded
substantially by the savings of its members). As a result, broader powers have been adopted.

Management does not expect this to have a major impact on the U.K. residential mortgage loan market.
The increase in the wholesale funding limit applies, as a practical matter, only to those building societies
which the Building Societies Commission believes have sufficient expertise to manage the risks involved. In
addition, only the strongest and largest building societies have credit ratings sufficient to enable them to
effectively enter the wholesale markets.

Residential Mortgages

The table below sets forth information for the last five years concerning the shares of the U.K. mortgage
market (in terms of total outstanding mortgage balances) held by building societies, banks and Abbey
National. Information on Abbey National is presented separately in the table for all periods; amounts and
percentages shown for building societies and for banks exclude amounts and percentages relating to Abbey
National.

Building Society, Bank and Abbey National Shares of the U.K. Residential Mortgage Market

Building societies’ Abbey National’s
Total share of Banks’ share of share of
mortgage balances (1)  mortgage balances (1) mortgage balances (1)  mortgage balances (1)
(billions of £) (%) (%) (%)
1990 ... ... ... 294.1 59.8 17.6 11.6
1991 .. ..o 320.0 61.5 16.5 11.8
1992 .. ..ol 339.1 62.3 16.6 11.9
1993 .. ..ol 356.3 61.5 18.3 12.2
1994 .. ... 374.3 61.3 19.0 12.4

(1)  Market share percentages have been derived by aggregating the amounts of building societies’, banks’, Abbey National’s and
other financial institutions’ mortgage balances to produce the “Total Mortgage Balances” amounts, and by dividing the applicable
amounts of mortgage balances by the “Total Mortgage Balances” amount. The source of mortgage balance amounts is the
Council of Mortgage Lenders (using information based upon Bank of England data), except for information regarding Abbey
National’s mortgage balances which are taken from Abbey National’s own data. Market size amounts are subject to revision by
statistical authorities.

In the United Kingdom residential mortgage lending market, building societies have traditionally been
Abbey National’s principal key competitors. Significant competition has also come from banks and, to a
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much lesser extent, specialist wholesale funded lenders and local authorities. Abbey National is the second
Jargest provider of residential mortgage loans in the United Kingdom; Abbey National’s main competitor is
the United Kingdom’s largest building society, the Halifax Building Society. In 1994 Abbey National and the
Halifax Building Society held approximately 28% of total U.K. residential mortgage loans.

Historically, mortgage lending in the United Kingdom has been predominantly made at floating rates of
interest; however, during 1993 over 50% of new mortgage lending was made at fixed interest rates as a result
of a significant reduction in interest rates. By the end of 1994, fixed-rate loans accounted for approximately
20% of all loans outstanding. With interest rates at historically low levels, Abbey National was able to price
mortgages competitively due to its wider access to the wholesale markets. This had the effect of reducing
building societies’ share of the mortgage market. However, during 1994, the trend towards fixed-rate
mortgages reversed, due to the increase in the cost of borrowing for two to five years. Management believes
that Abbey National, with access to both the wholesale and retail liability markets, is well positioned to
respond to such changes in customer demand.

Liquid Savings

Building societies’, banks’ and National Savings’ shares of the U.K. liquid savings market for the past
five years are set forth in the following table. National Savings is a U.K. Government sponsored savings and
investment product distributed to individuals through the U.K. Post Office. Abbey National is included in
the table as a building society, and in addition is shown separately, for all years.

Building Society, Bank, National Savings and Abbey National Shares
of the UK. Liquid Savings Market

Total UK. Building societies’ National Savings’ Abbey National’s
liquid share of total Banks’ share of total share of total share of total
savings (1) UK. liquid savings (1) UK. liquid savings (1) UK. liquid savings (1) U.K. liquid savings (1)
(billions of £) (%) (%) (%) (%)
1990 . .. 350.6 53.7 36.1 10.1 8.5
1991 ... 375.5 55.4 345 10.0 8.6
1992 . .. 396.9 55.3 33.7 11.0 8.4
1993 ... 413.3 56.3 32.4 11.3 8.4
1994 . .. 430.1 56.9 31.2 11.9 8.6

(1) Market share percentages have been derived by aggregating the amounts of building societies’ savings, banks’ deposits, National
Savings issues and Abbey National’s deposits to produce the “Total U.K. Liquid Savings” balance, and by dividing the applicable
amount of savings or deposits by the “Total U.K. Liquid Savings” balance. Sources of amounts of savings and deposits are: for
amounts of building societies’ savings, the Handbook of the Building Societies Association (an industry trade organisation); for
amounts of banks’ deposits and National Savings issues, the CSO of Her Majesty’s Government; and for amounts of Abbey
National’s deposits, Abbey National’s own data. Market size amounts are subject to revision by statistical authorities.

As a result of rising U.K. interest rates, a reduction in the U.K. Government’s public sector borrowing
needs and a lack of demand for deposits to fund retail mortgage lending, the management of Abbey National
does not believe that the demand for retail funds is as strong as it was in previous years. However, due to
increasing consumer awareness, retail deposits increasingly compete with equity-based savings products
such as unit trusts and life insurance and pension products.

Life Insurance Operations

In the United Kingdom, the life insurance industry has been dominated by a large number of mutual
insurance organisations, who distribute a range of products through banks, building societies, direct sales
forces and a large network of independent financial advisers. In recent years, the entry of building societies
and banks into the market as manufacturers, as well as distributors, has reduced this dominance. The life
insurance market has grown significantly over the last decade, with total industry new business premiums
increasing threefold over this period. Regulations requiring increased disclosure of the costs associated with
selling life insurance and pensions products were adopted on January 1, 1995. By providing greater detail to
Ccustomers as to how much of their premiums are absorbed by costs, this may reduce demand for these
products. Management expects that, over the longer term, this market will continue to grow, aided by
demographic trends, and that it will become increasingly competitive.
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MONETARY AND FISCAL POLICIES

Monetary and Fiscal Policies

The profitability and operations of U.K. banks, including Abbey National, are affected significantly by
monetary and fiscal policies. The Bank of England, the government-owned central bank, influences condi-
tions in the money and credit markets, which affect the growth in lendings, the distribution of lending
between various industry sectors, interest rates and the growth of deposits. In this regard, banks in the
United Kingdom are required to maintain, in non-interest bearing accounts at the Bank of England, a non-
operational cash balance of 0.35% of eligible liabilities, which are sterling deposits less amounts on loan to
other approved monetary institutions.

Abbey National’s earnings are influenced by general domestic and overseas economic conditions and by
the monetary and fiscal policies of the U.K. Government and the U.K. regulatory framework. Likewise, the
monetary and fiscal policies of governments in countries in which Abbey National operates influence the
operations and profitability of the Group in those countries. Accurate prediction of the effects of these
policies on future lending volumes and earnings is, as yet, impossible.

Exchange Rate Mechanism and European Monetary Union

After turbulence in the currency markets in the summer of 1992, the United Kingdom and Italy
withdrew from the European Community Exchange Rate Mechanism and some members of the European
Community devalued their currencies within the Exchange Rate Mechanism. In August 1993, after further
turbulence within the Exchange Rate Mechanism, the agreed bands within which exchange rates between
member currencies can fluctuate were extended to plus or minus 15%, or an overall 30% band.

The U.K. Government has stated that sterling will only re-enter the Exchange Rate Mechanism under
the appropriate conditions and not before May 1997.

Under the provisions of the treaty negotiated at Maastricht in 1991, the proposed founding of a
European Monetary Union is planned to replace the Exchange Rate Mechanism. European Monetary
Union involves the creation of a single currency which will be managed by a single European Central Bank.
After final ratification by the member states, the Maastricht treaty came into force on November 1, 1993.
Stage II of the treaty started on January 1, 1994, the principal feature of which was the creation of the
European Monetary Institute. The European Monetary Institute is responsible for technical preparations
for the final stage of European Monetary Union (in particular the instruments, procedures and rules needed
to move to a single currency), as well as strengthening co-operation and co-ordination among the monetary
authorities of member states and monitoring the functioning of the European Monetary System. Other
responsibilities include assisting the use of the European Currency Unit, including the smooth functioning of
the European Currency Unit clearing system. The European Monetary Institute is empowered to make
recommendations on monetary policy.

The last stage of European Monetary Union is planned to be completed by 1999. This last stage will
commence with the locking of exchange rates between those countries which comply with the stringent
economic convergence criteria (relating to inflation, interest rates, exchange rate stability and public sector
debts) in time for 1999. It is intended that the European Currency Unit eventually will replace national -
currencies.

The establishment of the European Monetary Union will have significant effects on foreign exchange
and bond markets and would involve major modification of operations and systems internal to banks and in
inter-bank payments systems. It is probable that it also would require the development of a common
approach towards banking supervision among the member countries. It is impossible presently to state when
or if the United Kingdom would join such a union.
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SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Substantially all U.K. companies are governed by the provisions of the Companies Acts. This legislation
governs, for example, constitutional issues and matters such as company registration and the format and
production of annual reports and accounts.

Many U.K. companies are also subject to further legislative regimes which require them to obtain
authorisation and be supervised for certain activities or which regulate the way in which certain types of
business are conducted.

The principal legislation concerning regulation of banks in the United Kingdom is the Banking Act
1987. Except for European institutions, which are credit institutions and certain of their subsidiaries
incorporated and authorised in European Economic Area (“EEA”) states other than the United Kingdom,
the Banking Act prohibits any person in the United Kingdom from accepting a deposit for the purposes of a
deposit taking business without prior authorisation from the Bank of England and also provides that the
Bank of England is responsible for the supervision of persons authorised by it. European institutions are not
authorised by the Bank of England and responsibility for their prudential supervision generally rests with the
authorities in their home member state. The Bank of England does, however, have certain powers over their
activities in the United Kingdom, and a responsibility (in co-operation with the home member state
authorities) to supervise the liquidity of United Kingdom branches of such institutions. The Bank of England
may not grant an application for authorisation under the Banking Act unless it is satisfied that certain
criteria specified in the Banking Act have been met including, inter alia, that (i) every person who is, or is to
be, a director, controller or manager of the institution is a fit and proper person to hold the particular
position which he holds or is to hold; (ii) the institution conducts its business in a prudent manner; (iii) the
business of the institution will be carried on with integrity and the professional skills appropriate to the
nature and scale of its activities; (iv) the institution has a certain minimum level of initial capital and its own
funds. ANTS and Abbey National are both institutions authorised, and accordingly supervised, by the Bank
of England under the Banking Act.

Under the Banking Act, the Bank of England is required to establish a Board of Banking Supervision
consisting of the Governor of the Bank of England, the Deputy Governor of the Bank of England and the
executive director of the Bank of England for the time being responsible for the supervision of institutions
authorised under the Banking Act and six independent members appointed jointly by the Chancellor of the
Exchequer and the Governor of the Bank of England. Under the terms of the Banking Act, it is the duty of
the independent members to advise the other three members with respect to the exercise by the Bank of
England of its functions under the Banking Act. Under the Banking Act, the Bank of England is empowered
under certain circumstances (principally when the authorisation of an institution is to be revoked or if the
institution has served notice surrendering its authorisation or if a restricted authorisation has expired) to
give such directions as appear to the Bank of England to be desirable in the interests of the institution’s
depositors or potential depositors, whether for the purpose of safeguarding its assets or otherwise, and may
in particular require the institution to take certain steps or to refrain from adopting or pursuing a particular
course of action or to restrict the scope of its business in a particular way, impose limitations on the
acceptance of deposits, the granting of credit or the making of investments, prohibit the institution from
soliciting deposits or from entering into any other transaction, or require the removal of any director,
controller or manager. In addition, under the Bank of England Act 1946, the Bank of England is, subject to
certain limitations, empowered to request information from and make recommendations to bankers and
may also, if so authorised by Her Majesty’s Treasury, issue directions to any banker for the purpose of
securing that effect is given to any such request or recommendation. As part of its supervisory role, the Bank
of England sets standards, limits and ratios for the banks under its supervision. Each bank is required to
submit regular reports to the Bank of England, thus providing material for supervisory assessment. The
Banking Act also permits the Bank of England to require an authorised institution to provide the Bank of
England with a report from reporting accountants as to any matter about which the Bank of England
requires institutions to provide information (such as the accuracy of accounting records and prudential
returns and the adequacy of internal controls). Senior management of banks also meet regularly with the
Bank of England to discuss relevant issues such as risk control, loan portfolio composition, profitability,
capital adequacy and liquidity, organisational changes and operating practices. Whereas, traditionally, the
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Bank of England’s supervision of banks has been based on a system of informal co-operation, such supervi-
sion is now more formalised with specific requirements and guidance, drawn up by the Bank of England in
consultation with the banks, relating to, inter alia, capital adequacy, liquidity and foreign currency €xposure,
large exposures to counterparties, the adequacy of accounting procedures and controls, advertising, the
Bank of England’s relationship with bank auditors, loan transfers and securitisation of loans, netting and
cash collateral and the application of consolidated supervision. In September 1995 the Post-BCCI Directive
was published at the EU level and is to be implemented within the next twelve months. The aim of this
directive is to strengthen the surveillance of financial institutions.

Banks are required to maintain in interest-free accounts at the Bank of England a non-operational cash
balance of 0.35% of eligible liabilities (primarily sterling deposits less loans to and securities issued by other
United Kingdom monetary institutions). From time to time in the past, banks have also been required to
make special deposits with the Bank of England to reduce excess liquidity, although no such deposits have
been called for in recent years.

An authorised institution, such as Abbey National or ANTS, is required, as part of the requirement to
report large exposures, to make a report to the Bank of England if it has entered into a transaction or
transactions relating to any one counterparty (including any counterparty related to that counterparty), as a
result of which it is exposed to the risk of incurring losses in excess of 10% of its capital. In general, an
authorised institution may not enter into a transaction which would result in an exposure to an individual
counterparty (including counterparties related to that counterparty) exceeding 25% of capital. In very
limited circumstances the Bank of England may allow such limits to be exceeded. The aggregate of all
exposures exceeding 10% of capital must not exceed 800% of capital. The Bank of England has statutory
powers to object to persons who are or who intend to become controllers of 10% or more of the voting power
of an authorised institution. The Bank of England also has the right to object to increased control at
thresholds of 20%, 33%, 50% and 75% of the voting power of the authorised institution. The Bank of
England may give notice of such objection unless it is satisfied (a) that the person concerned is a fit and
proper person to become a controller of the institution, (b) that the interests of depositors and potential
depositors of the institution would not be in any other manner threatened by that person becoming a
controller of the institution and (c) broadly, that the institution would continue to be able to fulfill the
criteria necessary to be fulfilled in order for that institution to be authorised under the Banking Act. The
Bank of England may also serve a notice of objection if it is directed to do so by Her Majesty’s Treasury,
which may so direct if it appears to Her Majesty’s Treasury that, after such a person had become such a
controller, Her Majesty’s Treasury would be entitled under the Financial Services Act to serve notice
cancelling any authorisation of the institution concerned under the Banking Act or restricting the business
which such institution may carry on. Her Majesty’s Treasury is, broadly, empowered to serve such a notice if
it is satisfied, by reason of laws of any country outside the United Kingdom or the action or practices of the
government of such a country, that persons connected with the United Kingdom are unable to carry on
investment, insurance or banking business in that country on terms as favourable as those on which persons
connected with that country are able to carry on any such business in the United Kingdom.

Deposit compensation under the statutory deposit protection scheme is available to depositors. Deposi-
tors with a failed institution will receive 90% of their protected deposits from the Deposit Protection Fund.
A protected deposit is a deposit in one of the currencies of the EEA states or ECU which is limited to a
maximum amount of £20,000 or the sterling equivalent of ECU 22,222 (whichever is the greater), including
both principal and accrued interest.

Code of Banking Practice. The voluntary Code of Banking Practice agreed by U.K. banks, building
societies and card issuers took effect in March 1992 and the second edition came into effect on March 28,
1994. Abbey National has adopted the Code of Banking Practice, which sets out the standards of good
banking practice to be observed by Abbey National when dealing with customers in the United Kingdom.
The Code of Banking Practice covers, inter alia, the use of confidential information, losses arising from the
misuse of payment and credit cards and the handling of customer complaints. Abbey National has imple-
mented the terms of the second edition of this Code as a matter of good practice.
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Building Societies

Until its conversion in 1989, Abbey National was a building society regulated by the Building Societies
Act 1986. Building societies are primarily mortgage lenders and deposit-takers and are supervised by the
Building Societies Commission. Although the role of the latter body is, principally, similar to that of the
Bank of England, the Building Societies Act is more restrictive in terms of overseeing the prescription of the
types of activities which may be carried on and the sources of funding that can be used.

Insurance
U.K. banks may provide other complementary financial services such as insurance, through subsidiary
companies. Insurance business in the United Kingdom is divided into two categories: long-term life insur-
ance (investment-related) and general insurance (which includes, for example, buildings and contents
cover). Insurance business in the United Kingdom is regulated under the Insurance Companies Act 1982
which requires insurers to be authorised and supervised by the Department of Trade and Industry.

General insurance is more lightly regulated than long-term life insurance. Abbey National currently
acts, in relation to building and contents insurance, as a broker for U.K. companies, receiving commissions
for the policies arranged. The sale of such policies is governed by a voluntary code to which Abbey National
conforms formulated by the Association of British Insurers, a trade body composed of the insurance

companies.
The marketing and sale of most long-term life insurance (other than some term life assurance) is
governed under the provisions of the Financial Services Act. See “Financial Services Act 1986 below.

Policyholders’ Protection Act 1975. 'This Act resulted from public anxiety over the failure of a few small
insurance companies in the early 1970s. Its aim is to protect policyholders who have been, or may be,
prejudiced by the inability of U.K. authorised insurance companies to meet their liabilities. The act estab-
lished the Policyholders’ Protection Board to accomplish this task. Protection is only given to persons
holding policies issued by an authorised insurer. The Policyholders’ Protection Board has a statutory duty to
protect policyholders when an insurance company is being compulsorily or voluntarily wound up.

Aswell as its duties in the case of a company in liquidation, the Policyholders’ Protection Board also has
powers to protect policyholders of a company in financial difficulties. Under these provisions, the Policy-
holders’ Protection Board can help prevent a failure by assisting the company with a cash injection, or by
arranging a transfer of business to a more stable office. In the case of business where the benefits are
excessive, the assistance provided can be scaled down to an appropriate level. The Policyholders’ Protection
Board may also make interim payments to a company in financial difficulties.

The life insurance industry also needs to comply with other legislation, regulation, ombudsmen and
codes of practice which are not discussed here.

Financial Services Act 1986

Investment business in the United Kingdom is regulated under the provisions of the Financial Services
Act. Under the Financial Services Act, it is a criminal offence for any person to carry on investment business
in the United Kingdom unless he is an authorised person or exempted person for the purpose of the
Financial Services Act. The Financial Services Act requires that firms involved in “investment business”
(which includes buying, selling, subscribing for or underwriting investments; arranging deals in investments;
managing investments belonging to another person; giving investment advice; or establishing, operating or
winding-up a collective investment scheme relating to defined investments such as equities, gilts, debentures
(e.g. certificates of deposit, commercial paper, Eurobonds, loan stock), options, warrants, futures, contracts
for differences, unit trusts and long-term insurance contracts) become authorised and then conform to rules
relating to the conduct of business unless certain exemptions apply. Authorisation is granted either by the
Securities and Investments Board, to whom responsibility for supervising investment business has been
delegated by Her Majesty’s Treasury, or by one of the “Self Regulating Organisations” recognised by the
Securities and Investments Board (“SIB”) under the Financial Services Act.

Certain persons will be classified as “exempted persons” for the purposes of the Financial Services Act.
Both “listed money market institutions” (essentially banks operating in the wholesale markets) and tied
“appointed representatives” whose authorised principals have accepted responsibility in writing for their
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activities are at present exempted persons. However, listed money market institutions will only be exempted
persons in respect of their money market activities (not other investment business for which authorisation
would be required), while appointed representatives will only be exempted persons as regards the tied
investment business for which their principal has accepted responsibility. From the beginning of 1996 (in
order to comply with ISD), listed money market institutions will instead be authorised under the Financial
Services Act by the Bank of England, but this will not result in any change of substance.

Authorisation will allow the firm to carry on investment business but will mean that the firm must
comply with, inter alia, the detailed Conduct of Business Rules of the Securities and Investments Board or
the rules of the Self Regulating Organisation by which it is authorised. In addition to the Conduct of
Business Rules, a firm will also have to observe various statutory obligations imposed by the Financial
Services Act when carrying out investment business. These regulate, for example, the issue of investment
advertisements in, or directed at, the United Kingdom, the making of unsolicited calls to potential clients,
and the prohibition on misleading statements or practices which may induce others to enter into investment
agreements. The Conduct of Business rules impose important obligations on authorised firms undertaking
investment business, giving varying levels of protection for the benefit of a firm’s clients. The Securities and
Investments Board and Self Regulating Organisations also will monitor the financial resources of the firm
and its compliance with requirements for record keeping, reporting and safeguards against insider dealing
and money laundering.

The Investment Services Directive (the “ISD”) and the Capital Adequacy Directive, EU directives
which are aimed at creating a single financial services market in the EU, came into force on January 1, 1996.
These required a number of changes to be made to the U.K. regulatory regime for financial services,
including capital adequacy requirements, and to the types of activities requiring authorisation. One aim of
the ISD is to confer a “passport” on firms authorised in one EU state to carry on investment business in
other EU states. CAD sets minimum capital requirements for market risks in the trading books of banks and
investment firms.

ANTS has been granted listed money market institution status by the Bank of England to carry on its
wholesale money market activities. Although, as an “exempted person,” it is free of many of the restrictions
under the Financial Services Act, the Bank of England expects it to observe the “London Code of Conduct”
and other regulations contained in “The Regulation of the Wholesale Markets in Sterling, Foreign Exchange
and Bullion” (the so-called “Grey Book”) issued by the Bank of England to regulate the operation of the
wholesale money markets. A revised edition of the London Code of Conduct has been published recently
incorporating changes necessary to meet the standards under ISD. ANTS has obtained direct authorisation
from the SIB for its investment business activities which fall outside its wholesale money market activities. As
the SIB is withdrawing from direct regulation of individual companies, ANTS has applied to be regulated by
the SFA. The regulation of ANTS by the SFA commenced on October 1, 1995.

A new regulatory body, the Personal Investment Authority (“PIA”), came into effect on July 18, 1994.
Its role is to regulate those companies involved in marketing and selling retail investment products. It is in
the process of replacing the Life Assurance and Unit Trust Regulatory Organisation and the Financial
Intermediaries, Managers and Brokers Regulatory Association in this respect and has or will also take on the
regulatory function for most of the companies previously authorised by the Securities and Investments
Board in respect of retail investment products.

« The PIA is the direct regulator of Abbey National Life in respect of marketing and sales of life
insurance and pensions. The PIA and the Investment Management Regulatory Organisation
(“IMRO”) regulate ANUTM in respect of the management, marketing and sale of unit trust and
PEP products. Abbey National acts as a “marketing associate,” which sells only the life insurance and
pensions of Abbey National Life and the unit trust PEP products of ANUTM. Abbey National’s
investment business activities, including those where it acts as a marketing associate, are regulated by
the PIA. The PIA also regulates ANIFA, which operates as an “independent financial adviser,”
selling products of companies other than Group companies to Abbey National branch customers who
wish to obtain independent advice as well as individuals who can be identified through ANIFA's own
marketing programmes.
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« The PIA regulates the sales and marketing activities of Scottish Mutual and its subsidiaries. Scottish
Mutual markets its life insurance products solely through independent intermediaries. This business
is run as an independent marketing group. This means that the strategic marketing and investment
direction of Scottish Mutual and its subsidiaries is separate and wholly independent from that of

Abbey National Life.

« IMRO regulates investment management business, both regarding unit trusts and for other portfolio
purposes. Scottish Mutual Investment Managers Ltd. and Scottish Mutual Portfolio Managers are

regulated by IMRO.

With effect from January 1995, Life Insurance Operations has adopted a new commission and product
disclosure regime following the imposition of stricter disclosure requirements by regulators. The disclosure
regime will involve a greater degree of generic product detail being disclosed to customers, as well as
disclosure of customer-specific details of surrender values, commissions earned by the policy provider or
costs incurred by the provider in selling the policy and the effect of charges and commissions on the expected

yield under the policy.

The impact of this new disclosure regime is difficult to assess at this time. Disclosure of selling
commissions and costs on life insurance and pension products may result in unfavourable comparisons with
the returns available from other longer-term savings products, possibly reducing industry-wide demand.
However, Abbey National’s cost per unit, which is required to be disclosed under the new regime, may
compare favourably with that of its competitors’ disclosed cost per unit. At the present time, the Group’s
management does not expect the adoption of this new disclosure regime to have a material impact on the

Group’s results of operations.

Other Legislation

The Consumer Credit Act 1974 regulates both brokerage and lending activities in the provision of
personal secured and unsecured lending. The Data Protection Act 1986 regulates the retention and use of
data held on computer relating to individual customers. The Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regula-
tions 1994 came into force in July 1995. These Regulations apply to contracts for goods and services entered
into with consumers. The main effect of the Regulations is that a contractual term covered by the Regula-
tions which is “unfair” will not be enforceable against a consumer. These Regulations apply, inter alia, to

mortgages and related products and services.

Cadbury Code of Best Practice
The Abbey National Group complies with the Code of Best Practice issued by the Cadbury Committee

on the Financial Aspects of Corporate Governance.
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CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at February 7, 1996, Abbey National did not know, and had not been notified of any interest in the
register maintained under Section 211 of the Companies Act, of any person who, directly or indirectly was
interested in 3% or more of the share capital of Abbey National.

The following table sets forth the aggregate shareholdings, as at December 31, 1994, of the directors
and executive officers of Abbey National as a group.

Number % of
Title of Class Owner Owned Class

Ordinary shares of nominal
value 10p each Directors and executive officers of Abbey National 204,793  0.02

The following table sets forth, as at February 7, 1996, the beneficial interests relating to securities which
have been notified by each director of Abbey National pursuant to Sections 324 or 328 of the Companies Act
and which are entered in the register required to be kept by Abbey National pursuant to Section 325 of that
Act.

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares

of nominal value of nominal value
Ovwner _ 10peach Owner _10peach
Lord Tugendhat. ... .. 10,000 Mair Barnes ........ 1,000
Peter Birch ......... 313,539 Allan Denholm ... ... 3,000
John Fry ........... 10,572 Sir Terry Heiser . . . . .. 1,500
lan Harley.......... 20,501 Martin Llowarch .. ... 1,750
Gareth Jones . .. ..... 70,910 Peter Ogden ........ 4,000
Robert Knighton .. ... 14,300 Lord Rockley ....... 5,000
Charles Toner .. ..... 20,160 James Tuckey ....... 12,000

Charles Villiers ... ... 26,657




MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the directors and executive officers of Abbey National, their current

positions at Abbey National, their principa

Abbey National were assumed.

1 external directorships and the years when their positions with

Year
Name Current position Principal external directorships appointed(1)
Lord Tugendhat Chairman Director, BOC Group plc 1991
(since 1991) Director, Eurotunnel plc
Director, Blue Circle Industries PLC
Executive Directors
Peter Gibbs Birch, C.B.E.,, ECLB.  Chief Executive Director, Argos plc 1984
(since 1984) Director, Dalgety PLC
John Marshall Fry, EC.LS., ECLB.  Deputy Chairman 1984
(since 1 January
1995)
Ian Harley, EC.A. Finance Director 1993
(since 1993)
David Gareth Jones, FC.A,, EC.T Treasurer 1993
(since 1993)
Robert Frank Knighton Managing Director, 1993
Operations Division
(since 1993)
Charles Gerard Toner Managing Director, 1992
Retail Division
(since 1993)
Charles Nigel Villiers, EC.A. Managing Director, 1989
Corporate
Development
(since 1989)
Non-executive Directors
Mair Barnes Director, Fosters Trading Company 1992
Limited
Executive Chairman, Oceanhaven Limited
James Allan Denholm, CB.E., C.A. Director, William Grant & Sons Ltd 1992
Sir Terence Michael Heiser, G.C.B. Director, J Sainsbury plc 1992
Director, Wessex Water plc
Director, McDonnell Information Systems
Group plc
Director, Costain Group PLC
Director, Personal Investment Authority
Martin Edge Llowarch, EC.A. Deputy Chairman Chairman, Transport Development 1989
(since 1994) Group plc
Chairman, Firth Rixson plc
Director, Hickson International plc
Peter James Ogden Chairman, Computacenter Ltd 1994
Director, Anglo & Overseas Trust PLC
Director, MC & Cie Ltd.
Lord Rockley Chairman, Kleinwort Benson Group plc 1990
Director, Christies’ International ple
Director, The Foreign and Colonial
Investment Trust PLC
Director, Cobham plc
James Lane Tuckey, ER.LC.S. Chief Executive, MEPC plc 1990
Company Secretary of Abbey National
Ian Kinsman Treacy 1991
Executive Officer of Abbey National
John King Director of Human 1992
Resources
(1) If the dates of appointment to the Board are before July 12, 1989, then these dates refer to appointments to the Board of Abbey National Building

Society. All those directors concerned were appointed to the Board of Abbey National plc on February 28, 1989.
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The business address of each of the directors and officers in the table above is Abbey House, Baker
Street, London NW1 6XL.

Committees of Directors

The Board of Abbey National is composed of a part-time Chairman, seven executive directors and
seven non-executive directors. The Board met on 12 occasions during 1994, including a session devoted to
long-term strategic planning. The Board’s focus is on strategy formulation, policy and control and a
framework of high level authorities is in place which maps out the structure of delegation below Board level
as well as specifying those authorities which remain within the Board’s preserve. The Board has developed a
series of policies covering liquidity risk, credit risk and total market risks, including foreign exchange and
interest rate risk.

There is an Audit Committee comprised wholly of non-executive directors, which met five times during
1994 and is chaired by J. Allan Denholm. Its principal tasks are to review the scope of external and internal
audit; to receive regular reports from Coopers & Lybrand and the chief internal auditor; and, to review the
interim results and annual report and accounts before they are presented to the Board focusing, in particu-
lar, on accounting policies and compliance and areas of management judgment and estimates. The Audit
Committee more generally acts as a forum for discussion of internal control issues.

The Personnel and Remuneration Committee (formerly known as the Personnel Policy Committee) is
now chaired by Martin E. Llowarch who is joined by three non-executive directors. This committee’s
principal function is to monitor the human resources policies adopted to ensure they support the business
objectives and philosophy determined by the Board. It is also charged with recommending the remuneration
package of executive directors. The final decision on such matters is taken by all the non-executive directors
of the Board.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Group maintains insurance Cover for directors’ and officers’ liability, as permitted by Sec-
tion 310(3) of the Companies Act 1985.

Remuneration

Non-executive directors of Abbey National (including the Chairman and Martin E. Llowarch, Deputy
Chairman) receive fees for their services. The basic fee for non-executive directors of £17,500 is augmented
by £2,500 for service on Board committees. The remuneration arrangements for executive directors and
executive officers are as follows:

a. Basic salary is considered in relation to similar jobs in comparable organisations. The comparators
include U.K. banks, building societies, insurance companies and retailers and other U.K. companies
with an equivalent market capitalisation to Abbey National.

b. The basic system of discretionary performance payments was revised during 1994, and now comprises a
bonus scheme based on annual performance which pays out in March 1995 and a three-year scheme
which covers the period from 1994 to 1996 and may pay out in March 1997. The maximum potential
payment to be shared among the executive directors and other members of the top management for
both the annual scheme and the three-year scheme is 30% of that group’s basic salary. Such payments
are not pensionable.

The actual level of any payment under the annual bonus scheme is determined by the Board’s view of
the Group’s performance set against the Chief Executive’s objectives.

In determining whether or not to make a payment in 1997 under the three-year bonus scheme (covering
the period from 1994 to 1996), and if so its size, the Board will be guided by a formula which will have
two equally weighted components: (i) an assessment of total shareholder returns over the period 1994
to 1996 measured by two sets of indices, the Financial Times Stock Exchange 100 index (the
“FTSE 100”) and certain specific sectors of that index and (ii) progress against the Company’s Three
Year Plan 1994-1996 including a comparison with the performance of competitors not included in the
FTSE 100.
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In addition, the full complement of non-executive directors may in exceptional circumstances make a
one-off ex-gratia payment to an individual executive director who has rendered a particular and
outstanding contribution.

c.  An Executive Share Option scheme and an Employee Sharesave scheme, both of which have been.
approved by the shareholders. Grants of Executive Share Options are made on the recommendation of
the Personnel and Remuneration Committee and reflect both corporate and individual performance.

d. Taxable benefits include car expenses, medical expenses plus subsidised mortgage loans.

The Sharesave Scheme, under which options have been issued annually, is open to all eligible Group
employees. For more detailed information about directors’ emoluments and share options, see Note 8 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.

The aggregate remuneration of all directors and executive officers of Abbey National as a group in the
year ended December 31, 1994 was £3,030,000. See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum for information on directors’ emoluments. The aggregate
amount set aside or accrued by the Group for pension, retirement and similar benefits for all directors and
executive officers of Abbey National as a group in the year ended December 31, 1994 was £366,000. Abbey
National resumed funding of its principal pension scheme in late 1993, after a contribution “holiday” of
several years. See Note 45 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing
Memorandum. At June 30, 1995, directors and executive officers of Abbey National as a group held options
to purchase 1,833,457 ordinary shares of Abbey National at prices ranging from £1.49 to £3.22 under the
Sharesave Scheme and from £2.54 to £4.68 under the Executive Share Option Scheme, exercisable in the
period from 1995 to 2005.

Terms of Office of Directors

One-third (or the whole number nearest to one-third) of the directors of Abbey National are required
to retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting, together with directors newly appointed since the
previous Annual General Meeting in accordance with power given to the Board. The directors retiring by
rotation and the newly appointed Directors are eligible to stand for re-election.

Interests of Directors and Officers

In 1994, loans made by the Group to 11 directors and 48 officers (including executive officers) of the
Group were outstanding with principal amounts of £1,205,000 and £4,427,000 respectively. See Note 8 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Listing Memorandum.

In 1994 there were no other transactions, arrangements Or agreements with Abbey National or its
subsidiaries in which directors or executive officers or persons connected with them had a material interest,
other than options to subscribe for ordinary shares under the Abbey National Executive Share Option
Scheme and the Abbey National Sharesave Scheme. No director had a material interest in any contract of
significance other than a service contract with the Group, or any of its subsidiaries, at any time during the
year. All executive directors have a service contract whereby Abbey National is required to give them 12
months’ notice to sever their employment contract.
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UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION

The summary below reflects certain aspects of current Jaw and practice in the United Kingdom and may not
apply to certain classes of person (such as dealers). Prospective holders who are in doubt as to their tax

position or who may be subject to tax in any other jurisdiction should consult their professional advisers.

Dividends on the Sterling Preference Shares

(a) Cash Dividends

Under current United Kingdom taxation legislation, no withholding tax will be deducted from dividends
paid by the Company but the Company is required to account for advance corporation tax (“ACT”) when a
dividend is paid. The current rate of ACT is ¥ of the cash dividend paid. An individual preference
shareholder who is resident (for tax purposes) in the United Kingdom is entitled, in respect of any cash
dividend received, to a tax credit which, at current rates, is equal to 4 of the dividend paid. The individual
will be liable to United Kingdom income tax (if at all) on the total of the dividend and the related tax credit at
either the lower rate of income tax (currently 20 per cent.) or the higher rate (currently 40 per cent.)
depending upon the individual shareholder’s circumstances. The tax credit will satisfy in full the individual
shareholder’s liability to lower rate income tax on the dividend plus the tax credit. To the extent that the
shareholder is liable to higher rate income tax, the tax payable on the dividend plus the tax credit will be at a
rate equal to the excess of the higher rate over the lower rate (i.e. 20 per cent.). If the aggregate of the tax
credit and any other income tax payments or credits exceeds the individual’s overall liability to income tax,
the tax credit may be refunded, in whole or in part, by the Inland Revenue.

A corporate preference shareholder which is resident (for tax purposes) in the United Kingdom and
receives a dividend paid by the Company will be entitled to a tax credit in respect of that dividend. The
shareholder will not be liable to United Kingdom corporation tax on any dividend received from the
Company and the dividend and associated tax credit will generally represent franked investment income in
the hands of such a shareholder. The value of the tax credit will be an amount equal to ¥4 of the dividend.

Subject to certain exceptions for Commonwealth citizens, citizens of the Republic of Ireland and certain
other classes of person, the right of a preference shareholder who is not resident (for tax purposes) in the
United Kingdom to a tax credit in respect of a dividend received from the Company and to reclaim from the
Inland Revenue any proportion of the tax credit relating to the dividend will depend, in general, upon the
provisions of any double taxation agreement Or convention which exists between the United Kingdom and
the country in which the shareholder is resident. Any shareholder who is not resident in the United Kingdom
should consult his own tax adviser concerning his tax liability on dividends received and on the question of
the double taxation provisions (if any) applying between his country of residence and the United Kingdom.

If the Company were to pay a dividend out of non-U.K. source profits it could elect for such dividend to
be treated as a “foreign income dividend” with the result that (i) the Company would have a reduced, or no,
liability to pay ACT, and (i) such dividend would not carry an associated U.K. tax credit. In calculating any
further tax due from an individual shareholder who receives a “foreign income dividend” the shareholder
would be treated as receiving income which has borne income tax at the lower rate of 20 per cent. There
would be no further tax to pay by a shareholder who is liable to income tax on dividends at the lower rate and
there would be no repayment of tax to a shareholder who is not liable to income tax.

A corporate shareholder would not be liable to United Kingdom corporation tax on any “foreign
income dividend”. If a company which receives “foreign income dividends” during an accounting period also
pays “foreign income dividends” during that period, it has to pay ACT in respect of the “foreign income
dividends” it pays only to the extent that they exceed the “foreign income dividends” received. If there isa
surplus of “foreign income dividends” received over “foreign income dividends” paid, the surplus can be
carried forward to the next period in which it can be used. It is not possible for “foreign income dividends”
received to frank the liability to pay ACT on an ordinary dividend, nor is it possible for an ordinary dividend

to frank the liability to pay ACT on a “foreign income dividend”.
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(b) Tax treatment of additional Sterling Preference shares issued in lieu of cash dividends

Where a U.K. resident individual shareholder receives additional Sterling Preference Shares in lieu of a
dividend payment as provided in paragraph (g) under “Description of the Sterling Preference Shares —
Dividends”, he will be treated for UK. income tax purposes as having received income of an amount which.
after deduction of income tax at the lower rate (currently 20 per cent.) equals the market value of the
additional Sterling Preference Shares received as determined on the first day of dealings in them on the
London Stock Exchange. Thus if the market value of the additional Sterling Preference Shares received by
the shareholder at that date is £100, he will be treated as having received gross income of £125 on which
income tax of £25 will be treated as having been paid.

U.K. resident individual shareholders who pay tax at the lower rate (currently 20 per cent.) o the basic
rate (currently 25 per cent.) only will have no further tax to pay but to the extent that U.K. resident individual
shareholders pay tax at the higher rate (currently 40 per cent.), they will be liable to pay additional tax by
reference to the excess of the higher rate over the lower rate on the gross amount of income they are treated
as having received. The market value of the additional Sterling Preference Shares received will be added to
the base cost of the Sterling Preference Shares for the purposes of tax on capital gains.

No repayable tax credit attaches to the receipt of the additional Sterling Preference Shares and,
accordingly, no amount can be reclaimed from the Inland Revenue by Shareholders who are exempt from
tax, or whose liability is less than the lower or basic rate, or who are entitled to the benefit of any double tax
treaty.

U.K. resident corporate shareholders will not be charged to U.K. tax on any additional Sterling
Preference Shares, but will not have any amount added to their base cost of Sterling Preference Shares for
the purposes of tax on capital gains.

Capital Gains Tax
For the purposes of the following paragraphs, references to «U.K. Holders” are to persons who are
resident or ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes or who are not so resident but who at
the relevant time carry on a trade, profession or vocation in the United Kingdom through a branch or agency
to which the relevant Sterling Preference Share is attributable.

Disposal of Sterling Preference Shares

U.K. Holders of Sterling Preference Shares may, depending upon their individual circumstances, be
liable to pay United Kingdom taxation on any gain realised on a disposal of all or any part of their holding of
Sterling Preference Shares.

United Kingdom stamp duty or SDRT will generally be payable in respect of the transfer of, or
agreement to transfer, the Sterling Preference Shares.
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PLACING OF THE STERLING PREFERENCE SHARES

Merrill Lynch International Limited, Kleinwort Benson Limited, Barclays de Zoete Wedd Limited,
HSBC Markets and SBC Warburg (the “Managers”) have, pursuant to a Placing Agreement dated Febru-
ary 9, 1996 (the “Placing Agreement”), agreed, jointly and severally, with Abbey National to procure
subscribers, failing which, to subscribe themselves, for the Sterling Preference Shares at the cash price of
108.935p per Sterling Preference Share, being a premium of 8.935p per Sterling Preference Share. Abbey
National has also agreed to reimburse the Managers in connection with certain expenses of the issue. The
Managers are entitled to terminate the Placing Agreement in certain circumstances prior to making payment
to Abbey National for the Sterling Preference Shares. The placing of the Sterling Preference Shares (the
“Placing”) is conditional on the Sterling Preference Shares being admitted to the Official List by the London
Stock Exchange, on such admission becoming effective not later than 9.00 a.m. on February 13,1996 and on
the Placing Agreement becoming unconditional in accordance with its terms.

The Placing Agreement contains certain representations, warranties, undertakings and indemnities
given by Abbey National relating, inter alia, to the accuracy of the information contained in this document.
The Managers may terminate the Placing Agreement in certain exceptional circumstances (including the
occurrence of a force majeure event) prior to the admission to listing becoming effective.

Abbey National has agreed to pay to the Managers commissions amounting to one per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Sterling Preference Shares. Abbey National will also pay to the Managers a
sum equal to any stamp or other duties or taxes (if any) payable in connection with the Placing and any value
added tax payable in connection with the commission payable in connection with or arising out of the

Placing.

The Placing Price for the Sterling Preference Shares will be payable in cash net of the commissions
referred to above on February 13, 1996. It is estimated that the cash proceeds (net of expenses) accruing to
Abbey National from the Placing will amount to approximately £107,835,000.

The Preference Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933
(the “Securities Act”) and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements
of the Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under
the Securities Act.

Each Manager has agreed that, except as permitted by the Placing Agreement, it will not offer, sell or
deliver Sterling Preference Shares, (i) as part of their distribution at any time, or (ii) otherwise until 40 days
after the later of the commencement of the offering and the issue date, within the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, and it will have sent to each dealer to which it sells Sterling
Preference Shares during the restricted period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on
offers and sales of Sterling Preference Shares, respectively, within the United States or to, or for the account
or benefit of, U.S. persons.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering, an offer or sale of the Sterling
Preference Shares within the United States by any dealer (that is not participating in the offer) may violate
the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Each Manager has agreed that:

(i) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Sterling Preference Shares to persons in the
United Kingdom prior to their admission to listing in accordance with Part IV of the Financial Services
Act 1986 (the “Act”) except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses Or
otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the
United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 or the Act;

(ii) ithas complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with respect to anything done by
it in relation to the Sterling Preference Shares in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom; and
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(iii) it has only issued or passed on and will only issue or pass on in the United Kingdom any document
received by it in connection with the placing of the Sterling Preference Shares, other than any document
which consists of or any part of listing particulars, supplementary listing particulars or any other
document required or permitted to be published by listing rules under Part IV of the FSA, to a person
who is of a kind described in Article 11(3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertise-
ments) (Exemptions) Order 1995 or is a person to whom such document may otherwise lawfully be
issued or passed on.




GENERAL INFORMATION

Abbey National was incorporated in England and Wales on September 12, 1988 with registered number
2294747. The registered office of Abbey National is Abbey House, Baker Street, London NW1 6XL.
The principal object of Abbey National set out in Clause 4 of its Memorandum of Association is to carry
on the business of banking and other financial and monetary transactions. The Memorandum of
Association is available for inspection at the address set out in “Documents available for inspection”
below. The registered office of Abbey National Treasury Services plc (“ANTS”) is Abbey House, Baker
Street, London NW1 6XL. ANTS has authorised and issued share capital of £255,000,000.

It is expected that listing of the Sterling Preference Shares on the London Stock Exchange will be
granted on February 13, 1996, subject only to allotment, and that dealings in the Sterling Preference
Shares will commence on February 13, 1996. Transactions will normally be effected for settlement in
Sterling and for delivery on the fifth working day after the date of the transaction.

The estimated total expenses of the issue of the Sterling Preference Shares payable by Abbey National
(excluding any value added tax) are £1.1 million (of which £1 million represents the commissions due to
the Managers under the Subscription and Placing Agreement).

It should be noted that, as part of the process of conversion, the Building Societies Act 1986 (the “Act”)
required that a right be conferred on every saving member of the Society (who satisfied certain conditions)
to a priority liquidation distribution by Abbey National. This is a right to a distribution of a proportion of the
assets of Abbey National, in the event of its being wound up, in priority to all other creditors and members
(other than certain statutory preferential creditors). This right is secured by a first floating charge over the
assets of Abbey National. The obligation of Abbey National to satisfy this priority liquidation distribution
right is guaranteed by ANTS and the obligations of ANTS under such guarantee are secured by a first
floating charge over the assets of ANTS. :

The Act also provides that saving members of the Society who were not eligible to vote at the meeting of
the members of the Society at which the conversion was approved and who satisfy certain other
conditions are entitled to a cash distribution. The aggregate amount of the cash distribution paid in 1989
was approximately £6,000,000, and no further material amounts have been, or are expected to be, paid.
The initial aggregate amount of the priority liquidation distribution right is the amount of the Society’s
reserves at December 31, 1988 less the aggregate amount of the cash distribution and the costs of the
conversion (except to the extent that such costs have been taken into account in calculating the amount
of the reserves). The initial aggregate amount of the priority liquidation distribution (if Abbey National
had been wound up immediately upon the conversion) was estimated at £1,340 million. However, the
amount of a member’s distribution is generally reduced by the amount such member withdraws from his
relevant accounts (and does not increase should further funds be paid into such accounts). The
aggregate amount of the priority liquidation distribution on December 31, 1994 was reduced to
approximately £59 million. Abbey National expects the amount to continue to decrease.

Save as disclosed herein, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the
Group which has occurred since December 31, 1994.

Neither Abbey National nor the Group is involved in any litigation or arbitration proceedings which
may have, or have had during the previous twelve months, a significant effect upon the financial position
of Abbey National or the Group nor, so far as Abbey National is aware, are any such litigation or
arbitration proceedings pending or threatened.

The directors of Abbey National expect a demand to be made against its subsidiary Abbey National
Treasury Services plc by an overseas tax authority in an amount of approximately £140 million relating
to the repayment of certain tax credits received and related charges. The Company has been advised
that it has strong grounds to challenge the validity of the demand.

The consolidated accounts of Abbey National for each of the three years ended December 31, 1994
were audited by Coopers & Lybrand, chartered accountants and registered auditors, in accordance with
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Auditing Standards and have been reported on without qualification. The address of Coopers &
Lybrand is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6NN. Coopers & Lybrand have given and have not
withdrawn their written consent to the issue of these listing particulars with the inclusion of their reports
and references to their name in the form and context in which they are included and have authorised the
content of that part of the listing particulars which comprise their reports for the purposes of Sec-
tion 152(1)(e) of the Financial Services Act 1986.

9. The summary financial information relating to the Group contained in this Listing Memorandum for
each of the five years ended December 31, 1994 does not constitute statutory accounts as defined in
Section 240 of the Companies Act 1985 (the “Companies Act”), but has been derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of Abbey National for those years. The statutory consolidated ac-
counts of Abbey National for each of the five financial years ended December 31, 1994 were delivered
to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales. The auditors of Abbey National have made
reports under Section 235 of the Companies Act in respect of the statutory consolidated accounts for
cach of the five financial years ended December 31, 1994 and each such report was an unqualified
report and did not contain a statement under Section 237(2) or (3) of the Companies Act.

10. The London listing sponsor for the Sterling Preference Shares is Merrill Lynch International Limited.

Material Contract

11. The following contract (not being a contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) has been
entered into in the two years preceding the date of this document and is or may be material:—

A framework agreement dated July 9, 1995, made between National & Provincial and Abbey National,
relating to the agreement in principle (referred to in “Recent Developments”) for Abbey National to
acquire the business of National & Provincial.

Documents available for inspection

12. Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during usual business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) at the offices of Slaughter and May, 35 Basinghall
Street, London EC2V 5DB for a period of 14 days from the date hereof:

(a) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Abbey National;

i (b) the audited consolidated Report and Accounts of Abbey National for the two years ended Decem-
|4 ber 31, 1993 and 1994 and the unaudited interim financial statements of Abbey National for the
: period ended June 30, 1995;

(c) the Placing Agreement;
(d) the consent referred to in paragraph 8 above; and
(e) the material contract referred to above.

13. All current directors’ service contracts have previously been made available for inspection in accordance
with the listing rules of the London Stock Exchange (such contracts having not been subsequently varied).
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the Auditors’ report set out below, is

made with a view to distinguishing for shareholders the respective responsibilities of the Directors and of the
Auditors in relation to the accounts.

The directors of Abbey National plc are required by UK company law to prepare accounts which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of Abbey National plc and the Group as at the end of the financial
year, and of the profit for the year. They are also responsible for ensuring that proper and adequate

accounting records have been maintained and that reasonable procedures have been followed for safeguard-
ing the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

In respect of the accounts the directors are required to:

« ensure that appropriate accounting policies, which follow generally accepted accounting practice,
have been applied consistently;

« ensure that reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been used in the preparation of
the accounts;

» prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that Abbey
National plc and the Group will continue in business;

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed and to disclose and explain any
material departures in the accounts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF ABBEY NATIONAL plc

We have audited the consolidated accounts of Abbey National plc and its subsidiary undertakings on
pages F-4 to F-58 inclusive. These accounts are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these accounts based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Kingdom, which do not differ in any material respects from auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the accounts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
account presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounts referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Abbey National plc and its subsidiary undertakings at December 31, 1994 and 1993, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1994, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Kingdom.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Kingdom vary in certain significant respects
from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as set out in Note 47 to the consolidated
accounts.

Coopers & Lybrand

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, England.

March 22, 1995
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ABBEY NATIONAL plc

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Note 1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m

Interest receivable

Interest receivable and similar income arising from debt securities . . 2 1,468 1,196 1,414

Other interest receivable and similar income . ................. 3 3861 3,778 4372
Interest payable . ... ... ...ttt s 4 (3,935) (3,636) (4,521)
INet IRLErest INCOME . o o v o o e e e e et e et e et e et 1,394 1,338 1,265
Dividend INCOMIE . .« « « o v o et e e e et e et e e e 5 42 46 28
Fees and commission receivable . . ... ...... .. .. .. L 201 244 224
Fees and commission payable . ......... ... ... ... ... ... (32) (13) (10)
Dealing profits . ... ...ttt 24 8 3
Other operating iNCOME . . ... ...\t vttnne e 6 130 91 74
Total Operating inCome . . .. .......uuuevnninennanee .. 1,759 1,714 1,584
Administrative eXpenses . . ... ... 7 (671)  (679)  (629)
Depreciation and amortisation . . .. .......... ... . oo (84) (84) (77
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts ... ..................... 10 (74) (218) (274)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments . ................... 2 1 3)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax and exceptional items . . .. ... ... 932 734 601
Exceptional items:

Loss on disposal/reorganisation of estate agency business .. ....... 11 —— (30)  (138)

Sale of unclaimed shares ... ... ...t 12 — — 101
Profit on ordinary activities before tax . . . ....... ... ... 932 704 564
Tax on profit on ordinary activities . . .. ........... ... ... . ... 13 (322) (314) (247)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax . . .. ... o 14 610 390 317
Transfer to non-distributable reserve . ... ...cvvv i, 38 (65) (32) @)
DivIdEndS .« v v et e e e 15 (233) (184) (151)
Profit retained for the financial year . . . ........ ... . ... ... 312 174 159
Profit on ordinary activities before tax and exceptional items includes:

for acquired operations .. ....... .. ... 22 — —
for discontinued operations . .............. ... i, — (2) (20)

Eamnings per share ... ... .. .. 16 46.5p 29.7p 24.2p

The Group’s results are reported on an historical cost basis. Accordingly, no note of historical cost
profits and losses has been presented.
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ABBEY NATIONAL plc

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER

Note
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks . .. ...
Treasury bills and other eligible bills . ...............oo 17
Loans and advances tobanks ... ... ... 18
Loans and advances to CUStOMETS . . ..« v vvvevvvneeecne s 19
Net investment in finance leases ... ..o 20
Debt SECUTItIES . « v v v v v v v e e 21
Equity shares and other variable yield securities. . ... ......- 22
Long term assurance business .. ..............ooeeeeees 23
Tangible fixed SSEtS . . . . oo v 26
OthEr @SSELS .« v v v v eee o mie e 27
Prepayments and accrued inCOME . . ... cvvvveeveeeere s 28
Assets of long term assurance funds ......... ... 23
TOtal GSSELS . o« o v e e e
Liabilities
Deposits by banks .. .. ... 29
CUSLOINET ACCOUNLS + « + v v v v v v e e s s s mne e s ee e s 30
Debt securities in iSSUE . .« v c e 31
Dividend proposed . . . ...
Other Habilities . . v v oo v e e e 32
Accruals and deferred income. . . .. ..o 34
Provisions for liabilities and charges .. ...........ooonn 35
Subordinated Labilities . . v v oo oo 36
Liabilities of long term assurance funds . ................- 23
Called up share capital . . . ....oovn 37
Share premium aCCOUNE . . ..o vvvivvve e er e 37
RESEIVES .« - o v et e et et et et 38
Profit and 108S @CCOUNL .« v v v v v v v v v ee e 38
Equity shareholders’ funds ... ......oooea e
Total Habilities . . oo v v e e
Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security . .. ... ... 40
Other contingent liabilities . ... ..o 41
COMMIIIENLS « + o v et e eeen et iie e aaee e 42

1994 1994 1993 1993
£m £fm £m £m

166 168

432 589

2,906 3,556

48,484 45,049

2,278 2,253

32,332 24,789

42 523

352 287

534 509

1,081 1,128

1,620 1,080

4,092 3,871

94,319 83,802

17,826 16,368

38,056 36,143

23,413 19,030

158 129

2,528 1,732

2,623 1,979

399 296

1,520 868

4,092 3,871

90,615 80,416
131 131
840 836
104 39
2,629 2,380

3,704 3,386

94,319 83,802

836 702

59 96

895 798

1,546 784
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ABBEY NATIONAL ple

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Note 1994 1993 1992
. £m £m £m
Profit on ordinary activities after tax . ....... ..o 610 390 317
Translation differences on foreign currency net investment ... ... 7 (8) 4
Total recognised gains relating to the year. .. .............--: 603 382 321
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities . .. .............---- 44(a) 6,343 5,738 5,971
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Dividends paid . . ..o v e (204) (156) (142)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of
FIMATICE .+ oo v oo e eme e e e (204) (156) (142)
Taxation
U.K. corporation tax paid .. ... (93) (46) (156)
Overseas tax Paid . . . .o vevoni (5) (16) (10)
Total taxation paid . ... ... ... ooeenaa et (98) (62) (166)

Investing activities
Purchases of investment SECUTItiEs . . .. .o vvmve e

(35,346) (22,087) (16,027)

Sales and maturities of investment SECUTItIES . . oo v v v vn v 28,849 17,126 9,935
Purchases of tangible fixed assets. .. .......ocovnvevee (114) (101) (115)
Sales of tangible fixed assets . . ... 10 19 13
Transfers to life assurance funds . .........coveaneeen e — (40) (285)
Purchases of shares from minority shareholders ............ — — 1)
Purchases of subsidiary undertakings .. ...........c.oeenn (52) — (3)
Sale of subsidiary undertakings . ...........oaeea e — 1 —
Net cash outflow from investing Qctivities . . . . ......oocvenes (6,653) (5,082) (6,483)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing . .. .. ..vvveenees (612) 438 (820)
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital. .. .....c.oovvneenn 4 — 2
Issue of loan capital . .. ... covvvi e 676 220 240
Repayments of loan capital . . ..o oovve e a7n — —
Net cash inflow from financing . . . ...ooovova 663 220 242
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ............. 51 658 (578)

Cash and cash equivalents in this statement are calculated in accordance with the definitions set out in
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 1. The Group’s total liquidity includes not only these cash and cash

equivalents but also certain other liquid assets which fall outside the FRS1 definition.




ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

The consolidated accounts are prepared in accordance with the special provisions of part VII of the
Companies Act 1985 applicable to banking companies and banking groups.

Accounting convention

The Group prepares its accounts under the historical cost convention, and in accordance with applica-
bie U.K. accounting standards.

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts comprise the accounts of Abbey National plc and its subsidiary undertakings made
up to 31 December, with the exception of a number of leasing and investment subsidiaries and the
companies within the HMC group, which, because of commercial considerations, have various accounting
reference dates. In addition, WF Company Ltd., which was acquired on 21 December 1994, currently has an
accounting reference date other than 31 December. The accounts of these subsidiaries have been consoli-
dated on the basis of interim accounts for the year to 31 December 1994.

In order to reflect the different nature of the Group’s and the policyholders’ interests in the long term
assurance business, the interest attributable to the Group and the assets and liabilities attributable to the
policyholders have been classified under separate headings in the balance sheet.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation as a result of the acquisition of subsidiaries and goodwill arising on
the purchase of businesses are taken direct to reserves in the year in which they occur. On disposal of a
business, the goodwill previously taken to reserves is recognised in the profit and loss account balanced by an
equal credit to reserves. Where the directors believe that the purchased goodwill in continuing businesses
has suffered a permanent diminution in value, a similar recognition in the profit and loss account and credit
to reserves is made.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for only where it is probable that a liability or asset will arise. Provision is
calculated at rates expected to be applicable when the liability or asset crystallises.

Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
following annual rates are used:

Premises
Freehold buildings: 1%
Long and short leasehold premises: Over the remainder of the lease, with a maximum of 100 years.
Acquisition premiums are depreciated over the period to the next rent review.
Equipment
Office fixtures, equipment and furniture: 12.5%

Computer equipment: 25% for mainframes and 20% for peripherals
Motor vehicles: 25%

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Interest receivable
Interest is suspended where due but not received on mortgage accounts in arrears where recovery is
doubtful.

The amounts suspended, less recoveries of amounts suspended in previous years, are excluded from the
interest receivable on loans and advances.
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Fees and commissions receivable

Fees and commissions receivable in respect of services provided are taken to the profit and loss account
when the related services are performed. Where fees and commission are receivable which are in the nature
of interest, these are taken to the profit and loss account on a systematic basis over the expected period of the
loan, and are included under the heading, Interest receivable. Fees which are receivable in order to cover a
proportion of future losses, as explained in more detail under Deferred Income, are taken to the profit and
loss account as the relevant losses are identified and provided for, and are included under the heading, Other

operating income.

Lending related fees payable and discounts

Fees and discounts payable to customers in respect of loans are charged to the profit and loss account
over the minimum period of time which the Group expects to benefit from the loans where those fees and
discounts are in the nature of a reduction in interest income. The profit and loss account charge for such fees
and discounts is included under the heading, Interest receivable.

Deferred Income

Abbey National plc has entered into insurance arrangements with its subsidiary, Carfax Insurance Ltd,
to cover a proportion of future losses on certain UK residential secured loans with high loan to value ratios.
In the Group accounts, income from customers in relation to such lending is deferred and is included in the
balance sheet under the heading Accruals and deferred income. The deferred income is released to the
profit and loss account as relevant losses are identified and provided for.

Securities

Securities held for investment purposes are stated at cost adjusted for any amortisation of premium or
discount on an appropriate basis over their estimated lives. Provision is made for any permanent diminution
in value.

Where securities are transferred from portfolios held for investment purposes to portfolios held for
other purposes, the securities are transferred at market value. Gains and losses on these transfers are
included in the profit and loss account.

In accordance with industry practice, securities which are not held for the purpose of investment,
certain money market deposits, and the associated funding of these assets are stated at market value and
profits and losses arising from this revaluation are taken to the profit and loss account. The net return on
these assets appears in dealing profits in the profit and loss account. This net return comprises the
revaluation profit and loss referred to above, plus profits and losses on disposal of these assets, plus interest
receivable on these assets less interest payable on their associated funding. The cost of securities which are
not held for the purpose of investment is not disclosed as it cannot be determined without unreasonable
expense.

Interests in securities are recognised as assets o1, in the case of short positions, liabilities, at the date at
which the commitment to purchase or sell is considered to be binding.

Securities sold subject to agreements to repurchase are retained on the balance sheet where the risks
and rewards of ownership of the securities remain with the Group. Similarly, securities purchased subject to
a commitment to resell are treated as lending transactions where the Group does not acquire the risks and
rewards of ownership. The difference between sale and repurchase prices for such transactions is charged or

credited to the profit and loss account over the life of the relevant transactions.

Other financial instruments

Transactions are undertaken in interest rate swaps, Cross Currency swaps, futures, options, warrants and
similar instruments for the purposes of hedging, trading and market making. Gains and losses arising from
the hedging of investment transactions are released to the profit and loss account over the life of the asset,
liability or position against which the hedge is held. Gains and losses arising from the hedging of assets which
are not held for the purpose of investment are taken directly to the profit and loss account. Where 2
transaction originally entered into as a hedge no longer represents a hedge, its value is restated and any
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change in value is taken to the profit and loss account. Gains and losses on instruments purchased or sold for
trading and market making purposes are taken directly to the profit and loss account. Any such transactions
outstanding at the balance sheet date are stated at market value.

Development properties
Completed properties and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises land purchase, building works thereon and interest.

Equipment leased to customers
Assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
associated with ownership, other than legal title, are classjfied as finance leases.

The net investment in finance leases represents total minimum lease payments less gross earnings
allocated to future periods. Income from finance leases, including benefits from declining tax rates, is
credited to the profit and loss account using the actuarial after tax method to give a constant periodic rate of
return on the net cash investment.

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

Specific provisions are made against loans and advances when, as a result of regular appraisals of the
assets, it is considered that recovery is doubtful. A general provision is made against loans and advances to
cover bad and doubtful debts which have not been separately identified but which are known from experi-
ence to be present in any portfolio of loans and advances. The specific and general provisions are deducted
from loans and advances. Provisions made during the year, less amounts released and recoveries of amounts
written off in previous years, are charged to the profit and loss account.

Securitisations

Certain subsidiary undertakings have issued debt securities, or have entered into funding arrangements
with lenders, in order to finance the purchase of certain portfolios of mortgage assets. These obligations are
secured on the mortgage assets and other assets of the subsidiary undertakings.

Where the Group has retained significant benefits and risks relating to the portfolios of mortgage
assets, the mortgage assets and the related liabilities are presented separately within the relevant headings in
the Group balance sheet.

Long term assurance business

The value of the long term assurance business represents the present value of profits expected to
emerge in the future from business currently in force, together with the Group’s interest in the surplus
retained within the long term assurance funds. This is known as the embedded value. In determining the
embedded value, assumptions relating to future mortality, persistency and levels of expenses are based on
experience of the business concerned. Future profits are discounted at a risk-adjusted discount rate after
provision has been made for taxation.

Changes in the embedded value, which are determined on a post-tax basis, are included in the profit and
loss account grossed up at the standard rate of corporation tax.

The post-tax increase in embedded value is treated as non-distributable until it emerges as part of the
surplus arising during the year.

The value of the assets and liabilities of the long term assurance funds are determined by actuarial
evaluations in accordance with the terms of the Insurance Companies Act 1982,

Foreign currency translation

Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies during the year are translated into sterling at the
average rates of exchange ruling over the accounting period unless they are hedged in which case the
relevant hedge rate is applied. Dividends are translated at the rate prevailing on the date the dividend is
receivable. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange
current at the balance sheet date. Differences arising on the translation of opening net assets of overseas




subsidiaries are dealt with through reserves as are those differences resulting from the restatement of their
profits and losses from average to year-end rates. Other translation differences are dealt with through the
profit and loss account.

Pensions

Where pensions are provided by means of a funded defined benefits scheme, annual contributions are
based on actuarial advice. The expected cost of providing pensions is recognised on a systematic basis over
the expected average remaining service lives of members of the scheme.

Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash without notice and which were within three months of maturity when acquired.

Accounting for acquisitions

The requirements of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 6, “Acquisitions and Mergers”, and FRS7,
“Fair Values In Acquisition Accounting” have been implemented in respect of the acquisitions made in the
year ended 31 December 1994. These have been implemented earlier than the date required in the
standards. These standards are mandatory for acquisitions and mergers first accounted for in accounting
periods commencing on or after 23 December 1994, but early adoption is encouraged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

1. Segmental analysis

The equity capital of U.K. Retail Bank
earnings thereon are shown within the U.
segments are shown in the result of the relevant segment.

ing and Treasury Operations is managed on a unified basis and.
K. Retail Banking result. Earnings on equity capital in other

No separate geographical analysis is presented because the only significant non-U.K. businesses are

shown in the Continental Europe and Offshore business segment.

1994

Profit before taxation . ...........
Includes for acquired operations . . . ..
Total 8SSEtS . v v v e v v
Net ASSEES . v v v oo v v v e n e

1993
Profit before taxation and exceptional

Exceptional items. . . . . ..... ...
Profit before taxation . ...........
Includes for discontinued operations . . .
Total assets. . ... ov oo oo v oo
Net assets . . oo vvvve v e oo

1992
Profit before taxation and exceptional

Exceptional items ., . . . ...........
Profit before taxation . ...........
Includes for discontinued operations . . .
Total assets . . . v oo v v oo
Net assets . v v v v v v v oo e

2. Interest receivable and similar income arising from debt securities

Income from listed and registered securities

Income from unlisted securities

Life Continental
UK. Retail Assurance -Treasury  Europe and Other Estate  Group
Banking Operations  Operations Offshore Operations Agency  Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
741 94 128 (33) 2 — 932
22 — — — — — 22
49,805 4,492 36,991 1,400 1,631 — 94319
1,572 185 986 983 (22) — 3,704
618 61 145 (105) 17 (2) 734
— — — — — (30) (30)
618 61 145 (105) 17 (32) 704
— — — - — (32) (32)
45918 4,197 30,851 1,211 1,625 — 83,802
2,364 115 878 53 (24) — 3,386
540 22 100 (46) 5 (20) 601
— — — — 101 (138) 37)
540 22 100 (46) 106 (158) 564
— — — — — (158) (158)
42,153 3,056 24,072 1,265 1,637 40 72,223
2,516 15 761 108 (8) (208) 3,184
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
........................... 1,262 942 926
.................................... 206 254 488
1,468 1,196 1,414

Preference dividends of £6m (1993: £31m, 1992: £31m) are included in income from unlisted securities
after amortisation amounting to nil (1993: £59m, 1992: £59m).

3. Other interest receivable and similar income

1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
On secured adVANCES . v . o v vt it e i et e 3,513 3,424 4,087
Onotherlending . . ... ovvvv it 71 80 70
ON fINANCE 1EASES « « v v v v v e e e ot eae e ittt 135 142 116
On other assets and INVESIMENTS . . . v v oot v vt i e it i ee e e ia e 142 132 99
3,861 3,778 4,372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

3. Other interest receivable and similar income (Continued)

Interest due but not received on loans and advances in arrears has not been recognised in interest
receivable where collectability is in doubt. The movements on suspended interest are as follows:

On
advances
secured on On other On
residential secured unsecured
properties advances advances Total
£m £m £m £m
Suspended interest
At 1January 1994 .. .. .o 77 69 4 150
Exchange adjustments . . . . ..oovvvvn v 1 2 — 3
Amounts suspended in theyear................n 54 30 1 85
Irrecoverable amounts written off . ............... _(69) € (2 (102)
At 31 December 1994 .. ... .. _ 63 _ 70 136
The value of loans at 31 December 1994 on which
interest is suspended is as follows:
Loans and advances tO CUSTOMETS . . ..« v v ev e oo 684 254 29 967
Provisions on these 1oans . ...........ovvenns (137) (124) (26) (287)
4. Interest payable
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
On retail CUSLOIMET ACCOUNES .+« v v v v v e vvm e e m e s 1,841 1,813 2,563
On other deposits and 10aNS . . .. ..ot e 2,094 1,823 1,958
3,935 3,636 4,521
Including amounts payable on subordinated liabilities . . .. ...... . .o 80 66 57
5. Dividend income
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Income from equity shares and other variable yield securities .. .......... .. 42 46 28
6. Other operating income
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Income from long term assurance business (see note 23) e 91 61 31
Profits less losses on disposal of investment seCurities . . .. ......oovveee 14 ) 13
REnts TECEIVADIE « « « v v v v e e e v e mm e 4 5 6
101 T S I 21 27 24
130 91 74
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

7. Administrative expenses
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Staff costs:
Wages and salaries . ...... ... e 274 268 242
S0Cial SECUTILY COSES . . o v v vt ittt e i e 28 25 22
Other Pension COSIS .« v v v v v vt it e ettt 36 29 19
334 322 283
Other administrative €XPenses . . . .o v v ittt it it e 337 357 346
671 679 629
Other administrative expenses include the following items:
Hire of equipment. . . . ...ttt e 7 7 9
Finance charges in respect of leased assets .. .......... ... ... .. .. ... ... 2 3 4
Rent and rates payable . ........... i e 57 57 56

The charges above exclude those incurred by Life Assurance Operations which are charged to the
revenue account of the long term assurance funds. :

Staff costs incurred by Life Assurance Operations are:
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Staff costs:
Wages and salaries . .. .. ... 24 23 18
Social SECUTILY COSES . v v v vt et e 2 2 1
Other Pension COStS . . v vt vvv it ae e e e 4 3 2
30 28 21

The auditors’ remuneration was £1.5m (1993: £1.3m, 1992: £1.2m) for audit services and £2.4m
(1993: £1.6m, 1992: £2.4m) was payable to the Group auditors for other services. Included in this remunera-
tion is the audit fee for the companies within Life Assurance Operations of £0.2m (1993: £0.2m,
1992: £0.1m).

8. Directors’ emoluments and interests
The aggregate emoluments of directors were:

Performance

related Taxable 1994 1993 1992
Salary/fee bonus benefits Other  Total Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman ...................... 228 — 14 — 242 224 212

Chief Executive (and highest paid
director) ........... ... ... ..., 308 93 7 — 408 329 258

Fees and benefits to non-executive
directors excluding the Chairman. .. .. 164 — 1 — 165 176 156
Other directors . . ................ 1,040 353 70 — 1,463 1,220 929

Total emoluments excluding pension
contributions . ........... . ... ... 1,740 446 92 2,278 1,949 1,555
Pension contributions . . ............ — — —_ 303 303 58 —
Ex-gratia payments to former directors . — — — 82 82 — 53
Total emoluments . . ............... 1,740 446 92 385 2,663 2,007 1,608
Compensation for loss of office. . ..... — — — — — 250 266
1,740 446 92 385 2,663 2257 1,874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

8. Directors’ emoluments and interests (Continued)

Fees are paid to non-executive directors including the Chairman. The basic fee for non-executive
directors of £17,500 is augmented by £2,500 for service on Board committees. The basic fee was last
increased on 1 January 1991. Lord Rockley’s fee is paid to Kleinwort Benson Group plc, of which he is
Chairman.

Lord Tugendhat’s emoluments are comprised wholly of fees and benefits and expenses in respect of
services. He is not entitled to participate in any bonus or profit sharing arrangements nor is he entitled to
participate in the Executive Share Option scheme. However, he is entitled to participate in Abbey National
plc’s Sharesave scheme which is available to all eligible employees. The Chairman’s appointment is non-
pensionable and he makes his own private pension arrangements.

The pension contribution by Abbey National plc for the benefit of the Chief Executive, Mr PG Birch
was £63,841.

Salaries and performance bonuses are considered by the Personnel and Remuneration Committee.
Recommendations are then made to the full complement of non-executive directors of the Board.

The remuneration arrangements for executive directors are as follows:

a) Basic salary is considered in relation to similar sized jobs in comparable organisations. The
comparators include UK banks, building societies, insurance companies and retailers and other UK
companies with an equivalent market capitalisation to Abbey National.

b) The basic system of discretionary performance payments was revised during 1994, and now
comprises a bonus scheme based on annual performance which pays out in March 1995 and a three year
scheme which covers the period from 1994 to 1996 and may pay out in March 1997. The maximum
potential payment, to be shared among the executive directors and other members of the top manage-
ment team, for both the annual scheme and the three year scheme, is 30% of that group’s basic salary.

Such payments are not pensionable.

The actual level of any payment under the annual bonus scheme is determined by the Board’s
view of the Group’s performance set against the Chief Executive’s objectives. There would have been no
payout under the 1994 scheme unless pre-tax profits had reached a minimum of £766 million (compared
with pre-tax profits of £704 million in 1993). The Board pays particular attention to five quantifiable
objectives and then modifies that assessment in the light of its view of performance against qualitative
objectives, such as customer service and product quality. The key five objectives are: achievement ofa
specified level of Group pre-tax profits; achievement of specified cost/income ratios; achievement of
specified other income ratios; achievement of a specified risk asset ratio and a specified pre-tax return
on equity ratio. Payments to individual directors reflect both corporate and individual performance.

In determining whether or not to make a payment in 1997 under the three year bonus scheme
(1994-1996), and if so its size, the Board will be guided by a formula which will have two equally
weighted components: (i) an assessment of total shareholder returns over the period 1994 to 1996
measured by two sets of indices, the FTSE 100 and some specific sectors of that index, and (ii) progress
against Abbey National plc’s Three Year Plan 1994-1996 including a comparison with the performance
of competitors not covered by the FTSE.

In addition, the full complement of non-executive directors may in exceptional circumstances
make a one-off ex-gratia payment to an individual executive director who has rendered a particular and
outstanding contribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

8. Directors’ emoluments and interests (Continued)

c) An Executive Share Option scheme and an employee Sharesave scheme both of which have
been approved by the shareholders. These schemes include executive directors, and their interests are
set out below. Grants of Executive Share Option are made on the recommendation of the Personnel
and Remuneration Committee and reflect both corporate and individual performance.

d) Taxable benefits include car expenses, medical expenses plus subsidised mortgage loans.

The following table shows the number of directors, including the Chairman and the highest paid
director, receiving emoluments before pension contributions within the undermentioned ranges.

£ doo4 1993

0 — 5,000 .ot 1 —
15,001 — 20,000 oo vttt 4 5
20,001 — 25,000 ..o e 1 2
25001 — 30,000 ..ottt 2 —
35001 — 40,000 . oot — 1
50,001 — 55,000 ot iiiiee — 1
55001 — 60,000 .. ocie e 1 1
80,001 — 85,000 .. v vt — 1
90,001 — 95,000 .. v i v 1 1
150,001 — 155,000 v e vt — 1
165,001 — 170,000 .« oo vv v — 1
170,001 — 175,000 . ot ottt — 1
200,001 — 205,000 ..o e e — 1
210,001 — 215,000 ¢\t 2 —
220,001 — 225,000 . e — 1
225,001 — 230,000 .+t 1 —
230,001 — 235,000 ..t it 1 —
235,001 — 240,000 . .ot iieee — 1
240,001 — 245,000 .. oot e 2 —
275,001 — 280,000 . .ot e e 1 —
325001 — 330,000 . o oo — 1
405,001 — 410,000 ............ R IR 1 —

Non-executive directors of long service may receive an ex-gratia pension. No such ex-gratia pensions
have been granted this year. Accordingly no charge (nil) to the profit and loss account has been made in
respect of them. Pensions paid to former directors of Abbey National plc in 1994, which have been provided
for previously, amounted to £1 57,600 (£155,415). The Board has determined that it will no longer award such
pensions to non-executive directors who joined the Board after 31 December 1988.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

8. Directors’ emoluments and interests (Continued)

Details of loans, quasi loans and credit transactions entered into or agreed by Abbey National plc or its
banking subsidiaries with persons who are or were directors and connected persons and officers of Abbey
National plc during the year were as follows:

Aggregate
Number of amount
persons outstanding
£000
D eTerre ) o I T
LOAMS & v i o e ettt e e et e e e e e 11 1,205
QUASI JOAMS .+ v oottt e e e e — —
Credit tTanSACHONS &« « « v v v v et ot e et e et e — —
(03 Te s oI A I I
LOAMS .+ . v v et ettt ettt et e e e e e 48 4,427
QUAST JOANS vt oo ettt e — —_
Credit tTanSACHONS & « v v v v e e e n e et te e e e — —

The beneficial interests of directors and their immediate families in the ordinary shares of 10 pence
each in Abbey National plc are shown below:

Shares Options
At At At At Date from
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December Exercise which Expiry
1994 1994 1994 Granted 1994 price  exercisable date Notes
MBames ........... 1,000 1,000
PG Birch ........... 111,980 118,849
8,456 8,456 149 1.7.97 31.12.97 Sharesave
1,939 1,939 232 1.10.98 31.3.99 Sharesave
1,882 1,882 239  1.6.99 30.11.99  Sharesave
194,300 194,300 2,702  21.5.94 21.5.01 Executive
14,134 14,134 299 5595 5.5.02 Executive
69,478 69,478 2.54 5597 5.5.02 Executive (1)
25,215 25,215 3.69 29396 29.3.03 Executive
8,404 8,404 314 29398 29.3.03 Executive (2)

— 60,897 60,897 468 11497 10.4.04 Executive
323,808 60,897 384,705

JA Denholm ......... 1,500 2,000
IMFy oo 3324 3,324
7,248 7,248 1.49 1.7.95 31.12.95 Sharesave
1,616 1,616 232 1.10.96 31.3.97 Sharesave
1,569 1,569 239 1697 30.11.97 Sharesave
84,381 84,381 2702  21.5.94 21.5.01 Executive
108,561 108,561 299 5595 5.5.02 Executive
203,375 203,375
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Centinued)

8. Directors’ emoluments and interests (Continued)

Shares Options
At At At At Date from
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December Exercise which Expiry
1994 1994 1994 Granted 1994 price  exercisable  date Notes
[Harley . ........... 3,621 5,253
7,248 7,248 149 1.7.95 31.12.95 Sharesave
1,616 1,616 232 1.10.96 31.3.97 Sharesave
1,569 1,569 239 - 1.6.97 30.11.97 Sharesave
41,635 41,635 2,702 21594 21.5.01 Executive
12,092 12,092 299 5.5.95 5.5.02 Executive
17,908 17,908 2.54 5.5.97 5.5.02 Executive (1)
20,476 20,476 3.69 29.3.96 23.3.03 Executive
6,825 6,825 314 29.3.98 29.3.03 Executive (2)
— 23,237 23,237 468 11497 10.4.04 Executive
— 1,745 7,745 398 11.4.99 10.4.04 Executive (3)
109,369 30,982 140,351
Sir Terry Heiser . . ... .. 1,500 1,500
DGlJlones . ...... ... 1,000 2,632
7,248 7,248 149 1.7.95 31.12.95 Sharesave
1,616 1,616 232 1.10.96 31.3.97 Sharesave
1,569 1,569 239 1697 30.11.97 Sharesave
58,290 58290 2.702 21.5.94 21.5.01 Executive
11,678 11,678 299 5595 5.5.02 Executive
23,322 23,322 2.54 5597 5.5.02 Executive (1)
25,575 25,575 3.69 29.3.96 29.3.03 Executive
8,525 8,525 3.14 29.3.98 29.3.03 Executive (2)
24,038 24,038 4.68 11.4.97 10.4.04 Executive
8,012 8,012 398 11.4.99 10.4.04 Executive (3)
137,823 32,050 169,873
RF Knighton . . ....... 1,100 1,100
8,456 8,456 1.49 1797 31.12.97 Sharesave
74,019 74,019 2702 21.5.94 21.5.01 Executive
7,746 7,746 2.99 5595 5.5.02 Executive
27,254 27,254 254 5597 5.5.02 Executive (1)
22,404 22,404 3.69 29.3.96 29.3.03 Executive
7,468 7,468 3.14 29.3.98 29.3.03 Executive (2)
22,435 22,435 468 11.4.97 10.4.04 Executive
7,478 7,478 398 11.4.99 10.4.04 Executive (3)
147,347 29,913 177,260
ME Llowarch. ........ 1,750 1,750
S Morrison . ... ... 5,000 5,000
PJOgden ........... — 4,000
The Lord Rockley . . . . .. 5,000 5,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

8. Directors’ emoluments and interests (Continued)

Shares Options
At At At At Date from
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December Exercise which Expiry
1994 1994 1994 Granted 1994 price  exercisable date Notes
CGToner .........-. 1,783 1,832
7,248 7,248 1.49 1.7.95 31.12.95  Sharesave
1,616 1,616 232 1.10.96 31.3.97 Sharesave
1,569 1,569 239 1.6.97 30.11.97  Sharesave
74,019 74,019 2702 21.594 215.01 Executive
7,746 7,746 299 5595 5.5.02 Executive
27,254 27,254 254 5597 5.5.02 Executive (1)
24,449 24,449 3.69  29.3.96 29.3.03 Executive
8,149 8,149 3.14  29.3.98 29.3.03 Executive (2)

24,038 24,038 4.68 11.4.97 10.4.04  Executive
8,012 8,012 398 11.4.99 10.4.04 Executive (3)

152,050 32,050 184,100

JL Tuckey .. ... ... ... 2,000 12,000
The Lord Tugendhat .. .. 10,000 10,000
7,845 7,845 239  1.6.97 30.11.97  Sharesave
7,845 7,845
CN Villiers . . ........ 17,777 19,409
7,248 7,248 149 1.7.95 31.12.95  Sharesave
1,616 1,616 232 1.10.96 31.3.97 Sharesave
1,569 1,569 239  1.6.97 30.11.97  Sharesave
98,445 98,445 2702  21.5.94 21.5.01 Executive
12,889 12,889 299 5595 5.5.02 Executive
37,111 37,111 2.54 5.5.97 5.5.02 Executive (1)
31,145 31,145 3.69 29.3.96 29.3.03 Executive
10,381 10,381 314 29.3.98 29.3.03 Executive (2)
9,612 9,612 468 11.4.97 10.4.04 Executive
3,204 3,204 398 11.499 10.4.04 Executive (3)
200,404 12,816 213,220
Notes:

1. Parallel standard options were granted over these shares exercisable at £2.99 from 5.5.95 to 5.5.02.

5. Parallel standard options were granted over these shares exercisable at £3.69 from 29.3.96 to 29.3.03.

3. Parallel standard options were granted over these shares exercisable at £4.68 from 11.4.97 to 10.4.04.

The option holder may exercise either option, thereby reducing both options, subject to the achievement of the performance criteria.

The options refer to those granted under Abbey National plc’s executive and Sharesave schemes, as set
out in note 37. Options shown under the heading “Granted” refer to options granted during the year or since
appointment if later.

Options were granted during the year ended 31 December 1994 under the Executive Share Option
scheme which was approved by shareholders in April 1991 (and amended in April 1992). Options were
granted to directors over a total of 198,708 (139,694) ordinary shares. These included options over 164,257
shares granted at £4.68 and normally exercisable between 1997 and 2004. These options become exercisable
if the average growth of earnings per share exceeds the average increase in the Retail Prices Index in any
three years prior to exercise.

Options over 34,451 shares were granted at £3.98 and are normally exercisable between 1999 and 2004.
These options become exercisable if the average growth of earnings per share exceeds the average increase
in the Retail Prices Index by at least 10% in any five year period prior to the date of exercise. In addition,
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parallel options were granted over the same shares exercisable at £4.68 on the same basis as detailed in the
preceding paragraph. The option holder may exercise either option, thereby reducing both options, subject
to the achievement of the performance criteria.

No options were exercised or lapsed during the year.

The market price of the shares at 31 December 1994 was 430.5p (511.5p) and the range during 1994 was
380.5p to 521.5p.

No director had a material interest in any contract, other than a service contract, with Abbey National
plc or any of its subsidiaries at any time during the year. The directors did not have any interest in shares or
debentures of subsidiaries.

There have been no changes to the beneficial and other interests of the directors in the ordinary shares
of Abbey National plc up to 31 January 1995 other than the automatic reinvestment on 6 January 1995 of
dividends arising from the Abbey National Personal Equity Plan as follows:

PG Birch - 101 shares

CG Toner - 20 shares

9. Employees
The average number of staff employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

1994 1993 1992
Full time
Chief administrative offices . . .. ..o cviv e 6,245 5,908 4,552
Branch OffiCES . « v oo v oo me e 7,096 7,676 9,902
Life Assurance OPerations. . .« v« vvvvverere s eron e sresces 1,285 1,200 1,004
14,626 14,784 15,458
MALE .« ottt 4,678 4,657 4,981
FEmMAle « o v v o e e e e e et 9,948 10,127 10,477
14,626 14,784 15,458
Part time
Chief administrative Offices . . . ...« 946 878 511
Branch OFfiCeS . « « v v v e e oo e 3,158 3,368 4,000
Life Assurance OPErations . . . . ... .oovrveeevvrennm oo 50 16 17
4,154 4262 4,528
MALE o o e e e e e e 52 46 93
FEMALE .« « v v e e e e e e e e 4,102 4,216 4,435

4,154 4262 4,528

1993 numbers have been restated to reflect the reclassification of the staff employed in mortgage and
banking centres from branch offices to chief administrative offices.
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10. Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

On advances On
secured on other On
residential secured unsecured
properties advances  advances Total
£m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 January 1994
GEnETal. o o e et e e 85 12 3 100
SPECIfIC .« v v 183 135 28 346
Exchange adjustments . ........... ..ot 1 6 — 7
Transfer from profit and loss account . ................ 39 20 15 74
Irrecoverable amounts written off . . .. ... .. oo (112) (43) (11)  (166)
At 31 December 1994 . ... . .. e _1_% 130 35 361
Being for the Group:
GeneTal. . v oo et e e e 59 6 6 71
SPECIfIC « + v v v 137 124 29 290

11. Loss on disposal/reorganisation of residential estate agency business
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Loss on disposal of residential estate agency business . ................... — 26 —
Goodwill recognised on disposal of business/branches . ................... — 4 13
ReOrganisation COSES . . .o v v v v vt e — — 12
Permanent diminution in value of goodwill . ....... ... ... — — 113
— 30 138

Following the reorganisation and restructuring of the estate agency business in 1992, the Group sold its
interests in the residential estate agency business on 31 August 1993. This business is shown as a discontin-
ued operation in the profit and loss account. The value of goodwill on acquisition remaining for this business
was recognised in the profit and loss account, having previously been taken to reserves in accordance with
standard accounting practice. A permanent diminution in value of goodwill on acquisition was recognised in
the profit and loss account for 1992 following a reassessment by the directors of the value taken to reserves.

12. Sale of unclaimed shares
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Net proceeds of share sales less provision for future claims. . ....... .. ... .. — — 106
Endowment of charitable trust ... ... ...t — — (5)
— — 101

During 1992, Abbey National plc sold 31m shares which had remained unclaimed for more than three
years after conversion, as permitted by Abbey National plc’s Articles of Association. The remaining eligible
borrowers and savers are entitled to the proceeds of the sale of their shares if they validate their entitlement
before December 1998.
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13. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
1994 1993 1992

£m fm - £m
U.K. Corporation tax:

CUITENE AL 330 « o v v e e e e n e e 285 224 181
DT e Ly I 34 75 63
Prior year under/(over) provision including deferred tax. . . ......ocovi e 3 14 2
Double tax TElEl . . . oo e et (5) 16) (8
OVErSeas tAXAON . o ..« v e vwe v e e a s s 17 9
322 314 247

No reduction in the tax charge for 1993 was made as a result of the exceptional item described in note
11. The charge for 1992 included £10m as a result of the items described in notes 11 and 12.

There are unrelieved overseas losses carried forward for which no tax relief has been recognised
because their utilisation is currently uncertain.

14. Profit on ordinary activities after tax

The profit after tax of Abbey National plc attributable to the shareholders is £484m (1993: £230m, 1992:
£210m). As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, Abbey National plc’s profit and loss
account has not been included in these accounts.

15. Dividends
Dividends include the interim dividend paid of 5.7 (1993: 4.15, 1992: 3.8) pence per share and the final
dividend now proposed of 12.05 (1993: 9.85, 1992: 7.70) pence per share.

16. Earnings per share

Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the consolidated profit after tax of £610m (1993:
£390m, 1992: £317m) by the average number of ordinary shares in issue of 1,312m (1993 1,311m, 1992:
1,311m).

17. Treasury bills and other eligible bills
1994 1993

Book Market Book Market
Value Value Value Value

£m £m £m £m
Investment securities
Treasury bills and similar securities . . . .....oovveee e 6 6 A7 47
Other securities
Treasury bills and similar securities . . . .....vvrevvr e 397 474
Other eligible bills . ... oo v v v 29 68
426 542
43 589
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17. Treasury bills and other eligible bills (Continued)
The movement on treasury bills and similar securities held for investment purposes was as follows:

1994
. £m
At 17January 1994 . ..o 47
Exchange adjUSIMENLS . . . v v v vvve e e s s e 3)
AQAIHONS & & v v et e e et e e e 443
DISPOSALS .+« + + vt e e e e e e e (481)
Amortisation of discounts/(premiums) ... ........ e e e —
At 31 December 1994 . .. oo\ttt e 6
Unamortised discounts/(premiums) at 31 December 1994 amounted to nil (1993: nil)
18. Loans and advances to banks
1994 1993
£m £m
Items in the course of collection .. ... . ... 178 143
Other 10ans and adVANCES . .« v oo v v vt ait e 2,728 3,413
2,906 3,556
Repayable:
On demMand . . v v v ottt e 324 1,154
In not more than three months . . ... ... .. i 2,288 2,070
In more than three months but not more than one year .................. 119 36
In more than one year but not more than five years ..................... — 128
In more than fiVe YEATS . ..o tvvive it 175 168

2,906 3,556

19. Loans and advances to customers

1994 1993

£m £m
Advances secured on residential properties . ......... oo 47,129 43,653
Other secured adVAINCES . .o v vttt iaene e e 381 477
UnDSECUIEd LOAMS - -« v v v e et et et e e e e e 477 484
Collateralised and guaranteed mortgage loans . .............oonvnnneonenn 497 435
48,484 45,049

Repayable:

On demand or at ShOTt MOLICE .+ .« v oot v e e 3,236 4,010
In not more than three months . ... ... ... . eeonn 179 199
In more than three months but not more than one year .................. 458 384
In more than one year but not more than five years ..................... 2,187 1,952
In more than five years 42,785 38,950
LeSS: PIOVISIONS « « oo v v vee e e e et . (361) (446)

48,484 45,049

20. Net investment in finance leases

1994 1993
£m £m
AMOUNES TECEIVADIE « « « o vt v et e e et i et e 5,318 4,749
Less: deferred iMCOME « . o v vt vt v et e e et e e e e (3,040) (2,496)

Repayable:
In not more than three MONAS . . .. v vttt e e 3 1
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20. Net investment in finance leases (Continued)

In more than three months but not more thanoneyear................... 48 14
In more than one year but not more than five years ..................0.. 535 722
In more than five YEATS . . ... vvtr vt 1,692 1,516
2,278 2,253

Cost of assets acquired for the purpose of letting under finance leases in the year . 357 729
Gross rentals TeCeIvable . . v v v v o 301 348
Commitments as lessor for the purchase of equipment for use in finance leases . .. 208 304
Amounts outstanding subject to a sub-participation . ... ... 200 57
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21. Debt securities

Investment securities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Issued by public bodies:
Government SECUTItIES . « + « v v v v v e e v e e i em e
Other public sector securities ... ...

Issued by other issuers:
Bank and building society certificates of deposit .. ...........
Other debt SECUTItIES . . o v v v v et e e e e

Sub-total ... ...

Other securities

Issued by public bodies:
Government SECUIItIES . . . o v v v v vv v e ie e
Other public sector securities . ......... ...
Issued by other issuers:
Bank and building society certificates of deposit .. ...........
Other debt SECUTTIES . « . o o oot e e

Analysed by listing status:

Investment securities

Listed in the UK... ... e
Listed or registered elsewhere .. ... ...

Unlisted . . . ..

Other securities

Listedinthe UK ...
Listed or registered elsewhere . ...

Unlisted . . . ..

Analysed by maturity:
Due Within ONeE Year . ... oo v vt
Due one year and OVET . ... .......cuoe.- [

F-24

1994 1993
Book Market Book Market
Value Value Value Value
£m £m £m £m
5,846 6,058 4,539 4,775
4,294 4,207 2,526 2,679
10,140 10,265 7,065 7,454
180 181 127 127
19,206 19,104 15,634 16,024
19,386 19,285 15,761 16,151
29.526 29,550 22,826 23,605
593 656
467 —

1,740 1,307

6 P
2,806 1,963
32,332 24,789
8,623 8,737 6,810 6,992
18,045 17,995 12,718 13,281
2,858 2,818 3,298 3,332
29526 29,550 22,826 23,605
839 222
726 434
1,241 1,307
2,806 1,963
32,332 24,789
4,171 2,970
28,161 21,819
32,332 24,789




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Ceontinued)

21. Debt securities (Continued)
The movement on debt securities held for investment purposes was as follows:

Net Book

Cost Provisions Value

£m £m £m

Group

At 1January 1994 ... oL 22,844 (18) 22,826
Exchange adjustments . . .. ... vovviunnn e (416) 1 (415)
Acquisitions..............................' ........... 35,603 _ 35,603
DISPOSALS .+« « vt e e (25,999) — (25,999)
Redemptions and maturities .. ...... e (2,301) — (2,301)
Transfers to Other SeCUrities. . . .. . v vt i (158) 12 (146)
Provisions released . ... ... . — 2 2
Amortisation of discounts/(premiums) .. ......: ... ... (44) — (44)
At 31 December 1994 . . .. 29,529 3) 29,526
Unamortised discounts/(premiums) at 31 December 1994 . .......... (40)

The Group enters into sale and repurchase agreements. The total value of assets so transferred and
which are included above is £111m (1993: £1,010m). Collateral associated with these transactions of £284m
(1993: £324m) for the Group is included in Deposits by banks.

Market values are based on market prices of securities where available. Where market prices arc not
available, the directors’ valuation has been used. '

There are hedges in place in respect of the majority of securities where the rise or fall in their market
value will be offset by a substantially equivalent reduction or increase in the value of the hedges.

22. Equity shares and other variable yield securities

1994 1993

Book Market Book  Market
Value Value Value Value

£m £fm £m £m

Investment securities
Listed in the UK. . . o e e e e i e 24 25 1 2
UnlSted . . e e e e e e 18 17 522 525

2 @ o2

The movement on equity shares and other variable yield securities held for investment purposes was as
follows:

Cost and
Book Value
£m

At 1January 1994 .. .o 523
Exchange adjustments. . .. .. ...ttt &)
ACQUISTHIONS « + + o v v ettt e e e e e e 58
DISPOSALS .+« + v e e et e (31)
Redemptions and Maturities . . ... .. .ouev oot (503)
At 31 December 1004 . . e e 42

Redemptions and maturities include 100% of the preference shares of ACP Treasury Ltd, a company
incorporated in Jersey, which were redeemed in return for debt securities held by that company and valued
at market value for the purpose of the transaction.
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23. Long term assurance business
The value of the long term assurance business is as follows:

1994 1993
tm Em

Embedded value of policies in force and surplus retained within the long term assurance
FUIIAS .« & o vt et et e et e e e 352 287

The value of the long term assurance business is calculated by discounting the profits which are
projected to accrue to shareholders in future years from business currently in force, and adding the
shareholders’ interest in the surplus retained within the long term assurance funds. The basis on which this.
value, known as the embedded value, is determined is reviewed regularly and in the light of changed
expectations regarding future economic conditions it was decided to adjust the basis in 1994. Key elements of
both the new and old basis are:

New Old
Discount rate (et Of taX) ... .o v vt 10.0% 12.5%
Return on equities (gross of tax) . ... .. ooii i 9.0% 11.5%
Return on gifts (gross of tax). ... ..o oet i 75%  9.5%
INELAEION « « o o o v e e e e e et et e e e 40%  3.0%

The effect of the change in embedded value basis was determined by calculating the value of the long
term assurance business at the beginning of the year on both the old and new basis. This resulted in an
increase in the value of long term assurance business of £6m before tax and £4m after tax, which has been
included in income from long term assurance business for the year ended 31 December 1994.

The income from life assurance business which is included as other operating income in the consoli-
dated profit and loss account is calculated as follows:

o4 1%

£m £m

Value of sharcholders interest in the long term fund at 31 December .............. 352 287
Value of shareholders interest in the long term fund at 1 January . ................ 287 215
TNCIEASE IN VALUIE .« . v v vttt e et 65 72
Initial transfer into Abbey National Life plc .. ... ... ..o — (40)
Net increase in value of long term assurance business . ........................ 65 32
Surplus (deficit) transferred from (to) long term funds . ..o e 4 9
Income after tax from long term assurance business . ................ooovnnns 61 41
Income before tax from long term assurance business. . ...t 9N 61

The assets and liabilities of the long term assurance business are:
1994 1993
£m £m

FiXed ASSELS - « v v v e e v ettt e e e e 40 6
TOIVESITIEIILS - « « + v & e v et e e et e e e e e e e 3,914 3,796
CUITENE ASSCLS & « + « v v e v v e e e e et m et e e e e 244 282
Current Habilities . . . o oo v e et e e (106) (213)
4,092 3,871

Long term assurance funds including investment r€Serve ... .......... ..o 4,092 3,871
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24. Shares in Group undertakings

Book value  Book value

1994 1993
£m £m
Subsidiary undertakings
BANKS &« & oo e e e e e 451 314
10 1011 ¢ T I A 1,271 384
TOtAl .« o et e e e e 1,722 698
The movement in shares in Group undertakings was as follows:
1994
_fm
At 1January 1994 . . .o 698
Exchange adjustments . . ... ...venvrnnnrn e 14
AAIONS + o vt v e e 1,010
DISPOSALS « « v vt et e —
Amounts Written off . . . o o o e —
At 31 December 1994 . . .o i 1,722

On 4 February 1994, Abbey National plc acquired the UK residential mortgage business of the
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce. The business has been renamed Abbey National Mortgage Finance
plc, and has been included in the consolidated accounts as an acquisition. The consideration for the purchase
of the issued share capital was £4m payable in cash.

On 31 October 1994, Abbey National plc acquired HMC Group PLC, which is included in the
consolidated accounts as an acquisition. The consideration for the purchase of the issued share capital was
£60m payable in cash with the alternative of unsecured interest bearing loan notes. £58m was paid in cash,
and £2m was paid in the form of loan notes, the fair value of which was not significantly different to the
equivalent cash value at the date of acquisition.

During the year to 31 December 1994 Abbey National Financial Services Ltd changed its name to
Abbey National Independent Financial Advisers Ltd. This company made the following acquisitions:
GM Benefit Consulting Group Ltd on 18 July 1994, WF Company Ltd on 21 December 1994, and Whiting
Pension Services Ltd on 22 December 1994. The amounts payable in consideration for the purchase of the
issued share capital of the companies were £6m, £1.5m and £0.1m respectively. All these amounts were paid
in cash with the exception of £0.4m relating to GM Benefit Consulting Group Ltd, which is deferred.
GM Benefit Consulting Group Ltd has been renamed Abbey National Benefit Consulting Group Ltd.

Further disclosures relating to these acquisitions are given in note 25.

Abbey National plc subscribed for an additional FF637m (£76m) share capital directly in Abbey
National France SA, and subscribed for £686m share capital in a newly formed subsidiary, Abbey National
France (Holdings) Ltd, which in turn subscribed for FF5,790m (£685m) in Abbey National France SA. These
capital injections were made in order to meet local regulatory requirements, and to enable Abbey National
France SA to refinance its operations.

Abbey National plc subscribed for additional share capital of PTS27,000m (£132m) in Abbey National
Bank SAE during 1994 in order to meet local regulatory requirements, and to provide capital to support
expansion of the business.

Abbey National plc subscribed for additional share capital directly in Abbey National (Overseas) Ltd of
£40m and in the holding company of that company, Abbey National (Holdings) Ltd, of £1m in order to
provide additional regulatory capital to support the planned expansion of the business. Abbey National plc
disposed of all its shareholdings in Abbey National (Overseas) Ltd and Abbey National (Holdings) Ltd to
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24. Shares in Group undertakings (Continued)

Abbey National Treasury Services plc or subsidiaries of that company in January 1995, following which
Abbey National (Overseas) Ltd was renamed Abbey National Treasury International Ltd. Its activities now
include treasury operations in addition to the provision of personal financial services.

Abbey National plc made a capital injection of £7m in a newly formed subsidiary, Abbey National Unit
Trust Managers Ltd, in preparation for the launch of unit trust operations in 1995.

During 1994, the business of Abbey National Personal Finance Ltd was transferred to Abbey National
plc.

The principal subsidiaries of Abbey National plc at 31 December 1994 are listed below, all of which are
directly held except for Abbey National Treasury International Ltd., Abbey National (Gibraltar) Ltd., Abbey
National France SA, the Abbey National leasing companies and Scottish Mutual Assurance plc which are
held indirectly through subsidiary companies.

Country of
incorporation or
Nature of business registration
Abbey National Treasury Services plc Treasury operations England & Wales
Abbey National Homes Ltd Housing development England & Wales
Abbey National Investments Holdings Ltd Investment England & Wales

Abbey National leasing companies (24 companies)
Abbey National Mortgage Finance plc

Abbey National Property Services Ltd

HMC Group PLC

Abbey National Independent Financial Advisers Ltd
Abbey National France SA

Leasing
Personal finance
Estate agency
Personal finance
Personal finance
Personal finance

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
France

Abbey National (Gibraltar) Ltd Personal finance Gibraltar
Carfax Insurance Ltd Insurance Guernsey
Abbey National Treasury International Ltd Personal finance and Jersey
treasury operations

Abbey National Life plc Insurance Scotland
Scottish Mutual Assurance plc Insurance Scotland
Abbey National Bank SAE Personal finance Spain

Abbey National North America Corporation Funding United -States

Abbey National plc holds directly or indirectly 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of its principal
subsidiaries. All companies operate in their country of incorporation or registration. Abbey National
Treasury Services plc also has branch offices in France and Jersey and Abbey National plc has a branch in
Italy. Abbey National (Gibraltar) Ltd also operates in Portugal. All the above companies are included in the
consolidated accounts.
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25. Summary of the effect of acquisitions
The following table summarises the effect of all the acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings in the year
ended 31 December 1994.

Book value  Accounting Total fair
before policy Revaluation value Fair value at
acquisition adjustments  adjustments adjustments acquisition
£m £m £m £m £m
Loans and advances to banks . ........ 77 — — — 77
Loans and advances to customers . ... .. 2,507 3 (12) 9 2,498
Other assets . .« vovvvcernnsssnns 58 (11) 4 (D 51
Total ASSELS « o oo vei e 2,642 (8 (8 (16) 2,626
Deposits by banks . ... 911 — — — 911
Debt securities in issue . ... 1,614 —_ 2 2 1,616
Other liabilities . . .« v v oo v v v e 95 - (3 3) 92
Total Liabilities excluding shareholders’

JURAS . oo 2,620 - __(l) __1) 2,619
Net assets acquired . . . ...« ..o o 22 _(® (N (15) 7
Total fair value of consideration and costs

Of QCQUISILION « « . o oo v v e 3
Total goodwill . ...« oova 66

The profit after tax of the UK residential mortgage business of the Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce for the period 1 November 1993 to 3 February 1994 was £4m, and for the year ended 31 October
1993 £27m. The profit after tax of HMC Group PLC for the period 1 April 1994 to 30 October 1994 was £5m,
and the loss after tax for the year ended 31 March 1994 was £1m.

The profit after tax for GM Benefit Consulting Group Ltd for the period 1 January 1994 to 18 July 1994
was nil, and for the year ended 31 December 1993, £0.3m. The profit after tax for WF Company Ltd for the
period 1 April 1994 to 21 December 1994 was £0.1m, and for the year ended 31 March 1994, £0.2m. The
post-tax results of Whiting Pension Services Ltd for the equivalent pre-acquisition periods were very small.

26. Tangible fixed assets

Premises Equipment Total

£m £m £m

Cost

At1January 1994 . ..o oooe i 298 539 837
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking .. ... ..o 1 8 9
AQGIONS .+ o e e e vim e 25 89 114
DISPOSALS .« + « v ew oo _(5) (22) (27)

At 31 December 1994 . ..o vie 319 614 933

Depreciation

At 1January 1994 .. ..o vt 39 289 328
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking . ... ... 1 6 7
Charge fOr the YEar ... ... .owoveneenr e st 7 77 84
DISPOSALS .+« « o v o e e e e H) (18) (20)

At 31 December 1994 ... iv it 45 354 399

Net book value

At 31 December 1994 . ..ot 274 260 534

At 31 December 1993 .. oo it i 259 250 509
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26. Tangible fixed assets (Continued)

The net book value of premises comprises:

Frecholds .« v v ot e e e e e e
Long leaseholds . ... ..o.ovntei i
ShOrt 1€aseholdS . . . v v i e e e e

Land and buildings occupied for own activities:

Net book value at 31 December .. ... ... i

The net book value of equipment includes:

Assets held under finance 1eases . ... ... i i i i
Depreciation charge for the year on the assets . ...

Capital expenditure which has been contracted, but has not been provided in the

ACCOUTIES. + + o o e e e e b et e e e e e e e e e

Capital expenditure which has been authorised by the directors but has not yet been

CONEIACEEA .+« o v v e e e e ettt e e e e e

27. Other assets

Residential development Properties. . ... ... o.vvvuo
Foreign exchange and interest rate contracts ................cohvenen .
OLRET & o o o e e

.. 15

1994

£m

3
620
458

LO81

1993
£fm

200
49
220

19
15

35

15

1993

fm

29
747
352

1,128

The figure for residential development properties includes completed properties of £2m (1993: £12m)

and work in progress of £1m (1993: £17m).

The amounts in respect of foreign exchange and interest rate contracts relate to translation differences
arising from instruments which are used to hedge currency assets and liabilities, and to the revaluation of

certain interest rate contracts where appropriate.

28. Prepayments and accrued income

Other accrued INTETESE . . v vt e e e e e
Prepayments and other accruals .. ....... ...

29. Deposits by banks

Items in the course Of tranSIMUSSION . .« v v i i e e e e e e s
Other depOoSILS « . v vttt e

Repayable:
On demand . ..o vttt e e e
In not more than three months . .. .. .. ...
In more than three months but not more than oneyear ..................
In more than one year but not more than five years . ....................
In more than five YEars . .. ..o vt n i

1994 1993

£m £m
1,556 1,067
64 13
1,620 1,080

1994 1993

£m £fm
243 246
17,583 16,122
17,826 16,368
29 1,316
14,583 12,335
2,753 2,548
252 145
209 24
17,826 16,368
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30. Customer accounts

1994 1993
£m £m
Retail funds and deposits . .. ... .ottt 35,927 34,210
Other CUSTOMET ACCOUNLS .« o v v o v v v v e s et e et e e e e e e 2,129 1,933
38,056 36,143
Repayable
On demand . . v ot 32,741 33,979
In not more than three MoOnNths . ... .. .ot 1,716 1,888
In more than three months but not more than one year .................. 3,480 276
In more than one year but not more than five years ..................on 119 —
38,056 36,143
31. Debt securities in issue
1994 1993
£m £m
Bonds and medium term NOES . . o v v v vt i e i e e e 14,353 11,648
Other debt SECUTILIES iN ISSUE .+ v v v v e v v v et it e ie s oo ie e 9,060 7,382
23,413 19,030
Bonds and medium term notes repayable:
In not more than three months . .. .. ... .. 917 1,489
In more than three months but not more than one year .................. 2,182 2,587
In more than one year but not more than two years . ... 3,223 1,520
In more than two years but not more than five years. .. .............. ... 4,706 3,642
In more than five YEAIs . . ... v it 3,325 2,410
14,353 11,648
Other debt securities in issue repayable:
In not more than three months . ... ... . 6,825 4,547
In more than three months but not more than one year .................. 1,443 2,728
In more than one year but not more than two years .. ..................- 418 26
In more than two years but not more than five years. . .................. 351 58
In more than five YEArs . . ... ..o vttt 23 23
9,060 7,382
32. Other liabilities
1994 1993
£m £m
Creditors and accrued €XPEeNSES . . . v v v v it v i e 1,301 721
Short positions in government debt securities . . ... 278 211
INCOMIE TAX . « v o v e e e et e e e e e e e e e e 159 171
COTPOTALION LAX .« v v v e v s e e e e e et 339 271
Foreign exchange and interest rate contracts . .................o.oooeo.n.. 442 336
Obligations under finance leases (see note 33) .. ... 9 22
2,528 1,732

The amounts in respect of foreign exchange and interest rate contracts relate to translation differences
arising from instruments which are used to hedge currency assets and liabilities, and to the revaluation of

certain interest rate contracts where appropriate.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

33. Obligations under finance leases

194 199
f _ £m £m
Amounts payable:
In not more than ONe Year ... ... . ... ... .uiiuieenrnneeeneerinnannnns 5 13
In more than one year but not more than fiveyears ... ............... ... .... 4 9
9 2
34. Accruals and deferred income
1994 1993
£m £m
Accrued IMEETESt . . v ottt e e e e 2,540 1,930
Deferred InCOME . .. .. ...t e e 83 49

2,623 1,979

Insurance arrangements have been entered into with a subsidiary company, Carfax Insurance Ltd, to
cover a proportion of future losses on certain U.K. residential secured loans with high loan to value ratios. In
the Group accounts, income from customers in relation to such lending is deferred and is included in the
balance sheet under the heading, Deferred income. The deferred income is released to the profit and loss
account as losses are identified and provided for. The balance of deferred income is £83 million (1993:
£49m). The amount released during the year was £6m (1993: nil).

35. Provisions for liabilities and charges

1994
tm

{ Deferred taxation
i At 1 January 1994 ............ S 296
Transfer from profit and loss account .. ........ . ... . .. o o o 103
At 31 December 1994 . .. .. . 399

The amounts provided and total potential liability are:
Total potential

Amount provided liability
£m £m
Tax effect of timing differences due to:
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation................ 18 18
Capital allowances on finance lease receivables .. ............. 348 348
Other . .. 33 33
399 399
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36. Subordinated liabilities

1994 1993

Ttm  Em

Subordinated floating rate note 1995 . ..o vveve T 120 120
Subordinated floating rate note 1997 .. ... ov v T 25 42
9.00% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2002 (LUX 1,000m) . .. ooovvveeeeeeeene 20 19
Subordinated guaranteed note 2002 (US $75M) .o vvveeeme s 48 51
8.00% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2002 (DFL 200m) . ..........: e 74 70
10.375% Subordinated guaranteed bond D002 oo 101 101
Subordinated floating rate note 2003 (US SLI00M) + v v vvvemeemn s 64 68
Subordinated floating rate note 2004 (US SIBTM) o cevvmemeeemm e 88 92
Subordinated floating rate note 2004 (CAN $100m) . . .. oo 45 —
8.75% Subordinated guaranteed bond D00 © o 151 —
8.2% Subordinated bond 2004 (US SS00M) + o v ovvvver e e 319 —
Subordinated guaranteed floating rate note 2009 (CHF 130m) . ... .ovevvnees 64 —
5 569% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2015 (YEN 15 billion) .. oo 96 —
11.50% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2017 v et 153 153
10.125% Subordinated guaranteed bond 2023 e 152 152
1,520 868

The subordinated floating rate notes pay a rate of interest related to the LIBOR of the currency

of denomination.
*This subordinated floating rate note matures as follows: 1995 £8m, 1996 £8m, 1997 £9m. All other
subordinated liabilities mature on the dates shown in the above table.

37. Called up share capital and share premium account

1994 1993
tm Em

Authorised share capital
Ordinary share capital. . . ..« oovvwven e 175 175
Preference share Capital ... ... ..evooeooen e 506 —

Issued and fully paid share capital
Ordinary share capital. . « .« .oovveeee e 131 131
Preference share Capital . .. ... .eeooneeenme e — —

Share PremiUmM ACCOUNT .« .« v vs v e v e e s rse s st st s T T 840 836

The authorised share capital of Abbey National was increased at the Annual General Meeting on
28 April 1994, from £175 million (comprising 1,750 million ordinary shares of 10 pence each) to £675 million
and US $10 million by the creation of 500 million preference shares of £1 each and 1 billion preference
shares of US $0.01 each.

Under Abbey National plc’s Executive and Sharesave schemes, employees hold options to subscribe for
26,094,580 (23,654,025) ordinary shares at prices ranging from 149.0 to 468.0 pence per share, exercisable up
to 2004. During the year 592,300 shares were issued on the exercise of options for a consideration of
£1,200,128.

In respect of 1993, under the terms of the Share Participation scheme, employees were able to elect to
contribute, gross of tax, any performance related bonus to a trust fund. The trustees of the scheme used such
funds to subscribe for ordinary shares in Abbey National plc on behalf of the employees. During 1994
493,213 shares were issued under the terms of the scheme for a consideration of £2,416,744.

The issue of the above shares resulted in the increase in the share premium account of £4m.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

37. Called up share capital and share premium account (Continued)
As of 13 January 1995 there were 2,511,417 shareholders. The following table shows an analysis of their

holdings:

Size of shareholding Shareholders Shares

1 2100+t et e 1,684,768 167,474,091
101 - 1,000 o 0o e vee e 793,136 370,516,203
LLOOL 4+ e ve e et 33,513 774,164,327

2,511,417 1,312,154,621

The directors have approved the establishment of a ‘Level 1’ American Depositary Receipt (ADR)
facility for the ordinary shares of Abbey National plc. This allows the ordinary shares to be sold in the United
States in the form of depositary receipts. Level 1 ADRSs are not listed on any stock exchange in the United
States. Under the facility, ordinary shares may be deposited with a custodian for the depositary and receipts
evidencing the ownership of those shares issued to American investors. Dividends relating to the ordinary
shares are converted to US dollars and distributed to the owners of the receipts by the depositary. Owners of
receipts will be entitled to instruct the depositary as to the exercise of voting rights relating to the underlying
shares.

38. Reserves and profit and loss account

Profit and Non-distributable
loss account reserve

£m £m

At 1January 1994 ..o 2,380 39
Retained profit for the year .. ........ooovio v 312 —
Goodwill recognised in the profit and loss account in the year ..... 10 —
Goodwill taken to profit and loss account reserve during the year . .. (66) —
Exchange adjustments . . .. ... vven e @) —
Transfer to non-distributable reserve ... ... — 65
At 31 December 1994 ... 2,629 104

The cumulative amount of goodwill taken to reserves by the Group to 31 December 1994 and not yet
recognised in the profit and loss account is £156m (1993: £100m).

The non-distributable reserve represents the Group’s shareholders’ interest retained in the long term
assurance funds of Life Assurance Operations.

39. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

1994 1993 1992

£m £m £fm
Profit on ordinary activities after tax .. ... 610 390 317
DIVIAENAS + « + « e vt e e e e e (233) (184) (151)
377 206 166
Other recognised net gains and losses relating to theyear ................ (7 (8) 4
New share capital subscribed including share PrEMIiUM . . oo v e e e o e s 4 — 2
Goodwill recognised in the profit and loss account intheyear ............. 10 4 126
Goodwill taken to profit and loss account reserve during the year........... (66) — (85)
Net addition to shareholders’ funds . . ... .o 318 202 213
Shareholders’ funds at 1 JANUATY .. .. ovvnveenvi e 338 3,184 2,971
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December .. ... .ovvervnoivie 3704 3,386 3,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

39. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds (Continued)
Shareholders’ funds comprise called-up share capital, share premium account, profit and loss account
and reserves.

40. Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security

1994 1993

Tm  Em

Guarantees given to third PATtIES . o v e s e 76 61
Mortgaged assets granted to secure future obligations to third parties who have

provided security to the leasing subsidiaries . . . ...« oeve T 760 641

| 86 702

Under Section 22 of the Building Societies Act 1986, Abbey National Building Society was obliged to
discharge the liabilities of its associated bodies (including subsidiaries) in so far as they were unable to
discharge them out of their own assets. Under the Act, the obligations of the Society at Vesting Day on 12
July 1989 in respect of its associated bodies were transferred to Abbey National plc. In addition, Abbey
National plc has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed all the obligations of Abbey National Treasury
Services plc, Abbey National North America Corporation, Abbey National Bank SAE, Abbey National
Treasury International Ltd, Abbey National (Gibraltar) Ltd, Abbey National France SA, Abbey National
Funding (Jersey) Ltd and Abbey National Second Capital BV. Abbey National plc has guaranteed certain

liabilities of Abbey National First Capital BV and Abbey National Sterling Capital plc.

41. Other contingent liabilities
Priority liquidation distribution

The Building Societies Act 1986 requires that savers who were eligible to vote on the conversion
proposals and who continued to have savings in any share account with the Society up to Vesting Day must
have a right to a priority liquidation distribution by Abbey National plc. This is a right, in the unlikely event
of Abbey National pic being wound up, to a distribution of a proportion of its assets in priority to all other
creditors (other than statutory preferential creditors) and shareholders of Abbey National plc.

The calculation of the right is based on the reserves of the Society as at 31 December 1988 after
deducting the cash distribution and costs of conversion. Initially this amount was £1.3 billion. This has
reduced as members continue to operate their accounts and the amount of the right had reduced to £59m
(1993: £96m) at 31 December 1994.

The priority liquidation right is secured by a floating charge over the undertaking and assets of Abbey
National plc and by a guarantee by, and floating charge over the undertaking and assets of, Abbey National
Treasury Services plc.

Pension transfers and opt-Outs

The Securities and Investments Board (SIB) has issued detailed guidance for the review of business
involving the transfers from occupational to personal pension schemes and the opting-out of and the non-
joining of occupational pension schemes. The Group is in the process of carrying out a review of any
potential exposures in respect of such business. In view of the uncertainty regarding this issue, estimated
provisions in respect of possible compensation to Customers have been made where considered appropriate.
Estimated provisions of £5m (1993: £1m) have been charged to the profit and loss account for the year ended
31 December 1994, and the total of such provisions as at 31 December 1994 is £6m (1993: £1m).
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42. Commitments

The tables below show the nominal principal amounts of commitments other than exchange rate and
interest rate contracts, details of which are included in note 50.

1994 1993
£m £m
Forward asset purchases and forward deposits placed . ... .......... ... ... ... 517 126
Formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend:
One year and OVET .. ..t v it et e 899 616
Less than OME YEAT . . . ottt e i e 130 42
1,546 784

43. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency
The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than sterling were as
follows:

1994 1993

£m £fm
ASSCES © o e e 26,371 18,228
abIltI S . o v e e e e e e e e e e e e 29,383 22,892

The above assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk. The Group’s foreign currency positions are substantially hedged by off-balance
sheet hedging instruments.

44. Consolidated cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash inflow from operating activities

1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax . . .......... ... 932 704 564
Increase in interest receivable and pre-paid expenses . ................. (577)  (188)  (484)
Increase in interest payable and accrued expenses .. .................. 930 174 222
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts . ............... ... ... . ... 74 218 274
Net advances written off . . . ... ... .. (166)  (137) (83)
Increase in the value of long term assurance business ... ... .. [ (98) (47) (10)
Depreciation . ..o v vt 84 84 77
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets and investments. ................. (17 (8) 4)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertakings .. ....................... — 30 —
Effect of other deferrals and accruals of cash flows from operating activities . 22 49 118
Net cash flow from trading activities . ............. ... ... ... ..... 1,184 879 674
Net increase in loans and advances .. .......... .. ... ... .. ... ... (28) (4,219) (4,708)
Net increase in investment in finance leases .. ....................... (25)  (516)  (948)
Net decrease/(increase) in bills and securities . . . ..................... (655) 8 752
Net increase in deposits and customer accounts . ..................... 2461 5060 7,050
Net increase in debt securities N iSSUE . . . . . ..o vt it i i e e 2,765 4,101 3,946
Net increase in other liabilities less assets .. ......... ... ... .. ...... 158 607 195
Exchange adjustments. . ... ..ovuutu ittt 483 (182)  (990)
Net cash inflow from operating activities . .......................... 6,343 5738 5971
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

44. Consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)
b) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Included in the balance sheet are the following amounts of cash and cash equivalents:

1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Cash and balances with central banks . . ......... ... . .. 166 168 150
Treasury and other eligible bills . . .. ... 10 — 44
Loans and advances to banks . ... ... ot e 1,789 1,712 1,574
DDt SECUTIIIES .+ + & v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et et e 939 1,036 474
2904 2916 2,242

The Group is required to maintain balances with the Bank of England which at 31 December 1994
amounted to £175m (1993: £167m, 1992: £152m). These are shown in loans and advances to banks.

¢) Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year:

1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
At TJANUATY . oottt e 2916 2,242 2,613
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before adjustment for the effect of foreign
exchange rate Changes . ... ...... ..o 51 658 (578)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes . ......................... (63) 16 207
At 31 DECEIMDET .« v v ot ettt et e 2,904 2916 2,242
d) Analysis of changes in financing during the year
Share Capital Share Capital Share Capital
inc. Share Subordinated inc. Share Subordinated inc. Share Subordinated
Premium Liabilities Premium Liabilities Premium Liabilities
1994 1994 1993 1993 1992 1992
£m £m £m £m £m £m
AtlJanuary............... 967 868 967 648 965 388
Net cash inflow from financing . 4 659 — 220 2 240
Effect of foreign exchange
adjustments. .. ............ — (6) — — — 20
Amortisation of premium ... .. — (1) — — — —
At 31 December ........... 971 1,520 967 868 967 648
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44. Consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)
e) Purchase of subsidiary undertakings

i 1994 1993 1992

1 £m m £m

: Net assets acquired:
Loans and advances to CUSIOMETS . . v oo v v vt vt i i ie i m oot 2,498 — —
Loans and advancestobanks. .. ... ... i i 77 — —

. Long term assurance business .................ooeieniiie — — 208

’ OLHET @SSEES &+« v e e e e ettt e e e e 51 — 1
Deposits by banks . . oo oo v (911) — —
Debt Securities iM ISSUE . . .o v vt v i (1,616) — —
Other labilities . . . . . it e (92) — 3
Minority shareholders” interest. .. .......... i — — )
GoodwWill .. e 66 — 85

73 — 289

Satisfied by:

Unsecured interest bearing loannotes . .. ............ ... 2 — —
CaSh o e e 71 — 4
Transfer to the long term assurance fund . . ......... .. ... ... . — — 285

73 — 289

f) Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of subsidiary

undertakings
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Cash conSideration . . .. .o v vttt e e e e 71 — 4
Cash and cash equivalents acquired . .......... ... .. i (19) — —
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of purchase of subsidiary
UndertaKings . . . . . oot e 52 — 4

g) Sale of subsidiary undertakings
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Net assets disposed of:
FIXEd @SSEES .« o v v v ettt e e e e — 15 —
DEDLOIS © v v o v e e e e e e e — 5 —
Cash at bank andin hand . ... ... ... ... . . i — 7 —
CrEdItOrS . o o v e e e e e e e e e — (3) —
— 24 —
Provisions made for future liabilities retained .. ............ ... ... .. ... — 10 —
Goodwill recognised on disposal . .......... .. .. . oiai — 4 —
Loss on disposal . .. ..ot — 30) —
Consideration received . .. .. ot — 8 —
Satisfied by:
CaSh . o et e e — —
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44. Consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)
h) Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the sale of the subsidiary

undertakings:
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Cash received as consideration . ... .........eeeeeer s — 8 —
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of . . ... - O =
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of sale of subsidiary undertakings  — 1 —

45. Retirement benefits

The Abbey National Amalgamated Pension Fund is the principal pension scheme within the Group,
covering 84% of the Group’s employees, and is a funded defined benefits scheme.

The latest actuarial valuation carried out by an independent professionally qualified actuary was made
as at 31 March 1993, at which date the market value of the scheme assets was £460m.

The valuation was prepared by using the projected unit funding method and disclosed a funding level of
105% and a regular employer’s contribution rate of 20.7% of pensionable salaries in respect of benefits
accruing after the valuation date. On the basis of actuarial advice Abbey National plc’s regular contributions
have been resumed.

The main long term financial assumptions used in the valuation were:

% per annum
—_—

TIVESEIENE TEHUITL « « « « v v s e e e e e e e e m e s s st 9.5
Equity dividend growth . . .« ooovvinene e 5.0
PCNSION INCIEASES .« « o v e v v e v e e n s m s st 4.5
General Salary INCTEASES . .« . v v« vve s nssone s e s s s 7.0
General price flAtiON . . ...« ve e er 5.0

The pension cost of £34m (1993: £28m, 1992: £17m) reflects the regular contribution rate less an
amount in respect of the surplus being recognised over the expected remaining service lives of the members
of the fund in accordance with SSAP 24 on accounting for pension costs. Contributions of £39m (1993: £6m,
1992: nil) were made to the fund in 1994 and a provision of £57m (1993: £62m, 1992: £40m) has been
included in the balance sheet. Actuarial valuations of the assets and liabilities of the scheme are carried out
at least once in every three years by external actuaries to determine the financial position of the fund. The
next valuation will be made no later than 31 March 1996.

The Scottish Mutual Assurance pension fund covers the employees of Scottish Mutual Assurance plc
amounting to 5% of the Group’s employees and is also a funded defined benefits scheme. The latest
actuarial valuation was made as at 31 December 1991 and disclosed a funding level of 124%. It is estimated
that the surplus will be removed by 31 December 1998.

The Associated Bodies Pension Fund, which covers 1% of the Group’s U.K. employees, is similarly
constituted. An actuarial review was conducted as at 31 March 1993 which revealed a modest excess of assets
over liabilities.

46. Post balance sheet events

Abbey National Financial Products (formerly Abbey National Baring Derivatives) (“ANFP”) is a
branch of Abbey National Treasury Services plc and had an operating agreement with Baring Brothers and
Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of Barings plc, under which certain services, staff and premises were provided to ANFF.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

46. Post balance sheet events (Continued)

An administrator was appointed to Barings plc on 26 February 1995. ANFP was not involved in any way with
the events that resulted in the appointment of the administrator. The directors are satisfied that no
adjustment is required to the Group accounts as a result of these events.

On 3 February 1995, Abbey National plc acquired Pegasus Assurance Group Ltd for a total considera-
tion of £8m, of which £2m was in the form of ordinary shares in Abbey National plc, valued at the closing
mid-market price on 3 February 1995, and the remainder in cash. The acquisition was made on 3 February
1995, and consequently is not included in the accounts at 31 December 1994.

47. Differences between U.K. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.K. GAAP”) and U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”)

The accounts presented in this report have been prepared in accordance with U.K. GAAP. Such
principles vary in significant respects from U.S. GAAP. The significant differences applicable to Abbey
National’s accounts are summarised below.

U.K. GAAP U.S. GAAP

Pension costs Pension costs

Where pensions are provided by means of a funded Under Statement of Financial Accounting
defined benefits scheme, annual contributions are Standards (SFAS) No. 87, the same basic actuarial
based on actuarial advice. The expected cost of method is used as under U.K. GAAP, but certain
providing pensions is recognised on a systematic assumptions differ, assets are assessed at fair value
basis over the expected average remaining service and liabilities are assessed at current settlement
lives of members of the scheme. Variations from rates. Certain variations from regular cost are
regular cost are expressed as a percentage of allocated in equal amounts over the average
payroll and spread over the average remaining remaining services lives of current employees.
service lives of current employees.

Goodwill Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation as a result of the Goodwill is capitalised and amortised in the
acquisition of subsidiaries and goodwill arising on consolidated statement of income over the period
the purchase of businesses are taken direct to in which the benefits are estimated to accrue. In
reserves in the year in which they occur. On Abbey National’s case, a period of 20 years has
disposal of a business, the goodwill previously been used. Goodwill is written off when judged to
taken to reserves is recognised in the profit and loss be irrecoverable.

account balanced by an equal credit to reserves.
Where the directors believe that the purchased
goodwill in continuing businesses has suffered a
permanent diminution in value, a similar
recognition in the profit and loss account and
credit to reserves is made.

Leasing Leasing

Income from finance leases, including benefits Application of SFAS No. 13 gives rise to a level rate
from declining tax rates, is credited to the profit of return on the investment in the lease, but
and loss account using the actuarial after tax without taking into account tax payments and
method to give a constant periodic rate of return receipts. This results in income being recognised in
on the net cash investment. different periods than under U.K. GAAP.
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47. Differences between U.K. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)

U.K. GAAP

Investments in securities

Securities held for investment purposes are stated
at cost adjusted for any amortisation of premium or
discount. All securities not held for investment
purposes are stated at market value and profits and
losses arising from this revaluation are taken to the
profit and loss account.

Amortisation of losses in internal investment fund
Where fixed interest investments have been held
within an internal investment fund with a planned
maturity, profits and losses arising on transactions
within the fund have been spread evenly over the
period to maturity of the fund.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is accounted for only where it is
probable that a liability or asset will arise. Provision
is calculated at rates expected to be applicable
when the liability or asset crystallises.

No deferred tax asset is created in respect of
general allowances for lending losses which are not
deductible in arriving at U.K. taxable profits.

Shareholders’ interest in long-term assurance
policies
The Shareholders’ interest in the in-force policies
of the long-term assurance fund is valued at the net
present value of the profits inherent in such
policies.

Loan origination fees
Loan origination fees are recognised in income in
the period in which they are receivable.
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U.S. GAAP

Investments in securities

Securities are classified as trading securities,
available for sale securities, and held to maturity
securities in accordance with SFAS No. 115. Held
to maturity securities are accounted for in the same
way as securities held for investment purposes
under UK. GAAP. Trading securities are
accounted for in the same way as securities not held
for investment purposes under U.K. GAAP
Available for sale securities are reported at market
value, with the net unrealised gains of £24 million
at 31 December 1994 excluded from earnings, but
reported in a separate component of shareholders’
equity. Abbey National has complied with SFAS
No. 115 as from 1 January 1994. The effect of
implementing the standard was to increase the
carrying value of securities classified as available
for sale on 1 January 1994, as stated under U.S.
GAAP, by £783 million, before taking into account
the impact of certain hedges in place against the
securities, and to increase shareholders’ equity by
the same amount.

Amortisation of losses in internal investment fund
The profits and losses arising on all securities
transactions are dealt with in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

Deferred tax

Provision for deferred tax under the liability
method is required in full for all timing differences,
including general allowances for loan losses and tax
loss carry forwards.

Deferred tax assets are recognised subject to any
adjustment for valuation allowances.

Shareholders’ interest in long-term assurance
policies

The net present value of inherent profits of long-
term assurance policies is not recognised by Abbey
National in the results prepared under US GAAP.

Loan origination fees
Fee income from originating a loan is spread over
the life of the loan in accordance with SFAS No. 91.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

47. Differences between UK. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)

UK. GAAP U.S. GAAP

Dividend payable Dividend payable

Dividends declared after the period end are Dividends are recorded in the period in which they
recorded in the period to which they relate. are declared.

Future Developments

SFAS No. 114, “Accounting for Creditors for Impairment of a Loan”, requires that impaired loans be
carried at the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or,
as a practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market value, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. SFAS No. 114 is required to be adopted in 1995. Abbey National is currently reviewing
this statement to determine what effect it may have on the reconciliation of net income and shareholders’
equity between U.K. and U.S. GAAP.

Differences between U.K. and U.S. accounting principles
The following table summarises the significant adjustments to consolidated net income or loss and
shareholders’ equity which would result from the application of U.S. GAAP instead of U.K. GAAP.
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Consolidated Net Income of Abbey National plc (UK. GAAP) ............ 610 390 317
GOOAWIIL .« . v ottt e e e (6) ) 20
PENSIONS COSE « « v« v vt v e e et et e e e e (14 (12) 6)
LCASIIIZ + o v v v e v ettt ee et e e 7 Q2 (15
Loan Origination fees . . .. ....v vt — — €))
Shareholders’ interest in long-term assurance policies . . . ... .. ... 98) (47) (10)
Amortisation of losses in internal investment fund .. ......... ... ... — 15 8
Deferred tax effect of the above U.S./U.K. GAAP adjustments . ............ 40 18 7
DEferTed AX .« o o vttt e e — (3) 4
Consolidated Net Income of Abbey National plc (U.S. GAAP) ............. 525 345 324
per 10 pence ordinary share .. ...... ... .o 40.0p 263p 24.7p
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
Shareholders’ equity (UK. GAAP) ... ... 3,704 3,386 3,184
GOOAWIIL .« .+ o ot e et et e e 138 89 97
PENSIONS COSE « o o v v vttt et e et e e (19) 5) 7
LEaSIIE « o v ovve et e et (40)  (33) (21
Loan Origination fees .. ... .. ouvt it ) () @
Shareholders’ interest in long-term assurance policies . . .................. (155) (57) (10)
Dividend payable . ... ..o 158 129 101
Amortisation of losses in internal investment fund ... .......... .. ... ... — 1 (14)
Unrealised surplus on securities available forsale ...................... 24— —
Deferred tax effect of the above U.S./U.K. GAAP adjustments . . ........... 70 30 12
Deferred taX . .o it e e e 14 14 17
Shareholders’ equity (U.S. GAAP) ....... ... i, 3,892 3,552 3,371
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47. Differences between UK. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)

Securities and Investments

(a) Under US. GAAP, SFAS No. 115 requires certain disclosures relating to securities and investments as
at 31 December 1994. The following table provides an analysis of the relevant balance sheet total under
both U.S. and U.K. GAAP.

As at 31 December

1994

UK GAAP  US GAAP

. £m £m
Trading SECUTILES . . « v v v vvnvsne s oess s e s T 2,806 2,806
Available for sale SECUTIHIES .« . v v v v v vvom e 27,587 27,608
Securities held to maturity ......... I I 1,984 1,984
_ 32,377 32,398

Less general provision against available for sale securities . . ... ..o 3) —

32,374 32,398

Further disclosures required by SFAS No. 115 are as follows:

(b) Available for sale securities

Gross Gross

Amortised  unrealised  unrealised Fair
cost gains losses value
£m £m £m £m

Equity SECUTItES . . .« oo ovvrsev e 42 — — 42
Debt securities issued or backed by US Treasury and other
US government corporations and agencies. .. ...... oo 3,486 17 (84) 3,419
Debt securities issued by foreign governments .. .........- 6,656 306 (114) 6,848
Corporate debt SECUTITIES « o o v v e e 9,812 90 (130) 9,772
Mortgage backed SECUTILIES - - v v v v vmeme e 4,905 15 (56) 4,864
Other debt SECUTItIEs . . v v v vv v e 2,686 5 (28) 2,663
27,587 433 (412) 27,608
General provision against debt SECUTIHES . v v v v vv e e e 3)

27,584

The majority of Corporate debt securities are guaranteed by banks or other financial institutions.

In more than 1 In more than 5
Not more year but not more years but not more In more than

Maturity analysis than 1 year than S years than 10 years 10 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Book value before general provision . ... 2,039 11,295 4,454 9,799 27,587
Fairvalue . . ..o oo ov oo eanonae e 2,027 11,118 4,299 10,164 27,608
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47. Differences between U.K. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)
(c) Held to maturity securities

Gross Gross
Amortised unrealised unrealised Fair
cost gains losses value
£m £m £m £m
Corporate debt securities. . . ........ .. o i 1,984 —_ — 1,984
In more than 1 In more than 5
Not more year but not more years but not more In more than
Maturity analysis than 1 year  than 5 years than 10 years 10 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Bookvalue. . ......ccovuein.n _ 423 1,561 — 1,984
Fairvalue ......... ..., —_ 423 1,561 — 1,984
(d) Sales of available for sale securities during the year to 31 December 1994.
£m
Gross proceeds from sales . ... ... .. 26,050
Gross realised 10SSES O SALES . . . v v v vt vttt et et e e 80
Gross realised gains On Sales ... ... ...t (100)
AmOrtised COSt OFf SALES . . o v v o vt it e e e e e e 26,030

The cost of available for sale securities is determined by using the weighted average cost basis, with
premium/discount arising on purchase being amortised to profit and loss over the expected life of the

security.
(e) Redemptions and purchases of held to maturity securities during the year to 31 December 1994

tn
Value on TedemPHiON . . ..ottt 502
Gross realised losses on redemption . ... ... . i 6
Gross realised gains on redemption . ....... ... L =
508

Amortised cost of securities redeemed . ... ... .. e

Redemption of held to maturity securities represent 100% of the preference shares of ACP Treasury
Ltd., a company incorporated in Jersey, which were redeemed in return for debt securities held by that
company and valued at market value for the purpose of the transaction. The debt securities acquired are

included in available for sale securities.
Purchases during the year to 31 December 1994 amounted to £200m.

(f) Unrealised gains and losses on transfers from available for sale securities to trading securities during the
year to 31 December 1994 were as follows:

Gross unrealised GaINS . « . . oottt e e
G108S UNTEAISEA LOSSES « v v v v vt it e e et e et e e e e e e

lall olF

(g) The net change in unrealised holding gains (losses) on trading securities included in income for the year
to 31 December 1994 is a loss of £3m.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

47. Differences between UK. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)
Pension Costs

For the reconciliation above, the Group adopts the provisions of SFAS No 87, “Employers Accounting
for Pensions”, in respect of its principal pension plans, The Abbey National Amalgamated Pension Fund and
the Scottish Mutual Assurance plc Staff Pension Scheme. Estimated pension costs for these plans computed
under SFAS No 87 are as follows:

Year ended

31 December
1994 1993 1992
Tm  Em  Em
SEIVICE COSE . v v e saeee e e s 53 41 34
O S 43 43 36
Actual (return)/loss On plan @SSELS ...« oche T (36) (149) (7)
Net amortisation and deferral. ... ... ovvev (D 108 (38)
POIISION COSES . « « « v s e e ae e e e s am s 53 43 25

The estimated funded status of the Abbey National Amalgamated Pension Fund and the Scottish
Mutual Assurance plc Staff Pension Scheme under SFAS No. 87 was as follows:

Year ended

31 December
1994 1993
Fm fm
Projected benefit ObgAtoN . . ..o vvvorvrrer e T 590 584
Plan assets at fAIr VAIUE . . ..o oonnewremme e e 640 571
Plan assets in excess (less than) projected benefit obligation . .. ... 50 N

Amounts available to be applied as an increase (reduction) to future pension cost:

Balance of initial transition @MOUNE . . . ..o v vvvvee e e (57 (64)
Net Unrecognised 10SSES . . v« v v v vensneserns s os st (87) (14)
Unrecognised Prior SEIVICE COSt . . . v v vvvsvnve e s re s nn 0 17 19
(Accrued) prepaid PEmSIOn COSt. . ..o vvwn e eses s (17 (66)

The estimated accumulated benefit obligation at 30 September 1994 amounted to £497m (30 Septem-
ber 1993; £530m), of which £424m was vested (30 September 1993; £449m). The actuarial value placed upon
the vested benefit obligation (VBO) is lower than that placed upon the accumulated benefit obligation
primarily because the statistical assumptions used in calculating the Projected and Accumulated Benefit
Obligations made provision for members to retire prior to the age from which vested benefits are payable, in
view of the terms on which such retirement may, with the consent of the relevant Group company, take
place. It is not appropriate to reflect such an assumption in the calculation of the VBO.
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47. Differences between U.K. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)

Under SFAS No. 87, the excess of plan assets over the projected benefit obligation at the transition date
(1 January 1988) would be recognised as a reduction to pension expense on a prospective basis over
approximately 14 years. The financial assumptions used to calculate the projected benefit obligation at
30 September 1994 and 1993 are as follows:

Year ended
31 December
1994 1993
% %
pa pa
DISCOUNT TALE & v v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 9.0 7.5
Rate of pay escalation . .. ... ... . 6.5 5.5
Rate of Pension INCIASE . . . . o v vt vttt ittt et e e e 4.0 35
Rate Of TEIUIT O ASSEES . o v v v o v e et e e e e e et et e e et e e e e e et e s 9.0 8.0

The assets of the schemes are invested primarily in equities and fixed interest securities.

The schemes’ retirement benefits are generally based on the final year’s pensionable salary and the
number of years pensionable service with the Group at retirement.

The £52m U.S. GAAP pension cost (1993 £43m, 1992 £25m) compares with £38m (1993 £31m, 1992
£19m) under U.K. GAAP. The difference, net of U.K. corporation tax at 33% results in an additional charge
to net income of £9m (1993 £8m charge, 1992 £4m charge) under U.S. GAAP.

Abbey National plc operates other pension schemes within the Group. These schemes are small and the
difference in pension costs under U.K. and U.S. accounting principles is not material.
Taxes
(i) No significant element of the tax expense in each of the three years ended 31 December 1994, 1993
and 1992 is attributable to discontinued operations.

(ii) The significant components of tax expense attributable to continuing operations are shown in
note 13. :

(iii) A reconciliation of taxes payable at the standard UK corporation tax rate and the Group’s effective
tax rate for each of the three years ended 31 December 1994, 1993 and 1992 is shown as follows.

Year ended 31 December

1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Taxation at standard U.K. corporation tax rate (33%, 33%, 33.25%) ....... 308 232 186
Effect of non-allowable provisions. . . ....... .. ... ... ... . .. .. 8 31 2
Goodwill on disposals previously written off .. ........... ... ... . ... 3 1 41
Unrelieved overseas I0SS€S . . . ..o v v iv it i e — 36 16
Adjustment to prior year tax provisions . . . ........ ..o 3 14 2
TAXES + ot e et e e e e 322 314 247

Effective taX Tate . . v o v v o v e e e e e [ 34.5% 44.6% 43.8%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

47. Differences between UK. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)
(iv) The tax effects of the principal components of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets at
31 December 1994, 1993 and 1992 were as follows:
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Deferred Tax Liabilities recognised in UK. financial statements

Excess of capital allowances over depreciation. . .. .ovo e 18 17 14
Capital allowances on finance lease receivables . . . . 348 259 167
OFNET + + o e e e e e e e e 33 20 (15)
99 29 166

Additional Deferred tax assets arising from application of U.S. GAAP
Operating loss carry FOTWALAS « + v v e v eeemne e 73 64 11
Deductible temporary differences . .. ......ooveeee T 24 30 63
97 94 74
Less valuation alloWanCe ... ... ..eeweeesmeeres o ity (83) (80) (€]
Deferred tax assets (U.S. GAAP) oo 14 14 17
Deferred tax effect of U.S. GAAP QdjUstments . . .« .« oo veeenscee ettt s 70 30 12
Net deferred tax liabilities . . .. ......-oocooereere e 315 252 137

Of the additional deferred tax asset in respect of operating loss carryforwards shown above, £2m is
expected to expire at the end of 1996, £2m at the end of 1997, £21m at the end of 1998 and £20m at the end of
1999.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

The UK Financial Reporting Standard 1 (“FRS1”), “Cash Flow Statements”, and SFAS No. 95 as
amended by SFAS No. 104, are substantially similar in approach. The principal differences are in the
classification of certain transactions under the categories prescribed by the statements, as follows:

Classification under

Classification under FRS1 SFAS No. 95
Dividends received Returns on investment and servicing Investing activities
of finance
Dividends paid Returns on investment and servicing Financing activities
of finance
Taxation paid Taxation paid Operating activities
Net increase in loans and advances Operating activities Investing activities
Net increase in investment in Operating activities Investing activities
finance leases
Net increase in deposits and Operating activities Financing activities
customer accounts
Net increase in debt securities in Operating activities Financing activities

issue

Alternative Presentation of the Consolidated Profit and Loss account.

The presentation of the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 1994, as shown on page
F-4, would be no different under U.S. GAAP.
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47. Differences between UK. GAAP and U.S. GAAP (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 1993, the loss on sale of the residential estate agency business shown as
an exceptional item in the consolidated profit and loss account on page F-4 would, under U.S. GAAP, be
included within other operating expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 1992, the reorganisation and restructuring costs of the residential
estate agency business, and the gain from the sale of unclaimed shares, shown as exceptional items in the
consolidated profit and loss account on page F-4 would, under U.S. GAAP, be included within other
operating expenses.

The following consolidated profit and loss account illustrates this presentation:

Year ended 31 December
1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
Net interest iNCOME . . . . v v ittt e e et ettt ettt ittt e s 1,394 1,338 1,265
Other income and charges . .......... ... ... 365 376 319
OpErating EXPENSES . . v v vt v e e e e et e e (755) (793) (743)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts ............. ... ... ... ... .. ... (74) (218) (274)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments. ................ ... ... .. 2 1 3)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax . . . . ....... ... ... .. L 932 704 564
Tax on profit on ordinary activities . ............ .. .. ... i (322) (314) (247)
Profit on ordinary activities aftertax . . .......... ... .. L 610 390 317
Transfer to non-distributable reserve ... ....... ... i (65) (32) (7
DIVIENAS .« o v o oot e e e e e e e (233) (184) (151)
Retained profit for the year ........ ... ... .o i 312 174 159
Profit on ordinary activities before tax includes as a result of acquisitions .. ... 22 — 30
Profit on ordinary activities before tax includes for discontinued operations . . . . — (32) (158)

48. Significant group concentrations of credit risk

The Group’s balance sheet still strongly reflects its history as a U.K. building society, with 50% (1993:
52%) of total assets at 31 December 1994 being residential mortgages. 98% (1993: 98%) of the residential
mortgage asset is in the UK.

Although the Group’s Treasury Operations are based in the U.K,, it has built up exposures to various
entities around the world. This exposure is principally in respect of government and bank counterparties.

49. Fair values of financial instruments

SFAS No. 107 ‘Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments’ requires disclosure of the fair
value of financial instruments.

The fair values have been estimated using quoted market prices where available. Where no ready
markets exist and hence quoted market prices are not available, the directors’ valuation is given. The
directors’ valuation results from appropriate techniques which typically take account of the characteristics of
the instruments including the future cash flows, the market interest rate and prices available for similar
instruments.

By its nature, the estimation of fair values is highly subjective and the results will depend largely upon
the assumptions made. Considerable caution should therefore be used in interpreting the fair values and
particularly if comparing with fair values presented by other groups.

The Group attaches great value to its branch network, to its profile in the U.K. personal financial
services market and to its good reputation with its customers. However, such intangible assets are not
recognised for the purposes of SFAS No. 107. Furthermore, the concept of fair values assumes that the
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49. Fair values of financial instruments (Continued)

financial instruments will be realised by way of sale. However, with the exception of certain securities, the
Group intends to realise its assets through collection over time. Consequently, the directors believe that the
fair values significantly understate the true value of the group as a going concern.

The following assets and liabilities, excluded from the scope of SFAS No. 107, are carried at market
value or are short-term such that their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Assets - Liabilities
Cash and balances at central banks Dividends proposed
Treasury bills and other eligible bills Other liabilities
Long term assurance business Accruals and deferred income
Tangible fixed assets Provisions for liabilities and charges
Other assets Liabilities of long term assurance funds

Prepayments and accrued income
Assets of long term assurance funds

The financial instruments for which fair value has been estimated are as follows:

Debt securities and equity shares and other variable yield securities

The market or appraised values of debt securities, equity shares and other variable yield securities are
shown in notes 21 and 22 respectively. Securities and investments have been valued using quoted market
prices where available. Where market prices are not available the directors’ valuation has been used. The
directors’ valuation takes into consideration discounted cash flows, market prices of comparable securities
and other appropriate valuation techniques.

Loans and advances to banks
The estimated fair value of loans and advances to banks as at 31 December 1994 is approximately
£2,905m (1993: £3,559m), compared to a recorded value of £2,906m (1993: £3,556m).

The fair value of loans and advances to banks has been estimated by discounting future cash flows using
available market interest rates offered for loans and advances with similar characteristics.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to personal customers are made both at variable and at fixed rates. As there is no
active market in the U.K. for such lending, there is no reliable market value available for such a significant
portfolio. However, if a market value could be ascertained, the directors believe it would reflect the
expectation of a long-term and continuing relationship with a majority of the customers. Although substan-
tial, this value is intangible and it cannot therefore be included in the fair value. Consequently the directors
believe that, for the purposes of SFAS No. 107, the carrying value of the variable rate loans is a reasonable
estimate of their fair value.

Certain of the loans secured on residential properties are at a fixed rate for a limited period, typically
two to three years from their commencement. At the end of this period these loans revert to the relevant
variable rate. The excess of fair value over carrying value of each of these loans has been estimated by
reference to the market rates available at 31 December 1994 for similar loans of maturity equal to the
remaining fixed period. The fixed element of such loans is substantially hedged such that any movement in
the value of the loan as a result of market interest rate changes will be offset by an equivalent movement in
the value of instrument used as a hedge.

The fair value for the remaining loans and advances to customers has been estimated by discounting
future cash flows using available market interest rates offered for loans and advances with similar
characteristics.
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49. Fair values of financial instruments (Continued)
SFAS No. 107 does not require an estimate of the fair value of finance lease receivables. They are
therefore included at their carrying value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 1994 is approximately £50,992m
(1993: £48,063m) compared with a carrying value of £51,123m (1993: £47,748m).

Deposits by banks and customers

SFAS No. 107 states that the fair value of deposit liabilities payable on demand is equal to the carrying
value. However, given the long-term and continuing nature of the relationships with its customers, the
directors believe there is significant value in this source of funds.

The fair value of other deposits is estimated using discounted cash flows using available market interest
rates offered for deposits with similar characteristics.

The estimated fair value of deposits by banks and customers as at 31 December 1994 is approximately
£55,860m (1993: £52,557m) compared with a carrying value of £55,882m (1993: £52,511m).

Debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities
The estimated fair value of debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities as at 31 December 1994 is
approximately £24,356m (1993: £19,930m) compared to a carrying value of £24,933m (1993: £19,898m).

The fair value of debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities has been calculated using quoted
market prices where available. Where prices are not available, the fair value has been estimated by
discounting anticipated future cash flows using market interest rates, offered at 31 December for similar
securities.

Financial commitments and contingent liabilities

The directors believe that, given the lack of an established market, the diversity of fee structures and the
estimation required to separate the value of the instruments from the value of the overall transaction, it is
generally difficult to estimate the fair value of financial commitments and contingent liabilities. However,
since the majority of these are at floating rates the fair value will be close to the book value quoted. The
principal amounts for these instruments are disclosed in note 42.

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The group uses various market-related off-balance sheet financial instruments, as explained in note 50
below. The fair value of these instruments is estimated using market prices or pricing models consistent with
standard market practice. Such fair values were approximately £290m below the book asset value of these
off-balance sheet financial instruments.

It should be noted that, where these instruments are designated as hedges, a rise or fall in the fair value
of the hedge will be offset by a substantially equivalent reduction or increase in the fair value of the asset or
liability against which the hedge was placed.

50. Derivatives

Derivatives are used in two distinct ways by the Abbey National Group. The first is as hedging
instruments for activities in U.K. Retail Banking and Treasury Operations and for the Group’s balance sheet.
The second is in the market-making activity undertaken within ANFP.

Derivative instruments are contracts or agreements whose value is derived from one or more underlying
indices inherent in the contract or agreement. They include interest rate and cross-currency swaps, forward
rate agreements, futures, options and swaptions.

The total nominal amount of the Group’s outstanding interest rate contracts at 31 December 1994 was
£77,129m (which includes £31,365m in respect of ANFP) compared to £37,464m at 31 December 1993
(which includes £5,501m in respect of ANFP) and £18,701m at 31 December 1992. The total nominal
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50. Derivatives (Continued)

amount of the Group’s outstanding exchange rate related contracts was £11,681m at 31 December 1994
compared to £15,537m at 31 December 1993 and £10,504m at 31 December 1992. The total for 1994 (1993)
includes £486m (£25m) in respect of ANFP. Following a review of the classification of off balance sheet
contracts, amounts for 1993 have been restated to reflect the reclassification of certain contracts between the
exchange rate and interest rate categories. The reclassification relates to exchange traded contracts on
foreign government bond futures, which for any one transaction may provide a hedge against either interest
rate or exchange rate movements. ANTS organises its investment activities by means of matched currency
investment books in a number of currencies. Hedging of assets or liabilites against exchange rate movements
is achieved mainly through the use of currency swaps. The main purpose for the usage of bond futures
contracts is therefore to protect against interest rate movements. Management therefore believe that these
contracts are more appropriately classified as interest rate related instruments.

Hedging Activity

Derivative products are used for a variety of hedging purposes in Abbey National. The major hedging
instruments are swaps, which are used to hedge Group balance sheet exposures, fixed rate mortgage lending
and savings products in U.K. Retail Banking and Continental Europe and Offshore as well as medium-term
note issues, capital issues, fixed rate asset purchase and other exposures to fixed interest rates and exchange
rates within Treasury Operations. Caps, floors, swaptions and exchange traded options and futures also may
be used for similar hedging activities.

A significant part of Abbey National’s exposures can be hedged internally, by offset against other
categories of exposure in the balance sheet. Market risk management in ANTS may be undertaken either on
the basis of assets and liabilities on a one-for-one basis or on an aggregate basis within one of the currency
matched investment books, in which case hedging is arranged on the net or aggregated position on the book
for the currency concerned. The following table sets forth certain activities undertaken by the Group, the
related risks associated with such activities and provides details of the types of derivatives used in managing
such risks. ’

Activity
Management of the return on
investment of shareholders’
equity and net non-interest
bearing liabilities.

Fixed rate mortgage lending.

Management of other net
interest income on retail
activities.

Fixed rate funding (e.g.
medium-term note issuance).

Fixed rate asset investments.

Investment in foreign currency
assets.

Profits earned in foreign
currencies.

Risk

Reduced profitability due to
falls in interest rates.

Sensitivity to increase in interest
rates.

Sensitivity of returns to changes
in interest rates.

Sensitivity to falls in interest
rates.

Sensitivity to increase in interest
rates.

Sensitivity to increase in foreign
exchange rates.

Sensitivity to sterling
strengthening.
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Type of Hedge

Receive fixed interest rate
swaps. Purchased floors.

Pay fixed interest rate swaps.
Purchased caps.

Interest rate swaps and caps/
floors according to the type of
risk identified.

Receive fixed interest rate
swaps.

Pay fixed interest rate swaps.

Cross-currency swaps. Foreign
currency funding.

Forward foreign exchange
contracts. Purchased options.
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l 50. Derivatives (Continued)
i Derivative Instrument Activity

The following table sets forth the nominal amounts of derivatives held for asset and liability manage-
ment and market-making purposes at 31 December 1994, 1993 and 1992 and the net replacement cost and
credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives at 31 December 1994.

At 31 December 1994

Credit Risk _19_91._ 1992
Nominal Net Weighted Nominal Nominal
Amounts Replacement Amounts Amounts Amounts
(1) Cost (2) (3) “)
£m £m £m £m £m
Exchange rate related instruments
Held for asset and liability management purposes . ... 11,195 447 199 15,512 10,504
Held for market-making purposes. ............... 486 13 8 25 —
11,681 460 207 15,537 10,504
Interest rate related instruments
Held for asset and liability management purposes . ... 45,764 597 215 31,963 18,701
Held for market-making purposes. ............... 31,365 336 110 5,501 —

77,129 933 325 37,464 18,701

(1) Nominal amounts indicate the volume of business outstanding at balance sheet date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

(2) Represents replacement cost of contracts with a positive value. In respect of those contracts used as
hedges, the rise or fall in their market values will be offset by a substantially equivalent reduction or
increase in the value of the asset or liability being hedged.

(3) The credit risk weighted amounts have been calculated in accordance with the Bank of England’s
guidelines implementing the guidelines of the Basle Committee on capital adequacy.

(4) Following a review of the classification of off balance sheet contracts, the 1993 amounts have been
restated to reflect the reclassification of certain contracts from the exchange rate to the interest rate
category. '

End-user Swap Activity

The tables below set forth, by contract amount, the activity in end-user interest rate and cross-currency
swaps used for hedging purposes.

Interest Rate Swaps

1994 1993 1992

£m £m £m
At TJANUAIY « o o e v oo e e e et e 28,033 17,336 7,611
New contracts (1) . . oo oo 24,508 28,241 14,317
Matured and amortised CONLIaCts . .. ..ot (16,150) (16,253) (5,707)
Terminated COMEIACES . . v v v vt vttt i e e (3,601) (1,423) (915)
Effect of foreign exchange rate and other movements . .............. (392) 132 2,030
At 31 DECEIMDET &« v o vt e e ettt e e 32,398 28,033 17,336

(1) Includes £281m of interest rate swaps acquired with HMC Group PLC in 1994.

F-53




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

50. Derivatives (Continued)
Cross-currency Swaps

1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
At TJANUATY . o vt e e 7,826 6,481 3,593
NEW CONIACES « v v v v v vttt ot ee et et ie e eaennees s 6,677 7,214 5,897
Matured and amortised contracts . . ... ... i (5,433) (6,127) (3,203)
Terminated COMITACES . . o vt i et e e e i ie i eae s (553) (146) (244)
Effect of foreign exchange rate and other movements ............... (45) 404 438
At 31 DeECOmMDET - o o o ittt e e e e e e 8,472 7,826 6,481
Total Interest Rate and Cross-currency Swaps
1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m
At T JANUATY .« o oe ettt e 35,859 23817 11,204
New contracts (1) ..o vvinn it 31,185 35,455 20,214
Matured and amortised contracts . .. ... ... .. (21,583) (22,380) (8,910)
Terminated CONTIACES . v . v oo ot oot et o (4,154) (1,569) (1,159)
Effect of foreign exchange rate and other movements . .............. (437) 536 2,468
At 31 DECembEr . . v vttt s 40,870 35,859 23,817

(1) Includes £281m of interest rate swaps acquired with HMC Group PLC in 1994.

The impact on the income statement attributable to end-user derivative activities for the year ended
31 December 1994 was a £67m increase in interest receivable and a £282m increase in interest payable. The
figures should not be analysed in isolation since there will be compensating movements in the underlying
positions against which the hedges were taken. ANFP contributed £ 21m to the dealing profits of the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 1994, the mark-to-market position of the market-making portfolio was
represented by unrealised gains of £349m and unrealised losses of £295m. During the year, the average net
mark-to-market value of dealing derivatives amounted to £96m.

The Group uses interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps predominantly for hedging fixed rate
assets and liabilities effectively into floating rate. For interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps used for
these purposes, the weighted average pay fixed rates and weighted average receive fixed rates by maturity
and contract amount at 31 December 1994 were as follows:

Pay fixed Receive fixed
Contract Contract
amount Rate amount Rate
£m 7 £m -—‘7;_
Contracts maturing: (1)
Lessthan 1year .. ...ttt 3,946 6.60 4,097 5.96
THO B YEAIS v v oeo vt e et e e 6,302  7.34 3,996 574
BHO S YEAIS v vt vt e 5553 785 2334 621
OVET SYEAIS .« ot vt e e et et e e 1,644  9.09 3,623 715
Total .o e e e e 17,445 14,050

(1) For the purpose of this analysis, the maturity date has been taken to be the date when the swap contract
expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

50. Derivatives (Continued)

(2) The total pay fixed contract amount comprises £15,448m in respect of interest rate swaps and £1,997m
in respect of cross-currency swaps. The total receive fixed contract amount comprises £11,264m in
respect of interest rate swaps and £2,786m in respect of cross-currency swaps.

For interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps used for hedging purposes, the weighted average pay
variable rate and the weighted average receive variable rate by maturity and contract amounts at 31 Decem-
ber 1994 were as follows:

Pay variable Receive variable
Contract Contract
amount Rate amount Rate
£m T £m %
Contracts maturing: (1)
Less than 1 year . ... ovvv v 7,221 6.24 6,976  5.92
THOBYEAIS v vviemrvee e 7,658 6.24 10,032 6.31
3O SYEAIS oo e 3472 6.63 6,808 6.87
OVET 5 YEAIS « ¢ v v vt e v m e 4835  6.84 3,004 6.89

TOtAl & o et e e e 23,186 26,820

(1) For the purpose of this analysis, the maturity date has been taken to be the date when the swap contract
expires.

(2) The total pay variable contract amount comprises £16,817m in respect of interest rate swaps and
£6,369m in respect of cross-currency swaps. The total receive variable contract amount comprises
£21,134m million in respect of interest rate swaps and £5,686m in respect of cross-currency swaps.

A difference arises when comparing nominal contract assets and nominal contract liabilities. Whereas
with single currency swaps one would expect equal and opposite nominal balances on either side of the swap
leg, this is not necessarily the case with cross-currency swaps. At contract date sterling equivalent nominal
amounts should be equal and opposite, however, subsequent exchange rate movements will result in
divergence in the nominal amounts. This exchange rate divergence explains the difference between nominal
contract asset balances and nominal contract liability balances.

The weighted average interest rates presented in the tables above reflect interest rates in a range of
currencies. These rates should not be analysed in isolation from the rates on the underlying instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

50. Derivatives (Continued)

The contract amount of each type of end-user contract (excluding cross-currency swaps which are
included in the swaps detailed above) at 31 December 1994 are set forth by currency in the table below. All
hedging foreign exchange contracts mature during 1995.

Contract type by contract amount

Forward Foreign Forward Rate = Options Futures
Exchange Agreements (0TC) (Exchange-Traded)
£m £m £m £m

Sterling ... ... — 640 170 896
US. Dollars . . . .o oo oo e e e e 2,282 1,071 866 7,334
European Currency Units . .. ............. — 94 — —
Swiss Francs. . . .. .. v ciiv i i i 64 — — —
Canadian Dollars . . . ......... . v n 206 —_ — —
Deutschemarks. . . .. ... oo 73 153 2 12
French Francs . ........... ... 2 — — 178
Spanish Pesetas . ...................... 47 15 — —
Netherlands Guilders .. ................. 10 — —
Australian Dollars . .......... ... .. ... .. 19 — — —
Italian Lire . ... ...t = — 1,955 —
Total ..o 2,703 1,973 2,993 8,420

The total OTC options contracts amount to £20m in respect of exchange rate related instruments and
£2,973m in respect of interest rate related instruments.

Gains and losses arising from the hedging of investment transactions are released to the profit and loss
account over the life of the asset, liability or position against which the hedge is held. Gains and losses arising
from the hedging of assets which are not held for the purpose of investment are taken directly to the profit
and loss account. Where a transaction originally entered into as a hedge no longer represents a hedge, its
value is restated and any change in value is taken to the profit and loss account. Gains and losses on
instruments purchased or sold for trading and market making purposes are taken directly to the profit and
loss account. Any such transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date are stated at market value.

At 31 December 1994, deferred gains and losses being fully released within one year and relating to
terminated hedging contracts were gains of £35m (1993: £4m; 1992: nil) and losses of £69m (1993: £21m;
1992: £10m). At 31 December 1994, deferred losses of £2m and deferred gains of £6m were being released
over a period greater than one year (1993: losses £1m, profits nil; 1992: losses nil, profits nil).

51. Further rental commitments under operating leases

1994 1994 1993 1993
Property Equipment Property Equipment
£m m £m £m

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
expiring:

Not more thanoneyear ..............covoiiiirunnn. —

Over one but not more than five years . . . ..............

Over five years . .. oottt i

—_

2
2 4 2
6

ol wo




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

52. Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 1994 the Group held various leases on land and buildings, many for extended periods,.
and other leases for equipment, which require the following aggregate rental payments.

£m

Year ended 31 December
100 41
1906 . 41
1997 e e 42
1008 42
1990 48
Total thereafter . ... ... . . 682
1994 1993 1992
tm tm tm

Rental expense comprises:
In respect of minimum rentals . .. .......... ... ... ... ... . ... .. ... 36 41 38
Less sub-lease rentals . ............. ... ... . i 4) (2) (2)
32 39 36

53. Summary operating results of Abbey National Treasury Services plc

The following selected information of Abbey National Treasury Services plc (“ANTS”) has been

included to comply with the filing requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The data has
been compiled using U.K. GAAP.

Summary of statement of income

For the year ended

1994 1994 1993
$m £m £m

Total interest income . . ... ... . i 3,028 1,933 1,797
Total interest €Xpense ... ......... ...t (2,838) (1,812) (1,658)
Net interest inCOmME . . . ... oottt 190 121 139
Other operating inCOME . . . .. ... ... e 136 87 74
Operating eXpenses . . . .. ..o vttt 47) (30) (20)
Income before taxes . ........ . ... .. .. ... 279 178 193
Taxes .. (107) (68) (76)

................................................ 172 110 117




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Continued)

53. Summary operating results of Abbey National Treasury Services plc (Continued)
Summary of balance sheet data

As at

1994 1994 1993

$m £m £m
TOtAl ASSELS & & v v v e e e e e e e 70,615 45,078 37,240
including:
Loans to banks and CUSIOMIEIS . . . v v v v v e et ittt et i et eaee e 15,457 9,867 9,589
Securities and INVESIMENTS .« « o . v v v v vt v et s eeia ittt eae e 46,735 29,834 22,926
Net investment in finance 1eases. . . ... .o vt i ittt i 3,836 2,449 2,281
Total liabilities excluding shareholders’ equity .. ........... ... ... ..., 69,070 44,092 36,362
including:
Deposits by banks and Customers . .. ........... i 28,725 18,337 16,605
Debt SECUILIES (M ISSUE « v v v v vt vt et et ettt et it eaiae e 31,156 19,889 16,106
Subordinated liabilities . . .. . v i ittt e 3280 2,094 1,230
Shareholders’ equUity ... ... ..ouv it e 1,545 986 878

The above summary information has been extracted from the consolidated financial statements of
ANTS. This information differs from that disclosed for the Treasury Operations segment in Note 1 as a result
of the inclusion of certain intra-group transactions in ANTS’ consolidated financial statements, and the
inclusion of the results of Abbey National North America Corporation in the Treasury Operations segment.




Presented below are extracts from the unaudited interim consolidated accounts of the Group which
were published on July 31, 1995 together with the consolidated cash flow statement and associated notes to
the consolidated accounts. These were prepared using generally accepted accounting principles in the U.K.
and were compiled in accordance with the listing rules made by the London Stock Exchange.

ABBEY NATIONAL plc

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 1995

Year ended
Six months ended 30 June 31 December
1995 1994 1994
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
£m £m £m
Net interest iNCOME . o v v v v vv v ne oo mmenr e s 748 642 1,394
Other income and charges ................---" e 177 197 365
OpErating EXpEnSES . .« « v« v vvvverees st (412) 377 (755)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts .. ... (28) (41) (74)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments .. ............. 2) 2 2
Profit on ordinary activities before 1ax . ... 483 423 932
Tax on profit on ordinary activities . .............c...en (159) (150) (322)
Profit on ordinary activities QFIEr 1AX . . o oo 324 273 610
Transfer to non-distributable reserve . ...............o0e — — (65)
DivIdends. « v v v v oo e _(96) (75) (233)
Profit retained for the period . . ..........co.ooeeee s 228 198 312
Profit on ordinary activities before tax and exceptional items
includes for acquired operations . .............coceen 0 10 22
Earnings per SHATe . . . .o« vnevi e 24.7p 20.8p 46.5p
Dividend per SHare . . . ... oot 7.25p 5.7p 17.75p
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% ABBEY NATIONAL plc

‘3' i UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

; AT 30 JUNE 1995

% . As at

i As at 30 June 31 December

{ 1995 1994 1994

% (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

A £m £m £m

E Assets

{ Cash, treasury bills and other eligible bills . .. ............. 216 422 598

? Loans and advances to banks . ........................ 5,707 4,221 2,906

l Loans and advances to customers ...................... 48,832 45,864 48,484

; Net investment in finance leases ... ..........c.covuv.... 2,322 2,290 2,278

; Securities and investments. . . ... .. ... ... ... 37,058 29,280 32,374
Long-term assurance business . ........................ 391 317 352
Tangible fixed assets . . ........... ... ... ... ... 545 508 534
Other aSSetS . v v v vt e ittt e e 4,053 2,158 2,701
Assets of long-term assurance funds. ... ................. 4,631 3,750 4,092
Total assets . . .. ..o e 103,755 88,810 94,319
Liabilities
Depositsby banks. . . ...... ... .. i 20,139 16,675 17,826
CUStOmMEr aCCOUNES . . . o v ittt ettt ettt e e e eeeen 40,162 37,726 38,056
Debt securities I iSSU€ . . . . . v vt vt ittt et et e 26,286 20,773 23,413
Other liabilities ... ..... .00ttt 7,037 5,249 5,708

it Subordinated liabilities . .............. ... 1,572 1,044 1,520

ik Liabilities of long-term assurance funds ... ............... 4,631 3,750 4,092
Total liabilities . . . ... ... e 99,827 85,217 90,615
Total shareholders’ funds. ... ......................... 3,928 3,593 3,704
Total liabilities and shareholders’ funds . .................. 103,755 88,810 94,319

¥

7

i

1
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ABBEY NATIONAL plc

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 1995

Year ended
Six months ended 30 June 31 December
1995 1994 1994
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
£m £m £m
Profit on ordinary activities after tax .........c.coooeenes 324 273 610
Translation differences on foreign currency net investment .. .. 1 (2 (M
Total recognised gains relating to the period . ... 335 271 603
ABBEY NATIONAL plc
RESULTS OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
GROUP PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 1995
Year ended
Six months ended 30 June 31 December
1995 1994 1994
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
£m £m £m
UK. Retail Banking . . . ..o ovovnenn oo 316 271 650
Life Assurance Operations . ..........coeeveeecroe 52 47 94
Consumer Credit . . ..o oo 17 14 31
Treasury and Offshore . ........vvvveeeeree e 109 99 190
Continental BUIOPE . .. oo vvnenvnnr e (11) (18) (36)
Other OPETAtONS . .« oo v vvvvvrenesss sttt 0 10 3
TOtal o oo e e 483 423 932

Effective as at and for the six-month period ended 30 June 1995, the Group has changed the analysis of
results of operations of the Group by principal business segment in order to improve comparability of results
across those business segments, by assuming a consistent allocation of Group capital.
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1

The comparative segmental results for the six months ended 30 June 1994 and the three year period
ended 31 December 1994 have been restated. The following table summarises effect of the change on the

results of operations for the comparative periods.

Six Months ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
‘ June 30, 1994 December 31, 1994 December 31, 1993 December 31, 1992
‘ Previously Previously Previously Previously
: Revised Reported Revised Reported Revised Reported Revised Reported
Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis
UK Retail Banking. ... ....... 271 314 650 741 543 618 452 540
; Consumer Credit . . . ......... 14 N/A 31 N/A 22 N/A 17 N/A
. Life Insurance Operations . . ... . 47 47 94 94 61 61 22 22
: Treasury and Offshore. . ... . ... 99 70 190 128 198 145 173 100
Continental Europe . .. ....... 18) [¢¥)) (36) (33) (108) (105) (50) (46)
2 Other Operations. . . . . ....... 10 9 3 2 20 17 7 S
| Residential Real Estate Brokerage . — — — = 2) 2) (20) (20)
t 423 423 932 932 734 734 601 601

The results now reflect the regulatory capital notionally absorbed by each principal business segment
based on the Group’s Bank of England regulatory requirements. To achieve this, a notional adjustment has
been made to the profit before tax of each business segment where relevant, by applying an average market-
related interest rate to the difference between the capital held in the segment and the capital which would be
required if the Group’s Bank of England risk asset ratio was applied to that segment.

The method of analysis previously adopted was based on the actual levels of capital of the legal entities
within the business segments, except that the earnings on the equity capital of both U.K. Retail Banking and
4 Treasury Operations were shown in the UK. Retail Banking segment.

In addition, effective July 1995, the following changes in the classification of businesses within segments
have been made in order to provide a clearer analysis of the nature of the Group’s business activities:

+ A new segment, Consumer Credit, has been separately disclosed. This segment includes the personal
unsecured lending operations previously included in U.K. Retail Banking, and would include the
results of FNFC plc from the date of its acquisition.

» The operations in Jersey and Gibraltar which were previously included in Continental Europe and
Offshore have been reclassified into Treasury Operations, reflecting the increasing similarities in the
activities of these operations. The segments have been renamed Continental Europe and Treasury

and Offshore.




ABBEY NATIONAL plc

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 1995

Year ended
Six months ended 30 June 31 December
1995 1994 1994
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
£m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities. . . .. .............. 7,198 4,795 6,343
Return on investments and servicing of finance
Dividends paid . .. ... ... . . e (158) (129) (204)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of
finance . . ... (158) (129) (204)
Taxation
U.K corporation tax paid . .............. .. ... ...... (20) (23) (93)
Overseas tax paid . ....... ...ty 1) — (5)
Total taxation paid .. ...... ... i (21 (23) (98)
Investing activities
Purchase of investment securities . . ................... (17,618) (18,566) (35,346)
Sales and maturities of investment securities . .. .......... 12,745 15,045 28,849
Purchase of tangible fixed assets ..................... (57) (43) (114)
Sales of tangible fixed assets . ....................... 6 4 10
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings . .................. 4) 15 (52)
Purchase of interests in associated undertakings .......... (15) — —
Net cash outflow from investing activities . .. ............... (4,943) (3,545) (6,653)
Net cash inflow before financing .. ........ ... .. ... ... ... 2,076 1,098 (612)
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital . ...................... 1 3 4
Issue of loan capital . ............. ... ... ... ... ..., 33 197 676
Repayment of loan capital . . ........ ... . ... ... ..., 8) 17 an
Net cash inflow from financing . . ........ ... .. .. ... .. .. 26 183 663
Increase in cash and cash equivalents .. .................. 2,102 1,281 51

Cash and cash equivalents in this statement are calculated in accordance with the definitions set out in
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 1. The Group’s total liquidity includes not only these cash and cash
equivalents but also certain other liquid assets which fall outside the FRS1 definition.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM ACCOUNTS

1. Suspended interest and provisions for bad and doubtful debts

Suspended interest

Residential Commercial Unsecured
UK. Europe UK. Europe UK. Europe Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

: At 1 January 1995 40 23 4 66 3 — 136
; Exchange differences. .................... — 2 — 6 — — 8
i Transfer from profit and loss account . ........ 14 4 — 7 — — 25
; Irrecoverable amounts written off ........... (22) 6] — (13) 1) — (40)

At30June 1995 . ... ... ... e 32 25 4 66 2 — 129

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts
Residential Commercial Unsecured

: UK. Europe UK. Europe UK. Europe Total
i £m £m £fm £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 1995

General . ... ..ot e e 56 3 1 5 6 — 71

Specific . ... ... 104 33 5 119 26 3 290

Exchange differences. . ................... — 3 — 10 — — 13

Transfer (to)/from profit and loss account. . . ... 15 3 — 3 7 — 28

Irrecoverable amounts written off ........... (22) (13) —_— (13) 8) — (56)

At 30 June 1995

General . ..........i i 46 3 1 7 6 — 63

Specific ....... ... .. i 107 26 5 117 25 3 283




GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group financial summary for each of the five years ended 31 December 1994 shown below has been
extracted from the consolidated financial statements of Abbey National plc, and is to be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes to those consolidated financial statements.

Profit and loss accounts

New Format
1994 1993 1992 1992 1991 1990
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income . . . .. ...oovonen e 1,394 1,338. 1,265 | 1,246 1,143 956
Other income and charges . .........oovrreerrr s 365 376 319 | 335 265 189
Operating eXpenses « « . . . .« ocv e vttt (755) (763) (706) (706)  (635) (508)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts . ...........-- (74) (218) (274) (274) (155)  (55)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments . ......... 2 1 3) — — —
Exceptional items:
Loss on disposal/reorganisation of estate agency
DUSITIESS + « o o v eoveeemvme e — (30) (138)| (138) — —
Sale of unclaimed shares ... ... ecovereorn e — — 101 101 — —
Profit on ordinary activities before tax.............- 932 704 564 564 618 582
Tax on profit on ordinary activities . . .« v v e e (322) (314) (247) (247) (204) (205)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax ...........c..-- 610 390 317 317 414 377
Transfer to non-distributable reserve .. ..........--- (65) (32 ) @) — —
Dividends . « oo oo (233) (184) (151) (151) (138) (125)
Retained profit for the year........c.oooerreerres 312 174 159 159 276 252
Profit on ordinary activities before tax and exceptional
items includes for:
operations acquired in theyear ........ovoveeers 22 — 30 30 — 4
operations discontinued in the year (with prior year
COMPATALIVE) .« « v v v evemeese s s s st — () (20)} (20 — —
Earnings Per Share ... ....c.ooverreea sty 46.5p 29.7p 24.2p| 24.2p 31.6p 28.8p
Dividends per share (pence)
NEL o« v oo et eee e 17.75p 14.0p 11.5p| 11.5p 10.5p 9.5p
Gross equivalent . . . .o h e 2219p 17.5p 14.7p| 14.7p 14.0p 12.7p
Dividend cover (Hmes) . ... .ooovvesee ey 2.6 21 2.1 2.1 30 30

Balance sheets, together with an explanation of the old and new formats are provided on pages F-66 and
F-67. The calculation of the gross equivalent dividend per share assumes a tax rate of 25% for grossing-up
purposes for dividends up to and including the interim dividend for 1992. Thereafter the rate of 20% has
been assumed.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Balance sheets (new format 1992-1994)

1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m

Assets
Cash, treasury bills and other eligible bills .. ................coovnnn 598 757 497
Loans and advances to banks . . . .. oo oo 2,906 3,556 2,276
Loans and advances tO CUSLOMEIS . . . v v v v e v v v oo ve oot an o ieaoeea s 48,484 45,049 42,061
Net investment in finance 1€ases. . . .« v v oo v i v i oot 2,278 2,253 1,737
Securities and INVESLMENES . . . . v v oot ittt et e e n e iee e i e 32,374 25,312 19,998
Long term assurance buSINEss ... ............ooeii i 352 287 215
Tangible fixed @SSELS .. ..ot 534 509 518
OhET ASSELS &+ & v v v e e e et e e ettt e e e 2,701 2,208 2,105
Assets of long term assurance UNAS . . e e e e 4,092 3,871 2,816
TOtAl ASSELS © + « v e v e e e e e e e 94,319 83,802 72,223
Liabilities
Deposits by banks . . ..o ot 17,826 16,368 13,103
CUSLOIMET ACCOUNES .+« « v v v v e e e et e e s aan e e e e e 38,056 36,143 34,348
Debt SECUITtIES IM ISSUE &+ v v v v v e v i e et ee et et e e ie oo e s 23,413 19,030 14,929
Other Habilities « « o v v v v ettt e e et e e e 5,708 4,136 3,195
Subordinated LHabilities . . .. v v oot i e 1,520 868 648
Liabilities of long term assurance fUnds ..o e e 4,092 3,871 2,816

90,615 80,416 69,039
Total shareholders’ funds . . .« .o oo it oo 3,704 3,386 3,184
Total HHAbIlItIES & » « « o v vt e ettt e e e e 94,319 83,802 72,223

The Group financial summary for the years 1992, 1993 and 1994 is shown in a format which reflects the
changes resulting from the implementation of the Companies Act 1985 (Bank Accounts) Regulations 1991,
which reflect the requirements of the EC Bank Accounts Directive and which were first effective for the 1993
accounts. The Group financial summary contains a summarised presentation of the main statements, while

the complete Bank Accounts Directive format is provided in the accounts.

The Group financial summary before 1992 has not been restated for the new format. The new format is
fundamentally different from the old format, and the directors have decided that the benefits which would
be derived from restating the accounts for the years prior to 1992 would not justify the cost of such an
exercise. The old and new format profit and loss accounts have been presented in the same table. However,

the balance sheet formats are significantly different, and are presented separately.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Balance sheets (old format 1990-1992)

1992 1991 1990
£m £m £m

Assets

Cash and short term funds. . ..« cvvvenv e 3819 5193 4,035
Securities and INVESMENLS . .« v oo oo v vvvecrnnnn st n o 17,186 9,995 6,113
Advances secured on residential property .. ... e 40,399 37,867 34,044
Other advances secured onland . ......oovenereer e T0s 636 639 678
Net investment in finance 1€ases. .. .......oover e nns 1,781 729 104
Other commercial @SSELS . ..« vvvnv v e er e 1,076 451 292
Long term assurance DUSITIESS + v v v oo enmesammesmn s s 215 — —
Long term inVeStmMEnts « ... .coovee s st T 1,567 1,249 385
Tangible fiXed @SSELS . .« v ovve e se e 518 489 354
Other assets . .. covvvveeecrores I I 1,799 793 491
Assets of long term assurance FUNGAS + 2 v oo e i 2,816 — —
TOLAL BSSELS « + « « v v v v vee e e 71,812 57,405 46,496
Liabilities and shareholders’ funds

Retail funds and deposits . . . .« oo oo v v e 33,616 32,711 29,735
Non-retail funds and deposits. . .« .o vvvvve e 29,330 19,642 12,440
Other HADIHES « « « « v v e v v v v mmmrer e ey 2,218 1,693 1,389
Subordinated Habilities . .. ... eornrnee T 648 388 233
Liabilities of long term- assurance FUNAS +ovvevvm e 2,816 — —
Total HabIlities . . v« v vvvvresormnemesm s et 68,628 54,434 43,797
Total shareholders’ funds . . ..« o ovvvvvnmn e 3,184 2971 2,699
Total liabilities and shareholders’ funds. . ... oo vvmmvm e 71,812 57,405 46,496

The principal reclassifications required by the Bank Accounts Directive affect the balance sheet and
were reflected in the new format 1992 balance sheet as follows:

The heading Cash and short-term funds was replaced by the more restrictive heading Cash, treasury
bills and other eligible bills. Certificates of deposit previously included within Cash and short term funds are
now shown within Securities and investments. Short term loans to banks previously included within Cash and
short term funds are now shown within Loans and advances to banks. Loans and advances are now analysed
by bank and non-bank counterparties. Securities and investments now include debt securities and equity
shares and other variable yield securities of all maturities. Retail and non-retail funds and deposits are now
analysed into deposits by bank and non-bank counterparties, and debt securities. Accrued interest is shown
separately in the accounts, and is included within Other liabilities in the Group Financial Summary.

In addition to the format reclassification, the Bank Accounts Directive requires certain other assets and
liabilities, which were previously shown net, to be shown gross. The effect on the 1992 balance sheet was to
increase both assets and liabilities by £300m. The implementation of the SORP on securities resulted in a
further increase in both assets and liabilities of £111m in the 1992 balance sheet.

F-67




REGISTERED OFFICE OF ABBEY NATIONAL

Abbey House
Baker Street
London NW1 6XL

AUDITORS

Coopers & Lybrand
Chartered Accountants
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6NN

MANAGERS

Merrill Lynch International Limited Kleinwort Benson Limited
Ropemaker Place 20 Fenchurch Street
25 Ropemaker Street EC3P 3DB
London EC2Y 91IY

Barclays de Zoete Wedd Limited HSBC Markets Limited

Ebbgate House Thames Exchange
2 Swan Lane 10 Queen Street Place
London EC4R 3T London EC4R 3BQ

SBC Warburg
A division of Swiss Bank Corporation
1 High Timber Street
London EC4V 35B

LEGAL ADVISERS

To the Managers and the Trustee
Linklaters & Paines
Barrington House
59-67 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7JA

To Abbey National
Slaughter and May
35 Basinghall Street
London EC2V 5DB

REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT

Abbey National plc
Shareholder Services
Carbrook House
5 Carbrook Hall Road
Sheffield S9 2EG

LISTING SPONSOR

Merrill Lynch International Limited
Ropemaker Place
25 Ropemaker Street
London EC2Y 9LY

Printed by Merrill Burrups B336204
London, Frankfurt, Hong Kong, Luxembourg, New York, Paris, Tokyo and Washington D.C.




